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INVESTMENT CASE
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Structural tailwinds in
attractive markets
Dpzortunity 1o grow nar<e: sharein meamngful

high return - srhat ae nac<ed by
infrast e neage e and Ianeg ter frnweth
drvers

Read more on Our Market Place
on pages 810 9.

Strong execution track record
Pl & Simeh's autonomous model has delivered

swong aerfonmance over the long term Our
aglle ousness model has beon <cy 1o Mugatng
challenges arcund supoly cham, labour and COVID

Ou nodels scalasle and supoorted by an
ambrious management team
Read more in our Operational and Financial
Review on pages 22 to 31.

Focus on high value

niche applications

Our g casing focus on high value, fast growing
niche rarke:s fuels organc growsh and generates
nighes g o3z ira ging and stiong 2ash convearsion

Read more on Qur Divisions
on pages 3 and 13.

Portfolio management

Qu structured and disciphned appreach o
acqusitions and disansals means we are
nereasing the quality of the onerating oo ™sanies
shar make uo the Grouo and ensuning that they are
each aligned to long ter v growth drnivers

cTve ranage nent wiltun our operating
ZoTpanies drves gioss margin mmprovenen?
and allows remvestment in areas of 'alent and
INNOVALIDN

Read more on Our Business Model
on pages 10to 11.

Purpose and sustainability

We have a clear and well understood purpose

Our oreducts are facused onincreasing the

sustainamlity of infrastructure and making

Transpoit safer

@ Read more on Qur Sustainability Plan
on pages 32 to 57.

Strong balance sheet and

cash generation

High and improving returns convert INto strong
cash generation, allowing investment ta further
grow the husiness and deliver a sustainadle,
progressive dividend policy

Read more in our Operaticnal and Financial
Review on pages 30 to 31.

FIVE-YEAR TRACK RECORD

Revenue' (Em)
732.1
6172 gagd G252 l

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Underlying operating profit’ (£m)

97.1
744 803
' . i

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
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Underlying earnings per share {(p}

91.9
779
632 l

2018 2019 2020 2021

778 807

Dividend per share (p)
313 310

267
"uE

2018 2019 2020 2021

Scope 1 & 2 Carbon emissions
{market-based consumption} (tonnes)

80,918

73,281
66,774

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
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HIGHLIGHTS

GROUP HIGHLIGHTS:

Underlying* Change Statutory Change
31 31 Constant 31 31
December December Reported Currency December December Reported
2022 2021 % % occ™ % 2022 20214 %
Continuing Operations
Revenue £732.1m L6252 +17% +12% +14% £732.1m £&252m +17%
Operating profit £97.1m £/7/3m +26% +17% +14% £78.5m £48 9m +67%
Operating margin 13.3% 124% +90bps 10.7% 7 8% +2900ps
Profit before tax £87.9m £71 2m +23% £69.3in11 42 8m B2%
Earnmngs per share 85.4p 70.0p +22% 7 766.7p 3580 +86%
Total Group™
Earnings per share 91.9p 779p 7 +18% ) 71.0p 43 0p +65%
Draidend per share 35.0p 37 0p +13% 35.0p 3" 0p +73%

ST
tre s o
ey,
Stz

KEY HIGHLIGHTS:

Record trading performance

T4% argantc Consiant currency
revenue and ronit grawth

Growth sigmficantly drven by 1S
businesses which rexesented 64% of
Group operating profit

Operating margin mncreased Sy 90bps
‘013 3%, reflecting st ong coarational
performance, pnicing actions and
portfoha evolution

Srrong performance highlights the
resilience of our chesen long term
end markets and focus on higher
grow:h susinesses

02  Hill&Smith PLC -
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Significant pregress on portfolio
management

Announcenent of two value
enhancing acquiSitions i
Qctober 2022

—  Natonal Signal, & high growth LS
off grid solar hghtng business,

for £24 2m

Widnes Galvanising, expanding
our galvanizing footpnntin the
LK for £39m

Acquisttion of Enduro Cornposites
In February 2023 for £28 7m fu-the:
accelerating our US comacsites
growth strategy

Acquisition of Korns Galvaimizing in
March 2023 for £9 4m, supporing
growth in attractive LS galvanizing
market

Disposal of France Galva in Ocioher
20272 for £62 0 reduces our
exaosure 10 lower growth, lowe:
rrargin French galvanizing maket

Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Refreshed financial framework reflecting
Group's growth potential

Improved cash generation in second
half, with year-end covenant leverage at
0.7 times

Final dividend of 22p proposed, a

16% increase on 2021, in line with the
Group's sustainable and pregressive
dividend policy

Well-positioned in structurally growing
end markets and expect to make further
progress in 2023, despite macro-
economic uncertainties



GROUP AT A GLANCE

.

GROUP SUMMARY

Qur porfolio: As at 37 Decemper 2022,
the Grown consisted of 30 comnanies
onera'ng b om 57 sites in five countries,
through which we aim to deliver tugh
lovels of organie growth and strong

zash conve sion Thase zowpanesa e
supported oy a head office team who
offer suoaodt and leadershipin areas
nctuding capial allocaton, M&A, health
&safety, tax, legal and sustamamility

[9] ROADS &
SECURITY

Suzalyimg oroducts and services (o

sunaort road and highway infrastructure

ncluding tenpoiary and permanent road
sately barriers, renewabie cnergy hghting

and aower solutions, mtelligent cra®fic
solutisns, street ighung colurmns and
bridge oaraoets The secunty portfoho
ncludes hostile vehicle rritigation
solunons, high secunty fencing and
automated gate solutions

Roads & Security
% Group Revenue 36%
% Group Operating 199

Profit

Our operating framework: Ve onerate

a decentalised autonorous ooe-ating
Tadel, which beneits from high
accountanility, agiliy and cusome”
ntimacy, and helns us to at lalented
seoale who wan: to ma<e a difference

ENGINEERED
SOLUTIONS

Suoplying engineered steel and
cormaosite solutions with low erbodied
enorgy for a wide -ange of infast-ucture
Tarkets including energy generanion and
distribunon, manne, rall and housing The
division also supolies seismic protection
solutions and engineered pipe supports
‘or the water, sower and liquid natural
gas marke!s.

Engineered Solutions

40%

36% 45%

Sustainability built in: Our p-oducis and
services help transport hecome saer and
in‘rastruciuce oecome More sustalasle,
with our custorrers benefitting through
the value that ouwr oroducts and services
arovidle

GALVANIZING
SERVICES

=

Supplying a service that dramatically
ncreases the sustainaosiity and
maintenance free life of steel products
This includes structu-al steelwork,
highting, bridges, agncultural equiament
and othe products for theindustnal and
infrastructure mar<ets

Galvanizing Services

24%

Stock Code HILS
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INTERIM EXECUTIVE CHAIR'S LETTER

A

Dear Stakeholder

2022 has been a year in which
we have delivered record
revenue and profits despite
the challenges of a difficult
macro-economic backdrop.
We have aiso made significant
progress in delivering on our
ME&A strategy.

Performance Highlights

On a continuing ozerations 3asis the Group
had revenue of £732.1m (2021 £625 2) and
cocatng profi of £97 Tm (2021 £77 3m),

e eSentng an arganic revenue and O3arating
arofit growth of 14% Operating margins
improved rom *2.4% 0 13 3% Contnuing
ope-atons reflects the disposal of Franze Salva
dunng the year, with the =rance Galva resulis
seing shown as discontinued Doerations in
Both the current and anor year figures

nderomning these results was a strong
serformance across both our Galvanizing

and -ngineered Sclutons dwasions, delvering
organic oneratng profit growth of 23% and
24% regoectively. By contrast, our Roads &
Secuty division saw broadly flat earmings
dunng the year, impacted by defays in strategic
road netwark projects in the UK, and certam
operational 1Issues in our US Roads business

While we saw lower cash conversion in the
firs® hal® of the year as we made a Strategic
decisian to hold higher levels of stock in the
face of significant sunoly chain uncertanties,
we saw rach Froioved cash generation in
the sacond hal® of the year at 93%, giving f1se
toa full year cash conversion of 51% As at

31 Decemnoe: 2077 total net ded” was

£719 7 (2027 £144 7)) I2aving financimg
headroom of £237 9 on the Group's
borrowing facihities Return on capeal
ermrpioyed was 19.2% (202" 17 1%)

Board and Employees

In July, Paul Simmons steaped down as Chief
“xocutve of Hill & Smith, and | was asked

by he Board ro ta<e on the rote of interim
Executive Chanr Pauljoimed FhE& S1ithin
Seotermber 2020, and | would like to thank
him for fus contnzution dunmng this pened

Sinze the half year we have made five new
anaqing Director aspointments These
include our first two fernale Managing 2irectors
within the Group, Rachel Preen at Prolectic
Services, our UK solar ighting business and
Qase Mary Clysuin a Hifl & Smith Ine |, our US
roads business Being able to attract and retam
key talent 5 absotutely cntizal o our Jusiness,
and 1 is something that | and the Board have
as one af our key priciries

2022 has thrown up a range of challenges *or
oul wider workforce In the first hal® of the year
we faced a number of supply chain challenges,
as weil as increased energy costs, partcularly
in the UK in the second half of the year we
have seen significant inflation and related
econDmc uncertainties inflation inpacted
Input £0848 1INto our Husiness, bus also created
significant cost of living aressures for ou”
ermployees. | am pleased that our ousinesses
have responded so proactively, using in-yeas
salary reviews, one-off cos: of iving oayments,
casis loans and vanable pay awards to helo
SUPPOTt oUr lower iIncome emaloyees

Juning the year we also set up a Charirable
Donanien Matching Pragrammme The
arograTme Tarches chasitable “unds raised

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

by ou mvrployees oo an aophcalinn 0asis
and ardle o omasloyees nall our
aoesatng unadicions Juing the yoa. we
have maizhed donanions senefitung 2auses
such as DEC Lkrame, Wa' Child Lk ane
Aumanitanan Appesl Cancer fezsea ch LK
and vany miore and wee were Jehoghied 1o
supaor thess “und: asings

Governance

The Board continues to ne comnitted to

*he highest standards of governance, and
staxeholder conside atons emam ceniral

to the Board's docaion raking Our full
Coroorate Governance Report including
detals of our comphanze with the UK
Corporate Governance Code 15 58" out on
pages 74 ‘¢ 85 This ncludes a numrber of
changes which we have made during the year
w0 ou gove nance appreach to reflect the fact
1 have taken on an executive “ole dunng *he
sacond hal® of tha yes

Az approved at the Company's AGM i
Novemper 2022 the Company dropaed
Foldings” from s naTe and simphfied it
to Hilb & Smith PLC We also refreshed the
Groun's logo

Health & Safety
The mag-tance of health & safely cannat
be over-esumated Our emplovees ightiully
expect 10 ne keo safe at wor< and the Boa-d
of Hill & SMith taces therr resaonsitahties
oxtemely senously, with health and safety
seing a standing iten an each Board agenda
_ost Time Injury Reports are monttored
caefUlly, and | have been extremely pleased
by the progress that has ceen made, with the
ost Time Injury Rate declinng rom 171011
{gee pages 20 and 21 for iroe detals)

Strategy

Hill & Smith has avey clea swrategy We
focus our caoral into aur highest g-owth
markets, consistent with our pu-pose, and
behind our npest management teams We
then seek to complement this with selective
ME&A A the hea of our strategy lies our
auronomous busmess model, which 15 about
qving ownership *o our local teams to drive
performance In therr busmesses 115 also
about excellence in execution both when we
are acqutiring businesses, but also where we
see underperformance i our por:folic and
there 1s a need to take proactive pe-formance
and management actions.

M&A Activity

One of the areas | committed to giving greater
facus o was driving our MEA stratagy In
Gctober we announced two acquisitions,
National Signal, a California-hased market
leader in solar hghting serving the LS market
and Widnes Galvanising Widnes Galvamising
gives us a stronger foothold in the

northwest of the UK, and as a -esult s highly
comalementary to our Josenh Ash ausiness



A

- Hill & Smithhas a .

-..very clear strategy
‘We focus our capi
mto our htghest

Stock Code HILS

Snce the yes: end we have made swo furthe
anquesnons 10 Tenigary 200 we angured
Cndurn Soronsiies, A it

LARRMSE

March 2023 w2 announ.
ot Korns Galvarzng, wh

s galvarzing, and s sasot o Johnsown,
Pannsyhaa
We atso made one matenal disansal dusing

the yea:, =rance Galva SA The dealccoved
sharehoider anproval en 5 Sexember 22772
and coempleted on 4 Gotooer 2622 The
dezision to sell Tranze Galva reflected aur
wiew That the French moaiket woul e
to be extremely competitive and as such

we would not be able 1o mee aur ta-geted
returns th-ough owning the Susiness Futther
nforranon on the dissosal can 2e tound on
page 146

Sustainability and ESG

The Grous s nindul o7 our Imeact on
clirrate change and sustainasility Thisis

falt throughout the business and dunng the
course of 2022 we have ads good nrogess
0 his area Lusinda canangton Pasker poined
as Goup Head 2F Sustamanility 0 -eb.uary
2027 and has been resgonsible for helping
drive our 250G sTrategy Inevitably we a-e at
the start of a long journey, sut | have been
iy essed Dy 'he progress made to date and
the zommizmean: of sur senior Tanagement
Sinze hacoming Executive Chati 1 hs
oined our £SG Contmizee, which renor:s to
the Board

-

e

P AT I ES I e

Dividend and Annual

General Meeting

The Board has orooosad a final dividend of
27 00 (2027 03 3p)which if azsoved would
rasuloin g full year dividend o0 35 05312020

37 (ol anincrease of " 3% while <eeping
dividend ind A tnes undalying
24iN1Y3

180d3d 21931vH1S

covar 5°

The Annuail Ge'm’a\ Meotng of “ne Conary
witl be held a D% @ on Thursday 25 May
2023 az Cranrrare Par< Con‘erence, Event &
Fxhibiion Centre, Cranmore Avenue, Shirley,
West Midlands, BSO 4_F Unved Kingdom
The meeting 13 anadeal {5 um tor -asing any
questions you may have of your Board, and

' hope many of you will za<e advantage of
this opportunity | very much ook forward o
meeting you there

Looking Ahead

Hill & Savth has a vety 2ffective business
mrodel and a very strong culture We are
facing imo a number 0° high growth end
markets diiven by m‘raq"’u"'ur’e soend,
partcularly i the US, which should allow

1S 0 Zominue ta -Jeiavﬂr a;.ac*we 23°NINg3
growth through the oycle Comrbmed wirh a
STroNg senior ranage rent ieam and a highly
cormritad workforee, | feel very confiden:
aoouws the medium and long tem prosoects .
‘ar -he Group

Alan Giddins
Interim Executive Chair

8 March 2023

as
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OUR PURPOSE AND STRATEGY

Creating

sustainable
infrastructure

and safe transport
through innovation

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Macro drivers

Increasing population
Urbanisation
Climate change

Increasing health and
safety regulations

Market drivers

.

-

Sustainable materials
Decarbonisation
Infrastructure safety
Enabling technclogy
Vision Zero

P Y Y Y P Y Y

Applications
and niches

Systematic process

Faster growing niche
opportunities

Critical applications

Read more on Qur Market Place
on pages 8to 9.




R L L R R Y PR

Organic growth
« Autonomous operating model
Agihty/proxirmity to market
Premium on talent
Innovation

PR R Y L R ]

Portfolic management
+  Disciplined M&A
— Fitwith purpose and market drivers
— Strategic raticnaie
- Fast growing niche markets
- Credible organic growth plan

tesvrneans Py E I R L

ESG
+ Protecting the world
+  Baving anc enhancing iives
~ Health & Safety
— Talent and diversity

+  Sustainable governance

T N R N Y T Y N Y

Financial model

+  Organic profit growth/strong cash
conversion
Conservative financial leverage
Allocate capital to high growth/return
oppoertunities (M&A and organic)
2 Bx underlying earnings dividend poiicy

@ Read more on Our Business
Model on pages 10 to 11,

Stock Code HILS

4. WHAT?

P L L L L L L T TN

Superior
long term
stakeholder
value

®

Read more on Our Investment Case
on the inside front cover.

Read more on Our Business Modei
onpages 10to 11,

Read more on Cur Approach to
Sustainability on pages 32 to 57.

140434 21931vHLS




WHERE WE OPERATE — OUR MARKET PLAC‘E_‘

W e

NICHE MARKETS

We focus on fast growing niche markets that have high
barriers to entry and deliver high margins.

TS ST

- . -
Power station, Will County, Illinois.
Supported by TPG

Why we focus on these markets...

GALVANIZING SERVICES

Hot-ciy galvanizing ensures that steel ; -
products last for decades, without YA SRR
the need for retreatment, and that o o

the steel is fit for recyeling when the

preduct eventually reaches the end

of its life 1t has strong sustainability

credentials. We taxe great care to

ensure that the process does nos

adversely Impact the environment.

The end markets that our UK and US
galvanmizing businesses serve are many
and vaned including growth industries
such as road and rail infrastiuciuie,
water freatment, construction,

and electrical transrssion and
distnibution. Qur operating cemaanies
target above indusiry growth rates
through thoughtful invesinrent and
supericr service

In the US, we exgect 1o senefrt
from both increased en-shong of
manufacturing and high infia
spend as a result of the I
infrastruciure and Jobs At |

08  Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accournts 2022




TRENDS

INCREASING POPULATION

By the late-2030s the world's populauon s forecast to be o 6 0bn,
comaared with 8 Obn in 2022, This increase In podulation, an
ncreasing proportian of whom are aged, wilt drive anincrease in the
need for safe, sustainable infrastructure

Effect

Ag the popu’alion increases, the need for mfrastruciure investment
increases accordingly to ensure congestion does net increase
paliution or erode economic productity or quanty of life.

Opportunities

The increase in INfrastructure Investment required 1§ an oppertunity for
all our operating companies, as they supply products to the roads, rail,
water reatment, and transmission and distribution markets

Our galvanizing plants supply products across all sectors.

URBANISATION

The population of peaple living in towns and cities 1S increasing, with
rmore than half of the world's population now living i urban areas. The
UN believes that by 2050, this proportion will increase ta two thirds

Effect

Increasing gopulation density creates the nisk of insufficient
infrastructure, and Increased pollution due to industrial actvities
Government and private funding will be needed to address these
cancerns.

Cpportunities

Increased urbarisations generates opportunities for our companies
that supply Into roads, rail, water treatment, and transrmission &
distribution markets as well as general bullding construction and
includes products such as galvanized steel, pipe supports and
hangers, and cooling towers

CLIMATE CHANGE

The world is expenencing the drastic effects of chmate change
Greenhouse gas emyssions are mare than 50% higher than 20 years
ago. Global warming is causing long-lasting changes to the Earth's
climate system

Effect

To keep giobal warrming to a minimum of 1.5°C, infrastructure needs
to be transitioned tG clean energy sources To mitigate against the
extreme weather events caused by globai warming, infrastructure
needs to become more resiliant,

Opportunities

We produce a number of products that help to reduce climate change
and improve infrastructure resilience, protecting against extreme
weather.

Qur galvanized steel is 100% recyciable, reducing the renewal of steel
structures. We also have camposite praducts which are comosion
resistant and ightweight, including cooling towers which use 25%-
45% less energy than maove traditional systems; and fire-resistant
utility poles.

Qur solar lighting towers and hybrid generators reduce greenhouse
gas ermissions guring construction activity

HEALTH & SAFETY LEGISLATION

Health & safety requirements are increasing across the globe as
people and governments demand higher standards of safety and
perscnal health, -

Effect

The impacts of more demanding standards are seen across our
markets from the impiementation of new requirements for crash
barrfers to the requirerrierit for Tramsmission poles to be resistant to
wildfires.

Opportunities ’ :

More demanding standards create opportunities for a number of our
businesses including seismic restraints, temporary and permanent
cragh barrier and Utility poles.

-

MACRO DRIVERS MARKET DRIVERS

SUSTAINABLE MATERIALS

Materals that do not dedlete non-renewable resources and help the
construction industry achieve net zers carbon emissions are becoming
increasingly reguired

Effect

The drve lowards sustainability will impact the choice of matenals placing
a premiuem on low-embodied carbon matenats and matenals that are
suitable for the circular economy

Opportunities

Cur composites products are used in a number of applications ncluding
bridge decks, boardwalks, cooling towers, utlity poles and waterfront
nfrastructure.

We expect the range of applications to sncrease as acceptability of the
products continues to increase

DECARBONISATION

The US and UK Governments have both agread to meet the carbon
reduction goals of the Paris Agreerment

Effect

Governments are requiring organisations to make a net zero commitment and
stant to take approprate action. The impacts of this are widespread and both
present an opportunity to play a meaningful part in the transition and place a
requirament on businesses, including Hill & Smith, 1o reduce therr own carbon
production

Opportunities
We aim to he at the forefront of decarbomising all processes across our
businesses, so we are the supplier of choice.

ENABLING TECHNOLOGY

As sensing and data become less expansive and more prevalent it can lead
10 breakthroughs i how systemns function.

Effect

within Hitt & Smuth’s markets, the Roads rmarket 15 an early adopter.
Connected technology is used 10 increase the safety of road workers and
reduce congestion through road works to minimise the econamic impact
The effect of enabling technology will be felt across all markets in the
medium term

Opportunities

We are actively iooking at how this type of technology can be incorporated
into more of our products, having implemented this in our US roads product
portfolo

VISION ZERO

Vision Zero 1s a Strategy to eliminate all traffic fatalities and severe injuries,
while increasing safe, heaithy, eguitable mobilty for all. First implemented
in Sweden in the 1990s, Vision Zerc has proved successful across Europe
and has recently been adopted by the US Goverament in their National
Roadway Safety Strategy to reduce the 40,000 p.a. US road deaths.

Effect

Road systems afe being designed to eliminate deaths, acknowledging
that human error is inevitable. This places a greater onus on the road
infrastructure and wili drive the implementation of new technology and
higher standards.

Qpportunities

We aim to be at the forefrant of the development of Vehicle Restraint
Systems (VRS and passive safety systems to respond o the fatest trends
In Vision Zero, S

Our companies in the US, UK and Australia are active in both termporary and
perrmanent VRS and passive safety products.

INFRASTRUCTURE SAFETY _

Poor infrastructure resilience such as tidge collapses, rail accidents and
wildfires can lead to high profile incidents This leads to an increased focus
on infrastructure safety.

Effect
The public is understandably intolerant of infrastructure faflures This has
led to increased funding to address 1ssues.

Opportunities

We are focused on further developing our restlient infrastructure products
which include fire resistant utility pales and composite products for the
waterfront and rail markets

Stock Code HILS
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HOW WE OPERATE = OUR BUSINESS MODEL

DRIVING ORGANIC GROWTH

Autonomous operating model

We poerata a decent-alised awtonamous aoeiating nodel,
which benefits from a highly accountanle managoement, agility
and customer ntimacy, with the atliy to att-act slented
peonle who want o Ta<e a diference Ourindividual soerating
companies a'e encouragad and incanivised o exetise agilny
and entrepienewahs, and we ailaw then oom o do 5o This

Premium on talent

Talerred neople are fundamental 'o the succ2yss of o
decentralised oneating 1~odel. 99% o our employees a e employed
Oy ou” ooeratng somoanies We slace great importance on
att-acting, develooing, and retaiming excesuenal pesole from across
the whole comarunity We see< o oieale an emarcnment i whizh
individual differenzes  esoected and oveiyone can give thes Best

aloroach ensures that decisions are nade close to the ma-ket
and that ou- businesses can respond -apidly ooth I aonortunities
and to changes in therr competive envic-onment

W reorured a Head of Reward and a Head oF Talent o o
sTall Greup HR team who advise on culiure and pelicy, o aate
developrent programmes, and manage the career and capaoiliny
development or high potential talent Qur ope-zling comoanies
are supporled oy a comrunity of 42 pofessionals who enable
“he <ey cmoloyrean: st-ategies, arogranumes, and rosesses,

-0 ensure that the husiness atlracrs and retams the skills and
capahilittes required 1o deliver the strategy

More imforrration on the Group's aporoach to talent and diversity
zan 2e found on pages 44 10 48

Innovation

Innovation (s nsirumental in suppoTing our long term Jrganic
profit growil targets We are committed o innovating roduss o
the medim term that meet evalving cusiomer and Tarke: neads
We continue 10 acceleate our rate of innovauon through our
innovation werkshops

J

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT

A disciplined M&A approach

Acquistions form a key element o the Group's growth strategy Al potential
acquisitons are bghtly evaluated to ensure they it with aur purpase and can
defiver sustamabla organic arofit growth. Duning the vear we mada good 2rogress
i ouilding our MaA oipeline and we will develop this further in 2023

During 2022, we comaleted the disposal of France Galva which reduces our
exposure 1o he lower growth, lower margin “rench galvanizing market We
acquered National Signal, a high growth designer and manufacturer of off gnd solar
hghting soluzions in California, and Widnes Galvamising. 1o expand our geographng
footp int into the northwest of the UK.

Inearly 2023 we have also acquired Enduro Comoosites and Kons Galvanizing,
both dusmesses hasadm the US

\

10 Hill & Smith PLC - Annuzl Report and Accounts 2022



Vehicle safety barrier by Hill & Smith Infrastructure, A9 Drumaochter

Sustainability

The magonty o our rovene 15 denvedt
from products and scrviges that Maxe
SrLCilTe MoTe sustainable or keeo
people safe ForexaTole our composie
oroducts, due o thewr low weight and high
suength have lowa” embadied ene gy
than = adeional matenals Inrecent

yeas we have added solar powered
lkghing solutions o our portfalo, helaing
ou customers 1o redyce ther carbon
emssiong Simitarly, our galvanizing
selvices axtend the iifo of steel products
by decades, reducing carson @MSsIONS
by orevenung rusting and ensuning that

at the end of the product's Iife the steelhis
fit foi recyehng Our purpose ensures that
sustanability 15 a natural sart of everything
That we do.

More informacion on the Groug's adpraach
0 sustananility can be found on pagas
3204

Health & Safety

The health, sataty and wellbeiny o

ow emoloyees s a key focus across

all ooerating companies Al sites are
comutted to miznmising the risks that
nur people and visito s face daily, ensuning
tha thel policies, procedures, and ris<
assessrents ae followed. Increasingly
the Grouo adopis measures to Tamtain
a sa‘e working envilonment and to
ensure wok related ns<s are effectively
identified and controlled Cur maniteing
stogranmes heln 1o s30t1ssues al the
aaihest ooooriunity and lessons a's
learned f-am any events that do oceur

More m‘orrmation on the Sioup's aoproach

o health & safely can be found on dages
421043

Governance

Ag amie national group, we rezognse
that acting ethically owa ds our
emvloyees and other stakeholders shows
our CONETIMENT 10 doINg BUSINess 1 a
rezdonsibte manner

~

Mora mforrnanon on the Gious's anornach
to sustainable govenance can ne found
o nages 50 o 5/

FINANCIAL MODEL

Our financial model is based on strong
cash generation This allows us to
allocate caoital to acrelerate organic
growth, to make high qualty acquisihons
and ‘o mamtain & sustainable,
progressive dividend policy

Cur objective 1s to deliver annual cash
conversion above 80% and we seek 10
maintain conservative leverage, targering
a covenant net debt to EBITDA rato of
10t02Dtmes

N

Capital Aliocation Priorities

1. Reinvesting for organic growth
We allocate capital to supoort organic
growth, with the focus on higher
retu'n niches and growth markets

2. Targeted acquisitions to
enhance growth
Acguisitions must fit with our purpose
and strategy We follow a structured
approach 1o acquisitions based on a
clear set of financal criteria, and we
expect acquistions to achieve returns
sbove our Groug WACC within a three-
year ameframe

3. Sustainable and progressive
dividend growth
We understand the rmportance of
oroviding consistent and g-owing
returns to our shareholders, and
+he Group's strong fevels of casn
generation allow us ‘0 Invest In
organic and inorganic growth while
paying a progressive dividend
We target dividend cover of ¢ 25
tmes underlying earnings

We use return on invested captal {ROICY
1o measure au- overall capital efficiency
with a targel of achieving relums in
excess 0f 18%, above the Groun's cost of
capital, through the cycle.

Stock Code HILS

LHOdIY 193LvHLS
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WHAT WE DO -

-

DELIVER LONG TERM STAKEHOLDER VALUE

EECEREE

Through our international group of companies we aim to deliver long ferm
value for all cur stakeholders by fulfilling our purpose and strategy.

12

o N
EMPLOYEES
Talented people are ‘undamental :o the success in order to achieve sustainable profitable organic grawth, our
cf our decentralised model We aim to prowide safe, operating companies seek to create and provide orodu!s that oul
high-quality jobs for our employees worldwide, customers need They are supported by the -esources of a larger
offering the ac:ential for career develooment group grang them access to cash for capital investment, for sroduct
and socip-econcmic mobility. We are comrmitted innavatan, olant and eguipment and development, [nretuim they
0 ensuning that we srovide stable, inclusive must operate within a discinhined framewaork of clear strategic and
emotoyment for alt membeis of the community 1n financial priontes, whilst at the same ume anplying the appiopnate
successful and sustainable businesses. level of corparate governance and reporting
N AN
N ™
i CUSTOMERS
COMMUNITIES B3l AnD SUPPLIERS SHAREHOLDERS
Qur autchomous cerating Cur Supoliers work closely with our Zor our investors, we aim (o defiver
companies can work directly with operating companies and we have superior shareholder returns ‘hrough
their local communities n supporting strong “elationships that ensure a far our strategy and scalable business
therr ecanomic aspirations and local and equitable financial arrangerrent model. We aperate across several
chantable initiatives. N ) geographies and therefore are not
Qur L,ustomgrs have confidence dependent on one economy for
in our expertise anq our ability to our success. We are focused on
suppart Gritical projects _They benefil terntories where there are existing
from the value that our dwersg range high levels of investment, driven
of products and services provide by the need to upgrade or replace
existing ageing infrastructure
This drives high cash generation
that we are able to redistribute
to our shareholders through our
progressive dridend oolicy
N VAN J

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022




DIVISIONS

Solar LED lights, Burnley
General Hospital

ﬁ ROADS &
SECURITY

Burnley General ' losmital was loo<ing
for reliabie year-round hghting o
lurinate its staf* car zar< With ne
mains powai supply. they needed

a solution that would save on the
tugh costs of a stnbution Networs
Operato” connection o get sower to
the site Piolectnc’s A=6 Solar L=D
street hights, with smart control and
Passive Infra Red sensors that ensure
the hghts waork frony dusk until dawn
throughout all seasons, were the
ideal solution Prolectrnic designed
the lighting layour 1o BS 5489-1.2020
frghway standards and instalied the
lights using therr in-house team

Sustainability Improvements

The solar powered lights are zero
carbon and need no mains power,
saving energy use f-om the gnd. They
are quick and easy 10 nstall with no
trenching, ducting, or cabling and
need No maintenance, so have zero
running costs

Prolectric Services
Www.orolectnic oo Uk

. Y,

StormStrong® utility poles, Maine

.

ENGINEERED
SOLUTIONS

A unility company in Maine, LSA
contacted our Crealve Composiies
Group 1o discuss StormStrong ',
‘storm oroof utihty pales Maine faces
several challenges 1t s geograshically
dispersed with harsh, unpaved werram
often in agtween ustomess and
sowes huhs, and s also imoaacted each
vear by deep freezes thick snow and
ice, and heavy ramfall Storm3irong”
ooles are equal to Mane's toughest
condmions They abso'b significan:
impact encr gy, commaonly caused by
gavere 5:0rms In addition they are ior
and woodoecker proof.

Sustainability Improvements
S:ormStrong poles, having low
embodied carbon and reducing
~ehance on wood, stand up to the
most extreme weather, terrain and
environmental conditions o helo
create a resiient gnd and to protect
utihty custornors

Creative Composites Group
WWww Creativeconpositesgroup.com

qg GALVANIZING
SERVICES

Beneath the Wood, an award winning
vegan sanctuary based in Wales,
needed anmimal ting equizment that
would help them care for then pigs
I'hey sought a solution that was strong
and modular enough to accommodate
different size animals Oncze this

was designed It was delivered 1o our
sosenh Ash Waisall, site 1o oe treated
with a galvanized coaung te prolong
the hfe of the equipment

Sustainability Improvements

Hot-dip galvanizing prowvides a
long-life, low-maintenance corosion
protecuon, safeguarding the sieel from
atmospheric attack, which canses rus!
and weakening.

Joseph Ash
www |osephash.co uk

Stock Code HILS
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FireStrong™ Self-Monitoring

Composite Pole Systems

The Creative Composites Group’s
Fiberrainforced polymer {FRE *re-
resistant utdity poles can be used to
protect the grid from the excassive
heat generated Ly typ.cal brush/
grass fires. FireStrong™ utility poles
mainta n ther structural ntegnty
after a fire, 50 they can be kept in
service In addition, the integranion
of an irrevers hie temperature
monitorng system helps ut Lity
workers determine whether pole
strength retention was successfut

Utility poles are engineered to

last up to 75 years in some of the
harshest environments with little
to no mantenance Adding fire-
resistant poles further increases
their durabihity and longevity in
fire-prone areas. As a result, poles
will be less susceptible to damage
and degradation caused by the
heat irom a fire. A third-party
testing agency tested the poles by
simulat-ng a chaparral wildfire. Qur
FireStrong™ poles withstood three
ricutes at 2,100°C and retamed
100% of ther design strength

FireStrong™ poles neludes an
rreversible temperature monitorning
gystern that s placed around the
pole The system s engineered

o continuously maniter the
temperature experienced by the
pole and permanently record the
highest temperature measurad

on 1s surface. Durng post-fre
nspections, utllty workers can
compare this measurement to a
temperature vs strength retention
chart for the particular type of FRP
pole, 1o evaluate whether the utifity
nole has to be replaced This step
helps shorten the amount of fime
required for inspections without
sacrficing the guality of the results

The key henefits nf non-
combustible FireStrong™ poles
are ignition prevention, increased
gnic resiliency and cost savings
A grid protected by FireStrong™
power pales will be less likely to
experence a failure due to fire As
aresult, they will not need to be
rermnaved and replaced, meaning
utifty campanies will not need

o nvest time and money nto
performing these operat.ons, and
end customers will not need to
suffer through grid downtme.

' {

The key
benefits of non-
combustible
FireStrong™

poles are ignition
prevention,
increased grd
resiliency and
cost savings”

Stock Code HILS

140434 DID3LVHLS
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OUR PR

fmiUCTS

Waterways and docklands

Pier protection

Fiber Reinforced Polymer (‘'FRP') large
diameter pilings and wale beams are
the ideal solution for pier protection
systemns designed to withstand high
energy impacts from rmarine traffic

Dockside camels

An attractive option to protect both
vessels and piers from damage,
FRP composite material's ability

to resist corrosion in a harsh
saltwater environment makes it an
environmentally friendly solution

Piers & walkways

FRP composite material does
not leach, flake or rot inte water
systems and can replace wood in
marine applications

aoooo

Maritime guide walls

FRP flexible fender system that
bends under vessel contact but
then recovers witheut breaking

Flood defences

FRP flood protection. Movable
dams that can be raised and
lowered during changing
water levels

i Rural

¢ Flood doors
: Specialist composite flood
doors that signticantly

: raduce the volumes of

f water entering a property

: in the event of a flood

Green bridges
v BEBQ Arch System is a standardised
" 7.1.. ] patented precast concrete arch system
.| for the design and construction of grass

underground structures

%Tj

Wetlands boardwalks
Composite low embodied
energy planks for lightweight
environmentaily friendly
walkway solutions

covered bridges, tunnels, culverts and other

@)

Agriculture
Galvanized
farm buildings

Trail bridges
Lightweight, strong,
portable and longlasting
low embodied energy
FRP bridges for parks
and trails




T @ Roads and security Utilities @ Gafvanizing

Suburban

P&

Temporary safety barrier
Metal and concrete

waork zene protection for
roadworks and traffic
management

protection

@E

Bridges
Galvanized road
bridges

P&

Bridge parapets
Bridge-side crash

D

Zoneguard
temporary barrier
Protects road work
empioyees, whilst
allowing continued
safe traffic flow

R
T WoRrkzonE -

&

boards

Integrated Tsaf
Solutions enha
transportation
improve safety
mebility in and

Road message

PE

Crash cushions

The Smart Cushion®
crash attenuator, with
remote monitoring, is
a revolutionary, speed-
dependent product
that varies stopping
resistance during

an impact

Work zone solar
powered lighting
Sustainable solar
powered lighting
backed up by
innovative technology
and industry-leading

fic

@&

Roadside barrier
Metal roadside
crash protection

Trailer bodies
Galvanized metal
chassis

remote monitoring and

nce

and
and
around

cantrol

work zones. Includes
internet connectivity

with motor veh

icles

Wwindfarms
Composite biade
refurbishment ang
steel platforms

Construction
Galvanized
structural steel




Solay Nelds
Galvanized

steel frames for

solar panels

Electrical

substation

Electric transmission
solutions using

steet and composite
materials

&

LNG Hlant

Metal grating and
flooring and engineered
support products,
including cryogenic pipe
supports that provide
isolation and insulation

Town

’ ) @
N
Composite rail
N platferms
N FRP corrosion
5 resistant structures

and lightweight
paneis providing

@ cost effective and

convenient solutions

MASS temporary
security fencings
Highly visibie
temporary safety
solution protecting
sites, workforces and
pedestrians

Composite
railcar chassis

FRP lightweight highly
energy efficient flcor
panels and door
jambs for refrigerated
freight cars

Paper milis

FRP products that
have the gurabiiity and
abrasion resistance
to outperform
conventional
materials in harsh and
acidic environments

Electrical
transmission poles
Steel transmission
poles and anti-wildfire
composite poles that
do not biodegrade

Street signs

D entre ) .
ata ¢ Street sign materials

security systems
Palisade perimeter
security fencing,
hostile vehicle and
entry protection

17
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@ Hotels (A/C)

— Modular cooling tower .
Apartments design delivering low Solar powered street lights

{Fire doors) lifecycle costs, durability Solar lighting for streets, car ;
Fully tested, and sustainability parks and footpaths offering :
accredited apartment powerful and reliable year- i
entrance doors for reund lighting without noise or
use in internal and emissions

external applications

i

b
&
!
Hospital (A/C) @ i
é
!

Apartments Seismic and anti- Pedestrian _
(Balconies) vibration coqlir\g safety Street lights :
Structural shapes towers for cr'ltlcai bollards Mangfag‘ture and ;
for both residential rooftop applications,  Impact distrlbutlgn_ of St.EEI . i
and commercial that bridge the testeq and atuminium lighting
applications, gap between security columns 1
with minimum sustainability and boIIards i
maintenance energy efficiency providmg !
requirements pedestrian @

protection

bl b b Sculptures ]
my 1 Gaivanized steel ‘
wd TE works of art for
private and public
display

Ny P
);‘r"/‘q S\

MProTECTION O
Masonry supports @ @

and wind posts

Providing steel Composite ]
support systems pedestrian walkways Hostile Vehicle Mitigation
for buildings Low maintenance Hostile Vehicle Mitigation
lightweight FRP solutions ranging from small
recreational and single gate installations to E -
Parking and Electric charging public access large state events requiring
security gates points elevated boardwalks a full secure island site .
Manufacturers of Charge points and sidewalks
parking control incorporated into our

equipment street lighting columns
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CASE STUDY

.

Galvanizing supports sustainable farming

V&S Galvanizing's Columbus plant
supported a farming project for
Plenty Unlimited based in San
Francisco, Calfornia They use Al
and robots to farm, which uses
99% less land and 99% less water
comparad w th conventional
farming.

The robotic base needed to he
sustainable and durable. The

V&S team discussed the design
alongs de the venting and draining
reguirements that were necessary
to make sure that the robotic hase
housing would have the best quality
appearance, coating durability and
corrosion performance and be
appropnate for the wet conditions
that occur in indoor vertical
farming

The robot’e design s attached to
the base housing, wilh the robotic
arm grabbing a row of seedlings
and placing tham nto a hydropanic

planter An even laiger robot arm
then flips the planter vertically

and sends 1t to become one small
sect'on of a 20" tall wall ot arugula,
kale and beet leaves. A galvan zed
robotic base will last years 1o
come without worrying about the
duiability of the coating system.

The campany's farm 15 yelding
enough produce to fill 720 acres
of typical farmland, but they are
domg it w th just two acres of
vertical farming. Plenty Unhmited
says thar farm produces 400
umes more food per acre than the
traditionat farm. The automated
robot-c technology also means
that bes des the clear .ncrease in
food production, vegetation can

be produced w.thout the use of
pesticides and wthout the risk of
extreme weather, Qut of season
plants can be grown closa 1o home
without adding the carbon footprint
of transport

'] |

The robotic

base housing
would have the
best quality
appearance,
coating durability

and corrosion
performance and
be appropriate for
the wet conditions
that occur in
indoor vertical
farming.’
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OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REVIEW

Alan Giddins
I"ter RS

REVIEW OF 2022

2372 was a suzzessful year, with tha Group
asheving iecoct evenua and opeating prod
The st ong oerformance demonstrates the
seslience of our attractive, long term end
Tar<ers and the benefits of ou- Do-tolio
Tanagement actions which have nlaced

a focus on highe growth, higher Targin
ausinesses In particulan, our US businesses
representad 64% of Group oserating pro‘it,
and this s expected to increase fu-ther
following our recent acquisitions of National
Signal, Endure Composites and Kons
Galvanizing The results are also testament
to ou” agrle ooerating Model and our talented
Iacal teams, who have suzcessfully navigated
the challenges preseniad by the extarnal
environment

Organic growth remams a ey focus, and we
are pleased to repor: that the Group delivered
14% revenue and ozerating profit growth

from continuing operanians, on an OCC basis,
In addition, we delivered strong operating
margin progression with Y22 margin
increasing by 80 basis ponts to 13 3%, which
reffects an improved portioho Tix, operational
gearmg and our pricing power offsetting input
cost infiation

20722 saw the Galvanizing Services division
deliver a standout srading performance, with
strong volume growth in *he LS and both
geoqraphies bencfiting from ancing actions
and a srrategic focus on higher margin

Hannah Nichols

customers Our Engineered Solutions division
Horrerly <nown as Utlies) also delivered
strong growrh, undeoimned oy buoyant
demand across the po-tfolio parucularly in
our LS hased nusinesses

Inthe Roads & Security division, reporied
revenue and profit were sinular 1o 2027

levels As oreviously highlighted, she US roads
business exueiznced certam ocperational
challenges which we have Taken action

te address, and we exoect an improved
performance in 2023 In the UK utiisation

a7 our temporary safety ba-rier fleet was
lower than 2027 due o furthei delays in
strateqic road network prajects, hawever this
was Darly offset by a robus! performance

in the wider UK roads and secunty portiohio
mciuding good growth in our off gnd solar
highting and power business

The Group delivered much improved cash
conversion In the second half of 93%, with
year end net deb: ~educing to 0 7 times
ZBITDA on a covenant basis. Our strong
balance sheet underpins the resilience of

the Group and provides us with flexibality to
continue to invest in growth. In Novernber,
we successfully completed the refinancing of
our principal bank debt facility on competitive
terms, providing us with certainty of funding
to support the Groun's growth ambitions

Hill & $Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

STRATEGIC UPDATE

Our strateqie decision making 1s guided

2y our ournose of "oreaung sustainable
infrasscucture and safe transpors through
innovation” Our purpose, alongside
consideration of long te'm masio and mai<e.
drivers, datermines our choice of markets and
applications

Organic growth activities are iocused on hugh
value, fast giowing, niche oppoitumties Our
decentralised autoncmous operating model
drives high levels of accountanility, agihity
and customer inumacy, and allows us o
focus on these oppo-tunities in a way that a
more centralised, volume-d-iven organisation
zould not

Acquisitions and Disposals
Acquisitions form a key part of the Group's
growth strategy Duning the year we have
made progress in bulding our M&A pipeline,
with a continued focus on hugh gquahty
businesses with attractive organic growth
aotentiat In 2023, we will develo) the pipeline
fuither, the Corporate Develooment team and
Groun Presidents will work closely with our
opera.ng company management teams to
unlack att-active acquisition opportunities

All potential acquisitions are tightly evaluated
to ensure they it with our surpose and core
strategic goals Once acquired, we implement
angorous and detailed integ-ation pian



Ie fine with oun inorganic grawth strategy, we
acquied two value enhancing ausmnesses
duning 2022 In Ocoobe; we we'e delighted

o acquire National Signal, a high growth
designe” and manufactu-er of off gnd solar
hghting solutions in the US, ‘o £24 2m

I'he business benefits f-om the ongoing
tansition *om fossil fuels to a zero-carbon
economy and 15 complementary 1o oul

2321 acquisiian of Prolectic, a UK market
leader in of “-givd solar eneigy solutions, and
will furthe- azcele-ate our stategy in this
attrachive gowth mar<et In the same month,
we announced ou- acquisiion of Widnes
Galvamsing “or £3 9my, which further exgands
the geograshic footannt of our UK galvamzing
business into the north west of the UK

After the year end, in February 2023, we
announced he acguisition of Enduro
Composites, a designer, manufacturer and
supplier of engineered conmrposite solutions
based in Houston, Texas for £28 7m Endure
15 hughly comalemenrary 10 our existing

US composites business and will further
accelerate our strategy n the exciuing and
growing Somposiias marke?t in March

2023, we announced the acquisition of
Karns Galvanizing based in cohngtown,
Pennsylvara for £9 4m, strengthening our US
galvamzing market presence

Stock Code HILS

During 2022 we coraleted a number of
nrportan and targeted divestrents In
Ocmooern we cooletad the disonsal oF - ance
Salva, o —rench galvanizing and sresl
Ighting column g rerations While - ance
Galva was o 2 hwbie odrl ol the Grows,

the “nrenast gqrowth ates cid no reet tha
Groun's long o growth arhoons and s
ooerating vargms weare below the GGroun
rage Given our galvamizing opaiations
serve local geog-aphical markets, the disnosal
has no mnpact on ows higher growth, highe”
margin gatvanizing coerations in the LK and
US, both of which we rernain commitred o
mthe fong f2nr Inaddinon, sur US Rwads
business exited its low argin plastic cones
product ine and we comoleted the disbosal of
two of the three drisions in ow loss-making
Swedish road business

Medium Term Financial Framework
Our disziphned finangial #amework is ooe oF
the key ‘oundations of the Grouz's fong term
success Given the significant achons 1a<en
during 2022 o enhance the qualty of the

po tfolio, we have reviewed and recalibrated
our medimn term financial framewark

Our ref-eshed annual perfarmance taigeis
through the cycle ae

+grganic revenue growth 8% 7%

+totalievenue growth including
acquisitions 1%

- operating profit.margin 1o%
< retuin onnvested capital 18%+
+ cash conversion 80%+

- covonant leverage 110 2 times

This organic growth performance through the
cycle, alongside value enhancing acguisiions,
will deliver supeiior -PS growth Our cleai
facus on cash generation and -etuins enables
the cash generated 1o be re mvested in

high grow:h, fugh return opportunities This

15 all detvered within a discizlined capital
alleeatnoen framewo ko while maintaining a
strong balance sheet

ESG

The growth of our business 15 naturally
aligned to our ESG {Environmental Soctal
and Goveinanze) agenda our products
and services make infastructure more
sustamnahie and ncrease tansport safety.

In 202" we nuthned ou- ESG strategy which
identiflied vur seven prioi ity areas, related
action plans and key met-ics. Thisincluded
our comutment T2 achigve net zero for

our Scone © and 2 emissions by 2040 and
corrmitment to the Science Based Targets
initiative {SBTI) to it gloaal warming
t015°C

In e uary 2022, we recruited a Head o
Sustananiity who has been |Pd’|mj an
alensive oot o oasehng our 50000

3 2a oonamissions and we ace J\ sased
torenatt that we are on track (o san it
s e gens ahicad of the equired
AL,:,HI’*' 2023 deadlne Alongside ths,
reams ninumg e dove local
gy saving inbaives and exolore greoen
shnalogy 0311903 10 underpim ou carbar
reducion olan

Keemng our aployees safe while at work
remdins ouT NuToer one X 0Nty and in 2322
oUr opersung companies devalosed local
safehyrprovement plans, alongsids Goug
led initiatives, Including the implementation
of nine core hfesaving rules and hazard
dentficaton tramimg While we st have
mo e work to do, we are pleased that the
aztions taken dusing the vear esubed ina
35% teduction m _ost Time Incidents, with

LTIR reduzing 7o 1 1, ahead of our ta-ge:

of 15

Talent development and engagenrent are
critical o the success of our autonomous
operatnyg odel and a kay (D2us aes for our
ESS strategy With this in mind, we exdanded
ou tatent manayerent 37ogamme and
introcuced a new aporoach o develonment
fa- our Managing Direcions, with growth
mindset, 50 and innovaticn identified as
Srionty focus areas We also ran our second
innovalion foru and have futhes workshops
slanned for 2023 o foster mnovanon and
share pest pracuce Qur annual engagement
survey showed a good improvement in
employec engagemen: levelsio 61% (7077
55%) Duning the yea~we appainted a Head
of Talent to work with our operating comoany
reams (o further Improve engagament

n 2023

A5 an organisation we want 1o emaloy the
hest peoole tor the jo3, and we know that
we can only do this by considering talented
neople f-om the whole cormunity Dunng the
year we were delighted to azaoint our firs”
omale Managing Directors and to see an
increase n female senio” leaders (0 20% Ou-
established apprenticeship schemens also
a key inimatve for attracting more diversity
Into cur business, and in 2022 a thid o new
apprentices were female.

C1931v4dlS
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OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL REVIEW continued

BOARD UPDATES
InJuly 2022 2aul Simanons steoed down
feam his -ole as Shief | xacytive (Hfican Alan
Giddins, the Groun's Chair, has taken gver as
interlm Zxecutive Chag unnl the e

find & o manent CEOQ has seen 20

Drrector rarraxh’s anpoinament reilects the
Board's caetul sus sion olanming o ecruit
Mon-executive Directors wizh the necessary
sxills, expenience and drersity to supoort the
Group's hugher guality grow'h agenda

RESULTS FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

The Group has debvered a sorong set of
results for 2022 Revenue was £732 1m
(2027 £6252m). an inciease of 17% 0N a
reported basis Consant cu-ency "avenue
growth was 12% and QCC revenue grow:h
was 14% Linderlying ope-ating orofls was
£97 10~ (2027 £77 3y, an ncrease of 26%
snareporied Dasis Congtant currency
aoeratng profis growrh was 17% and OCC
growth was 142 Ope-ating marging ma-oved
10 133% (202" "2 4%) Underlying oront
sofore taxalon was £87 9m (2521 £/71 2m)
Revorted aperaung profit was £78 5m (2027

9 and reported i3 ofit pefoie tax was
93712027 £42 By Underthaing sarmings
ve shass nsreased w85 1,2021 7000}
s o0 share was 6o 7o

£t

Hie soneal reconziling vents hetween
Lnglet lying and “eparted aoerainy ool are
aon-cash charges mciuding the amorisanon
af acquisiion inangibles o £8 U0 and

the mparrment ¢F acquired mtangiles
associated with one of ou” secunty
susinesses oF £4 4m Note 5 ¢f the financial
starerrents provides furthe details on the
Sroud's non underlying zems

DIVIDEND

Based on the st-ang trading pe-formance,
he Boa-d s recommending a final dividend
of 27 5o per share, making a total divideng
far tha year 07 35 00 par snae {2021 31 00)
The final dividend, if anoroved, will ke paid on
7 Luty 2023 to shaseholders on the register
on 2 June 2023 Looking forward, we aim 1o
srovide sustamabio and progressive dividend
growh, targeting a prudent dwidend cover of
around 7 5 tmes underlying garmings

OUTLOOK

The Group 1 well posmoned na range
ofinfrastiuctue mar<ets weh attrasve,

long e gl rabgrowihdivers The
aeagaslie nax o the porfolio has also
evolved with a stronger v ning towads
Uz end matkets These © de the
senafits of our agile, utINIMOUSs oo
modal arovide the Boasd with nontidlence
that Hill & Sruth will contnue ta rake
good rogress in 2073, dessite the imagro
economic headwinds

In the mediun 1o longer ter, the sutionk 1s
supparted by srong Tar<atl growtn dove s
for hoth sustamable nfrasiructu-e and safe
sansoort In parcticular, our US businesses
are well slaced to henefit frar the nc-eased
levels of Infrastruciure soend aporovad unde:
the Infrastructure Investrent and Jobs Act
(HJAY

Hot-dip galvanizing, V&S Galvanizing, Owego, NY
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CASE STUDY

V&S Galvanizing — Owego, NY Plant

VA&S Dalvamzing’s New Yok alan:,
situated in Owego, New Yorx State, has
since it onened in 2020, develoned a
successtul local managenent team that
has significantly incieased sales volumes
and impraved the cusiomer experienge

in 2022

The team comanses ramaonn MoCarthy,
arevigusly Operations Manager at V&S
Taunton plant, who as the new Plant
Manager was tasked with bainging a
positive attitude and strang team building
skills ta New York: Enrigue Vergan, a
twenty-year veteran of the galvanizing
ndustry, who also transferred from our
Taun:on plant and was asomoted o
Operations Manager, “ora Stadeiman,

a newly recrurted Sates Manager, who
despre eing new to the galvanizing
indust-y has several years' expernence

in steel fabrication markets, and Amber
sacksan, whose career in the comaany
has progressed from | agistics through
Quality Control to Production Manager

Buillding on a g-2a* foundation of
baseload custome-s that include steel
products for the bridge industy, doep
foundation oiles and highway draimnage
grates, the managerrent tearm has driven
production and service improvements
*hat allow for gieate” volumes of steel 2o
move guickdy through the Tacility, resulung
In signiftcant volume increases in the
second half of 2022 _arge contracts
recently secured mclude Great Lakes
Cheese Plant expansion (1,400 tons),
MMAST Naval Platiors {2,000 tons)

and The Caslieten Bridge repair project
(476 tons) V&S New York 1s now well-
positioned *o see 15 business continue to
grow over ‘he coming years, with a stiong
mix of custonte” end rarkets supported
by excellent operatnonal pe-formance and
high levels of service

i1

V&S New York is
now well-positioned
t0o see s business
continue to grow
over the coming

years, with a st

ational
performance and
high fevels of service”

Stock Code HILS
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OPERATIONAL AND FlNANCIAL REV[EWcontinued

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

GALVANIZING SERVICES

Conglant

cuTency OCC
Continuing Operations® ™ %
Revenue P20 +230
Underlying operating 2:ofit! =23 +23
Lndezilying ope-ating Targin %'
Statuiory oaeahing 2rofit
! LS e i RS R RO IERH A LAl ol

- ot 5 I P | o
3 MW T TR R T AT I P | )
L I L L L A T R I (1]

The Galvanizing Services division offers
hot-dip galvamzing and powde” coatng
services with mult-alant facilizes in the USA
and the UK Hot-dip galvamizing 15 a proven
sreel corresion protection solution which
signihicantly extends the service hfe of stesl
srrustures and products The dwision benefits
from a wide sectoral spread of customess
who goerate in -esilient end markets including
road infrastructure, commaercial construcion,
transportation, and energy transmission and
distribution The division reoresents 45% of
2022 underlying cperating o-ofit,

The division delivered an imoressive
aserformance in 2022, with revenue 20%
highe- and underlying ope ating »ofit 23%
fugher than last year cn an OCC basis The
division maintained superior margins, with
ungerlying operating ma:gin ncreasng to
24 3% (2027 23 6%) The results reflect
strong volume growth in the US suceesshul
arcing actions taken o offset inout cost
nflation and a deliberate focus an higher
MArgin customers

us

Predominantly located in the northeast and
mridwest of the country, the US galvanizing
busimess delivered a strong performance,
with 23% 0CC revenue growth and record
ooeatng pofit The strong growthis
attnbutanle to an 11% increase n production
volumes, Improved pricing to offset cost
naut inflation, favourabie product mix and
an ingreased level of value-add coating
selvices, As a resuly, the susiness continued
to mantain supenor operaung margins, with
customers valuing the excellent quahty of
service provided by our focal teams

In March 2023 we were oleased 0 acguire
Korns Galvamzing for a consideration of

£9 47, Located in Johnstown, Pennsylvania,
Ko ns speciahges in spin galvamzing and
has a customer base spread across a broad
range of infrastructure related end marke:s
Kons will be managed oy cur existing

LS galvanizing tear and will expand our
production capacity 1 the key northeastern
market, and broaden the -ange of galvaniziny
services we can offer 1o our existing
custamer base

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

In the oredium to longer tonm, the autloox in”
UG galvanizing 1s positive, with invesiment
levels expected to g-ow ahead of GDP

a range of US galvamizing end markets,
syppo-ted by the A and a mo ¢ gene-al
move to the onshonng of certam activities
Wa have started (o quote on some

{IJA refated projects and exnect to see
incremental growhin the bridge and highway
marke: In the second half of 2023

UK

UK galvanmzing delivered 7% organmic 1evenue
g'owth and record operating profitin 2022
Thig reflects a parmicularly strong fi-st hatf
with swift pricing actions ta<en to address
inout cost inflation and a focus an higher
magin, service onentated customrers The
second half was more challenging as certam
customes, particularly in the agncultu al
sactor, have begun to feel the effects of
rising energy costs. Total volumes of steel
galvamzed were 9% lower than 2021

In October 2022, we were pleased (0
announce the acquisition of Widnes
Galvarmsing Limited for consideration

of £3 9m The acquisition expands the
geographic footpnnt of our UK galvanizing
susiness in:o the northwest of the LK and the
integration of the business is going well

while mindful of the wider UK macro

economic bac<drop, the 2023 cutloox for UK

galvanizing 1s cautiously positive Dur team

ae focused on balancing price and cost
ranagemen: to ensure plant profitabiity

s maximised and slanned investments in

sales and mar<eting will further support

“he ingreased focus on high margm market

secions



ENGINEERED SOLUTIONS

Continuing Operations?®

Reverie
Underlying operating profit?
Underlying aperating margin %’

Statutory 9aeaung orofin

StormStrong® sheet pilings supplied by CCG to Lindenhurst Village, NY

Constan:
Reported  curency oce
% % %
+30 +27 +2°
+35 +24 +24

[SSTEN (YN

ol

Our =ngineered Solutions dvision formerly
known as Unimies) provides stesl and
comaosite solutions with low embodied
energy for a wide range of infrastructure
marxais including ene gy generatian and
drstributian, marine, rail and housing The
division slso supplies engineered supootts
forthe water, power and liquid natural gas
malkess, and seismic protection splutions
for commerzial construcion While the
dwvision has been renamed in 2022, there has
been no change o the portfolio of aperaing
companies that it includes

The division continued (o deliver good rasults
N 2022, with 21% revenue and 242, nrofit
growth on an OCC basis. With a strong second
half performance, onerating marging increased
012 1% {2027.11 6%), reflecting the guality of
our faster growing US businesses

us

Ous US businesses delivered 23% OCC
revenue growth and strong profit grow:h
against ropust prior year comparaiors
Ooerating profit generated by our 4S
businesses represented ¢ 80% of *he total
proft for the division in 2022, fighilighting
*he ncreasing importance of the LS o the
Group's growth strategy.

Stock Code HILS
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Oy comoosites busness was the largest
comaany within the divisionan 2022 and
continued to see 5trong derand for 15 range
of compasiie engineered sclutions including
ity poles, waterfront protection and mass
transit nfrastructure In ~ebruary 2023 we
were pleased to acquire cndu-o Comrposites
for a cash consideration of £28 7m.

Located in Texas, Endure Comnosites is

a designer, Tanufacture: and supphar of
engineered composite solutions and 15 ighly
complemensary to our existing northeasern
and midwestern US busmess, further
acceleraung our strategy In the exciing and
growing composites ima-ket.

Qur electicity distnbution substation
business deiivered impressive profiz growth
and a record (evel of ooerating 2rofit, with
customer demand increasing as sweel pnce
challenges subsided and pricing actions were
taken to offsetmaticn The Dusiness enters
2023 with a record order book supported by
high projec: demand 1o ungrade electricity
infrast-ucture

Our engmeered suz00rts business also
delive-ad record poofits with sigrificant
g-owth due to higher sales valumes in
cataloque hardware, improved pacing and

g cher aroduc, i of projec specific
engmeered supD0its to” Kay markets
mctuding watei teatrment and electric
vehicie 9-oducton Duiing *he yea: the
ausness successully navgated supply chan
chalienges, which enaoled mar«e: share
gamn, and s well sostioned 0 Make fu-ther
arogressin 2023

rosaests for future growthm all our US
SUSINIESSSS arc vy encouaging we
expect Tarket demand o be sudon-ted Dy
Investnent 1o modernise tho elecicrny gnd
and soluions 10 37Grect agams: extreme
weathe The outlook s further suppor:ed
oy multi-year zlanned govenmen: spending
an infrastructure via the LJA, and orivate
investiment from US manufasiurars and
producers 1o onshore vital components

UK

Revenue in our UK busmesses grew 21%
on ano'gamic 3as1s The indusinal floonng
SUsINess, In particular, delivered a record
se-formance, reflecting buoyant demand
frorm dara centre and ol & gas markets and
successtul pnicing acuons This business
enters 2023 with a good order aook and
healthy sales pmoeline

Our lower margin LK only based buitding
oroduct business delivered a performance in
line with 2027, having successfully managed
inflationary pressures and supply cham
challenges Tie year started strongly with
high levels of customer demand, however
markets cooled in :he second half with wider
concerns around interest rates and house
prices We expect end markets 1o continue o
be challenging i 2023, however the renewed

focus on cusomor service and delivery unde”

anew management teain should supoort
sales growth thrsugh market share gains

140d3d 2193181 S
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OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL REVIEW coninues

ROADS & SECURITY

£7 Consrant
Reported  currency oce

Continuing Operations? 2321 % K %
Revenue 250 7 -1 A +5
Underlying ooerating profit! 79 -1 -4 1
Underbying cocrating margin %! 6 9%
Statutory operating profit/{loss) 17 3)

Hrgeeylng = 2n5, 105 ane get o i aote o cee T e Shate s orts o e lale oe mel 0 Lo e i ihe s aih »ane

cetien 1 cote Siut e [ mansia Stale seets
2 Cartu ope sliv s el Jue e e "‘II"‘f’ Sl mones W oany e st onbiron s oo i ag

el e ot 10l e sl oste

The Roads & Sezuriy division supgles
products and services te support the delvery
of safe road and highway infrastructure,
alongside arange of secunity produc:s to
protect people, bulldings and infrastructure
from attack. In addition, the division now
ncludes two busimesses which are market
leaders in the provision of off-g-1d solar
lighting and power solutions

Revenue and profit were broadly in hne with
2027 levets, with revenue 1% lower and
underlying aperating profit 4% lower on a
canstant currency basis Opesating marging
were also mamtained at 9% (20271 6 9%)
The 2322 result -eflects an underperformance
i our LS roads ousiness and as exoec'ed,
lower unhisanon of the LK temooraiy satety
barner fleet, offset oy a good nerformance in
“he wider UK Roads & Secunty porfolio

o Towe vl e e o

MU fals Y

UK Roads

Revenue was 3% higher than 2021 on an
organic basis in January 2022, the UK
Government 1ssued 178 response {0 the
Transoort Committee review on the roll-out
and safety of smart motorways, which set out
recommendations including pausing the roll-
out of further all lane running schemes until
sufficien: safety data 1s avadable (expected
end of 2024) and the retroft of additional
emergency refuge areas. The requirement

1o redesign projects following this
announcerment, alongside UK Government
uncertainty in HZ2, resulted in schee delays
and lower average utlisation of our terrporary
safety barrier during the yea'. Based on
customer discussions, we exaact the lower
lavel of project starts to continue 1IN0 the firs:
quarter of 2023, howeve' our expectation s

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

that aveqall fleer utilisaton will Incease n
2023 as central resesvation upgrade projects
commence after redesign work

in the year, we saw good demand ac-oss

the witter LK roads porfolo, pasticuially for
road safe suppot structures, with the growth
partly offsetaing the shorfall in the rental
barner fleer Inaddition, Prolactaz, our off-
grid solar energy business, delivered strong
growth and enters 2023 with a good order
book supnorted by increasing demand for low
carbon and energy cost saving solutions

US Roads

Revenue was 10% huighes than 2027 on an
OCC basis Operazing profis was lower than
last yea . mamly due 10 operational and cost
challenges as previously outhned Actions
tiave now heen taken to address the issues
including re*reshing the senmor managemen:
team In May 2077, the business exited from
its low margin plastic drums, cones and
channelizers business, which will enable
greater focus on higher margin, igher growth
opoo-tunities. Overall mar<et demand far
roadside safery products remains strong and
we exoect the business to make progress in
2023

In Octoper 2072, we were delighted o
acquire Nationai Signal for consideration of
£24.2m, with fu-ther consideration nayable
of up 0 £3.3m conditional on achievernent
o financial oerformance targets in the three



Yea" s oGt acgusmon Nationai Signal,
focated 1in —ullemtan, Canformia s a designes
and ranutaciure of ncd solar ighting
solutions and i Jerent 3rodusis
The busmess Deneiis 5o the ongnsmyg
Langtion o0 fagsil HUels D A Zero-calon
csonomy, a3 well as the need o -educe noise
sollution, daven by government legislation
and zustome demands The acquisition 15
comaleMmentary (o Prolect s, Dol MaT<et
leading UK 0™ gid sotar ene-gy ousiness and
will “urthe” accelerate our growth strategy
nthis attracive marke: Trading since
acquisimion has jeen ahead of expectations
and the 2023 order book is at a record level

The outlock for US roads remaims
encouraging, with demand for tested roadside
safety o-oducts susoorted oy the introduction
of new safety standa-ds and ncreased tevels
of state and *ederal mvestment o ungade US
-oad infrastruciuce The llJA Includes a five
year ‘eauthorisanon of the U5 fede-al fnghway
pragrame, and incremental investment of

= §170bnin highway and budge
rmgrovements through to 2026 We expen:
LS roads w0 be one of the first beneficianies of
*he l1JA spend

Stock Code HILS

Other international Roads

In Austialia, we continue 1o see good
ma-ket demand for - athic sa’ely equinment,
suppoted By sigmficant gove nrent
investment in land tansport infrastuciure
across Aust aha through s Infrastus:
Investmen: Progran Duning the year
we investod £5 5 steel snd concrete
temaorary barmer flaet 1o support marka:
demand In Sweden we completed the
divestrent of the rental and infasruciure
divisions of cur loss-maxng road business
during the year and we are assessimng ootions
far the remaining part of -ha: ausiness

Security

Qur Becunty businesses are based in the LK
and yovide aiange of senmeter sezunty
sentons ncluding hustie vehicle mugaton
(HWVAY 10 Dot K and international markets
Hevenue wds 6% ahead of 2027 onan OCC
sasis Dutng the yea we have scen an
encouragmg "esovery In UK and intermational
matkers ‘o VM solutions including public
place protecuon a-oons, ral stations and
ports Ou UK secunty namier rental business
perforTed well, pa-ticularly in the second
half, as our secusity solutions were deployed
+2 suopoit the Commonwealth Games n
Sirmingharm

Qur senmceter access security business,
Parang Faciities, continued to expenence
challenges duning 2022 with increased
competition i the marke and, having
‘eassessed the value of -2maining acquisiton
ntangintes, we have recogmised a furthe:
Imogr Tent charge of £4 4m A planis in
piFCe 10 IMDrove CUSTOMEer service and
delivey in 2073

Barkers Engineering's mesh security fencing, Data Centre, Barcelona

140434 21991vy1S
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OPERAT'ONAL AND FINANC'AL REVIEWcontinued

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital Allocation

The Group ‘ollows a diszciplined apnroarh to
sapial allocaticn Fust we allccate camital
rs suaport arganmic goowth, with A focus on
Hgtrer retarn niches and growth markets We
"eQuUIre DUF 0RO ANING CAMNaNISs 10 manays
working casital efficiently, consideing ther
respective growth rates, and we investin
canital orojects and INnnovation 1o suppor:
future orgamic growth, wath around £20n of
72022 capex allocated o growth wmvestiments

Second, we allocate capital to make

tigh quahty acquisitions, with a focus on
businesses which have a clear alignment
with our purpose and have long term growth
potental We follow a structured apaoach ts
asquisinons dased on a clear 3ot o inancial
ariterla, and we exect acquisiions to achieve
‘eturns anove our Groud WACC wathin a three
yea  umeframe Based onour highly cash
generative model we are targeting 1o reinvest
around £50™ - £70m each year on value
enhancing acquisitions In 2027 we saen:
£25.6m on rha acguisitions of Natonal Signal
and Widnes Galvanizing Our acguisition
pipehne 1§ strong, and 15 ‘ocused on high
qualty, strategically aligned oppor tunibes

We also aim to prowde sustamable and
oragressive dividend growth, with a target
dwidend cover of 2 5 times undeilying
earnings Yo undeistand the impoitance oF
providing consistent and qrowing retuns 1o
our shareholders as par: of our overall capital
allocatton frarework, and the Group's strany
levels of cash generation allow us 1o Invest In

argans and mo gant: Jrowh whils paymng a
progressive dividend

Wo uge rewarn onnvested casial (R0ICY o
measure o overall caceal efficiency, with a
arge: of achieving retuins in excess o7 7 3%,
above the Sroun's oost of cawtal through
the cyale We are pleased toreport that the
Group's ROIC fro7 continuing ooorations in
2027 increased 1o 10 2% {2091 17 1%), the
improvement reflecting the st-ong trading, ou-
disziphned apoioach 10 capral nvestment,
and rhe sreps we have 1aken 0 improve the
overall quality of the bortfolio

Cash generation

As expected, we saw imoroved cash
cornversion in the second hal® ar 93%,
compared 19 2% m the first half, with

overall cash conversion far the year at 51%.
Assurnring mo-e typical trading patieons, we
expect the Groun to deliver inproved cash
conversizn in 2023, 10 hine with cur Target lewvet
of 83%- and consizient with histanic levets
averaging B3% ovor the last ten years The
zalzulation of ous underlying zash conversion
ratio can e found in note 4 to the financial
slatermen's

Operating cash flow before movenren:

n working capital was £12% 8m {2027

£112 8my The working capral autilow inthe
year was £42 6 (2321, £6 8m) The out-low
parzly “eflects worang caoial abso ption

to supoedt gond growsh, alongside an
ncrease In mventory due ‘o cost inflation
and a racucal ingrease in stock holding in
ceriam hHusINesses to manage supply cham
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challenges The Sroud eontinues o focus on
maximising wor<ing caadal efficiency with
wOrking canital as a Jemcenage of annualised
sales al *8% Debio days werein kne with
exnectatons at 60 days (20271 5/ davs
excluthng Franze Galva)

Camtal expenditure of £37 om (2027 £35 9my
rearesents o multiple of depreciatinn and
amortisation of 1 G tmes (2027 7 6 umes)
Sigrificant investnent in the year included

£5 5m on temporay Darner fleel 1o sudpodt
growing demmand in the Australian roads
market and £3 0 on temporary haer flect
for the US Roads rmarket We also invested

£1 9m on ~antal agsets for Prolecine, our fast-
growing LK of*-gnd solar hghting and sower
business and £2 4m on ourchasing a facility
for ou- US composite business 2022 spand
was below arevious guidance because of
lower irvestment In the US temporary barer
fleet due to higher derrand for barmer sales in
the second hal*

Net financing £osts for the nenod from
conunuing Doerations were £9 2m (7021

E6 1), including a charge of £7 fum elaing
to costs assooiated with the Group's
refiancing ofits core revolving crede fazilty
during the yeas (in accordance with ITRS 9)
The net cos! of sension fund financing unde:
IAS 19 was £3 1im (2021 £3 Zm), and the
arrortisation of costs relating o refinancing
acuvities was £08m (2021 £387)

The Group generated £30 4m of “ee cash
flow In the year (2071 £57 6my), providing
funds to support our gcquisition strategy and
dvdend pohoy



Net debt and financing
Met deb? a* the end of the penod amaounted

L1877 (37 Deserrha 2077 £144 7m)
Qutflows in the yea ncluded £24 77 for the
722?21 e and final dwidend and £25 5
for *he acquislions of National Signal and
Wadnes Calvanizing Ne: dest at “he senod
end includes lease hanilities under FRS 16 of
£39 3m (2027 £40 6m)

In Novernber 2022, we were 2leased to
rena”t the suzcess®ul completion of the
fmnanzing of our prngial 2ank der faiy
on competitive terrs The new syndicatod
revolving credit faciity of £2507 has an
intial maturity of four years with an opticn
o extend for a fu-ther year at the first
annversary, providing us with continued
certamnty of funding o suopot the Group's
giowth opoortuniues The Gioup's prnciaal
financing faciliues also comorise $70m
senlo” unsecured notes with maturmies in
June 2026 and June 2029, together with a
further £7°.5m of on-demand local overd-afs
arrangements Throughout the penod the
Groua has ooerated well within thesa faciities
and ar 31 Decamoer 2022, the Gioup had
£23/9m of headroom {(£226 4 cormmutted,
£11 5m on demand].

The principal horrowing faciliies are subject
0 covenants that are measured biannually i
June and Decemper, being net dedt to EBITDA
o* amraximum of 3 0 times and Interest

cover of a mimmum of 4 0 times The ratio of
covenant net debt to EBITDA at 31 December
2022 was D7 times {31 December 20271 10
umes) and interest cover was 21.6 tmes {31
December 2027 254 times)

The Board considers that the ratio of
covenant net dewt to EBITOA 15 8 <ey metnc
from a camtal management persaectve and
sargets aqano of 10to 2 0 tmes The Hoard
would be prepared o see leverage abave
the ta-gel range for short periods of fime 1f
stiategically anpiopriate

Stock Code HILS

Tax

The undertying effective taxate fo the
senod or contiaumg ooe atlions was 224 %
(2027 21 7%) The tax charge for the yea
far cantinuing e ations was 16 Um {2027
£r4 divy and ncludes @ £2 o crede (2027
£ v resoect of non-underlying remns,
sancisalty relating (o the amorhsanon of
acauisiion mtangibles Cash tax oman the
perodwas £79 5m (2021 £1532m)

Exchange rates

The Group 15 exposed 10 movements in
exchange rates when translating the resul=s
of s overseas oseations Mo Sterhng
Retranslating 2021 revenue and underkying
operating profit (o conunuing operations
using average exchange 1ates fo 2022
would have increased revenue by £29.5m
and underhying coerating profit Dy £5 &,
manly due o Sterling’s dearaciation against
the S Doliar A one cent moverment in the
average US Dollar rate currently resultsin an
adjustnent of approximately £2 9o the
Group's annual revenues and £3 61 to annual
Lnderlying aperating srof

Nen-underlying items

The towal non underlying rems charged to

oonerating oot from continung oseratons

N the Consohdated Income Statement

amounted 20 £°86m {2027 £284m) The

tems were manly non cash relazed and

nzluded the follawing

- Imparment charges o° £6 4 including
£4 4man resoec of acqured imangible
assets o' Par<ing Facilinies, ane of the
Group's secunty SUSINEsses

+ Amorusaton of acquired mtangiole
assels of 06 0m

= Further costs associated with the
closure of the UK vanable message signs
business of £1 b

+  Losson disposal and restructuring of
“he dwisions in our Swedhsh business
of £7 3m

+ Costsrelating to our exit from low-margin
US road faffic control oroduc: operation
of £ 1m

+ Expenses related to acquisitions and
disposals of £2 3m

The non-cash eleent of these cha-ges was
£13.4m. Further detalls are set out in note 4
of the “inancial S:atements

Pensions

The Groun operates defined benefit pension
plans in the UK and the USA ThetAS 19
deficit of these plans at 31 Jecember 2022
was £7.2m, a reduction of £5.7m f-om 31
December 2027 (£12 3m, which included

£4 'minrespect o° our French pension
scheme that was disoosed of with the France
Galva susiness dunng the year) The deficit of
the UK scheme, the largest emoloyee henefit

aoligation i the Grown, was lowe than the
o wea end at £6 57 (37 Decembyer 2027
£ due sy the Gloup's deficlt recovey
and aningiease of 213 basis ponts
coun” rate doang the nenad, inline

P arsten o vields, beindg sattly

U fsot by Iowa: asset otuns

U
|

The ~aennial valuanion fo- the UK scheme
as at Al 2022 was finalised a* the end of
20122 and caonfirred that the current cash
contnbuign level (£3 7m per annum) was
asnopnate o delver the deficit recovery
alan The Group conunues 1o he actively
engaged in dialague with the UK schemes'
Tiuztees with iegasds (0 management,
funding and investmen: strategies including
buy noptions

Going concern

Afar Taking enquines, the Directo s have
~easonable exoectations thar the Sompany
and s subsidharies have adequate resources
o oontinue in coeratonal existence for the
fo:eseeanle future and for the nenod 10 30
Junc 2324 Accordingly, they conunue to
adoot the going concen arnciale

When ma<ing "his assessament, the Groud
sonsidors whether 10wl 22 adle o mamtam
adequate hguidity head -nom anove the

level of1ts bor-owing facihties and tc
cooate wiklin the “inancial covenants on
these facilmes The Group has carefully
modelled its zash flow ourlook for the senod
10 Juna 2024, considenng the ongomg
uncertaintes in global economic condinns
I this "hase case’ scenanio, the forecasts
mdicate significant lquidity headroom will
e mantaned above the Group's borrowing
fazilites and ‘mancial covenants will be me:
+hroughou' the penod, including the covenan!
tegts at 30 June 20723 31 December 2023
and 30 sune 2024

The Group has also carmed out “reverse
5tress tests’ 1o assess the perfuormance levels
at which erthe” hgquidity headroom would fall
below ze o 0 covenants would be breached
in the penod 0 30 June 2024, The Directors
do not conside: the resulting performance
levels 1o be plausible given the Group’s strong
trading performance in the year and the
resilience of the end mar<ets in which we
operate

Alan Giddins
Interim Executive Chair

Hannah Nichols
Group Chief Financial Cfficer

8 March 2023

1H0d3d J1931vd1S
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Fellowing our purpose
of creating sustainable
infrastructure and
safe transport through
innovation, we are

committed to ensuring that

our Environment Social &

Governance { ESG') strategy

provides the foundation
for the successful delivery
of our Group strategy and
business model.

Jur susianadiily onormes weee identified
follawing & como ehensive matesality
gssessvent carred oulin 2027, which also
ncluded comoarng the resul s (o the relevant
Sustaina2ilty Accounting Standards Board
[SASB) mater-ality maps, see nage 33 for
more details. We have mamntained the same
sustanadility priontes for 2022, however

we will conunue o rovigw and adant as our
sustainaniity strategy evolves

Qur Executive Charr, Alan Giddins, has Board
responsbility for ESG and s also a membe-
of the ESG Committes The ESG Comimittee
works with ou' operating companies tc
sreate common sense, acnionadle alans with
measurable near and medium term Zargets
We were delighted that Lucinda ~ariington
Parker joined as Group Haad of Sustainabibity
in February 2022, Lucinda 1s a key member
of the ESG Commitiee and 1s leading on the
Group's carbon reduction plans including
estabiishing a baselne for the Groua's
Scope 3 emissions. The ESG Committes
also includes the Group C=0 and he Grouo
Compoany Secretary, alangside a numiber of
ather Group employees who are passienate
anouf our ESG focus areas The Committee
reports directly 1o the Board an a six-monthly
basis. providing updates on progress made
agamnst targets.

OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

We have identified seven key priorities for our sustainability plans, across
three key focus areas:

Protecting the world

Greenhouse Gas ( GHG') emissions and energy efficiency

01
02

Saving and enhancing lives

02
03
04
05

Sustainable Governance

06
07

In addition ‘o the above priority areas, we will continue to momizor and assess other impartan:
areas of the ESG agenda, e g water usage and waste managemen:

Sustainable products — infrastructure

Sustainable products — safe transport
Health & Safety
Talent development and engagement

Diversity and inclusion

Climate risks

£thical conduct

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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OUR ROLE IN SUSTAINABILITY

We support the United Nations sustainable development agenda
and are utilising their Sustainable Development Goals (UN SDGs’)
as a compass to guide our approach to sustainability.

BEBO arch, flood balancing culverts, N22 Macroom, County Cork

i
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%




PROTECTING THE WORLD W SAVING AND ENHANCING LIVES

Our ole in saving and enhancing lives has two elements
Sirgtly, we have animportant role in ensunng that the public are
sa‘e when they travel, and secondly we have an oppartunity and
a responsibility to enhance the wel’ae of our eployees, therr
fanilies and their local communities thiocugh aur employment

We play a key role in protecting the world through both the
nravision of aur sustainahle infrastructure products and
services and through how we minimise our ervironmental
Impact as we deliver those v oducts and services.

ESG Focus Areas piachices, neosle development and community supaoit We
- GHG enugsions and energy efficiency wani to be nclusive of all memoe-s of saciety

Sustamanle oroducts - Infrastruciute
ESG Focus Areas

- Sustanable products - Safe transaort
+ Health & Sa‘ety

+ Talent developrent and engage nen:
« Dversity and inelusion

UN SDGs KDUSTRY. WNHATION UN SDGs 5 :;;E{;r

AR INFRASTRUSTURT

Sustainabile governance ensures that our
plans are credible and that we have appropriate
metncs mn place to ensure that we deliver on our
promises over the long term

ESG Focus Areas
- Cimate nisks
«  Ethical conduct

UN spGs FERES

1 PEACE JUSTGF
ANDSIRTNG
INSTITUTHONS

Stock Code HILS
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PROITECTING THE WORLD
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GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS AND ENERGY EFFICIENCY

Why does it matter?

We -ccogrise that greenhouse gases ale a
Tnajor contributor to the chmate ¢isis and

are commited to managing and -educing

the Group’s eTUs3Ions 10 sU200 T the Pans
Agreement goals,

What have we done?

In 2027 we commited o develop scienge-
pased targets to reduce our greenhouse gas
emissions under the SBTy ‘Business Arrbmian
‘07 1.5°C" Having already established a
basehne for Scope 1 and 2 emissions m
2020, we have been coliating our baseline
Scope 3 emussions during 2022 across the
full scope of our orgamisation, i ine with

the Internatienal Greenhousa Gas Protocol
guidance This comprehensive paselining
project, led by our Head of Sustaimability
wolking closety with our operating
companies, has been very successiul e

are pleased 1o report that we a72 on f-ack to
submit our targets ahead of the required 3BT
deadline of August 2023

Alongside measuring and understanding
Seope 3, we have alss further developed ou:
carbon “eduction plans and taken acion 0
reduce 5cope 1 and 2 emissions

Scope 1 & 2 Emissions (tonnes CO,e)

2022 2021 2020
Scope 1 49388 53,712 _:52,066
Seope 2 B 8977 ;I 3,885 14,708 )
TOIE_H_ N ) 58,305 64,5@_/ 66,774
Reduction % 10% 3% n/a

The 10% reduction in cu- 2022 eissions has
bean driven by varicus local cardon redustion

nitiatives (such asnstallation of solar panels,

swiiching forklift trucks to elect-ic and use

of HVO in place of diesel} as well as the
disposal of France Galva We were dleased
that 94% of our UK electricity requirements
were from renewable sources in 2022 and we
are currently working with our US businesses
on state by state plans to move towards
renawable electncity in the next two to

‘lve years

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

A “urther breakdown of the Group's 2022
2TUSSIONS 15 58% out below:

2022 GHG Emissions

® Scope 1
® Scope 2
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Consumption of natural gas “or use i heating
In the galvanizing process contrnbutes 67%

of the Group’s total natural gas consumpion
and therefore the use of energy n the
galvanizing 2700e55 15 8 Xey focus area

for the Group's carbon reduznon olan. in
2022, we implemented enargy efficiency
measures in both ou UK apd US galvamzing
ooerations ncluding heat recovery systems,
xettle covers and vanianle frequency ditves,
which will all contribute to our eTissions
reduction olan. In addition dunng the year we
nvestigated options to convert galvanizing
natural gas burners to green electncity

using our UK galvanizing site n Telford as a

Breakdown by Energy Type

® Scope 2

Stock Code HILS

specific case study Our findings, nased on
this case study, suggest that while electnc
gas burner technclogy 1s viacle, further
upgrades to UK electnoity infrastructure or
sechnalogy modifications wiltk 2e required
before this can be zonsidered a feasibie
option and we continue (o exore possible
solutions Alongside this, we are mvestigatng
the viabiliy of hydrogen as a potenual
technology, working with Cadent and National
Gas Transmission on therr Hydrogen Valley
project,

@ Scope 1 — Natural Gas

@ Scope 1 — Diesel

® Scope 1 — Propane, gas oil and LPG
® Scope 1 — Others

140434
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PROTECT'NG THE WORLD continued

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS AND ENERGY EFFICIENCY - -

During 2022 we established a Group-wide
Sustamaaiy Torum with representatives
“«om each of our operating comoanies,
collaborate on emissions reduction projec:s,
sharedeas and bes: practice and > ovide
feedbac< on Grous mmeiives We also
nroduced a quarterly ESG newsletter to shate
updates with all employees agross the Group,
and held our first 253G Week 1 june o raise
awareness of sustainaodity 1Ssues in a fun
and engaging way

We have contimued to refine Gur costed
alanwhich includes an assessment of the
incremental capital, energy, Carbon taxes and
other operating costs 10 support our cabon
reduction plan. The result continues to provide
us with the confidence to commt to achieving
a caroon net zero target for Scopes 1 and 2
by 2040 Our current expectations are that the
finanzial impact of achieving this wili not have
amatenal impact on the growth prospects for
the Groua, with modest levels of ingramental
capital nvestment required.

What wilf we achieve?

In 2023 we will suomit envizsion reduction targets |

or Scones T 2and 30 S8BT In 207 we

sommitied to achieve net zero for our Scope 1 and 2 emissions oy 2040 The high level steos we
will take o deliver on this commerment aie outlined Dalow

Net Zero scope 1 and 2 emissions by 2040

[es]
(]

[o}
=

[
(=

CO . emissions [00Us of tonnes)
e
L}

2020 20N

2020-2025

Implementation of
galvanizing energy
efficiency measures. Trial _
alternative galvanizing
burner technologies. .. .

Replace forklift truck gas oil
with renewables

UK to renewable etectricity.
US start to move to
renewabte electricity

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

2022 2025

2026-2030

10 galvanizing plants
to alternative burner
technology

Repiace forklift
truck L.PG ol with
renewatyies

US moved to
renewabie slactnicity

2030

2035 2040

2031-2035

5 galvanizing plants
to alternative burner
technology

Replace fork: “

truck LPG o wine
renswabies
Remaining businesses
moved to renewable
alectricity

@ Scope?2

@ Scope |

Oier

@ Scooe

Natura® Gas

2036-2040

Remaining galvanizing
ptants to alternative
burner technology

0 ae diesenin
comrartial venicle
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INDUSTRY. INOVATION 13 CLIMATE

AND INFRASTRUCTURE

Saolar lighting solutions at Prolectric's headquarters, Clevedon

rach of our coerating comapanies 15 also
develonng a local caroan reduntion plan 1o
address ther own emissions This includes
Scove 3 which comprises @7°% ot ou- overal
G 4G ermussions Dunng 2023 we will star

m develos a moie detalled sirategy o
reduce our Scope 3 entissions, now we have
established our baselne

How will we measure progress?

we have invested in a sustamabiiy software
solutton that we are using to record our GHG
emissions This will provide graater visibiliny
of our emiissmns and allow us 1 set targe's
and measure performance a* both a Group-
wide and indrividugl operating company level

While ou- lange; term commitment 15 to
achieve net zero {for Scopes 1 and 2) by
2040, we are imeasuring our near-ierm
progress through both reduction in our
zarpon intensity rato and the number of
ronnes of CO, e removed Our near-term
targe:s and progress against these targets
a-e set out oppose

Stock Code HILS
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Hot-dipped galvanized canopy, |

I

Newark Airport, NJ

ACTHW

TARGETS AND ACTUALS

Intensity Ratio (Market-based)
2022 Actual

0.07

2022 Target
2025 Target

2030 Target

No. of tonnes of CO, removed
(vs. 2020 - the base year)

2022 Actual

8,469

2022 Target

CI93LVHAS

143434
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PROTECTING THE WORLD continued

Why does it matter?

The world's sopulation is forecas: to be ¢ 9 0on by the late-2030s
and this will drive exiragrdinary demand ‘or climare fiendly
sclutons inour daily ives The Paris Agieement and the LN Chimate
Panel have defined speciic susranability goals and measuies
within areas such as access to raw materials, energy, and
infrastructure. Qur sustamable infrastructure products and services
can play an mportan: role in addressing the greas challenges
assaciated with increasing pooulation and urdanisation, climate
change and decarbonisation

What have we done?

Duning 2022, we have but on the work we did 111 2027, and supported
by a third party, Route 2, using an autonomeus framewo < tool, we
have assessed the sustainahility and value to sasiety of ¢ 55% of the
Group's products and senices by revenue This analysis uses a Six
Capitals frarmework to assess the value to society of our products,
looking first at our supplier base, then our own manufacturing plants
and finally, downstream when our products are in use. The Six
Capitals are financial, human, intellectual, manufactured, natural and
social and are used to understand how we craate value for customers,
nvestors, employees, communities and other stakeholders

According to our analysis, far every £71 of -evenue generated, our
products contnowte ¢. £2 of value 1o society The results show

a balanced distripution of economic, human, and environmental
impacts n each step of the value chan, the benefi's of our
husiness activities substantially exceed the costs to saciety

Alongside this, our operating compames have started to undertake
Life Cycle Assessiments and we expect this 10 be an inzreasing
focus area for our customears going forward



What will we achieve?

During 2323 we will continue o assess the
sustanamity imoacts of o produsts, o
orovide our stakeholders confidence that o
produsts have an environmen’al, oF econsmic,
or social henafit

How will we measure progress?
We have disclosed the results of our 2022
wark ooposite and will continue to disclnse
work done o assess the sustainability
rpacts of our products on an annual basis

Stock Code HILS

PMOUSTRY PNOVATION 1 CLIMATE

ARD INFRASTRUCTURE ACTIN

CASE STUDY: Galvanizing — reducing carbon
through the avoidance of maintenance

Galvamizing’s anility to odtimise the durabilily of steel struciures and componen:s has
mporant environTenal, economic and sonial advantages

There are hugh economic and envircnmental costs assouiated with the repeated
pamtng o stecl st-uctures These surdens can be significantly reduced by an ninial
mvestrren: m long term protectuion The long term duranility provided ny galvanizing s
achieved with a low envionmental ourden, especially when compared to the eneigy
value of the steel it 1s protecting meaning that galvanizing reduces the embodied
caron of construction.

A recent environmental lfetime study highlighzed marked diffe:ences hetween two
established corosion prevenuon systems for steel st-uctures The hot dip galvamzing
system had a lowe” environmental imzact for a steel st'ucture with a long service |ife,
than a traditronal saint systemr “ong service life and freedom from mainicnance, the
well known advantages of hot dip galvanizing, are the basis for these environmental
benafits. In thus examiple, as shown in the table, a saving of 57,100 tonnes of CO, was
achieved over the 60-year Iife of the car park.

Painted Steel
Structure (kg CO,
equivalent)

Saving by hot dip
galvanizing (kg C4,
equivajent)

Service  Hot Dip Galvanized
Life Steel Structure (kg
(years) CO, equivalent)

Extracted fiom Galvamzed Steel and Sustarasle Construction Solutions for @ Circular Eceromy,
pubr EGGA (2027) and reproducod with nernission of EGGA Galvanizers Assotaton Far further
Irfarmation www gaivanizing org U< cIrcuiar-economy

140d34 21931vydLS
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HEALTH & SAFETY

Why does it matter?

Keening our employees, custorers, and
sunphers safeis our nuntber ane pricrity
Ensunng that our eroloyees wark in a safe
environTent and can refun home o ther-
loved ones at the end of then working day 13
of paramraunt importance

What have we done?

We are pleased to report that our 2522 Lost
Time Imury Rate (LTIRY has reduced by 35%
0172021 17) Managing Directors are
required 1o present the investigation and
findings of all Tls to the Executive Board,
reintorcing the importance of keepmg
employees safe and sharing learning

During the year, we have introduced nine
lifesaving rules that will create an environment
within our gperating companies of zero
tolerance fo- unsafe acts or conditions,
where behayiours will be recognised and
reinforced, and training is provided to alf We
also introduced hazard identification training,
machine gquarding audits, and automated
external defianllator equipment ensuring
that we can keep ourselves and others free
from harm

SAVING AND ENHANCING LIVES

What will we achieve?
Our aem 15 1o significantly reduce the numper
of lost me mciden:s we have acioss the

arganisation. To suopor: this ohjective, we wll . )
- Lost Time Injury Rate
Increase our Near Miss reparting and

Saiety Observation acivity

» Continue to improve the identification
of key risk areas as well as our culture
and asproach to Health & Safety in our
opealng companes
Maove 1o a three-tiered auditing asoroach:
intraducing self-assessnents agams: our
Group-wide standards, peer-to peer site
audits and external behavioural audits
that focus onrisx

Continue to drive campaigns focusing on
those areas that represent major 1isxs for
the Groun's operating companies

Run a Health and Safety survey in 2023

How will we measure progress?

We wilt use LTIR as the key indicator to track
and monitor our progress in Health & Safety,

Our LTIR for 2022 was 1.1, well ahead o our
2022 targe’ and a testimony to the work put
into improving health and safety across ou”

azerating companies, particularly those who
i pleirented safety improvement plang

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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GENDER DEGENT WORK AND
EQUALITY ECONOMIC GROWTH

140434

Welders at work, Birtley, County Durham

Nine core lifesaving rules:

OPIam Mobile Equipmiant

°W0n< =rom Heights

’ Line of Fire

.Access & Egress
{Includes Confined Soace)

6 Lock Cut Tag Out fLOTOY

Reduce
significant

injuries

. Hazardous Chemical Control

. Personal Protective Equipment ((PPE")

Stock Code HILS 43
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TALENT, DEVELOPMENT AND ENGAGEMENT

Why does it matter?

Al & Smith s a global organization with

a strategy focused on sustainable grow'h
Talented seople are “undamen:al o the
suSCess of our aonomous business model
and hels deliver our pur2ose and growth
ambrizns We need a highly engaged and
canable workforce within our pperating
campanies, and this can only be done by
attracting, develoming, supporting, and
“etaining the nght people Ou- operating
companies are supperted by a commrunity
o HR professionals who enable the key
eTployment strategios, programries and
processes to ensure that the Group at-acts
and retains the skills and capabilities required
o deliver on s strategy

Fositive emaloyee engagement and offering
great zareers for seople and helps increase
sur aroductivity, enhance our reputation, and
delwer our growth plans

What have we done?

Qur engagement levels increased to 61%

In 2027 (2021 55%), with an improved 80%
paroipation /ate in our annual emplayae
engagemen: survey. The results indicated a
sTrong improverment in ieadership quahnes,
as evidenced through responses relating

o lne manageis We also saw progression
within diversity and inclusion, with the result
on this index increasing to 69% (20271 63%)
The feedback indicated that reward and
recogniton 1s a universal priority focus area,
and thisis something that we have been
sroactively reviewing in ight of the cost of
Iwving crisis

In 2022 we expanded our Succession
Planning and Talent Managemert (SPTIY
programrme e mclude more employees
This enabled us to gain a deepe: view of
talent, identiy where we have employees
who coutd potentzlly move setween
opR-atng comMpanies as aart of ther career
development and ident‘y and mingate
succession f1sks We have seen an increase
in the potential of our senior leadeishio
aoputation, 1efleciing the eforts being
olaced on developing our feaders, as well as
~ef-eshing this pooulation wiih hugh quality
cxternal hires

We conanued ta provide management and
leade ship development, with Srogrammes
starting at supervisor level, then moving to
first fine manager level and finally a leadership
programme for mere experienced managers
64 supervisors and managers completed

the arogramme in 2022, The programme
content and delivery appraach were réviewed
1IN 2022 and improvemernits have been
identified for implemeantation in 2023 We
piloted a new approach to devetopment for
our Managing Directors They self-selected
unio workstreams covering our ESG agenda,
developing an innovative mindset, and
cultivating a growth culture,

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

SAVING AND ENHANCING LIVES

-
e

Warehouse, ATG Access, Haydock

What will we achieve?

Local employee engagement survey action
plans have been develosed, focusing on

the key areas identiled ‘or improvement In
each operaling company Recognising the
rmoorance of acting on the feednac< and
openly sharing srogress, greater emphasis
will be placed on xeeoing the commumication
process ongoing dunng the year

We olan to comalete a turther SPTM review,
as well as closmg our the acthions dentified
from the 2022 review These include

holding career convarsations wilh fegh
aerforming senior leaders increased tocus on
oersonal develoament planming. identi‘ying
opportunities for Moves belween operating
companies and identifying mitigation for
SUCCESSIoN risks

How will we measure progress?

We will continue to measure piogress through
our engagement survey against our targets
setin 2027 We will alse listen 1o the ‘eedback
that we continue ‘o get o7 our employees
during the year
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LEVERAGING ESG AND CSR

Kathryn Cooper, Head of ESG
Hill & Smith Infrastructure

As Head of FSG at Hill & Smuth Infrastructure, a susiness

that sits within the Group's Roads & Security dvision, | have
seenresponsible for introducing FSG across all Hill & Smith
Infrastructure’s dwisions This has aroved (o be an exciiing
projest and has been nore about uncoverng activilies that
were already taking olace naturally, and being anle to celebrate
and report the business sustamable and sooially responsibie
accorrplishments

am responsible for uniocking ESG opportunries n the

areas of neople, planet and purpose for Asse® VRS, Hardstaff
Bariiers, Hil & Smuth Barniers and Varley & Gulliver - four of the
LK's leading vehicle restraint systemn manufasturers

Incorporating £56G factors into day to-day Susiness activities
allows us 1o meet clients’ needs too, supporung their owrn
actions o reduce the impact of their activities, ensuning a
long term and sustainable benefit ta the envircnment and the
communities they serve Environmental protection, equality,
social impact and ethics are at the forefront of everything,
more than ever before

As aresult of recent achievemnents, the fevel of service
provided to custemers across Hill & Smith Infrastructure
has neen strengthened, while 2 consisten? and collaborative
approach to Corperate Social Responsibility {CSR') and
sustainability has been created throughout the nusiness

In recent menths, colleagues have ted and particinated in
several projects that have benefited the enviconment and local
communities

i1

I'm really passicnate about v

In an era of climate change,
inequality and increasing stakeholder
pressure, ESG remains an often
underutilised, yet critical resource.

My passicn is for people and the
planet. Looking after our planet,
and the people on it, is not only the
right thing to do, but engaging with
individuals proactively acts as a
catalyst to increasing efficiency and
effectiveness in other focus areas”

Major accomphshments include
Achieving CSR Gold Azcreditanon foi Hill & Srrrth
Infrastructure Limited
Leading a long term biodiversity and wellbeng intative in
comunction with the SMP Alllance (who supoort delivery
of National Highways construction and mamtenance
programmes), which has pledged 1o prevent the net foss of
oizdive sity through its activities
Supporting Apprentices and comimiting 1o being nemne’s
of the 5% Club that resulted in being invited to the House
of Lords to accept the accreditation
Gver "% of sta®f now traned as Mental Health Firs: Aiders
and *his 1s increasing each maonth

Sociai value nrojects include a company-wide chalienge o
walk the distance from Notingham to Ukrame, which raised
over £5,000 for the Humanitarian Appeal, and donating more
than 300 Saster 2ggs collected by staff to vulnerable children
n the Midlands

Other regular employee activities include food bank and
clothing dopatons, volunteering opportunities and tree
planting

An increasing nurmber of young pecole in the workplace are
keen o work for a comoany thatis ethical and we as an
orgamisation are working towards becoming an employer of
choice, head and shoulders abave its competitors when it
comes to contributions to the local environment, workforce
and commurnities.

Stock Code HILS
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DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION

Why does it matter?

As an organisation, we aim to emplay the wes:
peoole for the job and help them thiive We
know that we can only do this by considering
talented seople from the whole community,
making our business attractive tor them to
1o and 2y 2 oviding an environment where
they zan be themselves and qive therr bes:

If we can provide attractive opportunities for
our people, and ensure we have a workforce
that s truly diverse, oud businass will perforr
toits absolute potential and achieve cur
ambitious economic growth plans, as well as
deliver individual success

As an emoloyer working across a range of
cultures and countries, we endeavour to
replicate the diversity of the communities
where our companies are based, in the profile
of our own workfoce

Everyone 18 actively encouraged to
communicate and share informanon with
cofleagues Iths mocrtant L0 s that we
create an inclusive culture, where all voizes
and pe'spectives have an opoaorrunity 1o
He heard.

What have we done?

We have continued to “ocus on atracting
more fenales into our busimess, which has
lad to anincrease 1N ‘emale senior leaders In
2022 now at 20%, and in wanuary 2023, we
were delighted o appoint our firsT two “emale
Managing Directars, Rachel Preen in the UK
and Rose Mary Clyburn, based in the US. We
will continue to focus on how we canimprove
dwersity, whilst stucking to our commitment to
always recrurt the best candidate for the role
Progress is also reflected in the mproverrent
inour 2022 Gender Pay Gap.

Our apprenziceship scheme 1s another
method of attracting more diversity into ou”
business In 2022, our gender splhits for new
hire apprentices were 33% female, 67% male
This mcludes recruting females as welding
apprentices, traditionally a role that has
attracted Tore males Of our aoprenticaship
li-es between August 2071 through o June
20022, 16% have a disability, 34% are young
people (being under the age of 24), 3% are
fiom ethnig Tinanty groups and 11% lve in
disadvantaged oos: codes.
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SAVING AND ENHANCING LIVES continued

Examoles whe e our operating so mpanes
have taken proacive steps ‘o improve diversity
include Hill & Smith Infrastructure peing part
of the 5% Club, a movement committed to
proviching 'ean and learn’ skills-led training
oppoltunitres Licnweld Kennedy, one of

our UK Engineered Solutions businesses, 1S
now recogrised as one of the ton 53 SME
aparenticeship employess in the LK

We continued with our Workforce Adwisory
Panels in 20272, -unning one face ‘o face
session in the UK and cne in the US durning
May. We then ran virtual sessions in Novernber
Wwe changed the format o mclude nteraciive
segsions that were led by cotleagues from our
operating companies or internal subject matter
experts, rather than senior mmanagement
Topics ncluded Health and Sa‘ety, ESG,
Diversity and Inclusion, as well as business
updatas on perfarmance We gained valuable
feedback and insights from the Jrocess



What will we achieve?

We will focus locally and at a Group level

on increasing levels of diversity, so that we
represent the communities that we sérve

We will continue to bring togethe” fiR leaders
from ac oss ous operating companies se that
we can share oest practice and learn f-om
each othar

we will be auilding on the success o7 our

US Women's Network, extending it to all
fernale colleagues, to raise awareness of the
challenges and barriers that some women
may face and 1o charmmon them and their
current and future careers

We will arrange further Workforce Advisory
Panels, where we will be seeking further
feedback on what 1s working well and where we
can mprove Wewill provide business updates,
nvrie colleagues from actoss the business

1o present on ImMportant topic areas, and also
encedrage shaing o good practce that is
hapoening within our operating companies

Stock Code HILS

GENDER
EQUALTY

TEXBEN)

We want to owld on the suctess of ou”

apprentceships schenre, recognising 1t 1s
animportant way of attracting and retaimng
diverse talent We wilt -ec-uit addiironal
appientices and upskill existing colleaqgues
though apprenticestups where feasible to do
s0. We will provide managers with additional
nfo-mation and support, to encourage
ncreased usage of apprentices i the UK We
will aroduce an annual newslatter 1o celebrate
apprerciceship achieverments

SUSTAINABLE GITIES

NEGENT WORK AKD 1
ANDCOMNUMTEES

ECONDMIC GROWTH

A —
g -+ 5753

Production team at Hill & Smith Infrastructure

How will we measure progress?
We will continue 1o measu e gender

and ethnc diversity at a semo” level and
review the engagoement survey scores for
the Inclusten and Diversity index to srack
progress

1H0d3d J1931vHLS
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Q\V SAVING AND ENHANCING LIVES continved
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| Birtiey Group
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Beriey D3 JF

TEL:0I91 4106631
inbobirtieygroup.couk

Wendy Daollete: Supply Chain Manager at the Rachel Preen: Managing Director at

Carpenter and Paterson Group (USA) Prolectric Services (UK)

Wendy joined the company in 1999, mmally in an admumisrative Rache! joined Pralectric in 2021 as Cormmercial Director, having
mole i the Engineering dedaitiment. She has since undeta<en heen inspired dunng the interview orocess Sy the compeling

a number of roles, spanming Projec: Management and vision shaied with he by Chins Wilhams, Prolectine’s founder
Procurement Her current role is Supply Chain Manager which Over the past ten years, Prolectne has ted the way in sustainable
nvolves overseeing purchasing and inventory cont-ol for all hghing, power and security sclutions for the construction,
branches as well as leading the warehouse operations at the infrastructure, rall, and utihties sectors Prior 10 joimng the Group,
Waggaman gite in New Orleans Rachel was working in the renewables sector, ma<ing this an

excellent fit for her experience and passion for sustamadit
Wendy 1s focused on improving orocesses and perfarmance. She Y

15 als0 an attive membear of the Empowe ment Sroup, a Women in January 2023 Rachel was nromoted to Managing Director,

n Leadershin network within Hill & Smnh that encourages where she 1 excited 1o lead the business in delivering P-olectnic’s
development and discusses some of the barmers that women ambizious five year growth plan

may face

Rachel says:

"Hili & Smith’s sustainability agenda
was an important consideration for
me when | was considering taking
the role at Prolectric.”

Wendy says:

"Hill & Smith s a great company to
work for and has actively supported
my career development. | would
definitely recommend working within
the Hill & Smith family to other
women, and encourage them to be
open 1o opportunities, wherever they
may be”

She goes on to say that she feels
“supported and lifted by the Group”
with her recent promotion. Her
advice to others in building their
careers is to "be yourself, do your
best and trust in the people around
you to recognise your strengths and
help you go further”

. J
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SUSTAINABLE GOVERNANCE

We recognise that to play

a positive role in society,
we need to act responsibly.
Not just to our employees,
customers, suppliers and
other stakeholders but
also to the environment
and wider society.

Hostile vehicle mitigation barriers, London

® CLIMATE RISKS AND TCFD

Why does it matter?

We rezognise that climale change is a essing global
15508 and as a corrpany we are camimeted 10 3romating

a sustainable environment and 10 provide updates on ou-
progress mdong so To that end, we are oleasad 1o 185ue
ou reaorin response (¢ the Tas< Forge on Chimate-retated
Financial Cisclosuies [TCFD) recommendatiors

What have we done?

The TCFD recommendations encourage companies

to disclose inforation on therr financial rsks and
opoo-tunities due to chmate change, and how they are beng
managed Dunng 2022 we further develoosed our asproach
to assessing the imoact of climate change on ow: business
operatans, stategy, and financial planiming

How do we ensure good governance?

The Board views cversight and effective managerrent

of environmental, social and governance related risks as
essential to the Group's abilty to execute 1ts strateqy and
achieve long term sustainable growth. The Board -ecenes
quarterly undates on progress around £SG focus areas
including chimate related risks and opporturities In addimon,
the annual budger arocess now includes consideration of
operating company level carbon reduction plans, and we will
be introduzing a similar focus Into the 2023 st-ategic plannming
process which covers a “ive year timeframe. The evaluation of
potential acquisitions also includes assessrnen: of the impact g
on our carben reduction targets The Audis Committes s Aqre CFD Hcs a % Jith ESC nmittee
reskpons(;ble forftaverlseemgdrhe maﬂa@gme?: of chr;?te 'et\ated . sorts significant climate related nisks and cpportunities and
risks and opportunities and associated metncs and targets - e lmrme to S e
inaddinen, the Risk Committes 1s regponsible for identifying mitigation plans 1o the Aucit Committes for
and assessing chimate related (isks and opoorrunities and :

during the year we developed and implemented an approach - Further details abhout the Risk Commitiee can be found on page 61.
to support this assessent
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WHAT IS THE IMPACT OF CLIMATE RELATED RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES ON OUR STRATEGY?

Toundestand theanaact that simate could have on au ausinass wa 2 iormed a high-loved assessment based ona range of chimar2 change
goenaros Tre selectad seenanns represent a range of govarment nohey 1ntervention frome very lowe (4721 b signsiican {(2°0) to aggressive (1
Thetrme® ares we'e selected ae consideration of the hkely trring of ©ansimon tizks,
rhanges avexsaiod (o anaalize

Scenario “Global Net Zero by 2050” Announced pledges Higher warm

Forecas's to what
extent announced
amorions and
targets are on path
o deliver glohal
net zeio,

-High emissions
SCENaND, Lansistent
with a futize with no
policy changes o
reduce emissions
Physical nsks more

Glozal warmring s vied
to 1570 ag the worle
reaches globat ne: zerg
ITISSons oy 2000,

Oveiview

Transiton risks move

Jevalent

srevalent

Tempe-atue
norease

-~ R

e

~2C ~47C

Timefrares

2025 and 2030

2030 and 2040

Dunng 20271 a nsk assessmrent workshop was beld wath PwC to deternune which asks could have
amatenal mpact a'ter considenng soth potential financial impact and h<elihzcod The assessment
of chmate-related transition 1s<s and oppo-tunizies was completed on a sus-dvisicnal and
qeographic bass, with physical chrate nisk vulnerasliy analysis completed for our ooe ational
sites In 2022 we completed physical chrmate valnerability analysis for all new sites acquured duning
the yeas The 2021 chimate vulnesaoilty analysis -un for existing sites -emans vahd given there has
been no shange in the underhang chimiate analysis 0ol data since fast yeas The assesszment of
Langiional sk considered emrerging “eguiatory requiremrents, such as caroon anzing

The autout of this assessment hag enabled us taidentify the ratenal Impacts on ous business ansing ‘rom each of these selected scenanos

Thermpac
Tre mai ey

Global warming scenario:

1.5°C and 2°C

Risk

As the glebal economy transitions to a low

carban state, we have idenufied several

aotenual risks and oooorunities for the Group
I'he avallability of greener technotogy o
adant 1o lawer enussions
Increased demand for renewable energy
may lead 1o reduced supply or an
ncrease in the cost of pu-chase

- Themtroduction of carbon oncing across
ou key geograshies increases ooth our
manufaziunng costs and *he costs of raw
materials

+ Potenual opportunities for the Group
given the existing focus on sustainable
infrastructure products, for example
galvanizing and certan comaoosite
applications Furthes innovation in new
oroducis and services, wy ine with our
pupose, will oresent fu-the” growth
opporiunities. See case studies on
page 53

Other nsks identified, but net considered

sigrificant at this stage. include the

reputaticnat damage 1o the Goup's brand due

0 climate inaction of negative chimate impact

from production / supaly cham

Stock Code HILS

sec without consdgdenrg any actions that we might take 1o rut'gate o adant to these futlre clinate change scenanos

Impact analysis

Under both scenanos, operating costs, particularly -clating to ca“bon prcing, could ncicase 1f
they are nat proactivaly mitigated We have therefore assessed the potennal financial imoact of
carbon pricing relatung tou” current Scone 1 and Scope 2 emissions

Carbon Pricing* Gross Risk Impact (Scope 1 & 2)

Annual impact by 2025 J 1.5°C ! 2.0°C
Average annual operaling cost ncrease £47m £4 3T
ASSUMING NO Iroactive carmon reduction (E617) (5 6m)

olans are undertaken pased on Y022 exit
Tunrate ennsstons Figure as at end of
20271 i brackets

Based 21" 5130 pertonne  Basad 01 5120 nar tonne

Annual Impact by 2030 T 1.5°C L 2.0°C
Average annual operaung costIncrease £7.4m £6 1m
assuming no proaciive carbon reduction (£3 6} (£8 0

plans are undertaken based on 2022 exit
run rate emissions Figure as at end of
2027 in bracke's

Based an 5203 per tonne  Based on 3170 per tone

* Carbon ancing assuniouors based on Pwl's estimates for advanced econormes in 1.5°C and 2°C scenarios

The Grous s commrizied to reducing greenhouse gases as demonstiated by our 2040 net
zero ampibon, which will substantially mitigate the gross risk exposure to carbon pricing The
financial impac: of carban pricing has been considered as part of the costed plan relating to
our net zero ambitien, The impact of a wotential increase n the cost of renewable energy 1s
not congidered matenal based on the Groun's current renewable energy consumplicn As the
Group's adopuon of -enewable energy increases, future exposura 10 renewadle energy pricing
will partly e offset oy self generated ene-gy

We have compleied the assessmen of our Scope 3 emissions dunng 2022 with a view 1
digclozing them inour 2223 Annual Reportin accordance with the SBTi target. Once more 15

knowit aout izely cason 2ncing regimes we wilt e it a bettar 2osihion o estrrate the satenmial

impact en our supply chain costs.
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SUSTAINABLE GOVERNANCE

Rocks Village, Haverhill, MA, compaosite vehicle bridge deck, supplied by CCG

CLIMATE RISKS AND TCFD s

Global warming scenario: 4°C

Risk

Under this scenario, we expect 10 See an

merease in <he frequency and ragniiude of

axireme weatha” events ac oss our giobal

aneratang This sould present multiple

challenges for the Group ncluding

- Danage to operalgns from extieme
weather events

+ Operational downtme due 1o severe
weather condmons

- Difficult workang conditions g, extreme
temperature could have the potential 1o
lead to an INg-ease In abserteeism

»  Potential for an increase in the number
of ijuries o accidents when conducting
operations

There are also potential growsh opnortunities
relating to Group produzts and services,
which pravide solutions for extreme weather
See case studies o page 53

Impact analysis

This scenano may include cos:s relating

to the repair of assets, increased volatility,
business discontnuty and needed resiliency
nvestments for addiessing more severe and
frequent natural disasters that would occur
under a warming of 4°C. \Working alongside
PwC, we have analysed the Group’s exposure
to chimate hazards at 53 of the Goup's sites
(2021 67 sites) A summary of the results 1s
as follows.

Sites at higher risk**

2021 2022 2022 2040 2040

No of No of % total No of % total

Hazard sites sites sites sites sites
-tond L T 1 2% 3 B
wind o 3 3 6% 3 6%
Rainial - 5 b5 X B 1%
Heat L 6 _ 6 11% 9 s
_ Hal/Thunderstorms _ 4 4 8% 4 8%

Drowght 3 2 A A B
widfir2 44 3% 4 8%
Total unigue sites with one or 13 12 23% 18 34%

maore high risk hazards

+ Carbon prioing assumot.ons based or Pw(s estmates “or advanced ecconoivies in 15 Canc 2 C sceranng

P (s clmate analysis tool assigred each site, for each nazard, a0 absalute hazard score from 1 to 100
Sites with hazard scores graater than 70 were dearmed nigher nisk

Based on the above analysis, at the end of
2022, the Group had 2 sites at higher nsk of
one o” more climate hazards with heat being
the rros: significant threat (6 sites, 11%)

The number of sites at higher risk of one o
more chimate hazards has reduced compared
102021 (13 sites) In 2040 heat s predicted
to remain the most significant threat to the
Group (9 sites, 17%) with heat also seeing the
most significant increase in nisk from 2022
to 2040 (3 additional sites). Overall, 34% of
sites have been identified ‘o be at higher risk
from one or more chmate hazards by 2040
These sites represent ¢ 20% of 2022 Group
revenues, howeover the revenue at risk 1s much
lower as the corrplete loss of annual revenue
from a site following a chimate hazard event
15 highly unlikely and the sires also have
mitigations in olace Dunng 2022 operaung
companies with sites identfied as higher

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

nsk a-ogressed their business continuty
measures 1In 2023 we will wark with them
to further develop ther- busmess continuity
measures and 1o ensure tha' the necessaiy
msurance remans in place

The resul:s of this analysis indicate the
importance of taking acton to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions to minimise
wransiton related risks. 1t also suggests that,
while ohysical climate change presents a
“elatvely low risk to our future business
operations, it may present opportunities for
the Group Given our focus on sustainable
infrastructure, some of our operating
companies already orovide aroducts and
solutions 1o add-ess exireme weather
conditions, and we see this as an opporiunity
for futu-e growth



How do we manage risk?

The sk Comrnvrraa s rasnonginle for
densifying, a33233ng, and managing shmats
'ela'@d =Y and Docorumbies and "CT,)C]r’tlng
significan: rs<s o the Board This includes
conside o ff emering regulalony
requIrements such as carhon nting

Based on the 310 analyas and imopact
aszezament Hulined above, the Bos d does
not currenty consider the imaact sufficen:ly
maceanal aver the next five years 1o be deemed
a Group Prinaipal nisk, however we are
considenng chimate change as an emerging
risx and will ‘vantor acao-dingly

Therpact assessrment has however
identi*ied that some of our operating
companies may oe more severely impacted
by futurc chmate change scenarics The Risk
Commisee 13 reszonsimle for acively wor«ing
with our Daerating corpanies to ensura *hat
appropniate Mugaton straiyics 47ein place
using ou- estabhished Risk Manageren;
process {refer to page 60 for “urther dezalls)

How will we measure progress? -
Group metrics and targets
Tha G- oup has sat-he following menss and

sks and acporruntes
We are cornmitted oo educing sur Scope
“and Scove 2 00 e amissicns o achieve
aurnet zeto targe: by 240 In the nea
ter 1, we a'e measu ing progress through
reduction mouw CO e nrensiiy ralic Refer
to page 39 “or further details of progress
to date

+ Duning 2922, we unde: took work fo
egtabhish our baseline Soooe 3CO 0
emissions and we are on rack 1o sus it
our SBT1 targets ahead of the required
August 2073 deadline

+ i addtion, we currently reasure water
usage and wasle management and
continue o loo< a- ways of minimising
ou” enviranmental rmpact

We note the guidance 15sued an cross
industry chinrare related matne categones and
“his s an area we are slanning to broaden
gong forward

TCFD Elements TCFD Recommended Disclosures Compliant
a Boad oversigh: L ]
Governance
o Managements ole ®
¢ Chmate related risks and ooporiuniies ®
Strategy d Impact of chirate related nsks and npporiunnes g
e. Resiience of the organisaton’s strategy in
clmate scenanos ®
f Ris«< identificanion and assessment ®
Risk Management 38 Managing climate related ns<s °
h Integration into overall nsk management process ¢

1. Metncs for climate related nsks and

opportunities [ ]
11 Scope 1 & 2 GHG metncs [ 2

Metrics and
Targets 17 5cope 3 GHG metrics ®
<1 Chrmace -elated rargets — Scone 3 & 7 ®
k2 Chirate ielated targets - Scooe 3 ®

PEAGE. JUSTICE
AND STRONG
INSTITUTKONS
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'StormStrong’ Products —

Creative Composites Group, US
StormStrong aroducts include utiity poles,
Ltlity crossarres, hgnt poles, waterfront sheet
piles, waterfron: pipe pres and MR2 coolng
owers They provide resmence. daradility

ard corrosion resistanse in aoth gnd and
shole'ie asncalions 1o ersure strustusal
Intagnty in extreme weather cordiinas such
as wurncana-force winds, blizzards and deep
ficezes Creatrie Composites Group also
rearufacture FreStrong fire resistart uuty
po a3 thar can protect fe gnd fiom the
exzessiva hoat genarated Dy biush grass fres
0 age 14 for furiner darainls)

Rail Track Flood Resilience — Asset

International Structures, UK

“he "Asset Balix" track bal ast gnoulder
retertion systerm adds sty 10 rall tracks
anrd provides flood resiierce 19 ersurc remate
areas of ral networks are 1ot cut off duning
flooding and extreme weather

HVAC vibration isolation systems
- Novia, US

Nowig's vibration 1solanon roof curis are
designed to withstand significan’ weather
events, such as hurmncanes, o protect Heaung
ventilatioa and Ar Corditonirg 'HVACT
systerns and ensure Ife and safety cntical
facilities rarmans oo axd oparationar Sugn
facilimes iclude hasortals, o and fue
stations, data centres and e2ducatioral centres

. J
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continued

ETHICAL CONDUCT

Why does it matter?

Ag animernauanal Groud we tacdgnise that
acting ethically towards our employees and
othe- stakeoholdors shows our commitment
1o domng nusinress in a responsible Tanner
Prozacting ourselves and our emoloyees,
creatng a sense o onde in our emiloyeas
tha: we always 'do the nght thing’, ensunng
transoarency when dealing with customers
and supphers, supporting the communities
i which we work with fair and equitatle
employment policies and opporiuiniies,
and mantaining our reputation with all our
stakeholders

The Group is committed o reating all seoole,

whether emoloyed directly oy the Group or it
subsichanes or emoaloyed in its supply chain,
fairly and cquitably and we are committed

to upholding ther” huiman nghts. The Group
recognises all ndviduals’ basic human rights
and 1s committed to respecting the Lrversal
Declaration for Hurnan Rights The Group
and all 1*s woildwide subsichanes respect

the human nghts of all those working for or
with us, and of the secole in the communities
whee we operate We will not knowingly do
business with comparies, argansations, or
ndividuals that we believe are not working

10 a1 least basic humran nghts standards

Our Grouz campanies will also comply wath
ali apohcable wags and working-2ime laws
and other laws or regulations affecung the
amploye-‘enployee relationshis and the
workplace We oppose the sxalotation of all

workei s, chitdren and young people, we will
nat taleate foiced lgaourn, Or l3nou” whizh
nvolvas physical, verbal, o psychological
harassment or inammidation of any «and, and
we will not employ child labour in any of ou-
ooetations Norwill we permit the explaitation
of, or discriminalion agamnss, any vulnerable
groud

We aim to makse @ positive Imzact on saciety
from our operatons The Grouo’s business
activimies incur a substanual amount of
different taxes, and *he Gioup 1s cormitied
o comrplying with tax laws in the geographies
N whichit operates and works glosely with
tax guthorizies in those countries The Groud
does not operate In countries considered

as nartially compliant or non-complant,
according to the OCCD Tax Transparency
report and dlackhsted or grey-listed by the
=U, except for Austrahia, where the Group has
a roads business with st-ategic intentions to
rirror the success of its UK roads business.

What have we done?

The Groug is committed to conducting its
business activities responsibly and ethically
and in accordance with the laws and
regulations apphicable o the junisdictions in
which we ooerate and we have a senes of
policies that supoort this objecive These
are supported by fraimng and educatonal
orogrammes for employees, together with
a Group Code of Buairass Conduct (CoBX)
which underpins all our activizies and oresides
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SUSTAINABLE GOVERNANCE

over areas such as health & safety, fan,
honest and ethizal ousiness praciice, gifts
and enter lainment, conducting mtemational
buainess. neotection of ndwiduals, ~esources
and assers and at a high level summarises
the Grouo's legal and comphance
responsiolities in areas such as ant bridery
and zoruption, ox 107t laws and ragulanions
and imternational fair and open comoaetiuon
For empioyees who wish to raise concerns
withou fear of rennisal or victimisation, we
orovide an external confidential, independent
compehance hothne and emnail facility, which
15 avallable iniocal languages, o' they

can contact semor managers within then
ausiness, the Gioup Company Secretary, 07
the Chair of the Audi: Committee, without
fear of reproach. During 2022, 12 such 1ssues
were roported and investigated (202° 2}

Specific polcies have been developed and the
following are availadle on the website
www hsgroun com

«  Suoply Chain Policy

+ Code of Business Conduct

+ Ant-Brivery & Corruption Policy
+ Modern Slavery Policy

- Whistlenlowing Policy



What will we achieve?

Ve vl reqeraily teview sunsidiaies sandad
sarrs and conditions of purcnase ang
sandard long e suzoly agreomients
ac-oss the Grouz The terng and agreements
Tustinclude a numhe of Lequirements
concarning ehical opeiations, inzluding
arovisions addrossing a suppliers ooligation
o comply with the UK Made n Slavery Act or
similar focal legal obligatsns

We will act in acco-dance with ou” CeBC,
uzholding a zero-tolerance approach to
bribory and corudton Thero were ze70
nzidents of bribery ard Carruation ceportedin
2022{2027 i}

CASE STUDY:

W dl conduct annual audins 13 ensure that
we fulfil ou obkgations uinder the LK Moade n
Slave y A

we will momtor and mvestigate all
Whistleblowing repcrls as well as fearming
the lessons from such incidents 1 arder 20
manage such reparis to an accentadle level

We conduct ou dealings with tax authonties
with honesty, integnity, resaect, and fanmess
and ina spint of co-onerative complance

Modern Slavery audit

Managemen: under oo a focused audi:
in the second half of the year on selecten
Zinc and resin sub e s relating 1o 1s
Galvanizing and Engwmecred Solutions
operatng companies in the UK and USA
Ar-angomenis were rade for the Grour's
Head of Legal and a pcal “en-esentative
of the relevant operaung company 1o
meet with the major zing suophers o the
galvamzing businesses and the prinaipal
resin suaple” 10 the Creative Composites
Group.

The audhs consigted 97 a premiaviow
questonndaire rogethe: with questons
and observations 1made duning the
interview, and the histonc dealings of the
suopliers with the operating companies

Natadle sutcemes concemed the
integration and gengraphizal locazion of
supnly shamns, and the aopropriateness
of dilgence processes, policies and
functions

PEACE. JUSTIGE
AND STRONG
INSTITUTIDNS

13 Griov 1

How do we ensure we are
compliant?
< Annual Modern Slavery audits

+ Board oversight of all Whistleblowmng
Reparis

< Annual approval of all ethical aclicies by
the PLC Boa:d o Fxeculive Board

- Continual Teonronng of online traning
s enswre compbance with relevant
legistation

» Annual ce-tification by Group opetating
suhsdianes that they have comphed
with polizies issued ay the Groun, and n
particular with the CoBC

ine supplers had a fugh ne-zentage of
integrated matenal supply sourzed o
countries that were ranked in the to half
o the Glonal Franspaency Index

No g concems we e identified
du-ing the audi, with suopliers also
demonst-ating that they had aporopnae
and rahust an-boarding due dilgence
orocesses, and ther” own internal and
suopher aohcies e.g., codes o conduct,
whistieplowing, and trairing, and
anoropriate internal audit functions.

Stock Code HILS
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continued

Suslaimabillty Data

2021

SserdonRED

Percertage of revenue
R Ji et T

Location-basend congsumoton (15

Scope ]

VIRl Tt
Wiy

e Te e 10N s T

LSRRI

AR btao Ll

o e R eesfu

Yot soulce ot e

YA UG

S (LRSS RETR A

[ESE Ao e Z6N s Al

0

_Eo_(zfi_ostt tmemunes o B85 o 1_4_2 .
Lost ime mury rate (LTIRY) (The number of i2sT e riunes div.ded 11 17

_ by rotal hours worked multiped 2y 105 3001 o o o

_ Na of Near Miss Recor's — - 22 2148

_ Percentage of sites with actess 10 anline H&S reporung systems 33k AT
Perzentage of sites covered by 'SO 45001 457,

o 4,402

_Volurtary (Regrettable) atton rate e o __an B
_Percentage of emplovees with ACCeSS 0 3 recognis a_t_;lle_Trgd;e Yrior oM o 18n
_UK Gender Pay Gap_ L I L S
_Tranmingspend o _______£0&m _E0em

No oftramingdays - _ 562 4,119
~ No of training hours o - _ 45010 32932

UK Apprenticesnips — . 52 °
_ Employees partaimating in traimng and develodment 2386 156

Percentage of fernale emplayees particidating iry 10% 7%

raining and develoament S e —

[ r\gjﬂ(_{GTgﬂl%!E}gEaF‘.IC\Da‘LIDﬂ )

kngagement Scare

rclusion Engagermen® £
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SUSTAINABLE GOVERNANCE

2020 2019 2018

2 .

109 119 113

15 1é& te
na n/a
n'a R

4398
7767%
1% n/a s
84 27 128k
_fCam _ na_
_ 4000 na
32000 nfa
34_ e o na
me nfa  ne
105 n/a n/a
49
r/a 56% ___na
ra_ L __na_
na S8 n/a



13 gél;:g;i 1 PEAGE. JUSTIGE

AR STRANG
INSTITUTHINS

Y,

2021

M F
_PLT Dwectors o - 5 3 5
_ Executive Board ) o S 42 4
_ No of Subsidiary Directors - B 7 49
No of Senicr Managers® S 78 23 201
Percentage of LT Dtrectors o o 82% B2
Percentage of Execitive 3oard o oA E7%
Percertage of Subsidiary Dwectors o BYy 94
Percertage of Semor Managerss . BUw 84
Tota percentage of Sroup emp oyees s 30,
‘S.ck;\r:q?.,(:u— oLy .; : N : : {_)) ‘:-)‘:V S
Carbon D\sclosurreifajiectr‘;‘CDD‘) Qating o o 8 0 -t b D
Ervirormertal fines Incuired o - £nul o Enl - Eml el £l
Group Wa:eritjzsigqjmﬁ o - g4e67 104735 S 95093 91152 47,485
Said wagetgiaj:dhrl' Tornes) o - 2138 3600 5183 4678 3038
Recycled waste [Toanes) S - 18570 13755 19145 22514 13817
sercentage of recycled waste o - B L T R 83 854
Scape 37\'7[7(3076‘): ffn"rwareramd waste o 31251_ o 2040 - 72733 521 529
Otner GG ermissions = 24,1806 - LA 8 81 _a
Other GAG emissiors = N.O 180 0) 114~ 213 124 e
Chantable derations o -~ o £62000 £39G00 £30000
Whigtieblowing reports made oy ermployess o 1z 2 _ ; m
~ Modern Slavery andrts carmedout ) o Yes Yes Yes ) Yes n/a

Sustainability Policies
The Groun has a number of policies tha: sunport 1ts Sustamaoity Plan These are listed below, and these can be found at hips /#hsgroup com/

« Draduct Responsibility Policy, = Confhicts Mineral Policy; = Sapoly Chan Pol ey, « Encrgy Policy;  « Environmental Palicy,
+ Health & Safety Polcy, < Equal Qooortunities & Diversty Policy,  + Talent & Davelopmant Policy,  « Tax Strategy Policy

Stock Code HILS

140d3yY 21931vyLs



STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Our People

AL an emaigyer sommitted o
providing the right environTent
NPT g by e NG that
ceonle connected with the Group
can work safoly, ace vamed

correztly, behave in the righr way,

and cormply with all iozaf legal
and requlatory requircmen's,
thus ensusng the sustamansility
of the nUsIness

What matters to our people

+ Brand
Sate waking e onmend
e Tunenalicn

< Welleing

L S0D SeIUNTY
Career develooment

What we did in 2022

Carnied ous ous thrd all employes
CRGAYemen? su vy AINGTeasnn
2Ur eNgAage ment eore

Anaminted a Groun Head o Sustainaniry
Develooed alans o ralen: develonent
and mchizion and dversity as part of our
285G response (aee nages 46 to 48 fo
detalls)

Our Companies

Our decentralised autonomous
model dlaces our companies
close 1o their end markets and
under the managarmeant of then
own board of directors, providing
agihity, custarer intmacy and
onvepreneunal activities Qur
COM3antes a-e able o -espond
rapiedly “o opnoiuniies and to
2hanges in tair compeitive
enviionTent and are ~esponsible
for the delivery of our organic
. groveth and the success of our
Groun shateqgy

What matters to our companies

« Ooerational and financial performance
+ Cashallocaton

Produz? Innowaton
+ Talent and developmen:

What we did in 2022

Acquired a US-nasad solar-soweed lghting
business, National Signal, bufding on the
domain knowledge acguired with Proleztis
Services in 2221

Acqurred a LK pased galvanizing busimess,
widnes Galvanising, increasmng ouw
presence In LK sustamable infrasiructire
Monrored operating comaany
serformance

Reqgular srte visits oy Board menrbe 5
Provided cash to facihitate capital projects

Conunued cur mnovauon workshoos

Customers

Cu- sunsidianies engage with
therr customers on an indiidual
business urt basis Mos:
businesses are accredred

wrth a number of IS0 qualry
standards to provide comifort o
our customers that we arg able
to delver solutions which meet
their exacting requirements

What matters to our customers

» Qualty products delvered on umre and 1o the
correct soeaification

=53G
+ Agirong health & safety culture
+ Beingtreaed with resnec:
+ Working as a partnershio

What we did in 2022

Invested in o-oduct develoament
Increased our =56 focus to set a baselne
for our 5eope 3 carhon emizsions
Conducted health & safety audits acmss
B0% 0F qur sites

Suppliers

We actively engage with our
suppliers, working closely to
ensure that they provide the
right guality of raw materials
and services to suppars our
commitment to qualty sroducts
and to maintaining far cashflow
reguirements,

What matters to suppliers

+ Mutual beneficial arrangements
+ Long-term relationshins
+ Quality

What we did in 2022

Operaung companies regularly met with
existing and potental suppliers to review
continuty and qualty of supply
Maintained the Groua's payment terms at
6% days (2021 64}
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Governments and Industry What matters to governments and industry  What we did in 2022

Wie engage with the G
and ou pees by nahipaning
inndustsy bod
o disouss
requlation, Ny
N ralanon to nfas

terrRets

17 Py

nrent
Sl ety

andtn-aats

v Development of oad nfasuciue
Developmen pfnilmes mfash ugiue

wrodacts

o Bustamable yoduzis

o ivisnmrentally fiendly solutiong

oo Road vroducts o Manual for
sasiny Gafeny Hardwnee (MASE 0 the
LS and Avshalg and Sandaid -NT37 70
“he =

Renresented tha Gloup on Governnran: and
Indust v safety and o oduct commitiees,
ding the Brash Standards Instuie
“ha Vehicle Restraint Manufacturers
s3nciation, Perimete Secusity Supohers
Aszsociation; and the T-ansport Research
Board i the USA

Discussed the use of compostte matenals
with LS Government officials

Cur coerating comaanies engage

with therr local convnurnities on
a pusIness-ry-husiness ba
suznoring loeal chaste
well ag engaging with lecal
althoriizs when seaking o
develop tharr 2uzinesses

What matters to our local communities

+ Cnvironmental 1Issues
< =rployment
- Health & Sa'ety

at we did in 2022

Suzaored au onerating conudries fo
develoo focal ZS0 inmatives

Matched “unding for Ukraimian sun007t
chates

=neouraged ou oaetating comoanies

w0 engage with therr iozal communites,
suzoortng local chanues on a Jusiness-by-
business basis

Investors

Our Executrve Char and C-0
engage with ou: invesiors
through a senes of meetings,
site wsits and rasentations,
ensu’ing that they set out o
strateyy o delivenng long
oM sUSlainglle prohit growh
Investors also feed back ther
views on the Major corporae
governance 155ues of the day

What matters to our investors

+ Sohd dividend performance and long term
share pnce growth, and long te:re susiamanle
profit growth
Oseratonal e*ficiency

c o EBG

Robust coraorate governance and husiness ethics

at we did in 2022

Apodainted a Group Head of Sustainabilizy

Irproved our “asponse to FSG. masulting in

— nereasmg our CCF (Carbon Disclosure
Project’) ran<ing from D e B and

— nerrasing ous MSCI -ating ssore from
Ao AA

The Executive Chaw and C-0 met ~egularly

with investors and analysts

Held an Investo site visit a0 our Hill & Smith

Infrastructure Limited/uoseph Ash Limited

galvamzing joint site 10 Bitston, West

Midlands.

Stock Code HILS

J1931VHLS
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has an established Enterprise Risk Management Framework that identifies,
evaluates, manages, and monitors risk. Several enhancements have been implemented during
2022 to further improve and embed the risk management process.

Risk Management
=HooTve sk T anagentent
s achievament of our siraten

oF i game growth, 2otfolio n TR
st-ong cash genciation, and sustamanility
I he Group benefits f-om an Enteraise Ris<
Management Framework that 15 mtegrated
into the ongoing business activities of our
JpeauNg companies

13 citical to
Sodrver

3

Responsibilities

While the Board has delegated the ongoing
discussion of nisk and risk ranagament

10 the Audr Committee and the Executive
Vianagement, the Board 1s resaonsible for
she overall stewardship of ou- systemof

sk nanagerent and internal control 1Thas
esiabhshed the level of fsk that 18 accenstable
10 pur businesses in the pursuk of our strategic
abjectives 11 has alsn set detegated authonity
levels e arovicte the “ramewo: < for assessing
nsks and ensuing that they a:e ascalated

=0 the aporoanate levels of managemen,
ncluding ap o the Board where approoniate,
for conaide ation and asoroval

Figure 1 Risk Management Process

THE PLC BOARD

AUDIT COMMITTEE

OPERATING COMPANIES

Enterprise Risk Management
Framework

The Goun ad8870s5 a0 _nteinnse sk
Vanage venl —ramewni< that ensu-es a
consestent and proporianate aoooach

ts used o identify evaluate manage, and
montor asks across all our operating
companies The Framrawork ntegrazes with
the Giouas internal controls and comphance
pohomes and is supsoted by the nternal and
external audit progranres It uses a tered
approach to s« management, with risk
reqisters @t aserating companies inked to the
aporopnate Groud Principal Rigks, with flows
of intormanon and assurance (see figute 1)
Inkeeping with ~he 3roup’s entred 2neunal
approach, ndividual operating coTsanies
reco-d and anage unique rs<s outside of
the Srows Princioal Aisks as they see fit
This ensures ns«< sranagenen s effectively
embedded 11 a way tha! 15 each snecific
onerating eavi-onrent and sk hooson

» Hets strategy

companies

wthan s cantawork the feliowng alon and

"ESnOnSINNeG exsT

The Board
< retains ovenall ownershin and
accouniabilly For 1sk managemeant,

«ensures the Directors have the
approprate s«ills, knowledye and
experience ta offectvely assess the
Groun Prnzoal fisks and 2ary out then
duties effectvely,

+ evaluaies the Group Principal Risiks and
oversees their iranagerment,

«  egsiabhishes the Group sk appetite, and
directs the extenal reporung »° sk and
viadilty

- Deermines averall nsk apaeniie
« ldentifies and manages princial rsks

+ [Owersees the nsk management 2racess

= Reviews and challenges risk mformation and a-get posiions
: fram operating corrpanies

+ ldentify, assess and manage operaung comoaany level risks
+ Set sk targets for identified nisks
Camplete risk improvenrent actions

+ 5ets nsk management methodaology
» Adwvises ooeraling companies on 0est praciice
+ Interipgates and calibrates nisk informmanion from operating

+ Prowides challenge and insigh:

+ Reporis ns< nformation to the Audit Cormitiee
= Adwises the Audrt Committee on new and ermerging rs<s

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022



The Audit Committes

Sunuorns the Board oy

sorroirta g and g chetesting of tha
Jner J 136 A AMHDBATe TN P P aw0r
anpetite and 350000 f‘:t e 'm\ conrals

el JJ S thanhiensg Sactors of suluce

anc ruwr_md_

cooensuniy there s a
Paneaal s<s and the Sooun's inrenal
and extenal audit 2o anmes

+ ceviewing suff.cient internat and exte nal
s0U7Ces of assurance and information
oenable o enomiend o the Boa"d
waere shangas may e needed ‘o 'h
Ente-onse Risk Manatgement F 'amewgrk
andsor Group Princigal fisks, and

- reviewmng the detall of external reporang

The Risk Commiittee

Sunoorts the Audit Somaveiee by

«actung as a conduit netween the Group
and odr operaung husingsses suIno ™ ng
the dissemination of the Tnie:onse
Qisk Management “rarowor< and fiss
aopetite down F-0ri the Boa-d :md flow
of intor rahion and assuranco Dask ul
he Boand,

. he\mng the exezuiive oo to erbhed -
Energrise Ris< Managenrent -rameawori
3y designing and 1 ole renting
SUPGOITING SySteTs o ocedures, tools
and traming,

+ pooactively anaysing and challenging
he assessTent, managemen- and
monienng of ozerating busness
ris< registers and day-ta-day 1sk
reanagement, and

Figure 2 Risk Management Framework

ik metwaan the Goous

«ensunng the Board and audit Comnm
are orovided withe suficer oty Tanor
discharge thar esdonsiphities of

The Executive Board

Shprare the Doa s by

L eNSUNNg OPETAING ToMmoanes 3 e
actively erbedding the Groups
SntetIse RS Manugement - amewn <
and are Mamaining hve fskegisters that
a‘e actively managed,

- oversecing completion of all required
Grous reporing of nisk with escalation
of any significant matte s 1o the RSy
Committee i a umely manne and

+advising the Ris< Camnitee on
apaopiate levels of target nsk and on
aniens that may be requi-od o ensure
effective identifizanion and mitigaucn
o7 fI5<.

Risk Appetite
The Sreerpise Ris< Managemen: Framoewd: <
clanfias how ris<ss o be managed in & way
that sansfies the decentalised ooerating
medal of the Grous (see Tigure 7 below) The
anuioach has allowead “he Boad o conside
15 anoel e an the hght of the Groud's Husmness
model and caf'y ouh a robust assess ren:
ducing 2327 of the Principal Risks and
Uncestanties that m™ight threaten the Grouss
susmess model, fillu-e pe-formance, solvency
nd hguidity {see Dages b4 o H8 for the
Groun's Pancisal Ri1gks)

I com ran with overy sucoessiul company,
7173 A level of sk pue s
sonyesives —dl & Smith 2LC
154 97 an 1041 (D7 maction} a3
ssion ard does nat allow the
x":uld ha- theiong
T TE agy, sharsholders
and s a<eh. \Idom ne \u inyg the cnvironmar:
- axarals s Tught Tean

* o PUTSLING ST NOT DUSUING an acquisiion,
ol reguinng greater assurance and
comfort before sroceeding through our
raoust due diigence orocess,

o EnRrng o7 not ervenng nto contiacts
that olaze an oneious contractual of
‘eputaticnat burden on the Company,

+ notenerng geograzhic locations where
anizery and corrunon are accested or
rolerated, or

* NSUUSING Sertain g

S changmg exisling reatments) thatare
harm*ul 1o the environmen:
& single statoment signifying the ris< asoetite

atthe Group 1s
cdiverse nature, multple geograshi lacahons,
mar<e's and ¥ odusts However the 3oad
behevas that i effectively demonstates i's
15< Anoette by the decisions it bas taken
tand not takem during the yoas Too-down
assessrent of ngx appente by the Boardas
now J0ssIble with the mtroduction of Tarye:
Ris< 5zoring and the amlity for the Boaid o
challange soeating comnanies on specific
sk targe:s

(e

overnance

CULTURE AND STRATEGY

Core risk management process

IDENTIFY

Infrastructure

TOCOLS, SYSTEMS

AND DATA

APPETITE

ASSESS AND

QUANTIFY MANAGE

POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES

G AND ASSURANCE

MONITOR

ROLES AND
RESPONSIBILITIES

Stock Code HILS

shemizals o treatments

difficult o artoulate due tots
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RISK MANAGEMENTcontinued

Risk in 2022

Risk Committee
I ha Committes mat armally fiva nes

durmg the year and conor “he Groun
i,

Chie” Fanzial 0%cer, oo -ead of sk

& lwanal sudit, o

Group Directo :

Sooun Smnancial Cont alle | Sious Head

of _egal, Gioup IT Drector and *he Soup
Presidenta, plus representatives of the
Group's three ousiness segmrents The
Comauttec reviews and validates the rsk
reports fom the cperating co rpanes, before
1 esenting a Group-wide renort o tho Audit
Commiztee for discussion on bhath anesatng
company level risks and Grouo nisks
Challenging feedbac« s provided by the Audi
Committee -0 further quesuon the validiry
and mitiganions of the 1isks presenied and to
identfy others noT already conside ed This
arguess ensutes that nsks are not just the
produc: oF a battomr up approach but are also
exaTmned fom the 0o down

VR NVETIRC NI
Jevelnoment

Risk Analysis

I'he Board ~eviewed 1n deuth feedback
[rorr tha operating comoanies and the
QiskoZommittee on the 5roun's Principal
Risks Following derailed deoate, the Board
coneluded that the Groun's Pnincipal Risk
Register conknued o reflect the Pancipal
Raks the Groun faced. Anincrease (o the
expasure fromm two of ou” Pincinal Risks has
heen highlighted: Global esanamic ourlook
and IT systems “alure One of our Piincinal
Risks has seen reduced exposure Talent
devetonen:, diversity, rec-utment, and
retention of kay encployees The remaining
Pancioal Risks have remained stable For
furthe detals see pages 64 tc 68

Risk Activities
Actities undertaken o enhance the Groun's
anoroach to nsk in 2022 ncluded

Al

~ furthei ntegration of the Group [T
Conirols Manual into the assessrent of
the IT Systems Falure Principal Ris<,

+ ravision of the ‘Risk Playbook’ 1o orovide
a guide 0 ooerating companies on bes’
practice preventative (to reduce li<elihood
of risks occurring) and reactive (to reduce
impact if risks do ocou-} mitigating
controfs, and

+virtual semimars and one o one sessions
to Intreduce methodolagy revisions
and to provide ongoing traiming on the
principlas of risk managemen: and use
of the nisk managemeni so”wa‘e

TCFD

Sung the ye
MANAGRENT 278
exposure f o physics

doevelosod the ng<
3xh o nderstand oo
and ransiionat nsks

we futhes

due tochreate Shange The details o this

can be found an g y
specsn chirata shange s<s we'e added
a1 0eralng v 1ipany C1sk - agistan level

5o lu b3 Dy 2022

Emerging Risks

As pastof our comamtneant 1o continuously
evaluate au” shategy and produc offenng,
the Risk Comariiee “horoughly considers
emergng f1sks n the context of future
oaoortunities and threats to the Sroud's
busimess modet Junng 2022 the Risx
Commitee continued “he anproach
developed in 2021 o 1dentfy, assess and
monitor emerging rsks Arevised list of
potential emerging nsks the Group could face,

Emerging Risk

Gas or elecrr

e change in pubss 15 ashuc e 57
snendie g, Polmzal -egime change o

Decliming ime:
ather cployers/industies

Industial action » strikes
terther our own wor<s

Future sandemucs and ous ability (o resoond sffennvely

ity sutage S atiening £ secunty of suooly
saqy resultng neduce
I aolicy ~ethink)

“in manklal lanour emndoymen: and competition with

ree o sunplers / customerns

of anorsed threats and 0opoiuntes
the mmtal i3r Analyais was then coroleted
o dete minewhizn 3 And apporun
ae already being managed thrsugh exisirg
strategic initiatves and which eguire action
now to mitigatesmaximise future M oacts
The regults from the emerging risks analyss
were presented at the March 2023 Audit
Comrmittee and the ononised emerging isks
will be onite ed throughout 2023

Medium (3-7 3y s}

Medin {3 2 0yrs)

Short {D-2yrs)

_ Short (3-2y's

Global rade disoutes (2.g., iensions between China and Tanwan and

mohcations for aperaing comaany sunply cham and custome: impact

2.4, S_IhCQﬂCh\D sUPOIY)

Ageing workforce

Cyoer secuiy

1

Increasing expectation ‘or coraorates to achieve net zero o0 a -educing
g &%y

timescale

Deca-borisation oF the economy and the technology to achieve thiz

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

zontols are outst inoad o rendered ohsolets oy
asiigly sosnsticated and frequent atlacks

Wediim (3-10yrs)

Maddism (3-13yr3)

Meadiun (3-10yrs)

Long "0y 's4)

_ Mechum (3-70yrs)



Risk in 2023 and beyond

The key tocus dusing 2073 wall melude
s rrthen wnc Lo e thr k<
men: rethodnlogy
the Goupz

o Tuttnesintegiaicn o ol Chrrate change
118 8SE85MT ANt T O0os developead
for TCE Dreportng o tha exasting

Epterpnze sk Management ia vewak,

« formalisation and standardisation of
Business Conunwty Planmng ac 0ss our
aperating comoanies,

Stock Code HILS

in-denth review o nutigating nonrols

and the levels of asswance availasle a
0DEANNY I3 T oANeS o asce tam thor
effactivenoss,

conunued assesament of the Pringioa
Flaks TaLIng LHe Groun and aseraimsy
companes inchidimg thoso that -righi
throaton the Gioun's busimness maoel,
future nerfarmance, solvensy and hguidity,

continued evaluatian and dentihizancn
of emerging rnsks that Tight disrunt the
busmness nodels and strategies of ou-
oneralng comaanies,

T ther developmen: of o nsx
nanHgeen: software o contnually
rmntov e the atiiciency of reporung o the

S1ous ram ausoa2rating businesses, and

fa e ahgnrent of bealth & satety and
1 aachng vl e conleal o%fectreness
Dnsiments oo tor ved oy aperaning
TIANIES

Distribution bay substation, New Philadelphia, OH, supported by V&S Utilities

140d3d J1931vH 1S
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GROUP PRINCIPAL RISKS 2022

Reduction in public
infrastructure
spending

Description and Potential Impact

Demand for sustarabla infiasuciure and nanspet s
underainned by Governnen: spending plars Changes
0 these plans eould have a detmenzal neoal
TEVEnuUes

2}

Lon Groun

The Infrast ucture Investmen® and Jobs Azt JHIAT,
cnacied e law in November 2027 continred a
suostanal increase mUS fede al government snending
acrass a range o infrastructure areas and 15 likely to
benefr: demand for the Group's oroducts and se-vices 1
tha LS Desorte the current mac o economie uncertamty
and recen: delays in strateqic road netwoik projpects, we
40 con‘ident the LK Government 13 committed to the
Road Invast ment Strategy, oresenting ‘ulute opoortunity
for our LK roads businesses

Mitigation

Qur existing entity po-:folo contamns dive se
aeodusig, marels and torrones and we wall conninuge
with this aparoach

Viasket and oreduct developrrent iniatives
Co-ooeration botwoeen Goun Jusinesses, feveraging
the Groun's sizednte natnoanal footprn: and explomng
synergies

xposue to “he benafizs fromr longe: tern
infrastructure Investmen: sogrammes

Changes in global
economic outlook
and geopolitical
environment

The Grous operatesin a range of end-use nake's
around the world and may be a®acted oy aohtical,

econoTus o cegulaiony develoomentsin any of these
Counties

wMaienal adverse changes in the solinical and econeric
envirgnments in the counties in which we noe-ate, have
tha potenial to put at s« our adiny T exasute our
slrategy

As a “esult of continued global macro econamiz
uncertamty and the threat of recegsian, anmcrcase m the
rsk has neen recognised

The Group has a diverse porrolio of osealing
sompanies with exoosuie 1o a range o7 maka:s and
geograchies, rmeing exposu e o any one Sountry o°
Tar<el secta”

Current and Tutue e Sinanaial perforrance s
continuously monitored, facilitating -apid response 1o
changes in mar<e: condinions

I lime wish o entenieneunal model, our desisiong
g-e nade close 70 our markets and our busmesses
ae aglle and responsive to changes in ther
compeirve landscane

Ca-ope-ation Detween G oud husinesses, leveraging
the Sroup's sizefintenational footp it and exploiing
syne-gies

Increase in
competitive
pressure

increased volatihty, uncertanty and slowdown i

our Tackets could resull inincreased prices and the
emergence o new technologies, leading o aloss of
cusoimes and/or 272ing gressure and consequently a
loss ol salzs and -educed > ofits

Holding leading positions in niche marke’s of
susiamable infastructure and ranspart safety with
figh barrers to ent-y.

Inline with our ent enreneunal Model our decisions
are made close 0 our markears and ou” businesses
are aglle and responsive 1o changes in therr
competitive landscane

Qur oparaing companies aim o provide supe'1o”
praducts and high service levels 1o customers, whils:
arming 10 ensu-e thereis no desendency on any one
customer

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022



Product failure

[ERLES om:‘v-_a\;: °Llc::iea%e

Description and Potential Impact

Pne Goaun nperates i mfrast-usture markets whe e s
oencal thal g oroducts meaet pustame ard ferpslange
“equirements and where the consequences of sroduct
Fanluee are noentially significant

P oadust flue ansing 1om somponeint defects o

WA ALY 1I55Ues May require remediaien including the
eplacerent o defective comonents Of complers
oraducts, resulting i direc: financial costs to the Groun
andior wider «enutational risk

Mitigation

21931vH1S

140d3d

Products “esmed ann-oved and acoredited by

rermilaany hodios

Qualrty conanl oo arols taliy irplementad ard
conunuousty oo el

Conrraciual cant ois )
mgacts

O InEMIse 220nNmis

Insurance coves mzamianed glosally wath nsurance
partners

Jtigation sunaored: maraged oy extanal legal
saoecialiss

Contractual failure

The Group delivers 1ts commitments toits custo e s
through a vaniety of contractual arrangerents of aoth a
shoi and medium term nature

Weaknesses in the contract tendenng Drosess,
manaropiate soang, misalignment of contiact tarms,
neffactve cont act Tanagement o falure o comply
with comrractual condiions could resultm loss of
Cvanues, 1 & on operating ma-ging and wider
ceputatonal damage o the Group

Themrate Internal Audic review comoleted across
the Group during 2021 with ~econirendations
imaolemented durng 2022

Group matenal contratl review DINIess ensures
soecialist cent al oversight of <oy contiasiual
arrangemeants

Cont-acts training for ey sraff

Dedicated quantity suiveyors and Contact manage”s
i operating co Mnanies o conuad contrals and
mitiyate J1s<

Crikgation suppoteds ranayed oy exienal tegal
specialists

Inaurance cover Tantaned glosally withingurance .
DaTtne’s

Supply chain
failure

The Growy's ausinessas dedend on the avaldandiny and
umrely delvery of raw imatenals and components which
could pe affected by disrustioninits supaly chain Supply
chain “aiu es because of performance, cost inflauon
qualey andsor insalvency may have an adverse impact on
the Group's oroduction casanity and lead to an inazility

o meet customer reguiremenss, cesulting in a reduction
nrevenuss, sotenbal 1253 of maike! shae and sossiple
reputational darage

Global warning could 2face further stress on our Sudply
chain, with extremne weather events imaacting supply
becoring more likely and chronic changes to heat/
rainfall averages sotennally impactng where we source
certain mazonials Chmate change ransiton costs could
also intlate the 27ice of the goods we purchase.

Juring the year, our operating comaanies continuad

to take appropnate action to manage supply chain
headhwinds  Actions taken included implementing
price increases o offset significant input cost in‘latian,
securing supply of raw matenals and ensurmg the
continuity of operations with a backdrop of lanou”
shortages in certain businesses.

Sunply chain -esiience has been a facus o the sk
Committee dunng 2022 with ongong monitonng

of operating covpanies ability 1o “espond 1o the
contnued challenges

Groun wide themane inte nak Audit -eview of Suaply
Chain compieted during 2022 with recommendations
o oeimolemmentad dunng 2023

Groun prosurerant standards, including robust

due diligence of suoply chain partners and the
requirament fo- dual sourcing where available
Regular interaction and assessment of performance/
financial status of ey supphe-s

Group oversight of matenal orocurement contracts
2nsunng rooust contraciual Kintasiions.

Goods inwards and stock management processes In
place to reduce the likelihood of defects or a shortage
of raw materials

Contingency plans in place throughout the supply
cham, such as purchasing addrional stock of key
raw materials and secuning additional supply chain
capacry

Stock Code HILS
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PR'NCIPAL RlSKScontinued

Description and Potential Impact Mitigation
IT systems failure The Grauz relies onthe miormanon tesheology sysiems - The Boasd mantaing a waching one® on |1 and
uzedin the daily 1003 of 1t a0 ST AnIes A IV S AN has Cyver 800N SOnFcEn s ImvAaET mure
9 Gy e o imnar enl ol Hose systenes o 3ry mamiity 1 Acrass the Grous e enhance 1T securty mon® als
fecuvely imalerant now systents 2ould ause als ! and matur ity covering a eas sush asdenny
2usINess and. 'of damage tn the redumaian o’ e 57 TIAN L Anagon ont, a4,

ERR

wgether with signifizant iemedial 20318 endaoint yoechan naiden resaans
vulneragiity management

Poor securry controls and procedures could lead o

QU ODE7ATING COMPANIES DEINg SUSCeNt e (o cybar ) WhoJes}a#e NETWOIK SECLNty ImDrovements slanned

attack, porentally -esuling in significant 1T failue and for 2073

assockated dizrupuon =11 controls manual setung aut 4 ronust setof
infarmatian securty cont ols covenng nasic oybar
hygiene, system back-up procedures and hardware/
soware grotection Reviews of 1T controls
compliance were comrpleted by Intermal Audi during
2022, with action olans agread and monitored

» Quartarly undates estashshed "o wnef oserating
company lzadership teirs on ther 1esnanzialities
~gigting to FT ranage-Tant and nformaion secunty

During the yeur the gloosal cyoer threat has conunued
‘o evolve with increasing numsers of argamsed
criminal groups undertaking imcreasingly sophisticated
ransomware and other cyaer attacks As a resull of
the conflict n Lkramne, the UK's National Cyber Security
Centre {NCSCY has warned of haeigintened oyher 1 sk
32055 LK US and Zuropzan busmesses

While there has neen a markoed enhancement of the
Grouns 1T securty contals dung 2077 the Board
canaider the 71s< to be hawghtenad due to the nicieasing Yy
soohisticaton and frequency of cyner threats across C:
the world

+ Segregatad husiness processing systeTs within eack

opelating company means that any s uzhon due
legal extenal activity s unlikaly (o jeooardise the
cUup as a whole

Portfolio The Group s g-owih strategies include the acquisition » Al potential acguisiions are tghtly ovaluated
. Management o businesses around the world that corplement or to ensute they It within ou” purnose and core
supalerent s existing activities Talure 0 execlle sateqic goals
e an effective acquisiion and integration prog-amme - Due dilgence arotoaols deployad in <2lanon to
would have a sigifican” impact on the 3-oup's ability “o assessmeant of targe! businesses, inzluding tnancial,
generaie sustainable vrofitable growth for sharehalders commei cial, and egal etc

« Boa'¢approval reguired for Group acquisizions, mlne
with its Schedule of Matters Reserved

- Contractual protections and assuances sought o
seflers to mitigase subsequent identficanon of nsks

+ Post-acquistion integration plans estanhshed for all
azquisibons with “egular oe foirrance monitanng
and repering to the Board
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Lack of investment
in product
development and
innovation

Description and Potential Impact

I he Gionn coerates in gloosal Infrastruciure ma<e.s
Trnons nrovation s mtegral o the Goops
Aoy and whione 8 falure oo o

Ul iny cduct onsoleseence, tne sntry of

new soieiorns and o loss of tatke saate The
davaiosren of ne oduzts and technologies ca 2y
sk ncluding *ha fallure <o develop a cormerzially viable
offorng wethin an acceatable urmeframe

whoe

PRSI IR
could re

Mitigation

Group wide Inrovanon Tramewok launched duning

2327 o oepcoreaie and slemnlate vore o yation
‘he G ons Wo <shops we e ran dunng 7027

naovasar and sha < hest oracuca and

o 207

e

tof
h

raprenendal culiiea foste el through a
dw'ﬂr"'ah ed 'r\andge‘rem usture ansuring
*hat Group busa >3 are agile and responsive o
changes i ther comraitive envirnnmen’s

Acqusthons add innovate srodusts and technoiogy
D our DortEolin

Executive Board approval of 2:oduct develoament
proposals within the Group's casiial spend approval
nohcies

Active Intellcctual Pronerty Tanagermren: within
individual Hparating comaanies oveiseen by Groud
Dedizated gualy comrplance 1#5ou7tes in

place across oserating companies, c-nmrmq
responsivenass (o regulator and/or customrer
approval requirements

Board monrtaang of emerging nsxs alongside
axternal soecialst sHpD2o wWh hoth the nskes
denified and the sotennal oIparunIles a15mng e
consideredd

Talent,
developrnent,
diversity,
recruitment and
retention of key
employees

The changing natu e of the deograohizs irom which
we souce sui employees and the ways inwinch they
like o wok can make It difizuls t actand emin
ngth salled and unsxilled lasous We need to ensure
sffective rec i rent channels and make the necessary
vesTment to develssy and retam high quality indrad ua!q
i key D0SINISNS T0 guarantee the long term Success o7
the ausiness Woe need to ensure the diversity of our
work‘orce reflects the communities In which we wor<
Without talented emoloyees we will D unasle 1o delivar
our gratedis anms

Competinve local lanou marxets and the after-rath of
COV1 119 led to challenging ~ecruitmen: condimons for
our operating comaanmes in the firs: hal* of the yea In
the secand half of the year these pressures eased due

to rising unemoloyment and a moere difficult econamic
clirate, subsequently ime ro recrut and the number of
vacangies acroas the Group have both reduced Theissue
does remrain though for certam skillsets that a-e 1ore
challenging to “ind and retain, e g., Welders.

Cu- senior leadership gender diversity has improved

in 2022 to 20%, due to both internal promations and
external hires Anincreased focus on engagerment and
corrective actions following the 2021 engagement survey
has led to an improved score for the 2022 engagemen:
survey, increasing from 55%to 51%. The process "o find a
permanent CED 15 underway

Overall, a reduction in the "1sk has been recogrised for the
period

Two of ow FSG rocus acas {alent devoioament
and engagermen: & diversizy and inclusicn) drectly
add-ess the fis<, with ima-ovement imitiatives and
mielnes overseen by the 253 Zammities
Refeshed Peonle Strategy with a greater ‘ocus on
Intes nal tafen:

Head of Reward and Head of Talent roles -ecruited
during 2022

Contraatual arotecionsa and  ererioans in

erployment con k f sonrar management and
other key eployees

1 aning and developrent of emoloyees, whic
mcludes a progranrnre of 1IDD and ILM sourses

for semaor management and identified cotential
successors, and apprenticeshia and other vocatonal
courses for speciahist and fechnical roles
Apniopriate remuneration and oenefits, together with
honus opportunities and incentive plans offered to
employees

Recruitment process develoned o include

competency requirements and s«ifls gap analysis.
Talent review process extended in scope to cover
maore emmoloyees, INCreasing cus visiniity of talent

Stock Code HILS
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PR'NC'PAL RlSKScontinued

Description and Potential Impact

Prevention of harm
or injury to people

The Groun is comaritted 10 2 evenung all health & sarely
meidents and casueng the neatth, sa*et and wellaeing

of Al enlay ondchird paimes The Gree
Tulteie manuiactunng facilsies a-ound the

fatlure i tha Sraup's heaith & safety noocedu

VIR has meduced from 17 m 20271t 0 Tin 2022 —uither
improveren: s requyed 1o each the 2030 Health &
Safety target of 0 25 and healh & sale'y remains a key
incus area for the Groun

Culture of zero wolerance 0 ~espect of heath £ 52
viglanans aanrored oy the Boa d and deasenuna
Shroughout Gioup businesses

Reduction of the Grous s T1 ates 15 a key ‘o2us
for Manage nent and the 3oad, with imarovemen:
ratics now astanhshed thraugh the Z8G Coraities,

'

Monthly health & safety resorung “or ali operating
comaanies via onhne 1onls

Mamitonng and review of LTI raies oy Sroudy with all
LTI events tollowed up and nvestigated thooughly
using the five whys' root cause analysis and
oresented 1o *he Executive Board Irmprovement
recommendations are implernented 1o uniTise any
"eOCCUrrence

Development and -oll out (Jan 2073) of our nine hfe-
saving rules’ and ‘non negotiable safoty behaviours’
Programme o add dehbollalors (o all sites
coTrrencedn 2022

Ragutar health & sa‘ety site audi's

Health & safety forums o momitor perfarmance and
sha~e sest prasuce

Cxrernal health & safoty acoredirations and
relatonahing maintaned with regulatory sodies

Health & sa‘ely s 3 pnionty a-ea of focus ‘or new
anquisitions

Violation of
applicable laws and
regulations

The Groun's glohal oseations Must comoly with a
range 2 natimnal and inte natianal laws and -egulations
including those relared 1o modern slavery, ant-arisery
and coruption, human nghts, and employment, GOPR,
Tradefexoort cormoliance and corractitonsant Trust

A fallure 19 comoly with any apahcable laws and
regulahons could resul it anal of crinimal labiines andy
or ndividual or corporate fines and coulid Alad result
indesament from Governmenirelated contacts
restrictions on ability to trade o rejection 2y financial
counterpartes as well as reputational damage

i exposure to breaching sanctions olaced on Russia
15 1ow due to the Group having no current direct Russian
custamers or susnhers Du ex20rT comphance software
performs daily scieening of our custome: and suppher
databases against glooal sanctioned and denied nacty
liszs with any changes In status flagged.

Group Code o Sondust sets ot requerad annroach
for all 5aif

Statf raining siovided on Modern Slavory red

flags, Ant: Bnbery and Corrustion and Comoeition
comrpliance

Programime of gudits undertaxen on a cyclical
2a%15 10 review DUCrating CoTaanes’ complance
with “egulalory requiiements, including “or examasle
simulated ‘dawn raids’

Software solutions imolemented glonally o ensure
compliance with srade and export legislation
Exrernally hosted whistleblowing hotline avaidlable
to all erployees to allow them o raise concerns in
confidence or anonymously, i oreferred

Mademn Slavery comaliance piogiam nea conunued
through 2022

Toolkits issued to all UK azerating comdanes 10 aid
comphance with GDPR

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022



NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION STATEMENT

We am o comoly with the Non finanoal Reportmg requiremenss contamed in 545 40A and S415CE of the Convpanies Ant 2006 The table below,

and thenfornation it refers o mtended 10 help readers understand ous position on <2y non-fnancial mate s

Those gohzias marked weinan asmans< can oe fourd on the Company's wensite hsgous corwho we-aiergovarnance our-solicies/

Reperting requirement

Palicies and standards which
govern our approach

Additional information

Environmental matters “rvionment policy* = Sustamatilty Plaomchiding 3207
Energy policy* s Dy Aporoach
+ Protecting the Woild
+ Saving and cnhancing lves
Sustainasie Governance
RisK TCED
Non-financial KPIs
Employees Groud Code of Business Conduct® + Sustamaoihity Plan including 321057
Training and develg 3ment pohicy* + —ealh & 3atety
Senmo’ ManageTen: salaty dolcy - Sucgession slanming and
Health & Satety policy” talent manageman:
- Grountearning and
developmeant
+ Wellbeny
+ Risk Talent, diversity oo rent
and etentior of <ey eraloyees
= Non Ynancial KPIs
Human rights Recrutment of emaloyees policy « Sustanability Planincluding 375057
—iroloyment efarences nolicy Dive sty & Inclusion
Equal chaortumities and diversity anhcy™ . Gender Pay
Board diversity siaterrent™ - Human nighis
Data protecuon polcy*
Madern slavery pohoy*
Community Indwvidual subsidiaiy asoroach + Noen-finanaial KPIs 201021
Anti-bribery and corruption Anti-oribey & corruation nolicy* = Sustamability Plan including 32ta 47
Inte national comoetition taw polcy .« Sustanacie Governanoe
Gifts & Entertainment polic , )
= poney - Risk Viotation of apohicable taws
Whistleolowing oelhicy™ and requlations
Description of the Qur Purpose and Business Moded - 2012
busihess model Cu: Strategy
Cur Mar<ets
Description of the principal risk Our Business Model 21012
and uqcertaintigs_ gnd impact Our markets 60 t0 65
of business activities %15« Framework
Prinzinal Risks and Uncertaintes
- 5610 57

Non-financial key perfermance
indicators

Employee Engagemen:
Divorsity

_ost e njury rate
Greenhouse gas eMIsSsIons

Wa'2" and waste

Stock Code HILS
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Alan Giddins
I -

Appointed to the Board
3 Ocinner 2017

Ajan was formorly a Vanaging
Partna: and Global Head of
Private —guity at 31 5 oup plz,
and a memae” of 11§ Zxeculve
Commitzee He has extensive
exeence sitting on the hoards
of internaticnal businesses
Prior to jorung 3i, he soent °3

DA 1IN MvasTment Han<ny
advising a broad range of quoted
companies He quahfred asa
Chartered Accountant at KPMG
in " 990 and has a deg een
Economics, Alanis Charr of
Watkin Jones oic and a Non-
axecutive Director of tig Society
Capttal, a leading social impact-
led nvesior

In July 2022 Alan was asked by
the Boa:d to take on the role of
Executive Chair while a search
was undertaken for a new Chief
Execuive

Appointed to the Board
16 Sepiamber 2019

o~

Hannah jomed the Goupin
Sentember 2079 Pror t joming,
Hanrah had a 14-year career

in BT Gioun plc, most recently
as Chief Financial Office” Asia
Widdle Zast and Africa for

BT Glozal Services nased n
Singans ¢ Hannah also held a
numbar of zommeroial roles a:
Canle & Wiraless onor 1o joining
BT She quahfied as a Chartered
Accountant at Arthar Andersen m
1999 and has a Classics degree

Hilk & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Appointed to the Board
2 December 2079

Fony has had a successful
ntenational cateer azaple
Jrectorinman: fathnalogy,
nduatal energy and retail
comaanes ke was most
recenty CEO of Lard ple, whe'e
he led a successful turnaround
andl then took 1t “om hsied (o

S vate ownership tnder Adven?
Internauonal Inaddton, Tany

15 a Senior Independent Director
and Audiz Chanr of Costain Group
PI.C. Non-executive Jirecior of
Associated British Ports and has
served as Deputy Chair for the
Port of London Authorty, where he
alzo Chared the Audit Commitiee
Tony quahbed as a Chartered
Accountantin 1997 and has a
degree in Chemistry with Business
Studies

Appointed to the Board
1 Decemoer 2004

Annetie has broad semio”
TAfAgement exoeence N the
inte-naional ndusinals sector
and s currently Chief Human
Resources Dficer of Johnzson
Matthey P_C Prior to joining
Johnson Matthey, she held a
numbes of semor haman resource
rolas in Pilangton Slass and
NSG Goun Praviously, Annette
was a Non-executive Director

of Inhunal Services, sart of the
UK s Minist-y of Justize Annette
has a deyree in Business Studies
and a Maso's degree in Human
Resource Managamen®



@Auj\' Conmiroe
@ Mo Tmanon Compires
® Ronvuraatior Sgnoqutteg

Appointed to the Board
TJure 2076

Ma-ik s a Cha tered Accountan:
and was Groud Strategy Director
of Sniths Group pke from
rebruary 2577 1o Al 2074,
Drvizional President o Srichs
Interconnact from Ocigher 20172
o Aph 2074 and Non-oxecutive
Director of L0 Wethorspoon plo
fram May 2012 10 May 20715
Prigs o oming Siths, Mark was
intenm Managing Direclor of
Green & Blacx's Chocglae and
oefore that he held a number

o* finance and strategy roles

a: Cadbury plc before being
aonointed its Chief Straregy
Offices from 2304 0 2070 He

is Senmor Independent Non-
executive Directar and Chairman
of the Audit Committee at
Cranswick olc, where he 15 also
a membe of the Normination
and Remuneration Committees
Mark was also a Non-executive
Director of Mitre Group PLC untl
July 2318

Stock Code HILS

Appointed to the Board
2 December 2519

Pere hag been the Chief Excoutive
of Murgan Advanced Mazatials
gl since Augus' 2015 Pro

2 that, he was the Pregident

o the Comnmunications and
Connectvity secicr within
Cooham plc, following a mine-
year pareer with Cotoham,

where he held a numbe- of
seniw leade ship roles covening
strategy, technology, business
transforiration, and business
leadlesship Prior to Cobham, Pete
was a nainer at Mckinsey &
Conmpany in London specialising
N stategy and operations i the
aerasoace, defence, and powe-
and gas sectors He has a PhD

n satellize navigation and a

M Fng in Electronic and Electnicat
cNgINeernng

Appointed to the Board
1 Aonl 2020

I eigh Ann joined Bp's executive
leadarshia tean as EVP
Innovation and Zngineenng m
March 2027 10 his rale she

leads 2’z global scientists

and engineers to deliver

rechnical innovaunon, sroviding
assurance through the Safely
and Ooe-atonal Risk andd Dital
Secunty *2ams and leads digral
nnovazion thiough the 1IT&S

and Jigital disciplines She was
previously np's Chie® Procurement
Office” accountable for a safe,
ethical, and comrpetitive supply
cham of £302n global annual
soend Her mam career has been
leading la:ge ooerational, safety
and engineenng global teams and
she was formerly Vice President
of Technical Functions Leigh-Ann
holds a degree m Mechanical
Engineering, 1s a chartered
engmeer and -ellow of the Royal
Academy of Engineering and
Energy Instiute

Appointed to the Board
T Aonl 2022

Fa~akh was formerly President
of the Sonnect and Control
Technaloges division of ITT Inc
CITTY, 8 US hisied industnals
g-ous Fatra<h has significant
nternational oseratonal and
leade-ship expencnce, combmed
with having held semar rales in
20th Stravegy and MRA PHor (o
Joning ITT, Far-okh held semior
managemen: roles at aoth Eazon
Corporation and Pratt & Whitney
Farroxh lives on the Zast Coast
of the US and has a degree in
Mechanical Engineering from
Vanderont Unive:sity and an
MBA from Kellogg School of
Management, Narthwestern
Lniversity
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INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE

Alan Giddins

Dear Stakeholder

I am pleased to introduce
this Governance Report,
setting out how the
business has discharged
its responsibilities during
2022 and its compliance
with the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2018.

Sovernance s the third strand of £5G and
plays a crucial role in the evolution of any
susiness ALIts best, good governance
enables better, more agile decision-mnawkng,
adds value to the business, manages informed
As< taking within appropnate parametes and,
ultimately. protects sharcholder interes's

The full Governance repo:t can ae found on
nages 7410 83.

Basis of Report
We have used the UK Corporate Governance
Code 2018 {the "Code") to assess our
governance arrangements during 2022 Asa
premium hsted 1ssuer on the London Sioo<
Exchange and in accordance with the listing
rules, Hill & Smuth PLC has assessed its
application of the Code under the headings of
Boaid Leadershup and Cormpany Purpose,
Dvision o Responsibilities:
Cemnasition, Succession and Evaluation,
Audis, Risk and nternal Contial, and
RETLNErAtON

Compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code

The Boa'd has evaluated 173 corrohance with
the Code and confirms that Hilt & Smith PLC
compbod with the -equiremen:s of the Code,
excent inrelation 1o the requirerment that the
roles of chan and shief executive should not
ne exercised by the sarve individual Bince
July 2022 these roles were dertormed by
myself, n the capacrty of intenm Executive
Char, following Paul Sirimons $ienping down
o che Board in July 2022

After careful consideration of alenative
opuons, the Board felt tha: my appomtment
as Cxecutive Chair was approcnate A scarch
for Paul's successor was starred and several
atditional governance safeguards around
this dual role have been rmplemented More
wiforrration on this can be found i the
Governance [epor: on page 76

Board Dynamics

The Board s fully enyaged, has cpen and
canstructive interactions with the executive
tean, and has the skills and expenence to
ove: see strategy, governance and nisk The
main facets of this responsibility comprnse
cansideration of the long term direction and
strategy of the Company; the values and
standards within the business; subsichary
comoany management performance;
resources, health & safety; risk management;
and internal controls
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We will keep risk
high on the Board
agenda, recognising
that a number of the
market challenges
the Group faced in
2022 have flowed
through into 2023

At 31 Dezerhe 2022 the Bog-d comonsad
six Non-executive Jireciors, myseall as
Executive Char, and one Executive Drector
More inforraton can be found on the Board's
effectiveness in the Governance Report on
nage 80

Board Committees

throughout the year, the Bomd was
supported oy an Audit Convnitlee, a
Nomimation Committee and a Rerrunaraton
Coenmitzee. Qurside of the formal Board
structure, an =56 Cormittee, Risk Corrnuttee
and Fxecutive Board all orovided mout into
*he Boaig decision making framewor<

Board Activities

Duing 2022 Board memhe s visited ~2 of
ou- sites to mect wrth the local managemens
“eams and to expand their knowledge of the
relevant cperaling company’s activities and
and markets We also underiook our Sroud
Strategy Day in the US | will be encouraging
my Board colleagues to continue to take the
opoortunity to ar-ange m*ormat visits 1o our
operations whoereve nossible dunng 2023

The Board soent time ~eviewing the MEA
pipehne and por:folio management activities,
ultimately leading ‘o the disposal of cur French
galvanizing operatons 10 October as wellas a
partial exit ©f our Swedish roads opelations
The Board also anproved the acquisiions of
Widnes Galvanizing and National Signal, both
of which are fughly comalementary to our
existing portfolio of businesses



Heaalth & safoly continued to ne a 2oty

¢ 07 tha Boasd and we we's nleased
ry e an maovad fendin ol IRCIS TN
healh & sa‘ety K215 ove the course o7 the
yeas The Boa drecowes an update a° 2ach
et an health & eafen pefo vanoe and
holds the ousmess 15 aocount “or any 21045
oF T Ve e

lam pleased torenoit that ESS s o to212 that
has gained significant momentum wiiain Hil
R Smith duning the vear The Board recerved

a nunber of £5G updates from our Group
Head o' Sustamaniity and the Board has
neen oleased with the enthusias n shown by
ourbusinesses N embracing the chaages
necessary 10 make our business more
sustamable You can read mrore anout o
ESG progress on dages 32 1o 57 o this report

Stock Code HILS

Looking Ahead

Tre Board will continue to poontise goad
gavernance within the Grous We will <eep
715« high on the Board agenda, cOmsIng
that a numoer of the mar«<2 challenges the
Urons taced i 2022 have tlowed through
Nt 2023 Health & sa®aty will also revrain a
ooty The Board will continue ' challenge
manageent "o ensuie thal we have the
aporonnae level of resource across out
pusinesses and that whe' e 1ssues a71se
appropriate acions and learings are taken

Alan Giddins
[ntenm Executive Cnarv

8 Ma~ch 2023

‘Westminster’ HVM Bollards, Royal Albert Hall, London, supplied by ATG Access
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GOVERNANCE REPORT

Hill & Smith PLC is a company
with a premium listing on

the London Stock Exchange.
During 2022, the Company
fully complied with the
provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2018,

with the exception of the
requirement that the roies

of chair and chief executive
should not be performed by
the same person. Following
Paul Simmons stepping down
from the Board of Hill & Smith
in July 2022, Alan Giddins
was appointed Executive
Chair while a search for Paul's
successor was undertaken.

NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

BOARD LEADERSHIP

The Board sers the entrep eneunal culture
wihinwhich our susimesses operate and

15 collestwely resaonsihle tor the long term
frhe Cemaoany The Rill & Smith
PLC group comonses the holding company
and 115 gnncipal operaling coTnanies,
lisz2d on pages 196 t0 198 The Group's
businesses are directly supervised by local
operating boards there are clear ines of
delegated authoity and businesses ase qiven
a hugh degree of autonamy to promaote thair
asivrlesn an entresreneuiial tashion

The Managing Directors of our businesses
report o the Group threugh a Group Presiden:
operaing model The Group Presidents a-e
membe: s of the Executive Boa-d alongside
othe senior executives, the Chief Fiancial
Gfficer, the Group Corparate Developmeart
oirecto- and the Executive Char Detalls of
the Group's business madel can e found

on pages 1 0to 11

The Execuuve Chair and Chief Finanaial
Officer receve regular reports on the
pe-formance of the operating comoarnies,
and the Groun Presidents are responsihle
for ensuring a consistent apphcation of
governanze, gperational procedures, ns<
managemeant, and Group oclicies and
practices.
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HILL & SMITH PLC BOARD

EXECUTIVE
BOARD

AUDIT
COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

GROUP
PRESIDENTS

RISK ESG
COMMITTEE COMMITTEE

OPERATING
COMPANY
BOARDS

ProPower 3-Phase solar power unit, provided by Prolectric




Board framework

The Board opoerates within 3 frarewor< of
3nad meatmngs, dISCUssILig and 3re vists
The Boad s suppoted oy thee conrmttess
Noinaton, Audit, and Reunea aton
Memgesship of these covmirtees 15 5o o0
an payes 34, 88 and 94 of thig oot The
Baa-d conaidered whiehe the Comoany's
£S5 Comaites should bo classed as

a Boad Commitiee” In deciding that o

should nat he, the Boasd nosed tha hoth the
Zxecutive Char and the Chief Finanoial Office:
hoh sa* on the Committee and that the
Board, as a whole, recever yeqgular updatas
from the Commitiee

STRATEGY

- Group strategy and
operating plans
Business development
including acquisitions and
divestments

Major capital investments
and divestitures

INTERNAL CONTRO

Compiiance
regulation
Cyher security

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance
Ethical standards
Health & Safety
Environmental Matters
Succession Planning
Compliance with the
Company's Code of
Business Conduct

Stock Code HILS

The scope of Board decisions

The Bua'd nanages the Group with ~eference

1o foomal schedule of nave s reseived

‘or the Board ‘or decision, whizh s asphed
cro3s thiee <oy pitlars Stateqy, hiternal

e

Conol and
Our Section 172 Statement

All Boaid neimoers are aware of ther
ooligations unde 5172 of the Comoanies Act
2006 and ther decisions and considerations
that have 5 172 imphcations are accurately
reflected i Board minutes The Board's 2022
s 172 Statement can be found i page /3 of
this report

Whe-e other businesses within the Group are
required to make a s 172 Statement, these
reports can oe found within the Annual Report
and Accounts for those entifies Direciors of
these operating comoanies have recoived
addricnal susport from the Groun (o ensue
that their decisions are ‘ully recorded in
Board minutes

Engagement with shareholders
Tha Board mananes the Group on Hehalt

of g shareholdess, and i undorta<eas this
res20nsy In such A way 83 10 maxnnse
shaeholder value over the long term and to
advance “he interasts of all o the Groun s
sta<ehoiders 10 ths resnes:, during the
year the Executive Chaw and Chief Fmancial
Affice mat with mstrunional shareholder
representatives ooth in the UK and USA
including at one of our principal sies

the Wes: Midlands Feedoack from these
meetngs s included within the matenals
sha-ed with the Board The Board alsa
receives reports ‘rom the Company's broxer
and finanoial ouble relatgons agency on
feedback from institutional shareholders
follawang the Grous's intenm and full year
results announcements

Feedback and dialogue

All Board directors ave avallable 1o meet with
sharaholders o discuss mhaters and can be
contacted through the Company Secietary.
The Execzutive Char and Tony Quinkan,

Senior Independent Director are avallanle

w0 meet with sharehoiders concerning
coporate governance 1ssues, if so required
No concerns regarding the running of the
company or any proposed action were
receved or recorded from shareholders in the
year under review or to the date of this report.

The Company Secretary also engages with
shareholde s and the investor community
as and when requi-ed Copies of all trading
updates and Intenm and Annual Reports are
posted on the Comoany's website, together
with detalls of key financial and shareholder
informaion, governance statements, Group
nolzies and corpo-ate and organisational
shucture

Hill & Smith PLC Annual General
Meeting (AGM")

The Hill & Sroth 22 ASM was held inaetson
last year, following two years of govesniment
1cians onndnor gathenngs oo
COVID White the exastence of the virus
contnues, the ansence of rest Ictons on
WIS Mens wa an'l e Heing anle
e sha eholdeis agam n 2ersan

N 2523 The datails of the 2023 AGM can
be found on sage 176 and in the Notice of
Meeting

The Campany's Annuat Repor: and Notice of
Meeting ate sudhished as s0on as the ima
required for then anntng allows, in arder o
provide the maximum time in advance of

the AGM for feedback To be receved from
shareholders Proxy votes of shareholders for
the AGM are tabulated independantly 2y the
Company's eyistracs, orovided at the AGM
and ounlished on the website shortly ater the
conclusion of that meaeting

1H0d3d JONYNYIAQD
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GOVERNANCE REPO RTcontinued

DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

Summary

Role of Executive Chair

{since July 2022)

Failowing Paul Simmons steoorg down m
Luly 2022, Alan Grdding assumed The “ole
ofintenm Exacutive Chiar wihile 3 383 oh

foi Paul's successor was undeta<en The
Boa-d ag cod that a numoer o governance
safeguards be implemenred. inzluding 1} a
formal session at the end of evary Board
mesating for Non-executive Dreciors, which
the Txecutive Char iz noma sast of and i
thar <l Seniar Independent Director should
rewiew all M&A oapers indeaendently before
subxigsion 10 the Board Since the start of
2023 the =xecutive Char has also stenned
down fror rerbershiz of the Remuneration
Commitres

A fornal review of the Charrs 1ole
was underaken in dctober oy the
Semor Independen: Director with al
reco T endations zemngimaslementzd

Role of Chair {January 2022 —
July 2022)

The Charr s responsisle far the leade ship
and effective wor<ing of the Board The siza

Fabrication welding, Lionweld Kennedy, Middlesbr
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of the Board 2nsures all i 1S oot ouTe
flly to discugsions and decan rakng, The
Charr sets the 3oa'd agenda and determines
how the Boaid shoutd use the trne ava abie
20t dunng Boasd moctings, 2 2 noting a
culture nf onenness and debate, fazilirating
consrustive noard retatons and effectve
contribution of noad memoers, ensuning
directors receawe ageurate, Urely and clea-
mnforrmation: and providing an opuortunity “or
the Non-executive Jirectors 1o meet withous
the Executive irectors present The Chair
seeks engagement with majn sharehelders
to understand views on governance and
performance aganst strareqy

Role of Chief Executive

The Chief —xacutive s resaonsible for the
management of the Corpany executny the
Grours strategy and developrren: meeing
financial objestives imslencenting oohcies
and mamtaining controls Along with the Chies
Sinancial Officer, the Chief Sxacutve o ovides
inio manon 1o the Board via written reoo s
and presentanans ar Boasd mesthings

Role of Non-executive Directors
The Non-executive Directors ta<e an aclive
role in challengmig strategy and norito ing
the oerformance of the Comroany, have no
manage izl resnonsibility and ae thare o
provide challenge, sirategic guidance andd
specialst supno Lo the Execulive racioss
Alf Non-Executive Directors have sufficien:
trre to reet then soa-d esaonsiadiies
Theraare clea” dwisions of iesaonsimilites
between the leadership of the Board and “he
executive leadarshid of the Group, and these
have heen approved oy the Board,

The Non executive Directors, led by our Senior
Indesendent Director, meet indelendently
withous the Chan present and also reet with
the Char indenendent of rranagement

Executive Board

The Executive Board takes 1 authonty

from the Chief Zxecutive (or their subatitute)
It 15 not a commuittes af she PLC Board,

nor a decision-making body, but provides

a valuable forum for semor executives to
discuss matters of impartance

Meeting monthly and more of'en as may

be required, the Executive Board 1s the
senior management body for the Grous and
monitors and manages the parformance of
the business, reviews orogress agans: the
st'ategic ohjectives and ‘ormulates budgels
and proposals on stralegy and resource
allocation, ~ecewing regular reports on human
1esources, heatth & safety, mternal audit,
comphiance, legal, investor relations and
corporate affars



Board Committees

HILL & THPLC BOARD

Nomination Committee Audit Committee Remuneration Committee

Cunen'ly 25 the Cxecuiva Cha
{who chal s the Do v ndteal, and the six
Morn-executive Jircctors

SO

The Comimittes leads the orocess o
Board anaointmen:s and sunposts the
Board in succession slanmng for the
Board and s2m0 manadeent, maxing
-ecomirendations 1o the Board The teors
of reference of the Nominguon Commities
can be found a0 www hsproun.comr and
more Information on the work of the
Conmmittee can pe found in *he Comritten
Chair's rannss ar page 84

Correprizes the Chair of the Committes
and five Mon-exacutive Dirantora While
the rxecutive Chair 1s invited 10 attend
meetings, that mdiidual 1s not a fo-mal
member of the Audit Committee

Has resoonsinliy for planning and
reviewing the Company's audrt processes,
interier and full year results, internai
contiols and risk management systerrs
(See pages 86 to 91 for mere informanon )

The Audit Committee 1s additionally
supnoited by the Risk Committec,
comarsing emrployecs from acioss
‘he Group and representatives from
sorme of our apetating companies,
including these inthe LS

The tervs of reference of the Audrt
Sommtes can be found at www hsgroun
o and moiE infornaton on the woik
of -he Commitres can he found in the
comittee Chanr's renart at page 86

= Ot

Curenty contonaas the Shanr of the
Committes, and e Non exeauive
Dreciors The Exceuive Char s invited to
atend meelings

Has responsibility 1or the cregtinn,
apooval and ronlementaton of the
Company's [emuneranon Policy m
"espect of Dxecutive Dhireciors, Conoany
Secretary and sento exezutives

The terms of ~eference of the
Remunerauon Comanittee can e found at
www hsgroud com and noreinformanon
on the work of the Cam riree 2an be
found In the Corimitee Chair's -eport at
sages 92 t0 104

Frequency of meetings

Dunng 20272, the Boad met on 173 aotasions, the Audis Commtiee on four oczazions, the Nomination Comitiee met four frmes and the

Rerruneration Committes met on six ocoas

ons All direcio s wers in attendance a7 all meetings of the Board to which they were entled

Audit  Nominations Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee
Alan Giddins 12/70 - 474 676
Tony Qumlan 13/ 4/4 4/4 n/6
Peta A3y 10070 4/9 4/4 B/6
Mark Reclitt 10713 474 4,4 6/6
Annette Kelleher 10/°2 A/ 4/4 6/6
Leigh Ann Russell 10/10 4/4 4/4 6/6
Farrokh Bathwala* 77 3/3 3/3 474
Paul Simmons* 5/5 - 7 -
Hannah Nichols 10410 - - -

* Baul Sifmmens and Farrokh Satlwala attended ab meetings iney were entitled to

Board visits to operations

Site visits are an important, regular feature of the Board calendar. They provide an excellen: opporiunity for the Board 10 engage with & wide
group of employees and they also facilitate the Nor-executive Directors’ understanding of the businesses

During the year, the Non-execurive Directors visited 12 different sites in the UK and US, giving them a detailed insigh? inte the culture and

operanions of each business,

Stock Code HILS
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GOVERNANCE REPO RT continued

Board decision making (5.172)

The Board's mteraction with key stakeholde s s setout on pages 58 10 52 The suncipa den

8]

10N taken by the Board during the year, alung with

howe the Jirestors considesed stakeholder nteiests when discha-ging ther- dunies unde- section 172 of the Companies Act 2325 g-e s2t out nalow

Principal decision and
stakeholders considered

Board's decision making process

Longer term considerations

Dividend
Shareholders, potential
investors and lenders.

Consideration of the financial resources required to
execute our strategy, including organic investment
and acquisition opportunities; the Groun's medium
term rate of organic constant currency growth; and
compliance with borrowing covenants.

Ensuring that the Company’s progressive Dividend
Policy 1s consistent with the Cempany's financial
performance without detniment to the strength of
the balance sheet and future sustanability.

Capital allocation

Shareholders, potential investors,
lenders, employees, customers
and operating companies.

The Group's budget, approved by the Board. sets the
allocation of capital to deliver our growth strategy
through preduct innovation, capital expenditure,
acqursitions, targeted disposals and sustanaility

Balancing investment for future growth and
impraving the quality of the Group against the
longer term interests of operating companies and
their empioyees and shareholders.

Acquisitions and disposals
Shareholders, potential
nvestors, lenders, operating
companies, customers and
future employees.

The Board receives detalled proposals from the
Cerporate Development Director on the long term
implications of disposals and acquistions and

their effect on the Group's stakeholders. The Board
balances the financial commitrnent required against
the risks and anticipated returns, together with

the management and control requirements, while
considering the strategic fit with our purpose, and the
apportunities for geographic or market expansion.

The Group's portfolio management criteria both
for existing operating companies and potential
acquisition targets requires a structured discipline.
We consider acquisitions which are aligned to our
nurpese, and which are in market niches with long
term growth dnivers ensuring that we can continueg
10 grow sustainable profits for the benefit of all our
stakeholders.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions
T

Shareholders, lenders,
employees, operating
companies, customers,
suppliers, government, and
soclety.

The Board recognises the importance of a low
carbon economy and the role that the Group has

1o play in achieving this, and is mindful that this

is a hugh pricrity for multiple stakeholder groups.
Accordingly, the Board focuses on areas where the
Group could make the most impact. The new Group
Head of Sustainability has focused an establishing
a Scope 3 baseline for cur carbon emissions
reduction plan.

The Board recognises the effect that climate
change is having on the natural and business

world and, in keeping with regulation, committed

to TCFD scenaric analysis. This analysis presents
both risks and strategic opportunities for the

Group. The Board also considered the value to
society as a whole of the Group's operations and
products, recognising that it must act to minimise
the negative impact from its operations, to ensure a
sustainable future for all, whilst being mindful of the
effect on the Group's cost base.

Board conflicts

The Board has agreed an approach

and adopred guidelines for dealing with
conflicts The Board confirms that it was
nut aware of any situations that conflicted

Support available to the Board
The Board 15 supported by the Company
Secretary who, under the direction o the

and information flows hetween Board

Executive Charr, ensu-es thar comirunication

All directors have access (o the advice and
services of the Company Secretary and

are aole to take mdependent professional
adwice, when necessary, at the Comaany's
exsense, atthough no directon felt it necessary

with the interests of the Cornpany, other

than those that may arnse from directors’
other appointorents, as disclosed in their
biographies on pages 70 to 71 In accordance
with the Articles, the Board authorised the
Company Secretary to recewve notifications
of conflicts of interest on hehalf of the Boa:rd
and to make recommendations as to whether
the relevant matters should be authonsed by
the Board The Company has complied with
these procedures

rembers The Cornpany Secretaty s also
responsible for assisting the —xecutive Chair
inall matters relating 1o corno-ate governance,
including the Board evaluation process.

At the invitauon of the Board, other members
of the management team attend Boa-d
meengs o present annual budgets, updates
and proposals relating to therr areas of
resoonsiolity and reporting on regulatory
comaliance, risk management and internal
controls The directors and management of the
Groun businesses are also supported by the
central funcuion which includes comphliance, ns<
nranagement, imternal audit, treasusy, taxation,
acquisitions and corporate develozment
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1o seek such advice in the year ended 30
December 2022



COMPOSITION, SUCCESSION AND EVALUATION

Surmmary

AL 30 Decemnber 2022, the Board comprised

Farrokh Batliwala
(Nomexecatve

Diractori

Mark Reckitt
‘Naon-executive
Director)

Stock Code HILS

Composition of the Board

The mdradual biographies of the Boa-d
‘nenthers can be taund on oages A2 L2 0

AP 3T Decemner 2022 three quartes of tw
mpised independern Non-exesutve

in comrpliance with the Code and the
Company's Articlas of Association, directors
retire at every Annual General Meeting (AGM)
and, ¥ deemed aparopriate by the Board,
directors are proposed fo-re-appomtiment

by shareholders at the forthcoming AGM
—ollowing this evaluation of the performance
af the Board, and on the recommendation

af ihe Nomimation Commitree, the Board

15 oronosng that all Directors, with the
exconton of Annate Kelleher who 15 5703009
down from the Board foliowing the AGM,
should stand for re-election at the Groun's
“arthcoming ASM N May 20323

Alan Giddins

{I~ter Executive Cnarl

PLC Board

Leigh-Ann Russell

TNo-exacutive Director;

Board Profile

D e Tors core s T L g oAl dlgi s
hackgrounds across industy nvesT Trent
management and profossional services
Theur diverse and b i of salls and
DURNSSS £X08 IBnoe (ses Dage 3U), ate <2y
10 he aeffecave ‘uncinoming of the Board and
5 Commutteas, ensuring madioers ale fully
and effectively debated and challenged and
no indridual or grous dommates the Board's
deziston making o ooesses

Taking into account the orovisions of the
Code, the Board has deterwned that duning
the year under review, none o° the Non-
executive Directors had any elationship

of crrcumstance which would affoct their
nerforrance and the Board considers

all of the Non-executive iiecioss 1o oe
independent in characier and judgement
Conflicrs of interes: are dealt vath oy the
Board as they ansc

Annette Kelleher
Non-exscutve
Directon

Pete Raby
(Non exscutive
Directon

Tony Quinlan
(Non-executive
Directon

1H0d3H 3ONVYNHIACY
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GOVERNANCE REPORT continued

Succession planning

The Nomnation Commitee has respansibimty
for svaluating mediur and long term Board
and Zxecutrie Board suncession alanning,
and a4 ecoimendsionsg o ihe
Boad

Areviaw of talunt was underiaken acuss the
Grouo,denufying notenial futu e leaders
and ther develoo et neads Ao ral

360 degree POP process was instigated and
the ‘esults we e presented o the Board

A alocal fevel each operaung company Is
“equrad O nave 113 ow SuzCcession plann
dlaze, and these are reviewed on a eqular
basiz by each operaing Board and fed
through to the Executive Boa-d via the Grousn
Presidents

Group Diversity

The Board 13 comimited 1o enzuring thas
enrultrant nto the Groug is undertaken
sased on rent regardless of age, disamlry,
Tantat o Cral parner status pregnancy and
materniy, race. colowr, nationality ethme

o” national ongin, “ehoion or selie’, gende-

o sexual aneration The Boasd places
SIFNICANY @manasis o0 ensuring that greates
diversity 1s 3 ought into the workforce, o
enhanca the gquality o° decigions through
differing wiows and packgrounds

Ag oa of this commitmens the Groun
nciudes mnthe annual ~eno-, detals of the
numae s ot nen and women az soard level,
the number o men and wormren whe ase
senicr managers (1 e | those aimployees who
report directly 1o the Managing Direciors of
au oJergting companies) and the nunoer of
men and wormen across the argamisation as a
whole See aage 49 for more detalls

Board diversity

The Board 1s cormmitted 1o ensuring thas

it has the nght balance o° skills, views and
expenence The Board 15 cognisant of the
Hamoton Alexander Review and the Parker
Raview regarching gender and ethnic diversity
within the Boad On 31 Decernoer 2022, the
Board membe-ship comprised 38% female
and 62% male, and was 13% ethnically diverse

Board
Diversity —

@ Male

Gender ® Female

Numbers rapresent
Board maimrbars
wlt™ aparopr ate

aLefia

o

Strategy

Mergers &

Health ¢
Acquisitions

Safety

Skills and business
experience of the Board

Flnanc,-a‘,

w
&
h=]
=
-
[e]
=
[
E

=N

Director training and development
All directors are orovided with the goooriunity
and are eneouraged 16 attend regula

traiming to ensure they 37 kent up to date

o0 relevant legal developmen's or changes,
hest oractice and changes o commerzial and
financial iisks Typical franing expernences
for directors include attendance at semina<s,
forums, conferences and wo'king groups, as
well a5 “he oravision of imforTatan fram e
Comoany Secretary

Evaluating the Board's performance
This year, the Board performed an internal
avaluationin comphance with the LK
Corporate Governance Code Theresults
showed that Board members were satisfied
with how meetings were conducted, that
aporopiate attendees and information were
avalanle 1o them in order to make decisions
and that the Group's sTrategy and execution
was kept dnder appropriate revigw

The results of the evaluation were considered
at the Margh 2023 Board meeting and any
matenal actions ansing will be referred ton
subsequent annual repor’s

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022



AUDIT, RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal Audit

Durinte nal Adr ream conducied audrrs
Beroreadni o au husiness, mcluding
Agw 0T 2OMphance with the Groun
Frivanzial Coneots Manual and Gioup 1!
Conrols Manual The Audit Comimities
addricnally receved updaies on actions
ansing from prior auding

The Audit Cornvtiee also -eviewed and
anaioved the annual audr olans 10- 2073, as
arepared oy the Head of sk and Internal Audit

Risk Management

The Board has overall resoonsioility for
ensuring that there 1s a process to idenfy,
evaluate and Manage any significant nisks
*hat may a“ect the achievermen® of the
Group's strateqic opjectives and for imrernal
conol, and reviewing the effecuveness or
Jhese o ocesses

The 13« management and internal control
system s designed o manage, rather

than 2liminate, the niscn® faling 1o achieve
nusIness obiectives and can pravide only
12asonanle, and net ansolute, assurance
agamst matenal imissiatement o7 10ss

The assessirent and control of 1isk are
considered by the Board o se ‘undamental
s achieving the Gioup's Corpo - ata 0DjesTives
AN ONJoINg Jrocess fondentfying, evaluating
and manaqing the significant 133 faced oy
the Groun and aszessing the effectiveness

of related contols has been establhished

by the Board to ensure an acceatanle fisk/
reward profile oross the Group This routinely
identifies arcas for irprovement The Board
has nerheridenfied no been advised of any
fallings or wea<neszes dunng the year which
I has deterrmined to be matenal or signi‘icant

This process has been in place throughous

2022, and up o the date of aoproving the

Annual {eport and Financial Statements

The kay slemenrs of this process are’

+acomprehensive system of monthly
reparing fromm key executives, dentfying
perforrance agans: sudgets and forecasts,

+ analysis of vanances, major business
1ssles, key pe-forrmance indicators and
regular forecasnng;

- well-defined polimies governing apprasal
and aporoval of capral exoenditu-e and
treasuty ooerations,

+sixemonthly subrmissions from all
operating companies detalling the risks
they have idenfied and what conirols
and assurances they have in place to
mitigate these nsics,

Stock Code HILS

reetings Lo dent fy and di
x3 and minigations with a oroad

+ o review 3 The coionigie s feaen
comraletenass and aszuracy with
the sz managerrent feam and the
Execulive Jrectors

ey

- heuseof a Risk Comnutiee to monitor,
vahdaze and renort on the Groun-wide nsi
AFSOEHTEN NOCeSS,

= Audi Comitlee discussion o Lhe
corcorate nisk register and the risk
management systerm with subsequent
repe'ts to the Board, and

= heerbedding of a s2mor Tanageen:

a-down aizzroach to comalement the

work of the Qisk Committee

gre inforration on the Gooup's Principal
ns«s 18 shown on pages 64 70 68

internal Controls

The 3oa-d mramians overall resoonsiilty

“ar emnedding key controls within the Group
Together with the Audit Cormrmmittee, the Board
aviowed the effectivenass of the Groun's f1sk
Fanagonent and intenal conttol systems n
accardance with the UK Governance Code for
tha yea- ended 31 Dece vhe- 2022, and up
the date of approving the Annual enoart and
Financial Statemaents

additionally, the Board

«  ensured mamtenance o
of mzernal control and s« managen:ent;
- reviewed the adequscy and security
of the Company’s arrangements o
its errployees and contractors toraise
conzerns, In confidence, about possinle
woongdoing In financial renc ting or
other matters The Board continues
to ensure that these arrangements
allow aroportionate and independent
invesugation of such matlers and
approonate follow up action,

+ considered and appioved the halfyea:ly
-epot any other intenm management
statements and any preiiminary
annauncement of results,

+ declared the interim dividend and
secommended the final dividend,

~  approved any significan: changes in
accounting policies or prachces, and

+approved treasury policies including
foreign currency exposure and the use o°
financial de-vaives

Going Concern
Al g eneLe
[ERAT=te gk 5 1hat the Tonmpany
and 175 sunsidianes have sdeguate  eson0es
auen saerational exsztence for the
Sl ruture and apennd 0f AT leas
"2 ronths following e anoroval o7 tnese
Finasncial Statemrents Accordingty, they
conunue 1o adapl the gong concern pancisle

3 the Dol s ave

When making tus assessmen! the Group
considers whather i will e ahle o mantain
adequate hquidity headioom above the fovel
cf its borrowing facilities and to operate
within the financial covenants an those
fazihiies The Group has carefuily modelled
175 cash flow ouloox for *he peniod 1o
Decamber 2024, zonsidenng “he angoing
uncer:anties in giohat economie conditions
Inthis "hase case” sconanio the forecasts
indizate significant hguidity head: oo will
be mainamned above the Grous's 00 rowing
facilies and “inangial covenants will oe
mat throughout the senod mshichng the
covenant tests ot 30 June 2023 and 37
Decemrser 2023

The Group has alse cared out reverse
57ess teats” o ass ‘he pe-fomance
levels at which either hquidity head-oom
would fall nelow ze: venants wolld ne
oreached inthe peiod 0 37 Jenemner 2023
The Threctors do not consider the resulting
performance levels to be olausible given the
Gicup's strong ‘rading seforrance in the
firs: hall and the resiience of the end marke:s
n which we ope'g:e

cq
5t

]
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GOVERNANCE REPORT continued

Viability Statement

The direw sictered the orospects
I D .he aur-year panad

Lrimen gy ely sollowing the 2022 financial

yea Thslange -leni assessment D oCess
50000715 *he Baa d's staterents on both
vy, as st out aelow, and gomg concearn,
95 307 0ut o0 2age 31 A four-year senod was
datzruned a3 the most apo ol Ee 35115
“heemaining penod covered by the '(Srouv‘%
anrual strategie planning arocess, which s

-he lang ter T diregnon of the Group and 15
reviewed at teast annually by the directors The
Boa-d concluded that a sencd of longer than
fae years would not oe meanmgful ‘o- the
nuipose of concluding on longer term viability

The strategic alanning orocess considered
metrics which enasle assessment of the
Croups xey perfarnance ndicatars (ses
nages 2003 27 inaddition o ne dest, hgdey
ainad fnanzing requireents In conducing the
review OF the Group's orospects the direc'os
assessed the fou-yea plan alongside the
Groua's cur ont inancial osihon, the Sroun's
suatagy and the anncioal <1sks facing the
Groua @all of which are detaled in <he Strategic
Q=00 on danes 54 to 68) This oous:
azsessen. conaiderad the ymoact of the
onncial 1E<s on the business reodel and on
future per furance, Iquidity and soivency
Siress tests wers anahed to the Groun's four-
vear olan, whe eby factors asscoiated walh
the econormie nsks fazed Dy the Group were
annhed ~o the olanin a numoer of dive ging
3"ena 05 The developed scenanas were
esgred 1o be plausle, yel seve e

+ aderreasenthe UK Governments Road

INfrastruoiure spend,

« & ‘fallin galvamzing volurmes across &l
geogiazhes; and

- areducton inrevenues inthe Goup's
“ngineered Solutions businesses in the
LK and LS

her i octors
ol

In ma<ing his vasility staterent,
conalered the Tigating Aacmions
50 taken By the Goudm tho evort that the
ncial 13k o the Comnany besurs aahigad
1he Drectors alse ook nis consideraion *I 2
Seaers nancial nsenan at 33 Docoer Do
with a norrowing “acility head-aom o £23
and ahstory of song cash gone ahan, wiin
SASN COnve Jnginex £
over the last ienyeais The Jirect

5 noted
“hat the Company had refinanced its core
revalving £-edit faciliy i 2027 entenng into

a new agreement with a value of £250m and
an mrial maturcy of Novemaer 2526, shortly
hefaia the end of the four-yea assassmen®
netiod However, the facility has an opuon to
extend the maturiiy by one year at the fr st
anrversary and nased an past excenence and
no-mat rarket practice, the Drectois have a
reasonable expectation that the extension will
he taken Ta<ing this infarmation ints assount,
he Diracio s hove assessad the vianilty of e
Grous and, based on the procedures outined
asove in addiion o activities unde taken oy the
Board i its normal course of ausmess, confirm
thar they have a -easonable exoectation that
the Groux will be a3le fo continue 1 aueratinn
and rmaet its habilites hey fall duc ovear the
DEHOU 10 31 Decemner 2026

Fair, Balanced and Understandable
Financial Reporting

The Board received a recorrmendation fom
the Audit Comimisiee that the Grouo's posimon
and prospects had been assessed and
~esorted onon the Annual Reso tin a way that
was ‘air balanced and undersiandable Prior
to ma<ing the recommendation 20 the Board
the Cammites reviewead a report receved
from the managemen: “espensizle fur the
areparation of the Annual Regort detailling
how the repart had been comoied Tho
Committes considered the informaton laid
out in the Annual Report and concluded

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

» that the process by which the allzoation ©f
responsibility o the prenaiaton of cetam
sections of the Annual Reaort o individuals
i the cental fe A and ther meviow oy
exiernal advisors was

34 for nunose,

L thal the ntonmancn given re sresantied
thewhinle stoy of the business'
gerfnrnancer 2022 and did not rosslead
shereader oy excluding aoropoate 2ad
news That the disclosures of the Groun's
JUSINESS GegmenTts, and key messages
are consistenily delvered thraughout the
document, KPIs are clea” and appropanate
and hinked to aoth the Giouv's strategy
and iemuneration Incentives,

« hat it was a sutable document to inform
hoth existing and peospective sharsholders
about the financial and non financial
serformrance of the pusiness, with the
messages delivered 0 the Diroctors’ <enor,
neluding the Ooeraning and Finaacial
Review and the =mancial S atements beiny
halanced and consisten: and that the epo
set out a dezalied ard far -epresentation of
he Groun's activities and perforrance and
that certam matte' s have been identihed
and diszussed detwesn Mranagomeant,

ii-—" Agdrt Sonmurtes and the 2V in order
correctly disclose the serformance,
f‘ontrui: and orossects of the Group, and

= that the docurment altowed shareholders
10 ‘ollow the whole story of the
G aly's financial and non iinancial
oeformance in 2022 gving ther a
clear and understandable piciu-e of the
Group's business model key divers and
commiercial opeiations

The respechive responaiolities of the directors
and =xternal Auditor in connection with the
minancial Statertenns are explanad in the
Statemen: of Drestors’ Responsibiliies on
Dage 116 and the ndependent Auditor's
Report onpages 1180125




REMUNERATION

About our Remuneration Policy

2y Points

Stock Code HILS

EXECUTIVE PAY

SHORT-TERM
ANNUAL BONUS,
INCLUDING INCENTIVE
50% DEFERRED

SALARY

The current Directar's Remuneration Policy
was fast anproved sy shateholders at the 25720
AGM and will ne oresented 1o sharehelders ‘o
approval in 2223 The puipese of this palioy
1510 ne aole w rec uir and retain ~xecuTve
Dnrectars o suihinient zalibre (o devetop and
delvar aur husiness srategy and create
shareholde: value, to ensure remuneration
a--angements are inthe bestintcrests of the
Giounn ine with the wides workiorce and

o ot pay Tore than s appropnate, and do
not rewad fature Maorenformanuon on the

G oun's 3ioncsed Remunaraton Policy s
avallable in the Pehey Table on nages 105

to 09

Executive Director salary package
Executive Direc:or pay a’rangemernts are
Tade Uy of three fundamental elements as
your can se2 fom the grashic above

THREE-YEAR
LONGER-TERM

ARRANGEMENT

The Group's Revuneraiion Cammuiiec Repor.

on pages 94 10 " 04 sets out the remunaration
of the Fxecutve Jector s for 20272

Pay increases

The Renuneration Sommises s
awa'e of the oressuies fanmg many
emptoyees as aresult of high nflanon White
each one auig company sets ther own ay
20licy, the Comarittes has been mipressed
with the thought and care 2ur Dasinesses
Rave 1aken N suDsGring our e poyees
These nclude m-yea: nav - eviews, one off’

cost of ving awards, ¢n315 loans and also
varable unhfts, meaning tha: those on lower
INcomes receive a greater unhift in salary than
Righer earners More infarrraticn s avalable
an sage " 371 of the Grouo's Remunaration
Corrreittes Renort

oty

Heritage 'Westminster' HVM Boliards, Westminster Bridge, London

LH0d3d JINYNHIADD
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Alan Giddins
Interm

Dear Stakeholder

It is my pleasure to make
my report as Chair of the
Nomination Committee. This
report is intended to give an
account of the Committee
and its activity. The core
responsibilities of the
Committee are succession
planning and appointments
at Board level, oversight

of appointments and
succession planning to the
Executive Board and making
recommendations to the
Board on the composition of
the Board’'s committees.

The full terms of reference of

the Committee can be found
on the Company’s website
www.hsgroup.com.

Committee membership

Thraughout the year the Commitiee comrniised
mysalf as the Char, and sunsequenly
cxecutwve Chair, and the Non-execuive
Directors Annele Kelleher, _eigh-Ann Busseil,
Tony Quinlan, Pete Raoy and Mark Reckit:
Farrokh Bathwala joined the Committee on his
appamntment on 1 Apnl 2022

The Cormrmittee met four times it the financia
penod unde “eview with alt eligible memsoers
of the Commuttee boing oresen on each
OCCASION

Date of appointment

Length of service

[

The Committee
is committed to
ensuring that the
Board, Executive
Board and senior

management team
have the right mix
of skills, experience,
knowledge and
background’

Non-executive Directors

Sollowing an mitial three-year seim, the erms
of Non-executiva Directors are reviewed
annually, in inawith ther- annual retrement
at the AGM The lete s o° appomtment for
the Non exscutive Diectors are avallable or
Inspecuon at the Company's reqisiared office
and the AGM Al Non-executive Directars are
indeoendent, as was | on appontnent,

Expected end date

3Uciobe 2007
7 Decemper 200 4

Alan Gidding

Annette Kelleher

Farro<h Bathwala T April 7022
_eigh-Ann Russell 1 Apnil 2021
Mark et 1June 2076

1 December 2079
1 December 2079

Pete Raby

Tony Quinlan

8 years 1 month

3years T month

3 years T month

30 Septenner 2026
33 Novemoor 2023

5years 3 months

9 months 31 March 2031
1 year @ months 31 March 2030
& years 7 months 31 May 2024

30 November 2028
30 November 2028

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022



Chief Executive Appointment

In uuly 2022 Paul Simmons stensed down
‘rom the Baasd and a3 Chief zxecutive of the
Groun was asked oy the Board 1o lake on the
sle o ntenm Sxecuzive Charr while a seaich
was bndertaken o a new Chrat “xacutive
Prge o the anpnintnent ar o searsh looe, b
Nemmaisn Com prree spens Ume evalualing
tha kay skills and ona acte 1shos equired oF 3
suctessiul Chie’ Executive a2 Hilt & Smith A
search process 1 cur ently engoing

Board Composition and Succession
Duning the year tThe Comnntres has soent
time evaluating mediun and long ter ™ Board
comrposmion and successicn and the skills
and experience needed to deliver the Groud's
Strategic Plan A key recorrrmendation from
this evaluation was *he need to add a US
nased Non-exaCutve 1o the Board Onthe
Commuttee’s recommendation the Board
aspointed ~aro<h Batiwala a3 a Non-
executive Director, effective from ™ Apnl 2022
Faroikh was formearly President, Connect and
Conlal Technologies, 111 Inc, oner to which
he held senior managerent roles at Zaton
Coroorauon and Pratt & Whitney Having
grown uz in indig, Taaokh now lves on the
Zast Ceast o' the s

Stock Code HILS

Annetie Kallohes, Chair of the Remuneration
e jomed as a Non-executive

o Jecemiber 2014 and s steppiny
down fiom the Board foltowing the May

2023 AGM I considenng an approanate
ndwistual to renlace Annette as SeTunaration
Do e Chor the Buarnd felr tha it would
meficial 1o consider whether thig role
2ol be unde! n Dy an exisung Board
momber —cllowing aparopnate considoiation,
Tary Quinlan, who has served on the
Rerruneranon Commmittee since Jecerber
2079 has been invited to take over from
Annette Kelleher as Chair of the Commuttas

Mar< ekt who s Chair of the Audit
Comittes is to step down from the Board
foliowing the May 2024 AGM. Towards the
end of this year the Committes will segin the
process of looking “or a new Non-executive
Dresror who could take on the Audr:
Comiree Chair iole, while ensuning that
there s an aopropnace handover period

Executive Board and Succession
Juing the yeas the CommiTiee undedtook a
revigw Of the Executive Board and the skiils
~equired o ensure that the Groud s able to
dobive onats Strategic Plan While there was
apnropnate successian in slace for certam
“ales, the reviews mghlighted the impo- tance
of developing the next generation of senios
leade s wathin the ousmess, and this will be a
<ey focus for the Committes dunng 2023

Solar street lights and solar bollards, Farnboro

Diversity and inclusion

The Comimities s comirt SUrng
*ha the Boa 4, xestive B andd s
managament tean have the v diversa
M of s<alls, exaoience, knoewledge gndd
Doty ound N Lonsanng dive sy, gorde
0 Dald

ale takes ity accodnt sosal and athnis
hacxy ound and orha coynimve and nersanal
strenglths New apaoint vents are made on
imar:, and take 10t account what 1s i eguired
from a diversity and inclusion oerspective to
ensuce a valanced Board comacaition

LH0d3IY IONYNHIADD

As gl 31 Decerrber 2072 and *he date of

this report, the Board will comzise three
fernale directors {38%) and five male directors
(62%), with one Board director from an ethnic
minority oackg ound {13%)

Plans for the year ahead

The Comnmitiee’s foous in 2023 will be

to canclude the search for a Greup Coie
—xecutive and to ensure the Board s
arganised 'o meet its listed company
obligations The Comrives will also give
nartcular emphasis in the cuent yeas
sowads ensunng asaioniate develodTent
mlans aron place To7 each member o7

the Zxecutive Board and that anzoonate
consideratlian 15 bemg given w0 SUSCessIon .
planmng at the Managing Dicectos level withim
Sul operating companies

Alan Giddins
Inter:m Executwe Charr

8 March 2023

h, supplied by Prolectric
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Stakeholder

It is a pleasure to make

my report as Chair of the
Audit Committee of Hill &
Smith PLC and to expiain
how your Audit Committee
and the Group's senior
management team have
managed and continued to
develop and enhance our risk
management processes and
internal audit programmes.

The pusiness model of -l & Smith delegates
substantial authonty 1o the business umits,
which enahbles an entreprencunal approach
Each operating cormpany 15 responsible

for ensuring that it has an effective set of
internal controls and cont ol environment,
which places responsibility on the Managing
Director and Finance Jirector of each
operating company The Sroup minangial
Cantrols Manual was launched in 2020 and
provides detalled gudance on the natuse and
frequency of the internal controls required

at each operating company This was
suaplemented in 2021 with the launch of the
Group 1T Conrols Manual, which sets ous the
mirmum level of IT contrels required ar each
operating company o ensure | T resihence
and cyber secunty 1T infrastructure and
related controls remains a key focus area

for the Comrmitter, resulting in the curent
mvestrent plan i 1T and cyoer secu ity

Dung 2321V internat audit wolk was
sompleted —amotely fur overseas aperating
comparies and on-sike “or UK operating
companies Inteal Audit were asle 1o
recontrence the compleuon of on-site
fieldwe: < for overseas operating companies
during 2022 aue 1o the removal of COVID
travel resmouons 0 Decemizor 2027, the
Audit Commmittee apdroved aninte nal aud
plan for 2023 which includes a Purchase
Contracts themahc review and developmen:
of an Audit and Assurance Palicy, while
continuing the orerary wo-k of maonitonng our
business units’ comphance with our Group
policres and cont-ols,

The Risk Committes, as requested by the
Audit Commritiee, has continued to budd upon
the "5k assessment methodology using the
online sk management and reporting ool
which was irplemented across the Group

n 2020 The Committee 15 building a clear
picture o the nsks neing considered by the
operating companies as well as the actions
1o mitgate these r1sks, which is facilitating
nsk appetite discussion More informaton on
the nsk managemen: process adodted by the
Group can be found on pages 60 10 63

Following Frast & Young LLP's (FY) auait of
the Groupr's financial statements in relation
to the year-ended 31 December 2021, the
Committee met BEY's lead partner 1o agsess
the lessons tearned and the moarovements
that Tight be mplemented for this year's
aucht In July 2022, we discussed and agreed

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

'/

Each operating
company is
responsible for
ensuring that it has an
etfective set of internal

controls and control
environment, which
places responsibility
on the Managing
Cirector and Finance
Director of each
operating company.”

she plan “or ther year-end audi procedures
and the “ee for then wor<in 2022 The audr
of our 2022 finanaial siatemens s the

shird audht tha: oY have conducted, and the
Cormrittee reman satshed with ther levels
of independence, ozgectivty and professional
JLdgement and the oversignt they Jive to

aur finangial statemrents The RS Audr
Guality Review tea T reviewed the audit of
the Group's 31 December 202 1 conschdated
Anancial statements No findings arose from
s review

This Avdiz Comimittee Resort explains
how the Committee has discharged its
resoonsibilines duang 2022, and considers
the saecific topios of
Primary areas of judgement considered
by the Committes in relation to the 2022
financial statement's,
Internal controis,

Rigk assessment, managernent, and
mitigation; and

Assesgment of effectiveness of
external audit.

1trust you will find this report a heloful
insight into the activities undertaken on your
behalf | should be delighted to answer any
questions you might have and hope o see
you at our AGM on 2§ May 2023

Mark Reckitt

Cna

8 Maizh 2023
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORTcontinued

Committee membership

and purpose

Dusing thayoa and o che dare of this -epoit
the Audit Conmdiee corprised

Mank Rezkrt,

Annette Kellehe

Pete Raby
Tony Qumkan,

Legh Ann Qussell, and

Farrokh Bathwala (appomted = Aniil 2022).

Avendees ar each of the meetings Included
by invitation, the Charr of the PLC Board, the
Gioun Chief Bxecutive {and the Txecutive
Charr “sllowing CEO'S denarture), the Group
Chief Zinancial O%fices, the Group minancial
Connoller, the Group Head of Risk & Internal
Audis, the external auditor, BY, and, where
azoroprale, ather advisors Trmeis also
allowed for the Cormittee to speak with the
extenal audito: and the Groun Head of Risk
& Internal Audit without the presence of the
axeculive Tanagement

The averall curpose of the Audit Committes 18
one o' oversight and monitonng of the entire
financial “enoring and control pracess,
ensure the ineg ity of the 5 ouns Finanaial
Siaeirenta and assurance oves tham The
Corrrritee “ulfils this rermit by undestaking
the following roles and responsioliies,

+ monitonng the integnty ¢° the Financal
Statements of the Company and
reviewing sigmifican: finanoial reporiing
Judgements contained in them,

- reviewing aceas of the “inancial
staterrents that ~equire paiticular
Julgement,

«  providig advice (where eguested by
the PLC Boaid) onwhothor the Annual
Rene, taken as a whole, is far, balanced,
and understandable, and provides the
information necessay for shareholders to
assess the Corpany's Sinancial posmion,
performance, business model, and strategy,

< reviewing the Company's internal financial
controls, internal control, and risk
management systems;

monitoring and reviewing ihe
effectiveness of the Company's
internat audit functiont and making
recommendations to the PLC Beard,

- aporoving the Internal Audit Charter and
audit plan;

- reviewing cutputs from the Group's
nsk management process, ensuring
that operating companies are correctly
identifying, articulating, and measuring
therr risks and mitngating controls,

+ making recommendations to the PLC
Board about the apoointment, re
appomtment, and removal o° the external
audrtor, and approving the -emunerasion,
and terms of engagement af *he extenal
auditor,

+ reviewing and monioning the external
auditors independence and ooenivity

+ o reviewing the affectivenes e axternsl
audit Process, la<ing It coisideinton
relevan: UK pro‘essional and regulatory
’Pq!li.’(’ﬁ“’f'l'_c}l

+develoong and ieplemenung nolicy on
tha engagenent of the external audiror o
sunaly non-audic sarvices, ensug thers
15 orar approval of non audit services,
considenng the intpact this may have on
mdesendence, and

= reporung tothe PLC Boad on how it has
discharged its resoonstiliies

Governance

During the yea- the Committee fully compled
with the prowisions of the LK Corporate
Governance Code 2078 ("the Code”), in which
Marx Reckitr s soecifically identified, in
«eeoing with the provisions of the Cade, as
the Committee memher having -ecent and
refevant financial experience He s a qualified
Chartered Accountant and has previously held
the positions of Group Sategy hresior 4t
Srniths Group ple fron February 2017 w0 Apal
20714 and Chie® St-ategy Offiee a2 Cadouy
ple from 2004 10 2370 Hescuriently the
Aud’t Commritree Chalrman and Senor
Indesendent Jirector at Cranswick plc

As Char of the Audit Commritee, Mai<
Rec<tt has mamtained regular contac:

with the extarnal aud! parinaers a” EY as

well as the Group Head of Risk & Intenal
Audit cutside Commrittes veeungs and
without the managemen: of the business
present In these meetings a wide -ange of
matters are discussed, including speaific
1Issues encountered in ther work aoross

the Grouo as well as changes in finanzial
repnrting and govarnance landscaone, the
Company’s eathness (o accomrmodate these
developmernts, and our anproach to managing
risk and assurance generally

Primary areas of judgement
considered by the Committee in
relation to the 2022 accounts

To discharge its responsibility to consider
accounting and financial ~enorung integrity,
the Commnrittee carefully considers key
judgements apphed in the preparatian of the
Caonsolidated Financial Statements, which are
set out on pages 176 to 180. The Committee’s
review included constderation of the following
key aczounting judgements:

Valuation of goodwill and indefinite
iife assets

The value of goodwill and indefinite Ife assets
amounted 0 £7139 9m at 31 Decermber

2022 The -eview of such assets s hased

on a calculation of value inuse, using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets
and strategic plans oresared by senior
management 2nd asproved by <he PLE Board
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of Directars The current uncertaimn economiy
condinons around the world increase the nisk
ofmoarmen: and the Comipittee addies:
“his by sertaimiing hall yearty and annual
ITipA ent testng on the carying value of
aecdwill 2nd other Infanoinle Assets asioss
“herelevant cash generating unes In 2022,
the Cormmitiee resewed the results of these
calculstions and considared and shallergoed
MANAJEMent's assessment of the sensiing
(o these assurntions and the impact that those
sensitivities may have Busmess plans are
signed ofF Iy the PLC Board and assessen:
models are soviewed and challenged as part

of the audit, for which the axternal auditor £,
orovides reporting to the Committee As 2a::

of this review the Committee naid particular
attention to the assessments made n resoect
of Parang Facihtes Ltd, ATG Access _td, and
Hill & Srathing

Parking Facilities — tha COVID pande:ric
resulted in a weak tading perod in 2028 as
several customer contracts we e cancelled
or posponed and whitst the busmess saw

a marginal improvement in revenue and
srefrahihny in 2021 ongoing constramts on
customer sudgens conunued to weaigh on
dermmand In 2022, cosiomer aziisty contingded
L0 be wea< and supply chan challenges,
mput costmtlation and operational

issues led 1o a detenoraion in rargms
Managemen?s imparment assessnent
identified suoply cham and -aw matenal
a7ze nflation pressures as boing li<ely o
continuee to 1mpac: derand and marging in
the short rerme, while new Ta-<er enrants

N 2021 were noted as oeing hkely to lead

[0 Increasing compettion in the medum

20 longer werm Management's assassrent
concludad that following the imoairmen:
charge of £5 2m recogrised m 2027, a
furthe- deterioration in the outlook mean’
that an additional charge of £4 4m in espect
of the remaining intangi-le assets refating

to the acquisiion was reguired in 2027

Aftor reviewing managemen-'s forecasts

for future performance and challenging the
assumatons adopied, the Commitiee ay ead
with managemant's conchusions

ATG Access - n 2021, management's
impairrent assessment concluded that the
pace of ATG's post-pandemic recovesy was
likely to be slower than had previously been
anucipated, mainly due to the expectation
of prolonged inactivity in several of r's

key sectors and also reflecting increased
competiton in the market. As a result,
animpairment charge of £10 8m was
recagnised in the 2021 results. Trading in
2022 roroved on 2021 and ATG's cutturn
for *he year was marginaily ahead of a-evious
exsectations, with robust order intake rates
and consistent order backlogs. Ta<ing this
perfarmance Nt account, managenent's
impairment assessment in 2022 concluded
that there had been no significant change
in the ma ket outlook since the prior year



" During the year, the Committee met cn four occasions according to the fecmﬂemems of

. Key risks and ;udgemenis relatmg to the 2021 Financial Statements

~  Report from External Audltors on the Financial Statements for the yeér\eﬂded

31 December 2021

. Ftnamtal Statements and Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2021‘ ‘
mdmg the statements on Gaing Concem Vrabmty, and Farr meﬂmaﬂ‘

: . Extemai Auditar quainy ancl lndependénee

- Interim Results for the six rmmhs ended 30 June 2022

. lmemaMudnupdate

. 2023 Internial Audit Plan
2623 mternat Audit Charter W

and thetefore that noimpairment was
recommended in the year to 31 December
2022 Management acknowledged, however,
that tha zash flow projeciions were sensitive
to the assumred rates of revenue and profit
growth pos: 2022 and that there were
olausinle scenanos that could result in

a further smparment in the future. After
challenging management on aspects of the
business plan and the sensitivity disclosures
in the financial statements, the Committee
supported managemen:’s view

Hill & Smith Inc. — whils® underlying US roads
market conditions reram healthy, Hill & Smith
Inc’'s performance 1n 2022 was impacted

by operational and cast inpur challenges

The new MD, who Joimed the business n
Januaty 2023, prenased an undated business
slan which was oresented to the P_C Board

in March 2323 Board memners reviewed

rhe plan and challenged management in

Stock Code HILS

sarticulas on aspects of market segmentaton,

customer incls and operatuonal execution.
The Beard also recewved and reviewed

the outout of an independent study that
managemen: had commissoned to a55es3
the outlook for the US temporary road safety
harnier market over the next 5-10 years, which
was consilered when preparing the updated
husiness plan. The financial projections
included in the updated plan assume that
actions taken (0 address the operational
1ssues will be successiul, and that short to
medium term revenue growth will be above
long term averages due to the anticipated
federal and state highway spend aver the
next five years The resulting imoarment
calculations indicaied headroom of £9.6m
(2021. £27.3m) The Corrimittee further
challenged management on the basis for the
projections included in the updated plan and
in concluston, concurred with Management's
view that no impairment was reguired The

ConTilttee also studied the aen SISt
the forecas < and the nnoact o possble
zhanges in assumptions, and ‘uwou@fl
the diseloauras o those sensimvres nthe
ananclal siatemenss, concluding that they
WRTE QO[O I

140434 JONYNHIACH

The disclesy es made in mespest o™ the
sanativities around nnpairment zalsuiatiang
Zan ne found mnote P30 the Tinanaial
Statemen.s on pages 15210 758

Defined benefit pension scheme

valuation

Ne' defined seonefit oension ooligations under
1AS19 a nounted 1o £7 2m at 31 Dacemaer
2022 The Committee reviews benchmarks
and assumrations that are provided oy the
Group's actuaries and used to value the
pensgion habdities tor the Grouo's defined
sonefit schemes The undetlying assumptions
nazed on marke: conditions and the
characteristics 0° the scheres a~e reviewed
2y managemen: and the external audito” and
renorted on to the Comimittes

Taxation

The Group nhakes judgenants in -elation

o unzettain ax 2081100s, regatding the
outcore of negotiauons with and enguiries
from HM Revenue & Customs and orher tax
authonties i other junsdictions sudgerents
have been madae by managenren: fallowing
discussion with the Groun's tax adviso s and
inernal -eview The Conumit:ee has reviewed
the analysis behind these judgements and
confirms 1's agreement that the Group's tax
SrOVISIONS are appropnate

Going Concern

The Committee advises the PLC Board on
whather 1t believes 1t aoprop iate to adod:

the gaing concermn principle n sresanng the
Grouns financial statements in making

this assessment, the Committee receved
and reviewed managemen: forecasts for

the Group's fulure cash flow performance,
challengmg the assurmptions on which those
forecasts are Dased, “or 2022, the Comrittae
recewved forecasts based on varous
scenarnos and conside-ed what would be
required fer the Group to breachits borrowing
covenants or extinguish its borrowing
tacitities m the next 18 months Foliowing

a rooust assessment of the ‘orezasts, the
Commitee concluded that adoption of the
going concern principle was appropriate for
noth theintenim and full year results. The
Committee also reviewed and approved the
going concern disclosures that are included in
the “inancial statements.
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AUD'T COMM'TTEE REPORTcontinued

Whnlg: not conmigarad 1 be primary areas 9f
wdgermen: the Commetes's discussions in
relation to the 20272 a2 ounts also included
“he following

o Given the ~aiatively significant value
y sy

ol I v s 2022, Ui
Canen “hallen q-ﬂ(! managemean®
on Che aresentanton o thoserems The
disz ozused la’qﬂ\\, on the oosis

of the S oup's acivily On acquIsiTens
and disaosals, and costselating o
regttustunng actions taken in the VM3,
ATA and Hill & STith Ine ausinesses

The Comites concurred with
managerent's view, noting that the work
ol the external auditer in this area also
supporied that view

« Following the acqguisitions of National
Signal and Widnes Galvanising duning
the year, tha Cormitiee challenged
Mmanage ent an the acquisiion
aczountng. focussimg on the
aparopnateness of far value adjustiments
and he approach taken to valuauon of
acquisiticnintangibles The Coerittes
concued with management's aosproach,
noting the wor< oi indesandant vaiuations
exIerts In elaten o the purchase price
allocason under [FRS 3

Internal audit

Internal audit function

Tha inte nal audr: funchion s overseen by "he

Grous Head of sk & Internal Audit The Audit

Commiziee annually reviews and anproves

che Intenat Audir Charter that sets out

+ thefunctions ouroose 1o evaluate the
effectiveness of internal contrals, sk
managemen: and governance processes
indenendantly and ohjectively

- how the funcuon will discharge its
responsibility, oamratily by prepanng
and executing a nsk-based audit olan,
identifying oozortunities o mprove
inzornal contcl, “1sk Tanagement
and governance processes and oy
verifying that imarovarments agreed with
rmanagement are Inalemented within a
reagonabie tmeframe

In accordance with the Internal Audi

Charter, the Audit Commuttee and executive
managerment ensure that the internal audit
functicn has free and uniesticted access

to the Group's records, physical oroperties,
and personnel pertinent ‘o conducting its
actmities and remains free from inaporopnate
rmanagement influence or other restrictions
on its ability to perform its work in an
objective and effective manne-

Internal control

The Audit Committec 1s responsible for
ensuring that the Group's syste'r of internal
control is embedded within al aperating
companies, The Commiitee moniiors the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's

nternal conirol p ocesses thraugh eview and

discussion of

+ o the wooosed mtemal acdir 2lan, ensur ‘N
that 1L ahigned to the Princal b
of the ausiness, adjusted to

ucransiod coents, and o

s undates on the delivery of the

5 of he plan,

200 !

l;.Jlf.‘

+ the 22 inmenal aude renots and findings
areseniad thoughout the year tagether
with the p ogress made oy manage ren:
In addressing the 1ssues idenhfied on a
timely basis,

+ executive management renaris and
presentanons ncluding updates on
specific aens provided at the ~equest of
the Commitice,
accounting judgements including the
carrying value of goodwill and intanginle
asgels of ATG Access Lid, Pacang
Facibies d, and Hill & Snoith ine; and

+external audit repors, including the resubis

of early audir 3 coedures and the audit
findings in relation o the year end audr

The 2077 Internal Audit Plan Halancesd the
facus of the function between Sioun wide
Princioal Ais<s and operating company level
nsks Itincluded a Group-wide theratc
“eviow 0F supply cham resdlience The review
concluded that while operating comsanies,
generally, respanded well 7o supply cham
sressures ovar the las: 13 months and
continued to fulfil customer orders, the
appioach was reactive and that the operating
companies needed to oe maore proactive

in therr planning around supply chain
vulneraoility and ns< mitigation

Operanng campany-level reviews, fozusing
on aseline inarnal contrals were conducterd
at 21 business unts duting the yeas (seven in
relation o fimancial contrals and 141n relation
ic 11 contals) Where internal audit work
found mstances of cont-ol weakness, o7 non-
complance with Group Policy, the findings
were discussed at the Audit Commuittee Such
comol weaknesses are taken senously by
management and the Audit Commyttee seek
1o ensure that their cause is understood,

and miugating actions are taken (o limig the
potential for recutrence Plans are discussed
and tmelines agreed with the relevant
businesses, and these are momtored by the
mternal audit function 1o ensure comphance

Where ooesating companies fail to implement

such corrective achions within a reasonable
period as agreed, the Audit Committee s
nformed, and fursher escalation measures
are taken

In view o the wor< of internal aud,

external audit, and Sroup management it1s
congideed unlikely that a weakness at an
individual operating comiany would have a
matenal impac! when taken in the context of
the Group as a whole

Hilf & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Effectiveness of internal audit

1he Audit Committee s responsible for
Tanronng and eviewing the effectiveness o
*ha Groun's intenal audit function

As noved anove, the Andir Copimy tep

1 and azmoved the nsk-based

Audit pian ana nonitored progess with 11s

coraleuon Changes 1o the plan ansing inthe

yaar, nsluding the canvaletion of additionsl
wotk, were discussed and apu aved by the

Audﬁ Committee.

E=ialisie

Throughout the year the Audit Commitee
disoussed thamternal audit function's awinus
with the Group Head of Risk & Internal Audr
and executive management The Audit
Cammittee was sahsfied tha: the internal
audit funciion 1s operating effectively and that
*hefevel of expenence within the functicn was
andropriate o mee the Groun's needs duning
the year

Risk management

[ne nsk Mmanagement Drocess s
continually <ent under review to ensue that
outcomes from the operatiing companies
H5< UL TUESIONS provide the necessary
intormation for the Audit Sommittes

to conduct a obust assessment of the
“15¢s atfecting the Groun as a whole A

fisk manage rent and reporung ool has
helzed 10 provide the Comities with more
nornaion oh how ooe ating comaoanies
aercewve ther nisks and how thay relae 0
the Groun's Prinoipal Risks Through these
rea0s, aperating company mmanageimean:
ae contnually ronto-ed and susacited to
ensure ther risk managemen: pohcies and
"1sk mutigations a-e suitable to meetthe PLC
Board's apoetite for the risks identified

Risk management process

Every year the Committee seeks to impove
the Grouo's nsk management processes o
ensure that the Group's Principal Ris<s are
cor-ectly identified by virtue of atop-down 7
notom-up aporoach using the expetences
of the audir Commiziee and the Group's
cperatng companies. In this, the Audit
Committee is supported by the Groun's Risk
Cammittee, whose membershia can be found
on page 67

The Risk Commuitiee oversees the ns«
management process, whichis cne of
continual improvement The risk manage rent
and repoiting to¢l, launched in 2020, was
furzher developed durning the year suppo-ted
hy a programme of training that was delvered
to all managemen?t teams across the Group,
via onling webinars and training manuals

The Risk Cormmittee reviews, discusses, and
validates the rnisk submission data received
from the operating comparies Any risks
subrmitied by operating companies tha” do

no* align wizh the Group's Principal Risks a72
ingdivaidually reviewed and considered in current
andg subsequent reviews of the Groun Prninoical



Rig«<s The Audic Comaitioe has nronro s
the resuftant key 15«3 30 he corarat

fromhe sk

and munutas

AOEOSS dﬂ"i hD POVENICNLS i1 NG I0T HSKS
Al uptharios on aneratng oo moanes’ 15
THGALION ATV, tgg:)tr with T=sarirude
19 15K A5 MeAsU
The Com mittee usas this Informatinn 1o
deterine the nak auseule within tha Grouo's
operating conpames and help srform the PO
Board's overall nsk anpetite

During 2027, tha Comauttos Ie
sacticular attention oe paid o tf\e P‘ mcnpa\
Risks around Health & Sa'atwy 1T “allure.
Recruilment and Retention, and Praduct
Failure The Commitiee noted that the
prevention of ha~r a7 njury o e noloyees
was a rajo. area of fa2us 307055 the Grous
and thatimwas a requla” o of discussion
Wlﬂ'lll] the xecutive Board as well as the
PLC Board rself While the _TIR pe:fornance
has seon animoravenrent across the Groun
durmq 2022 health & s&’ety -amains a

<ey ‘cous asea or the Conrinae and the
aopelte fo imorovement remamns

Durning the yea the Comm t-ee “ecenved
regular uzodates regarding | T resihence and
cybe - secunty from the Group 1Y Director and
“he Chief Informaton Secury Oficer Regular
undaltes an operalng comany compllance
with tho Group E Controls Manual wese
provided oy internal audrt

More inforration on the actvities of the Ris<
Cammittee and the Group's Principal 21sks
can be found on ages 63 1o A8

TCEFD

The TCAD  Taskforee on Climate-relatad
Financial JEclosures) fecommendations,
nublishied in 2017, encourage comoanies
to disclose inforration on ther financial
nsks and ooportunities anging from chimaze
change, and haw these are baing managed

In 2071 the Group engaged Pw to parform
artalysis 1o enable a better ynderstanding
of our chmate related nsksg by identfying
transitional and physical nsks and
opportunities n future chimase scenanos

In 2022 PwC wera engaged tz poiform
assessment of the physical nisks ‘or
operational sites acquired in the year The
results from PwC's work we-e -eviewed at
the March 2023 Audit Commuttee, follawing
which the Commities androved the 2022
disclosures relating *o TC-0 whigh can be
foung in the Group's Sustainaoity Plan on
pages 32 %0 57
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Whistleblowing
The: S has & waitten policy which

it any emaldyes nthe 5roud
sle goounds o heheve that the
te of Business ConducT i beng

has

Gl

Areehed T ay D s o yrudp of el
they ae asie to roport such inaideanis tirough
an extEnaly hosiod nwenet reas hing aysie

and o a raleoshone sased whistleslowing
hotline o 1f necessary, to the Camoany
Secrotary o0 4 5oup Prasident o the Charr
af the Audir Comnittee This solicy can be
found on the Group website

Any incidonts reported, whether through the
whistiestowing hethine or direct to the Comrpany
Sec etary or any other member of Group-level
manageTery, are nvestigated under the
supe~vision of the Groun Comaany Secretary
and resolved asy oo ately Reports -aised by
he Goup Company Secretary 00 ihese sases,
anthe nves W2 DiDT £ Conclusions,
and any lessons to be learned fron these
evants are shared with the PLC Board

Assessment of effectiveness

of external audit

There are saveral a-cas that the Comttee
congidess nralation (o the ex-ernal audito
oerforrance in discharging the audit and
e review of the Sinancial Statennents,
independence and objectivity, and
reag o mient and remuneration

External auditor performance

The extornal audrar Y provided the
Committes with therr plan for undertaang the
2022 year -end audit dunng the Comimittee
nreeling inuly 2022 This tighlighted the
praposed apnsoach and scope of the audr

and identifred the <ey 1ssues in detal, neing
the valustbon of goodwill in relanon o Parking
Faciliies, ATG Access Lid and F-ance Galva

S A the sk of fraud in revenue recogilion, and
nveniory valuation The Cammittes debated,
and appropriately challenged the oasig for
these a“eas betore agreaing the o oposed
anoroach and scope of the external audit, As
events evolved through the yeaar, the audit ©15<3
have accordingly oeen re-visited oy kY. This led
o the mclusion of an additional ey audit nsk
regarding the valuation of goodwill in relation
-0 Hill & S7uth Inc seing reposted on, and the
axclusion of the nisk relating to France Galva's
goodwill following its disposal in October 2022,

The external auditor prepared a detailed
reaort of its findings in respect of the 2022
audit The Commuttee discussed the issues
raised in the report, particutarly in refation

to the areas highlighted, at their meetng in
March 2023 The Comimittee questioned and
challenged the work undertaken, the “indings
and the key assumptions made, Daymg
particulas attention to the areas o audit nsk
identified.

Auditor independence and rotation
The exiomal audeos coninred 105 300mes
on ensuing audiron indsoendens
Jiowided the Comritiee with a oo on
thes own audis and Qqual’y procedL s
W Wild dunimy e el

coview and the Comneree wers 595718l
oft wilto s ndependence Tom
audiorindenen: 1°m“° o Sroaat
wherehy beforeany 7

winte

Rt falh

armer empliye:2 ol
the external audizor Tay be emaloyed by
the Groun, careful consideration s grven 1o
whether the indesendence of the andite wall
oe adversely affected, and aporoval 0f the
Andi Cormttez s rogqured Theewe e no
such matances dunng the yea:

EY were anponted 43 the Groun's auditor in
June 2023, and they have confirmed tc us,
that a3 the partner in charge Helen MoLand-

23, suBpast 0 unfo escen changes, will oe
thelead daomer unto and including the aedr
for 2074 before boing comzelled 1o rotate o
the audit to cnsur e conunued ndepandence

Audit and Non-audit fees

At the ")efm“bs‘-' 202? meating 'he
Comntiea dis ~oved “he
aroposed dud\i

‘e9 far 2022

The Comnmittee Tainzained the approach o°
RIS ING the non-audts work camed out
oy the extérnal auditor The Commiegs
MNoti-audit Services Palicy reets the detailed
requice nentg o audit legislation, which
restict the use of the exto-nal audior for
activittes including cormiing accounting
records, cortam aspec:s of mternal audit,

1T consuliancy, tax services excent in
exceptional cnocuTstances, and advice Lo the
Renuneation Comnmiies

Tor any non audiSaddilional semvices set oul
n section 540 of the £ 3C's ethical standaid
2319, the policy provides for aoproval by the
Groun Chief Tinancial Officer, of expendiiure
nelow £50.00C, and above that tovel 2y the
Audit Commitree Areport s also sibmitted
1o the Audit Commitee of any non-audit
services carned out by the external audity,
rresnestve of value to ensure that tha
agygregated spend with the external audiror
will not exceed /0% of the audit fee

Duing 2022, *here were ‘ees of £3000 (2021
£4,00C) pard to the auditor for non-audit
Services relating to other assurance Services.
In 2022, non-audit fees represented 0 2% of
audit fees of £1.6m (2021 0. 2°f) Further
details of these amounts a2 inzluded n note
8 of the Zinancial Statements on page 148

Mark Reckitt
Char

8 March 2023

Ld0c3Id FJONVNHIAQD
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Annette Kelleher

Dear Stakeholder

As Chair of the Remuneration
Committee and on behalf of
the Board, | am pleased to
share with you our report on
Directors’ remuneration for
the year ended 31 December
2022,

During 2022, the Committee
had a full agenda including
the triennial review of the
Directors’ Remuneration
Policy, which will be
presented to our shareholders
for approval at our 2023
Annual General Meeting
(AGM’) on 25 May 2023.

The Annual Report on Renruneration (pages
94 t0 104), descnbes how the current
Remuneraticn Policy {the ‘Folicy’) has been
operated during 2022 and the aroposed
operation in 2023 (subject to aoproval of the
updated Policy). The updated Policy 1s set
out pages 105 to 113 Sharehclders will be
asked to approve both the Annual Report on
Remuneration and the updated Policy at our
2023 AGM

Business context

The Group has delivered record ~evenue
and orofits n 2022, which demonsirates

the business' -esilience to the challenging
headwands of supply, nflation and a pos!
COVID marketslace The Group 1s owo TNg.,
from contnwing operatinns, revenues oi
£732 e and ooerating >ofits of £97 "my

In addriion 1o delivering robus: financial
perfarmance, 20622 has been a year of sohd
progress inama-oving the quality o our
sartfolio of businesses We successfully
disposed of our lower growth, lowe: margin
French galvanising and hghting column
husiness, exived nu” Swedish -ental and
infrastiuziuie contract businesses and
helow margin road traffic control oroduct
portfolio in the US At the same time, we have
successfully completed acquisizions 10 bigh
growth markets to complement ou” existing
ousinesses Natonal Signal specialises in
off-gnd sclar ighting selutions and Widnes
Galvanising expands the geograzhic coverage
of our galvanising business in the UK

A number of Board changes have also seen
made during the year, ncluding Paul Simmaons
stesping down from his role as Chief
Executive Officer {CEQ' and from the Board
on 18 July and -hen ceasing employment with
the Group following & perod of garden leave.
Alan Giddins, our Non-Zxecutive Char took
over as cxecutive Chair and will remam so
untl a permanent Cz01s appointed

In “espect of *he nened Alan Giddins has
served as Executive Chair he has receved

a ‘ee equvalent 1o the previous CEQ's base
salary of 562,077 per annum with the role
2eing underta<en on a full urme basis. This will
oo ncreased 2y 4% 1o £584 544 for 2023, and
until a CEO 15 adooited, at which point his fee
will revait to the typical Non-executive Chair
fee. Alan Giddins was not eligible 'o participate
10 any variabie reruneration arrangements
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The Group has
delivered record
revenue and profits
in 2022, which
demonstrates the

business’ resilience
10 the challenging
headwinds of supply,
inflation and a post
COVID marketplace!”

Aduring 2022 and will also not pasicmate dunng
2023 Detals of exy arrangemaents for Paul
Simmaons can be found on page 00

2022 remuneration outcomes

Annual bonus

The 2327 annual panus 127 The cxecutive
ciors was based on finanoial measures

Y welghting) and persenal objectives (20%
weighting) The forTulaie outturn ranged
between 70% and 80% of the maximum
bonus avallable

Detals of the outturns aganst the “inancial
aeformance Measures are setout on page 97

Tha Sommites assessed achevements
against personal ghjectives as set out on
page 97 —al® of the aanus earned oy each
Executive Director will be deferred into shares
for swo years, 1o ensure long e algnment
with the interests of shareholders

The Grous has a history of fozusing on
financial nesformance measuras, however
recently, o recognise specific focus on

key matters we have introduced personal
objectives into the Executive Directorns” annual
bonus plans. In particular these included
the continued development of the Group's
ESG strateqy and implementing the Group's
IT and cyber nis< strategy with rmilestones
appropriate to 2022. The Committes was of
the view that *hese phjectives should form
part of a non-financial senes of activitics
since they are intiatives that will strengzhon
our underlying business, support the
Company's overall strategy and facilitate the
delivery of long term sustainasie growth
More information can oe found on page 97
Progress agains: soth the financial metnes
and the relevant milestones s measured
using our KPIs, which are emaedded within
the executive e nunerausn framework as
illustrated by the inforration on page 97



The Caomiiee considersd the outiinn fo
these elements agamst the “ormulas
and ag ced that those weic ap e
having regard to overall pefonmance ;mvi
exaenence of stakehel:

3

Lonyg lerm incentive cutcomes

With regard 1o our long term performance, our
2020 fong e moeniive awad 1s ehginle
vest based on verformance fam 1 sanuacy
2020t 37 Decemner 2022 Tha doouon o
this awa d vesung was deferned based

an perforrnance against -amings Per Shae

(PS5 and Relat ve Total Sharzholder Return
i T5RY

larguls

o on ~PS growsth 27 T4 5% oves the
DEFFOT AN od, and defivening a TSR
thal olaced the Comoany between median
and upper guarile ve sus the “TS. 250
canstituents (excluding Investrent Trus's
and financial services comaanics) the award
will vest at 43% of the maximum

In determiming vesting, the Committee
considered the potential for windfall gang.
and concluded that the value on vesiing o* the
2020 award did not bene’it from windfall gans
In reaching this conclusion the Com rittee
noted that the granting of the 2820 awa-d was
delayed unti 25 Sepiember 2020, by which
e the Comaany's share price had lagely
recovered from the market wide “all that ‘oox
place m the “irst half of 2020 (the 2520 shae
awards were g-anted based on a Sextemoer
share price af £17 01 versus the Ma-ch COVI)
low of £9 31 and the 2079 award sice of

F1' 40 “u~herrore, the 2o )m)any% sha-e
Hice was broadly nonsistent with the grant
price at the end of the 2022 financial yea-
{1e had not benefitted from a pos* Covid
bounce rom Seatember 2020% As g result

T ihe share once at the end of the three year
performance penod, and noting the numier
of shares comoisad inthe awad at grant, the
Cammi was confortasle that thera was no
wind*all gan associated with the vesting o the
20272 long 'e-m incentive sian award and hat
vesting was consistent with the perforrance
of the Comnany thiough the perod

Given he combmation of “4inancal
performance and non-hinancial 2rogress
achizved during the year, the Comritiee
awarded vanable pay awards in ine with the
farmula based outzomes The Comritiees
satisfied that the Semuneration Polcy has
operated as intended and in reaching this
conclusion oo« INto account overall Comnany
perfarmance and othe” inforration such as
nternal say ratos and shareholde- feedbac<

Our new Directors’

Remuneration Policy

Our current Policy was approved ay
shareholders a* the 2020 AGM receiving
G5.4% support The 2023 AGM will marx the
third anniversary 0° ~he existing Policy and as
a result we will seek sharﬂho\dﬂr anoroval for
an updated Policy at the AG

Junng 2022, the Comnuttes conducted

a review of the existing Policy and how
effectively it had ope-ated duning the current
Policy cycle The Commitiee concluded

that the existing Policy, subject 1o mina”
refinements, remains aparopiate considenng
the Group's remuneration phiasophy and will
cOrnUe to support the long term sustainable
growth stategy of the Group The other
factors noted oy the Comimitiez in reaching
the decision to ol over our Policy

Stock Code HILS

azul the cur-ent Policy takes

Irrent ingtitutional investor ‘ses:

iwens and aligns with relevant
i wance requiremen’s, (n) he

olw B0 yac<at consistent flex sty

HeREMINE ':w e choige of pﬂr OITANGe

THT _Uv ‘mlvm, and \m) e

cilitare 'he aopoim’nem-
fmanent CEO

2,11 the e was a need 0 make any
c\my within the next three-
renornising a new CCO
)Ln.’\lc‘i the Conrmisee would 11 the
unde wa<c acp oprete dinlsgue
hat trme

o dane shareholders who provided “eedsask
undersiood the rationale for the proposed ol
‘orwand of the Policy and were sunportive

of the Cormittees approach oweve:,
.eedua;.k alsosndicated that the Group's
Policy was no* “ully ahgned to some of our
Investors’ expecialions concening our post
enploymnent sharehalding guidelines Our
curren: guidelines were structured so that
shares were held equivalent to 200% of final
year salasy (07 1f less 1o the maxirmum held)
for at leas: one year sefore the requiremen:
reduced to '00% of salary Inhight of the
fondoac< eceved, the stepdown 10 " 00%,

of salary af:e' a vear oost cessation of
erployment will e ramoved and so the 200%
o' galary guideline {0 less 10 the maximuT
held) will onerate for two years Dost cesaation
of employment 2iinging the guidelne “ul)
A zomolianse This uadated guideline anshies
o shares scaurad arer tax) through vested
LTIF and deferred bonus awards granted i
and from 2320

Employee pay and stakeholder

engagement

With exzaaunnally high levels of inflation,
cspecially in our major markets in the UK and
US, we toox a range of actions to suppor:
our eTuloyess in 2022 Our responses vaned
by location sased on ou” unde-standing of
lozal needs The actons takenincluded lup
sum DayTents, targeted salary adjusiments
and voushes arogrammes as well as
mrareased financial educanen Inlight of the
excentionally high levels of inflation i1 2022,
the Comoany has set salary increase budgets
a7 between 5% and 10% for 2023, denending
on country and local circumstances

Our Board wsited 12 of our oseraiung sites
during the yea- and solicted feedback on
the Company and diszcussed a broad range
of topics that included remuneration and
how our structures align with strategy

These visits, allied to the operation of our
annual engagement survey, ensure the Board
understands the views of all empioyees and
can act as needed to ensure we continue to
have an engaged and motivated workforce

With regards to engagemeant with
shareholders, as detailed above, we
concluded a wide-ranging shareholder
consultation process from late 2022 as part
of our 2023 remuneration Policy renewal

Looking forward to 2023

Qur usual practice 13 "o review Executive
Mrectors sataries on an annual basis In
December, the Commitlee considered their
annuat salary Inc-eases, effective January
2023 The Commitiee, recognises that when
Hannah Nichols was appomnted n 2019 17 was

e first P_C CTOsele and she slared ona
pelow marke rate Since the‘-n Hannah has
grown sigrificanty i he s addinon
she nas ta<aen s )Ol‘.%i"\“* e denpvery

e and ne”annual long Lo mcentye
dooportunizy st e increased o
Tease 15 at the botton: end of the

salary nc
maornty of wdes workforce pay
hetween 5% and 1% 1he Somnar
1T Was also AZDTORI1ate &s0 Wi
lang temm incentive arangemen: giant om
T2 alary o TS0 Of saiay o AUZa
and onan ongoing asis The daioes o
both of which can be accomnrodar
aur 2asting Pobicy, will 1ove her towa
the na<et jate for an exsenenced -T5= 200
Chie* Dinancial Ofeer which s considered
apprapriate inligh: of her calinre, hes
nerformance in sost and cutient exoenence

With -egard o the ooeranon of the annual
honus alanin 2323 these will be no change
to the raxenum opperianity for the CHo at
125% o° salary —owever, we have refined
our choice of performance merncs to better
reflec: cur mereased focus on profitability,
cash and efficiency i 2023 As a resul,

the aerformance metnzs will be underlying
ooeratng nrofil (50%), onerating cash
conversion {30% and 1eplac ng Hetunon
wvested Camtal) and oersonal ohjectives set
against a bas«e: of E36 measures (including
ca-pon reduction and health and safety) and
indiidual key res }

ansemties (20%)

The tong e incenive awards granted in
2523 wall remain subject 1o an equal 500t of
ea mings oe- share growth targets and ~elative
total shareholder return targets Having
considered internal olans and external mar<e:
exnec.ations for ous future perforrance, olus
+he hugher annual award level for the C70 "o
*he 2023 awaid, the Commitiae increased the
range of PS5 growth targets from 3% - 11%
pa tod¥-12%pa With the share price at
she tme of writing within 5% to " 0% of the
2027 grant price the Comrrittee does not
anvisage there (o be the potential for wandfall
gamns arismg from the 2023 awara However,
twili underiaks a iinal review of the terms

of e awa-d oror to granting and retains
disaretion on vesting o adjust for nula-aased
outcomes {e g in the event af a perceved
wind“all gan)

The Non-executive Director fees, mcluding
addiional fees, have been increased Dy 3%
with effect from Janua y 2023 See page 104
for more detalls

On a persenal note, 2023 will mat« the end
of my third term as Non-executive Director
with Hilt & Smith and therefore will be
srepping down from the Board following the
2023 AGM Our Senior Independent Director,
Tony Quinlan, will succeed me in the role as
Comimuttec Charr 1 wish Tony the best of
luck i this role and thank cur shareholders
for thewr suspor: durning my tenure as
Committee Char.

| believe our approach to remuneration will
help to enastke long term sustamable growth
while ensuring a responsible aoproach to
exacutive pay, and ! ook forward o recewing
your support on Resolutions 2 and 3 at out
2073 AGM

Annette Kelleher
Cnar
8 March 2023

180d3d 3ONYNH3IA09
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT contines

Area of focus in 2022

Dunng the year 1o 3% Deoenner 2022 the Remunerasion Commities ¢ ansged of Annete
pare Raby, Tony Quinfan. i 21 igh-Ann Russel,
the Comaniies

15, Miak ekt
was aaoowted from TAD? §2022 dmgt

o, a3 Chau, Alan §
d Fa-okh Batlreaie, v N
sonsideced the fallowing

the year

‘fm 2022,

Drtermination of vanab‘re payouetm Eor t
a :fe}:arted fnlastyear‘»s aneem X

_Ammvai of the ex-CEQS Setﬂemef%t
. Details can'be fourd ort page 100.-
'+ agpointment of Korn Fefry 85 new adwsoss othe Rgmmeram commxttee,
'+ . Approvel of SAYE 2022 award. .
‘ Gensideratm ‘of remuneraﬂm tfends 38 prav&ded by Kom Fmry :

‘ﬁuppmvat o) roit over existing Remun
consuitation felter (see pages 105101 3o moré detads}

The bonus Outtums are. ot ot on pages 37 1o 98

e 20‘23 saiacy f‘eView forExeGiKNeDlre(:tofsanﬁmembefSaf the@mupsﬁ;mﬂveamrd

. Exeaitive Directors’ bunuaman for 2023, including persofial ob;ecmes
. Cuns;defamn of remunerawn trewds a5 provided by Korn Fen'y

Remuneration at a glance
To incentivise our employees 10 achiove our sirategy we
exnesIence

Remuneration Policy and structure summary
{More detars can he found on Dages 90 1043

Purpose/structure

eratiott Polmy and. mdefw qf sharemm

onsideration of possible variable pay QutluIns for the 2022 mmus mmmp

Reward linked to performance

Operating Profit {at budgeted FX
rates) — outcome against target

Actual

£87.8mM

Target £84 9m

Return on Invested Capital {at
pudgeted FX rates) -
outcome against target

Actual

18.7%

Targel 77 9%

Total annuai bonus plan - QOutcome,
including achieverment of personal
objectives, see page 97.

Paul Simmons

72%

of Mmaxinum oppotumty
(prorated to 18 July 2022)

Hannah Nichols

77%

of mAKMUMm S0P Aunnly

provide market competitive rerungration which s ahgned wih ou? shareholders’

Operation for 2023

Element

. Enales the Company 10 racrt and retain Executive
- Directars,

To provide post-retiremnant senchts (o7 Frecutive
Dnrectors

performance measures and targets are reviewed and
sat annually by the REMunerain Cormizee Atleasl
50% of bonus wil be wasad on finanzial Teasures

50% ¢ any honusts deferred nto shares ‘or two years

Three year performance ~eand, with a further
holding peried

Two-year

To enzourage shareholde: alignaent hoth dusing and
aftar emoloyment

CFO - £374,525 (5% ncrease)
Executive Chair  £584. 554 (4% Increase)
CFO -6

Executive Chair -

5o, of satan y

2023 performance measures: Budgeted under lying
operating profit {50%), budge ad cash conversion { 1395,
and indwidual personal objectives (20%).

Maximum opportunity: CFO. 125% of salary Executive
Chair n/a

2023 performance measures: Relativa TSR {50%}) and
growthin UEPS {50%)
Grant size: CF0. 19 50%

200% shareholdng 37 Swecusive Duectors durng
employment and for two years after emnloyment ends

of salary Fxecullve Charr. n/a

94  Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and ASCounts 2022



The following chart shows Hill & Smith's Total Shareholder Return during 2022

180d38 FINTNEIACH
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60

Total Shareholder Retuin (rebased to 100}

0 —

20

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
itiete  Hill & SmMith

. . . . Alignment with the
Financia! performance Alignment with shareholders

Stock Code HILS 9
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT continued

implementation of the Remuneration Policy during 2022
Single remuneration figure

Total Total

Base Salary Taxasle Total Fixed A Variable “single

V) R Deret!s Pensicn ray Borng - TIP Pay figure”

Alan Girddins 2022 257,241 - - 257,241 - - - 257,241
22 - - - - - -

Harnan Nichols 2022 356,689 12,639 23,185 392,513 345,213 213,002 558,215 950,728

2021 346,300 12,608 22 504 381,417 37660 376.60° 758,018

Paul Simmaons 2022 304,005 15,639 36,535 356,179 330,758 110,991 441,749 797,928

2520 545,700 15,608 35471 590,779 723324 453,765 1,184,090 1,780,869

Tatals 2022 917,935 28,278 59,720 1,005,933 675,971 323,993 999,964 2,005,897

2027 892,600 28216 57,930 978796 1096925 463,770 1,560,691 2,538,887

Tne amnownt 2f pase salary recawad 0 the yaar

©Agnsior contnbyaions i igibie Exec

= Anagal Borasis e
Dorus ray Dut wes d

© The T P hgure far 2aul Sivrvors for 2021 refle
award forfoced when ne joired Hie &
Trewalae of £463 /8515 e s

1l

T LTI2 bigons for 2au Semops for 2022 v
award farfzred whan e aired Hili &3 -, a5
and teretoee that § 334 shares would vest Tiow

nith as

(Orrangratan i respec: of 20272

fagts thavasting o
S0yt the 2020 D
ctE110 25 1ne o

Sollowing Pacl Simimors stennmyg dow frar the Soard 00 18 July 2027 the No
raspansiilhas assacated wit the rae 3f Sxasatve Shan s araual o2 wag

e Directars repleset 5 5 . of their nase saary

[tese amon s relate tathe pernd which A& an Siddies saneed as Executive Coan

ars Ao rudaraton R Danny 232710 was coenirnad
oduct of tre numper of veated snares ard the snare o1

> tir tne 2920 Directars’ Rerraneraian [epart Donng 202! 1 was
of the nuraer of vested snares ard the shara pnice of £16 24 on the date of vesti

n-oxacutive Chair, Alan Giddins, oecams
craased o 131330 10 £552,071 He was not eiigidle rorenewe 1y vanab e

L DEr

ons

SoutvE Zharr

33081 an

300200

Ff13 16 ontrad

e af the nomus eared in r2spect of the firancia venad Lader revisvw noidieg he aro ol deforied into spares A& descnption of o toe
ermired can be found or nage 97

tre vasting or 38 Ju v 2021 of Suy-0ut Award 1 granted b ovar 28,557 shares i cornecon vat ¢

At the award woatd vestar full

3

s Agn Giddirs servad as Non-execulive Shairin 20271 and toe fees paid 1o hir for nis seraces anoueted 19 £176,690 See nage 150 for mare details

Torefeztnz 24diminnal

rZEL SITr0s stepded dow a3 2EQ and tro the Board on V3 Laly 2022 17 ke 2022 taale ancve, rerueraton camed 1o that dae s rcluded excent that for

CUNSISE

[alF

2022 annual bonus

with tpe orer Teenutve Jireciars, the flla o et of fie 2022 gonus, tagan e Denalits and Jension are ing uded in us sable Orbar payments made to
e discoszed or oage HD

Paul Simmons and Hannah Nichols were eligible to earn a bonus ‘or 2022 of us to 150% and up to 125" of salary respectively Inline with the
Policy, 50% of any bonus 13 pard upfront in cash and the remaining 50% 15 defered into shares ‘or 'wo yea-s, with na performance cenditions, and
subject, ordinanily, w conunued e playment

Any ponus said 1o Paut Sivimons in espest of 2022 15 oro-rated o his date of stepoing down from the Board, heng 18 suly 2027

Hilt & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022



the extent o whizh the cxes

s nonuses were aq ned s surmimanised below

Maximum Actual bonus

Target — 50% of ~100% of Actual earned

Measure Weighting maximum maximum performance (% of maximum)
Lindea-lying ooerating - Si37, rad om £52 090 [RSEIA 341
Rarurn on inves:ed 30 T Rt 1870 PR

Pergonal objentiives

20% The bonus eamned gy afeience 0 the st

120 of personal ohjestwves

was determined oy the Comantiee basod on its assessiant of tha extent
which the abjectives were achieved. as described Delow

©Underlying sperabng prafit and reture a0 invested caoltal afe caic.

 Mhatgrgets ware rest

and weare no mMoie o1 lpss onal enging t1ar waen onginally se

ted 2 nudgetad rates of sxcharge fur the aurposes of calca aing the s wiaa borgs,

e namaast of manenal asguistines d dvasimants dunng the year 53 thal the fargats ware nas2d o0 23100003 032r37o0s

The personal objectives se for each Txecutive Mhrectos are sumimansed selow, along with the key achievements

Paul Simmons

Achievement

Executive Director

Objectives

Cadse a 590 change n e 5roup’s neast A sataty
pertarmance and calure marove o 03]
accident rates across tne Graun Ensare themz emertation
af Heasth & Safety waming prograr e for el Execuuve 3oard
members ard MIs

Wark watls the Graup 2residents 1 devel ip ar MEA mad aligred
with e Grout s strategy Ersura 1he Gioup 3005 3 87 rong pineline
of high-qrality sapartanimes and puts #self i
execute or the Most Aatlractve Spor
disposa ot France Galva

War< with £ 12 3roup rasident o ansare tha® thaie s a slzarpan
to assure deavery of the strateqgy for the US roads

sug-dmisiun Znsure that tae sus-drasion s sot ap for ong erm
sLCCesS frougn the existerce of 1) a we' thougnt trougn
strategic par (1) & $7Torg Taagemant e ) a number of
Ao oroduct deve ooment 1malives, ard v suong MEA pipeline

57.5%

Key achievements

Objective suasianrya ly asaved wir good orogress made
du 2 yaar, with cear and irproved reaorng Lo 1o e
stive Board and PLC Board IR decreased by 35,

n 2022

Dpestize susstanha ly acneved witn good orogress made
AgAMat tre GroLo's ESG agends, inc adirgreosrirg a
hasaing 21 Seooe 3 carhon emissdns 32euages 36 1o 33
far mare dotanls

Obeciee partly achieved A1 NE&A ran bairg dovewoped oot
a maehne tnat was ooy SumewIal piagressed France
Cawa exit competed i~ the year

W

Tz a3echiva was nat asnieved Do2atoral Issues depined
post Fadls depaitare gning nse toa namser oF Senicr
management changes at L& Simat ing, and 1ecess
detailed stiareqgic rey

Hannah Nichols

Achievement

Cause @ sten charge ir 1€ Group s haalkh and safety
pertarmance and culture tmorove the Groups TR w0 30 for
accident rates across the Giouo zZnsure theamplerrentation
ot riealth & Safely training orograrine for all Sxecutive Board
members and MDs

Ensare progress against the Group sustaimaniry plan as
diszlased inlast year's Annual Report

Dnve turtigrimprovement in the Group's abihity 1o acouratey
foracas: out on a three-month and s-marth 03sis, thereby
providing the Board with a tugh level of canfidence nine
faracasts contamed within the Board pack

Provide clear leadarship in tne delivery of the Group’s imformation
securty and £RP sirategy Snsure that the seemorthiy IT

Lpdate preseniations are focused on hard deliverab'es ensure
saecihic delivery agaimst ) information securty roll out plan (with
campletion of cntical Emai and Web Filtering workstreams by
end 2622 1) Miziosoft 365 orogramme delivery oy erd =1 2022
ard i) 227 strategy developmeant complete a fLi' assessment
of tne Group T AP estate to drovide a clear road map far future
zhange reguirenents based on business need and cost/bereafis

82.5%

Oajective sabstantally achieved with good Srogress made
Aunag the vear, witn clear aad improved reporing up to tae
SxecJive Board and PLC Board LTiR derreased by 35+

11 2022

Objective 3ubstaialy achieved with good arogress made
against the 5Gioaun's £33 agenda mclushng reparing a
haseline for Scooe 3 zarson erissians See pages 3610 38
for mare details

Objective achieved tetwesn target and maximnam The month
end reporting requirements Nave been further enbanced
Introduced a montbly ris«< and opportunty 3ssessmen: vs
forecast for each aperaung company Greater degree of
forecas: accuracy evidenced

Objectiva achieved detwesn target and maxamum 3trong

IT leadersup derarstated riroughour the year End ot
maragemen: 102!s introduced acro3s the Group Secure
Access Service Edye { SASE" project agreed, to be rolled out
Ir 2023 tndwidual opaiating corrpany 2P assessments
undertaken ard proect pia~s produced

Stock Code HILS
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REMUNERAT'ON COMM'TTEE REPORTcominued

111383183my the <8y actupyvemens 57 au? above i -ofation o pe-senal ooesives the Conmutiee detarminad hat Pact Smmons shroald o
5055 e this dai o7 the borus, oaing 17 5% of s maxineun® pooor bty ioro rated Lo the dale ne s el dowwn fon the Board, neing 13 Lualy
23223, and “hal Hannah Nisnols should rezeive 82 5% af this pacs of the 2o0us, 28N "6 5% 0F hat Taxiu 20 00Uty

The Co rvttes considersd “ha toqrulale outturo of the annaal hanus fo; 2222 1o be aooroonare and “eflecad the Yinanaial and non-financial
Jeranrance o7 the ansm duing the yeas, therefore no discretion was aonked

The cash sonus and detarad homis adnod aespect of 2022 are as follows

Bonus paid

as an award

Total bonus Bonus paid in of deferred

Executive Director earned casgh (£) shares (£)
Paul Srmmons £330758 £165379 £165379
Hannah Nichols £345213 £172.607 172606

LTIP awards vesting in respect of 2022

Paul Simmaons and Hannah Nichols we e made (1P awards 11 2020 over 60,819 and 35,335 shares respectively These vested subjectto the
achigvement of 2er‘ormance conditions based on adsalute UZPS g-ow:h ovel the three vear performance period ended 371 December 2022 (as regards
50% of the award) and 131 -elative to the FTSE 250 excluding investment —usts and financial services companies {as -egards 50% o the award)

Padl Simmons' 2322 TIP awacd lagsed i totahty when he stepped down from the Board on * 3 Luly 2022

On 2 March 2023 the Remune anon Comnmtee aporoved the exten to which the awa ds vested, and the value included m - lannah Nichats” aingle
figure of remune-atior tasle as a result 15 Set out selow

Actual Shares subject to
Performance Targets Vesting performance Actual Vesting the Award Vesting shares Vested value’
uzes Threshold 85 * e TPS 20 30%
Lz 1resho :p 20 LZ28 a7 30 99 U_ s 20 N -
Maximum 140p 150% of raximu Hannah Nichois
153 Median 20% TSR Ranked 64 153 29 55% 30335 2298 213962
Unne” Quatle 100% outof 135 oF maximum

S Thevaae of sha1es s caleulaisd by reference 1o the gnare onge on 2 March 2523, oerg £13 96 n accovdance wit e res at the LTH Hannah Michors 15 entitledd
t2 3 furtar s2n2te ay r2farene 1o 2 divdends aaid over oo penod from grant trvestirg 3irauetng 1 £1 1,054, and delivered 45 792 addiniona shares

Az detalled in the Chai's Int-oduciory Statement, the Commitiee congidered the cotental for any windfall gams associated with the vesting of the
2020 award and concluded that this was not the case having considercd soth the numner 0 shates at g an and the value onvesting As a resull,
the Commitiee did not use any discretion i relation (o the vesting of the award

Executive Director shareholding guidelines
[he Comaany's guideitios aie chat Fxecutwe Directars imust hold 2009 of their nase salary in shaes.

Inarder to meel tus tequreen: Directoss are reguired o uilkd ud such oy retaining at least halt o any sha-es ca ned through incentive
arrangements untl that sharenoclding requirerment 1s met. Sha‘es awarded as part of the deferred 20NuUs arrangenrents also count towards This
requirernent

Although not suzjec: 1o sharsholding regquireman:s, the Executive Char, Alan Giddins, has oeen imcluded in Lhe table oelow.

Alan Hannah Paul

Giddins Nichols Simmons

Existing

unvested

Shareholding -equirerren: nia 200% otoNg
Current sharcholding on 3 December 2022 23,600 3106 néa
Deferred shares on 31 Decernter 2022 (amounts net of tax and social secunty) - 9366 T H 904
Total shares 23,600 13072 16,904
Share value based on share orice on 31 December 2022 £276,592 £153,204 £168,115
Current % of salary {Dased on salary on 31 December 2022) n/a 43% n/a

Hannah Nichols will be required 1o rean at least 50% of any shares eaned under the LTIP and the deferred bonus scheme until the sharehotding
guidelneis achieved There was no change In these beneficial Intorests setween 31 December 2027 and 8 March 2023

Under the Company’s Current Remune-ation Pohicy, Paul Simmons 1s required to maintain a post-empioyment sharehotding i respect of shares
acquired pursuant to LTIP and deferred bonus awards to a value equat ©o 2007 of lus nase salary for a peniod of one vear after teaving, and 56% of
this in-service guidefine for a further year aftei feaving In evher case, tha numaer of relevant shares held at leaving mrust oe “etained if this 1 less
*han the in-service quideiine
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Share awards granted during the year
Dung the yea 10 37 Decentber 2027 the Camrmilieg audioved mas

Number of Maximum face Threshold Performance

Date of Award  Type of Award Shares value of Award " Vesting Period end date’™

Daul Greans TOMa L 2327 N cosL oD o4 24 | 378825~ 20% A7 degemiow 20
Fignngah Nizhols o March 20272 N oSt aohan 3.8/ 464743 e 31 Tecemner 27024

© Dalcalated v rar

Tivg award ansed when Zag Simreons stepoed down fran the Sosid o1 13 sy 2022

10003 ShAre AR T Uy g e aarggs of tne ud rarke! onces for merree ading days anorto 16 Marcn 2022

o Afrershe endof tre performarce zenod e LTI2 awards will De suess b ar addiional two-vear ro thng penod before they are e eazedd

The performrance condimions fo these awasds are as follows

Veshing amount

Compound annual growthn
UEPS over the performance
period

(50% of the award)

TSR
(50% of the award) **

0% Vesting
20, Vesing®

Less than 3%
3%

1%

Below median
Median

Loper quartile

Maximum Vesnng®

*oZraighy e vasting walt apply hetwear theze two aonts

teReatwe o e ETIE 235 wex udng Irvast e 1us's and hrarcia sefviees carmpanies]

SAYE
The mrerests of the Txecutive Director at 3!
schemes are shown inthe “ollowing table

Decevber 2022, 10 options for ordmary shares in the Company, granted under the Cormpany’s SAYE
¥ Y. £ bany

Period that opticr 15 exerzisan.e

Awa ds
held at Awards
31 Granted —xercisad Laassed held at
December dunngthe  dunngthe  duning the EealsEIElylElg
Yaar  Grant Pnce 2021 yea: ol year 2022 =rom 10
Hannah Nichals 2022 E7 94 3778 - - 3 1 Jan 2078 1 Juty 2028
20749 £9 40 3,131 - - 37191 1 .dJan 2073 1 July 2023

Alan Siddins does not parmcmnane in the SAY =

Statement of Executive Directors' shareholding and interests in shares

Unvested
Subject to Notsubject o Total at
Owned Vested but  periormance  performance RERlLIEhil
Type Outright  not exercised conditions conditions 2022
Hannah Nichals Shares 31086 18,803 37 897 -
Market value
ootions " - 2497 _
SAYS
Optionsg - - 3778

s The Market Value optiors were graited urder the tax-advantaged part of the £508S as part of the LTP award granted i 2020 and are subject 1o ne same
performance conditions as that LTIP award

2 A breakdown of SAYE awards s snowr ahove

Stock Code HILS
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT continued

Loss of office payments and payments to former directors

Paul Simmons stesed dows o7 the Board on 18 Luly 2072 and remained an encotoyes antl 37 Decenber 2022 bas salary, nension allowance
and nene o 13 July 2922 a 2ncided i the sngle figusa table on sage 96 along with tha ro-rased »anus easied in =soect of 2022

et of garden leave
Ahs notce setod, he
0 clabion Lo any legal

alary ponsior allowance and benets
VT Ul S By e alar
T

The amrounis 10 £304 904 e also eneved a 2

will Ccontine (o
Tees that ™y have Deen Nl e

£ awars thas we'e 1made 19 Mr Simmoens, tho Renuneration Comanee doorated the selovant ptans in ine wirh “he t2rms of
sed disorenion where swards had peen previously earned aganst pe‘orrance targets while in enrployment as “ollows

Inremrs af any shie
he plans and exe

Existing Buy-Out Award: Paul 51 viraons held an award over 12,364 Hill & Srich shaies The award was granied on commencament of
amployment to corrpensate lim for the for feiture oF a long term mcentive awa d granted by his pravious @ rployer M S ong etamned this

award and 1t vested on ws narmalrelease date m July 2022 while M- Simimons -enraimed in e rployment The numoer of shares which vested was
educed :o reflect, n the aomion of the Cormittae, ~he level of actual vesting achieved fo- the underlying fomey emloyar award thar was bought-

out and in July 2022 the Committee deterrmined that only 68 2% of the award shauld ves:

2022 Annual Bonus: Fo- -he perizd of his acuve employmen: 1o 18 Luly 2022, neung “hat Paul Simmons would remain an emloyee of the
Comrpany at the end of the 2027 finanamal year, the Commitiee deternuined that he would oe eligisle for a oro--ata bonus to 18 July 2022 on the
sasis of what was earned Sased on the targe:s sef at the start of the “nancial vear, with 50% oaid n cash at the no-mal e and 50% deferred for
tha novmal nwo yea, deferqal pe.iod

Existing Deferred Bonus Awards: On the basis that the awads g-anted unger the Detarced Bornus Pran in 2021 and 20220 respect of aonuses
ea-ned in 2020 and 2021 had seen areviously earned the Comnmittes deterrinad that the awards would be retamed and wall De released “om
deforat at then ordinary e, peig two years from the date of grant.

Long term Incentive Plan Awards: On tne basis that the awards granted under the [TIF 0 2020, 2027 apd 2022 owlling 7857127 shares had not
neen ezined as &t the date of stepaing down frorm the Board, the Comrnmttee lansed the awar ds

No futhar payments 3-8 *o 22 1ade 2 Paul Sirmons in connestion with his loss of oifice or the cessanon of lwg 2 votayment Thers we'e 1o
o-her toss of office 2ay nents or sayents made to fo arer Jirectors dunng the yea ended 37 Decemner 2022

()
. Al payments rade were Jermiied withim the Remuneration Pohicy

Non-executive Directors
Non-executive Director single figure comparison

Total Total

"Single “Single

Board O-her Taxaole Annual Figure” Migure”

Di-ector ~ule Fees Fees Bene®'s Bonug LTIp Penaion 2022 2021
Alan Gidding Char- 498,695 ° - - - - 176690
Anpete Kelieher Charn, 627,340 - - - - 53,6/5

*EemuUNeTanon
Comimitres

Far-o<h Bathwala ™ Non-execusive 40238 - - - -
Oirector

Lewgh-Ann Russell* Non-executive 53.840 - - - - - 30206
Director

Mark Reckitt Char, Audr 62,840 : - - - [SINXAYAS]
Commitiee

Pete Raby Non-executive 53,840 - - - - - 52275
Owrector

Tony Quinlan Senior 62,840 - - - - - 60,675
Independen:
Directar

Total 435133 - - - - 450196

: As the Non-executive Directors do not partcinate In any vanable amrangemar:s separate secticns for fixed and vanable pay are not ncluded

» The arnual fee for the Non-executive Thair for 2022 was set a* £181.9900 These fees iopresent those eamed oy Alan Giddms as Nan-Executive Shanr from 1 January
2622 = 18 uLly 2022 He became Executive Char on 18 July 2022

: Farrokl Batlwaia was appoiried an 1 Apn’ 2022

5

: Leigh Ann Russell was appointed 21 1 Agnil 2021

The Non-executive Directors do not have service contracts, only letiars of apooiniment and fees for Non-executive [hrectors are delermmed by the
Executve Directors in light of marke! sest sractioe and with referenas 10 the time com wtment and responsibifities associared with the ole The
Non-executive Irectors do not pz a'e in any decision in velation o the detesmination of ther fees and are not eligible “or perfornance related
nonuses or the grant of awards unde- any Group Incentive scheme No nension contauliens ase made on ther behal®

(5
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Non-executive Director shareholding

Annatte Kellehar 3,948 T4
Farosh Bathwala 2,000 -

Lelgh Ann 7uase 2,000
Mark 2eckitt 4,000
Pete 230y 3,100
Tony Quinlan 1,200

Fanokn Batineaia was appomted e Soard ar 1 A0l 2027
Thete was no change in thesa beneficial inerests oetwaen 31 Decemoer 2077 and 8 Ma-ch 2023 The Non-execuive Jirectors do not hold any
shae awards 0 share gplions
Non-executive Drectors do not hava a sharehalding gurdelne, bu- theay are encou aged o buy sharesin rhe Company
The following parts of the Remuneration Report are not subject to audit
Annual percentage change in remuneration of Directors and employees
The tanle below shows the annual sercentage change in each Drectar's salary/fees, benefits and bonus between the vear ended 37 December
2027 and the year ended 37 Decenaer 2022, and the average pe-sentage change in the same "emuneration over the same penod inesaect af the
omiioyees of the Comaany on a fult-4ire sgquivalent 3aais Although 2 2gulations -equire us only “o show the avarane narcentage change for the
amoloyees o the Company, we have piovided addional disclosuie shinving “he average change ‘o the Groun's witder work o ce

The average emloyee change has seen caleulased by reference to the mean of errnloyes pay Faro<h Bathwala was appointed «o the Buad
during the yea ended 31 December 2022 and, accordingly, has been exciuded from the table below

Average Wider Hannah Alan Annette Leigh Ann Mark Pete Tony

employee workforce Nichols Gidding  Kelleher Russell Reckitt Raby Quinlan

Salay/ 2027 -2022 41%  20% 30 30 30% 30% 3% 30% 30% 30%
foos 2020-2020 297% 7 0% 2 0% 20 20% 720 2 0% 3% 205
2019-2020 2 9% 29% 7 4% 25% 2 5 2 5% 25% 25% 2 5%

laxable 2021-2022 nya 178 O3 n'a Mn:d n/a n'a n¢'a n/a
oenetits 2620-2021 e nia 509, n'a n/a n'a nia nia n/a
2379-2020 n'a n:a Ny &% n'a n/a n'a n'a n: 8 nig

Annual 2027 -2022 n/a 44 5%* -3 N4 rya n/a nia n/a nie
hanus 2025-72021 n/a 340 3% 454 4%, n/a nea n/a g n/a nea
239 2020 n/a 1120% n/a n/a na n/a n/a n'a n/4

® Tne bonus figures were taken fiom trese senior executives poerating A s ar ircentivised arrangernets 1o the TEQ and capanie of intluenang
tne Grown's sarformance

Single figure of the Chief Executive compared to the wider workforce

This s our fourh yea- of reportung the GO 2ay rato and the table velow sets out our CEO say -aho figu-es invesnect of 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022
As In orevious years, tho Cormaany has opted to use option B of the Pay Ratio regulations Gender Pay Gap mfor mation has recently oeen collated
0 meet cur Gender Related Pay Gap (GRPG) reparting requirements tor 2021722, to ident:fy the three relevant eriployess e rat onate behind
adeoptng this opticn 1 *hat data required to meet ooth BZIS and GRPSG tegulations has to be collected *or our UK-hased emoloyees and this ooton
allows both te be completed efficiently and effeciively in the time allowed to nrake any relevant public statements

Approach to calculation of CEQ remuneratton for 2022

Year Method 25th percentile pay ratio Median pay Ratio 75th percentile pay ratio
2022 Douon B 391 37 321
2027 Ootian B 681 6371 411
2020 Ootion B 261 447 331
2019 Uotion B 431 39° 381

Pay details for the indvduals are 327 ous Delow

2022 CED 25th percentile Median 75th percentile
Salay £5620717" £23.7560 F78,385 £33.008
Toral rermuneration £1,035169 £26 7497 £28385 £33 098

" Pau Simmans steoped down fror tne Board or 18 Ju'y 2022 This amount represerts tus armuansed sase salary

A Represents (0@ tety of hoth the JEO'S and Sxecutive Chaira single figure {see page 96 for rmore details}

A significan: propo-iion of the CLO'S -erunesation 1s aertormance related The-eore, the 'atios vary year on year denending upon the extent 1o
which e formance related reirunaration s easned by refarence to the satisfastion of the asphoasle condtions. The Commiree considers that the
median rahio Tor 202215 consisient wath the pay and reward policies for emsloy=es as a whole

Stock Code HILS

LH0d3H JONYNHIAOD
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REMUNERATION COMMlTTEE REPORTcontinued

Pay for performance
The graph below shows sha O

al

jal)

pany’s 15R performance ovar the ton years 10 31 December 2022 as comparas to the FTUE 250 In praviols years
the Comoany's pe-formance Has beon compaced with the F18E2 %) Simall Cap and the FTSE All-shars .nds However a3 tha Comoary ha
DEEN A CONSTTIeNt 0% the T TS 250 ror six years it was deaided fhat showing pertormanze iclaive o st ke TS 237 was the vostappiosiaie
et alseeflects the Covrpany's LTI award TSR comoa ate” g-oup

ki

3
-
a

The table Deow detals the -0 single fgure ramune ation and astual vanable pay sutic res over the sore nenond

The following chart shows Hill & Smith's Total Shareholder Return during the ten years to 2022.

660

500 /\

300

-
200 - e - i 2P
-

e mmm———————— -
-
-
-
"

Value {£)

100

[y
31122012 3122013 F3101272014 0 3NA12/2015 0 INAA/ANG 3112020170 311272008 0 3112220090 31/12/2020 0 RI/12/2027 0 311202022

emmnsnne. Hiil & STITH - = = FTSE 250

2073 204 2015 2016 201/ 2018 2079 2020 2027
Jerex Paul

Director Mur o Simmons ¢
Ce0 single figue 1084 1835 1,894 2134 2,085 1.506 1,18/ 980 378 1,/87
(F000D)
Annual bonus ) 123G 100 100 g4 19 43 "9 19 38
% of max )
LT Vestmg 59 93 98 100 100 00 31 36 A o0

{% of max)

+ P SImmons joned the board on 1 Sapterber 2020 and tock over as CZ0 wit effect fiomr 12 Noverrber 2020 Tae CEQ single figure for 2020 for ? Simmaons
reflects his reruneratiun earned from aspontment, ard rot jast for thar sart of T1e year tor wack he was SEQ

Relative importance of spend on pay

2021 % change
Dividends paid in resoect of the financial year £24 7 +13 4%
Overall szend on pay (Sontinuing operaticns) Fio08m +7 70

Tz mciudes a 1% reduction it the average number of people emalayed by the Gioun See nate & 2o the gecounts on page 147
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Statement of shareholder voting
1he “Glimwang table shows the resulls of 1he wate o the Annual Reru=eanion R
Ravuneration Polizy a0 the 2023 AGM

>t atthe 2022 AGM and the omnding wote on the sutent

For Against Withheld

Remuneratinn Policy (2020)

S DT WIS QAR 95437, 20570 vtes ware withbeld o

retaton o this 2soluton {0 13%)

Remuneration Report {2022)
% of votes cast 4§48 35% P Eb% 3845 vies were withheid m
refation tothis esolution =0 57 )

Advisors

The Comnittes assessas o1t hme = oo whothe the apnointment oF 113 adwise s “emang appropriate or should be out o 1o render and

lakes N account the Remuncoration Consulants Groun Code of Conduct when reviewing Deloitie’s ongomng appointTent Juring the year and
‘ollowing a review of four potential adwisors incluchng Jeloitte _LP as the ncumoent advisors, the Commitiee determined, in consideazion of good
governance practiges and Deloire’s tenure as advisors (0 asnoint Ko Ty as the Committee’s advisors from 1 October 2022

Korn erry nrovided independen: advice to the Committes, having been apooinied by the Corrmittes fallowing a comoetlive tender process
duning the yemi. Ko n ey orowded athies on masker and hest o as 2art o7 suao0ling the Comimiziae with its eview of the Jirectarg
Renunaratan 2ohgy The § d o Kom —ary ‘o7 aroviding advice wothe Committes in -elation o Direstors remuneanon weie £42.4%3 Kon
Ferry orovided orher human caoizal “elated sevanes during the year 1o a separare dart of the busimess, but these services were catned aut by a
team senarate to the remeneration adyiscry Team aresult, the Comittes 1s satishied that the adwice receved was objectiive and independen:
Korn Zery s a mamoer of the Remuneration Consultants Grous and abides oy the volunta'y 2ode of gonduct of that body, whehis designed 1o
ensure oojestve and indesendent advice 15 given 0 temure anion Tontntitecs

required for i excess of tan yeass and they
are a meToer of the e muneaton Sonsulans Groud and, as auzh, volunranly ooerare that groun's Sode of Condust melation "o exacuiive
reuneraton consultng nthe LK “rom © Lanuary 2022 30 Sentemse 2022 Deloitte provided “ermuneration advice, share scheme advice,
sension advice and o poration fax advice to the Grous. Ther “2es ‘o providing remunerabion advice to the Cormirittec anmounted (o £21,700 or

the vea ended 31 Decomber 2077

50 atend ReTune ation Corrmisies meetings 1o o ovide advice and respond o soecific
ary to the Aenruneration

The Group Chief “xecutive O fice” and Execirive Charr a
questions But are notin atendanca when thar own remuneraton s discussad The Comany Segretary asts as Secie
Zomrmites ut s similary notin attendance when his own remuneration 13 dissussed

How the Remuneration Policy will be implemented for 2023

Executive Directors
Salary
Base salaties were reviewed on 16 December 2022 and as frone ™ Lanuary 2023 a'e

Alan Giddins £584 544
Hannah Nichals £374,523

This represents a 4% increase fo- Alan Gidding This s in ine with other txecutive Board members and below the range of increases awarded 1o
~he wider warkforce

Hannah Nichols ~eceved an increass in har base salary of 5% See page 93 for more details.
Salary budge: mzreases fo7 the majonty of the Group’s ooerating companies ranged 2etween 5% and 10% of 1elevant oay-olls

Pension and benefits
Alan Giddins 15 not eligible (o receive a aension The pension contribution for Hannah Nichols will -emain 6 5% of her base salary

Annual Bonus
Alan Gidding will not be eligible to receve an annual ponus durning 2023

The maximum opportunity for Hannah Nichols, will se 125%. 50% of the opporturity will be earmed for achieving a stretching level of on target
performance and any bonus earned will be paid as to 50% i cash and 50% in deferred shares

For the 2023 financial year the annual bonus metics will be

+ Ungerlying cperating orofit, and

+  Cash conversion

Togethe- rearesenting 86% of the maximum aooortunity, and weighted 50% and 30% respectively, and

- 20% towaids indrvidual sersonal onjectives hnked to the Company's auracse and strategy and the inddual txecutive Direcior’s key
responsibilitics

Stock Code HILS

INVNUIADD
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT continues

LTIP

Alan Giddis wal ot

e eagol= s scowe g grant under the LTIP dunng 2673

3 G0 will Bengieased fram T 25% oF sakiy, w0 153" of salev o 2023 This awasd will ha sudject 1o
152 and LEPS growth ag e out helow

Theannual LTI awacd =00 Hlannah Nezhol
et louranse candfions Dased on coelat

UEPS compound annual
growth rate over three

years (50% of the award) TSR* (50% of the award) Vesting amount
Lass than 4% Below inedian 0% wasting
A% Median 20% vesing
12% Loper quarble 100% vestung

S Qeanye e FTSE 250 mxahding investment truss and finarcia services comoanias)

anid 2023 moantives are sat aut 10 the Chairs i oductory lenor

rlgther Jetars relanng to the matn

Non-exacutive Diractors

The ‘ees of the Nan-exccutive Diregrors are reviewed regularly (0 ensure they arein ling with the market and 50 the Copany can attract and
sotam indwviduats of the highest calibie, Any change ta the Chan's fees will he app-oved by the R2munaration Corrmitee with other Non-executive
Lnrecror “ees being aporaved by the Board s a whole, following a recommendanon frorm the Chief Executve In Decemaer 2022, the Boz-d

aonraved 3 3%, mcrease n the fees “or the Chaw and Non execuive Directors
Charr | £187,450 £181993
55488 £53840

Non-esecutve Jirecto

Serol Indevendent Director o : £9,?.70 £0.000
A Somimittee Chare e : i‘.Bf,Z?O £3.000
Reuneration Comimiee Char . E9,270 £3.000

. Lpon appomsrent of a replacenen: G50, the Sxecutive Char will ravet to heing the Non executre Char, wih fees -adunmg accordingly

Annette Kelleher

wrar

8 March 2023
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY

to be approved by shareholders at the 2023 AGM

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy has been subject to a full review by the Committee in
2022 and will be put to shareholders at the 2023 AGM for approval. As outlined in the Chair's

LHOd3H JONYNHANDD

Statement, the Committee feel that given the current Policy has delivered a fair relationship
between performance and reward it remains fit for purpose with the only changes limited

lo minor amendments to the Policy wording to take account of market developments, best
practice, and feedback from a recent shareholders’ consultation. As a result, with flexibility
included in the Policy to evoive performance metrics with the Company’s strategy, the intention
is to rell over the existing Policy. In the event that there was considered a need to make any
changes to the Policy within the next three-year Policy period, the Committee would undertake
appropriate dialogue with investors at that time.

The iaole oelow sets out how the proposced Palioy soecifically addresses the orovisiens of the LK Corporate Goveinance Cade

Alignment of the Remuneration Policy to the provisions of the 2018 Corporate Governance Code

Clarity

Simplicity

Risk

The Policy aligns delivery of our strateqiz

goals o the remuneabon cucomes of
Cxecutive Diregtors

Remung aticn rows ds long ter and
SusTananle growthin sharcholder value

The Pohey aligns wath standard FTSE

Tarke pracuce and s made uo of

— Fixed remuneration - base salary
appropiate bene’its and sension

— Short-term element - annual Donus
hased on peformance duting the
finanaal vea' against fiinancial and
non-fmancial measu-es

— Long term incentive - vests
over three years acco-ding 1o
he achieverrent of st-etchung
peoformance measures

The long term incentive orowdes
alink between the perforrance of
Txecuive Jrectors and long torm
sustamasle grawth

Txecuive Irectors are subpes: lo
shareholdmy regurenents dunng and
anst-e noloyment

Malus and clawnack arovisions mingate
sehavioural 11sks by enabling 2ayments .
1 e reduced o reclarned in snecific
CIrCUMmsiances

Predictability

Proportionality

Alignment to culture

Maximum oppo-tuniy levels ‘or each
COMPOnant of vanable remuneralion are
detined within the Policy

Transpa-ent peformance measuas and
Targets make ciear the possigie range

of remunerahon ouicomes and these
potental outcomes ace lustrated In

*he Policy

Performance measures are in<ed to

the Corpany's strategy and ahgned
witl long serr creation of value for
sharcholders

Stretching targets ensure that payn-ents
are only made for strong financial and
nen-financial petormance

Ihe Commitiee has discretion to overide
formrulaie cutcomes to ensure that
remuneration appropriately -eflects
overall performance

Varable remmuneraton s based onthe
achievement of financial and non-
financial measuies which hnk o the
overall ousiness sirategy, culwure and
values As demanstated thiough the
nclusion of ESG within the Annual Bonus

Stock Code HI.S
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DlRECTORSJ REMUNERAT'ON POLICYcontiﬂued

Directors’ Remuneration Policy Report (not audited)
This parrat th
oindng e o1 tha close 07 tha' mesing Note he Polizy apalis
Lhie Somoany's e enesation Someritee

Ad Poliny chaages ars oo desad to na panor

Base Salary

RV et Ut the o opesed Directors” Remunesanon Policy, whie
only (o pa" Panay

A rer anel tharet s

0 sharsholdor an,roval a7 the 2023 AGM, shall take
Srve Dr=etois Phe solity has bean deteimined Sy

bz ey 0 Poliy chinges 1snct

1o rec it and ~RTAIN Cxecutive Directors Provides Sxed remune-aton jor the Fxecutve Directors, which reflects ~he individuals expenence and the

size and soooe of the Frezntive's esaonsibilites

Operation

No-mally -eviewed annually and nxed for twelve ronmths
Salanes ase detevmined 2y the Reruneatinn Sommittes taking
o ascount a range oF factors, which may inciude but are not

rimed o
+ thesize and scope of the ole, '
- ndmduat and Group aerformance, .

*haiange of salaly s eazes
tha wider work*o

an aerzentage terrs) aoolied o

+lwalogamsational satary cudgets, and
+ oay levels for cormparasie rales in coraanies of a simiar sive
and comalexity

Maximum opportunity

Ordina-ily salary wicreases will not exceed <he range o salary increases
awa-ded 1o 0ther employess in tha Groun (N e centage of salary tarms).
fowever, salary ncreases nay he above this level In cartain arcuntstances
asequre

Cforexamole o reflen:
INCI2ASE IN 52ope ol responsiolity

performance in Coke, or

A0 CXeCUtva Drar time

37 Being moved 1 Mai<el 30SM0nINg dve

NO maxiTum salacy oppartunity Nas been sel out in s aokay resort 10
avoid seting exlectations for —xecutive Directors

Performance measures

Not apphcable

Any sala‘y ncreases may pe mvien ented over such ime as the
Rermnuneratton Comm an deamis aninnTaca

ToregL
Group and a sense o ownershin

Operation

=xecutve Directols are entiled to vasious senefissincluding o not
Imnited to, remoeshis of the Group's healthoare scherme, nersonal
acodent msurance il health hie assurance and cas {or equivalent sash
allowance)

(rher nenefits may Je o ovided aased on individual circurgiances
Suzh senefits may nclude but are not lvted *0 exoatnate, hausing,
relocation allowannes o7 overseas tax sudpoL

The SAYE 15 a tax qualifying monthly savings scheme facilitating

the ouchase of shareg at a discount as permitied by the anolicable
legislation (cutently us wo a maximum discount 0F 20%) SAYE options
may ne exercised In the evern: of a change o control to the extent
pericted by the rules of the schene

Executive Directors may also pastzipaie in any other all emoloyee share
plan adoated by the Comipany, on the same basis as other qualifying
employees.

cand retam Sxecutive Directers Tnsures the overall package 18 competiiive Parucipanon in the SAY= o-emates sta alignment with the

Maximum opportunity

Whils: the Remuneranon Comqmitzee has not set an absolute maximum
on thedevel oF Denefits Executive Jirectns reneve, the value of
bonefits s set at a level which the Renuneranon Commitiee considens
15 asoroprately posiiioned agamst con panes of a simila” size and
complexity in the relevan: market and atates zompehitive in the arca
of bte, acaidant and health nsurance. SAYES schome contribhution as
permitted in a e with the relevant tax tegislation The level of
parncipaon n any orher al-ermasloyee shate plan will be deter-rined

mn accordance with the rules of that plan and will De the same for
=xecutive Jirectors ag for ather qualifying employees

Performance measures
Notapphcaile
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To r2cmuit and retain Executive Dracto s and o xovide o

Operation

The Group may rmaxe a payment sither into a defined contnounan
olan o7 as a senaate cash allowance Groun conmounons o cash
allswances are determined as a dorcentage of basa salary

Hewa:

Operation
Pe-tarrance Teasu es and @
Reruneraton Conmitee

s are reviewed and s<t annually oy the

o

Bonus say auts determined oy the Remune-anon Somarites aime the
year end, Jased on audited 00 f5 mance, whe'e aos oprate agamst

those targets.

Ihe Comrmitee has the discreucn o amend the bonus pay out should
any fonrulaic outsut not producte an anoiopiate “esult for erthe
2outve Jractons ar the Co npany, taking aceoun® of overall
mranze, 0 because *he formulac sutous s inaomoanaTe N e
context of ¢ nstances that were unexaected or unigreseen at the
start of the oerformance period

Where an annual 90nus 15 earned, 50% will be delive-ed in the torm of
sha es in the Company, deferred for a peniod o two years Deferral of any
D0NUS 1S subject to a de s it of £5,000

At s diszretion, the Ramuneralion Commitree may award dividend
aguwvalents (o reflect dividends thar would have been naid over the
deferral penod an shares awarded under the deferred bonus plan These
dividend eguivalents will ordinanly oe sard in shares and may assure the
reinvestment of dividends

Deferred bonus plan will vest in the event of a change of cantral

Malus and clawoack provisions apply o the annual bonus a3 descnded
selow thig table

st retirement nenefins

Maximum opportunity

An amount as a percentage of base salay not exceeding the wyoical
sontrioution availanle n respect of the location of eminloyiment of
the irector (e g, currently the tyaical taie availania 1o the LK pased
worktoize s 6 5% of salary)

Performance measures
Not apnlicable

Annual Bonus

s the achieverrent of annual finanoial targets andqor the delvery of strategec/ndiidual ojectives

Maximum opportunity
The Naximum 30nUs oppariunity 1s ud o " 50% of base sala'y for the
CEQ and da o 125% oft salasy 107 any other Executive Dresto

Performance measures

Ihe nonus will e based on the achievement of targe:s related 1o key
business onjectives, with the reasures and resnective weaightings
a2ach year dependent on the Groun's stratege prortes Ninancial
performance measuras may mclude, for exanple

- measuies Hased on eamings ser shae,

+ hudgeted profi,

s operating margins, o

< ewrn on caotal

At leas: 50% o bonus will 5 based on financial measu s,

tthe Remuneiabion Sormmiitee’s discretion @ amend
formutalz sutputs, for finansial “aigets, normilly %0 the naxerum
15 oayasle for achieving *he threshold performance ta-get (0% elow
threshold), 50% at the ta:get level of pe-formance and 100% at
maxirum For strategic and indwaidual performance measures, bonus
will be earned between 0% and 100 of the opporiunity based on the
Rerruneration Comntittees assessment o° the extent to which the
relevant measuie has seen achieved
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D[RECTORS‘ REMUNERAT'ON POL'CYcontinued

Long Term Incentive Plan

[ ervises Txecutve Dires o s ' achieva igher roturns for shasehaldess ove alonye e frame A 2lawbas 42005 o unvested awaids

anahling the Conoany tmrigd
T thgr senog

Operation

the Rermruneration Comir:
Aawals nil zost shase optio
as nas the sargeconomic o

conditonal share
sush other form

vgar: awards as
foterale shares o

Awards are tyoically granted annuaty, and vosting 1s subyect t
achieverrent of oe-faimance measu-es, normally assessed over at
togst three years the Remune ation Cormittes has the discretion to
adjust the vesting auizome should any iormulaic cutaut not reflec:
averall peormance. o7 Dezause the fomualais 2utput 15 inapponnate
i the context of crountstances that were unexnected or un‘oreseen at
the grant date, or if there exists any other reason why an adjustment s
approniiate

vestad sha-es are subject to ar addiuonar two-year holding 2ernod
sefore they ae eleased (30 that they can exerzise the award and
azguiia themi Alterpatively The Raemunc ation Commitiea May J37anT
an awaid on the basis thal the “xecusive Director can acqure shaes
following wvesting aut that, cthe: than as rega~ds sales o7 shares o

cover tax haoilies, the Cxecuive Jiresior s not pesTited to dispose of
sharas untl -he end of the holding senod

Unvested CTIP awards will vest and o2 reieased 2a°ly on 2 change of
contol a7 othe- “elevant o ), ta<ing N> axnount the oxtont o
which the performance conditians have been satisfied and pro-rating

o eflect the prooortion of the peformance nenod *hat has elassed,
abthough the Remuneraticn Comitee Nas dISCreton not o apaly ume
so-rannyg Vesied TTIP awards which ase subyect to a holding oenod are
ieleased o the exten’ ves'ed, in the evant of a change of contral

Ay

A s disoretion the Remuneration Zo ntee may awad dndend
equivaients to refieg! dandends that woauld have neen paid over the
vasting sencd and holding penod on ghares that vest These deadand
equivalents will ordinanly se pand in shares and may assume the
rainves:ment of divdends

Matus and clawback provisions analy 1o the LTIP as described
on page 109

The Remunaration ComTittes may, at its discretion, structure awards
as approved | TIP awards comransing both g tax quabfying option
granted under the Execttive Share Oztion Scheme {FS0SY and an
LTtP awa-d Approved LTIP awards enable the participan: and the
Conmrpany (o benefit from tax qualifying aption treatment inrespect

of pait o the award without mcreasing the pre tax value delivered o
she sarteinant The approved LTI2 awards consist of a tax qualifying
opaon and an LTIP award with the vesung of the _TIP award scaled
fack 16 wa<e account of any gain made on exercise o’ the tax qualifying
option Other than to enable the grant of uo to £60,000 (from Ap-l
2023y n value of HMRC aoproved opnions as 2art of an approved LTIP
award, the Company will not grant awards to fxecutive Directors undei
the ES0S

Malus and clawback provisions apoly to *he entire LTIP as described
on page 109

15 The wns-vestng holding peniod algns =

yawrrh the o ags of shovenoldeis ovar a

Maximum opportunity
The annual i TIP maxirur in cessect o7 any hnancal vea 13
C CoD 1/79% 0% hase 3alay, and

Ay other Sxecutive Drrastor 7 50% of oase salaty

Shares subject 1o a tax quali®ying oohon granted as 2a- of an aporoved
I TIP award are not ta<en nto accoun: ‘or the surposes of thig it
hecduse, as referrad to1n the box above under the heading 'Oneration’,
the unapoioved LT12 option s scaled Bac< o ~aflect the gain made on
the exercise of the tax qualfying FSOS onuen

Performance measures

Aweards vest subject to the achieverent of performance measures
assessod over the nerformance senod tnor rally three fimancial years)
Fhe aerformance mcasures are review2d aanually *o ensure they
remain elevant and aligned 2o the Sioup s stratagy

Pecfprmance Teasures will e sased or fmancial melics, and/o” share
oice growth related metnics, and/sor strategic melnos

Subject 1o the Remuneration Comnitiees discrenon 1o amend
formulaic cutputs, for achievernen: o the threshold level of
peforrance Che mimrum fevel of oo-foma o veshing fo oItur)
un to 20% of the maxirum oppotunity wllvest o each efement

Tor achieverrent of maximum porforrance T 00% o7 the TaximuT
ooportunity will vest: there s usually st-aighsine vesung sehween thege
oerfo mance poin:s

Where an oonon undear the 2305 ks granted as part o7 an Ao oved LTIP
awa'd, the same serfarmance condition a2piies o the 505 onnon
as apples to the | 1P award, save as required by the apphcasle tax
leqislanan
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Shareholding req ts

To enzourage stong shareholde alignment hoth dutmg and a%a envoloy rentwith the Comnany
Operation Maximum opportunity
Tach Leeuutive Dirertor ssequred wo held o0 RONTIRER Mot asohinaiio

ales
Al Performance measures

Mo analizante

ghina _TIP andany dofeed danus dlan awad |
Ouen Ldx and any exarcise oreoe; until the value of @
sharennlding 1z egual 1 250% 0 thair annual pase salay

Shares subyect to award under the de‘er-ed nonus plan and vested
snaces subject 1o awards under the LTI which are subject 1o a halding
nenod count fowa-ds the shareholding -equirement on a net of
assured lax 0asis.

Shares subgect o _TIP awards which are canable of 2xerzisa zoun:
trearg: s the lenit on a net of assumed tox basis

In addinon, a sost-errploymen: sharehotding requirerment will apnly
only to shares acquired pursuant 1o LTIP and the defer-ed bonus plan
yranted in respect of 2020 and future years out will not anply to shares
aurzhased o7 acquired pursuant 1o all employen shae plans and will
not adsly to LTHP o defered bhonus alan awards granted in resoact of
earher years

Past errploymeant each Executive Tirector 1g expecied (o mainiam such
s therr shares which are subject 1o the post errployent shacholding
acicy 28 have a value equal to the m-service shareholding guideline
fwich equiras the holding of shares duting evaloyment with a value
cqual ' 200% of salasy) “or a penod o two years alte” leaving In erthe
case, the nurber o relevant shares held at leaving must be retamned
thiz s less than the n-sevice guideline

Share ownarshio guidelines only apply o perranen: “xecuiive Directo”
aositions and in exzeplional cocumstances the Cammities may
dizasaty the pos-eiroloyrent share ownzishiy guidelne (e g death)

Recovery provisions
I he Committea may, at any e within twe years followng the determmation of the annual bonus, or twa years following vesting o” the = TIR
darermine that malus and / or clawback shall anoly 10 the event of

J) & ratenal nisstaterment in the Groun's financial results far the bonus year,

) the rerruneration committec reasonaaly determining that the sa beiaant has seen guilty of gross mis
{uy anerrenin assessing any asohcadle se-formance condition,

fiv) reputational damrage to the Grouo,

v} corposate falure, or

) a farlure of acceptable health and sa’ely standards

Bafore the vesang of an _TIP award, the Ramuneration Committee may also daxde to reduce or cancel the award ¥ any o the above events ocour
Explanation of chosen performance measures and how targets are set

Performance measures have been selected that relect the Group's strategy Stretching oe-formance targets are set each year “o- the annual

sonus and LTIP awards. In setting these stretching serformance 1a'gets the Remunesation Committee will raxe nto account a numbe- of different
-eference points such as the Grouo's business olans and strategy

The Rerruneration Commiltee considers tha: measures such as unde: lying ZPS and p-ofit oefore tax are closely aligned o the Group's key
Je-formance metrics and. In conjuncuon with other annual bonus metnes, provides a balanced measuremen: of perforTance that encourages
sustamanle growth.

The EPS and TSR performance conditions atzaching o the 1P align management's objestives 1o those of shareholdes and -awards for the
delivery of year-on-year growth and delivery of value to shareholders

The Remuneration Committee etains the discietion to adijust the performance targets and measures whe e it considers it apa-opnate (o do so
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY continue

Operation of share plans
The Ramune atian Comerittens
awards inthe aven' of a va
Committeo would ondy selte ar
an the delivery of share

enais Jiszelon o onerate the Comoany's share slans in accordance with “her rules includsy the amlty to adjus:
~ o zanital o othed relevans tororate ovent and settle swards, in whols o0n a3 tasn Tho X2 ranerabion

| —xacgee Jrectors award in cashan excopoonat o cursiances 1such az where “hese was a equlatory restchion
S corneetion we the getllemant 0 e habildies anwag inrespect of the aoquisiion of shaes

Statement of considerations elsewhere in the Company
When setting -he policy *or Wesiors enruneranon, the Remnuneration Comrnutier has cegard o Lhe say and 2 volayman: condinans elsewhers
within the Geous, al'hough e ralavess a e oot tomally consulzed on the Dresiars’ emuneranon pohoy

When develooing this Policy, the emunaranion Comimittes considerad the goneral workfor ce renvuneranion, alwted pohcies, and the alignment of

ncentives and rewards with the Group's cultuse and values,
Differences in the group’s policy for the remuneration of employees generalty
The Groug's remunaiation pineiles unde pin “emuncration acmoss the Groua, ncluding the remunaranon sruzruras bolow “xecubve Directar level
The G-oun aITs 1o Jrovide @ rerruneration package that is market competiiive In the erployee's junsdhiction 5% emoloyment and which
+ iz approsnate to attract, retam votivate and reward, without oaying maore than necessay,
reflocts theroles, responsisiines, exaerience, skils and e-formance of the indaidual
= s farly and consistently anobed, and
naludos an clemens of incentive *o shate n the finanoial success o the Grouo through annual sonuses, Dased upon e dediormanse >0 individuat
business units, exesutive shase options and a LK SAYE scheme, all o which are aligred to the strategic abjectives and oerfo rance of the Gioun
lllustrative performance scenarios for 2023 (all £000s)
£2,000K
£1,800k

£1,600k

£1.441k

£1,400k
£1,200k
£1,000k

£800k £758k
ceook  E585k £585K £585K

£411k

£400k

£200k

£0

Below target Target Maximum  Below target Target Maximum  Maximum plus
share price
Executive Chair CFO appreciation

M Fixed Pay W Annual 8onus B LTIP M LTIP with 50% Share price growth

Ihe illustrative perfor mance charts above are based on the prososed Remuneration Policy as set out on pages 10510 113 Note, the Executive Chair
wic 15 not subject to the Remuneration Policy, has neen included Upon apoomtment of a new CEO an updated scenerio chart will be presented.
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rdevelomng the scenanios, the folfowing ¢

surmptic

COnsIsts and aension

it txed DAy - 12 o

€ 54ld y 5 the latest salary © Toanuany JU23

hie yea ended 37 Deceow 2522

oral feed pay, as s=t ou” anove

©Annual Dorus pays ot al B0% oF maxia T far e get sefarmance (e, 62 5% of base salaty based on a
maxnmum sotential for 2023 0° 7 25% of nase salaty)

< LTP pays out at 20% of naxmum for “hreshold vestng d.e |, 30 0% o base salary sased on a maxmur ior
2023 01 130% of sase salary)

Congists of

- Total fixed cay, as set out above

- Fuli pay-ou: of annual bonus —re. 128

% 0° sase salary

- fullvesing of LTIP awards — 12, 150% 0f hase 3alary

Conatsts of

+ Total fed pay, as set out ahove

= Sullpay-out of annual sonus - 1e, 175% of naze salary

+ Fullvesungof - 1P awads —1e . 150% o oase salary and an assumed 30% inc-ease o1 the share vice for *he
24 0f the L1IP award valuation

Approach to recruitment remuneration
The oojective of this policy 15 16 allow the Remune-ation Committes to offer reruneation pac<ages which
« Hawilitate the ecruvmenst of indidouals of sufhizient zaline o develon and deliver the ousimess st ateqgy and sha-ehotde value,

« 0Fe g remuneration pa awider remuneranan philosonhy, and

age that reflents the <oy orincinles of the 5o

+ see<toensure that aange Tents are in the nest ntetests of the Company and 1ot 2 pay 1o 2 than s anpiopnate

Indviduats will oc suect to 3 remuneraton sackage that 1s consistent with the 2olizy sel out above However, the Remuneration Comauttes
-etaing the discretion 10 plovide the followng elerents foi inclusion in a rec:uirment Jac<age for an Sxecuive Director

The Remuneration Cormmittee may ma<e awards on hinrg an external candidae to compensate the nandidate for

the fo-feiture of any awa o entered into with a srevious employe, In dererrrining any such “uy-out’ the Remune-ation
Committee will consider ali the relevant factors regarding tne forferited arrangernents whizh may include the lielihood
of the awa ds vesting sheuld the external candidate have remaned in therr previous eToloyment, the form i which they
were gramed (e g, cash or shares) and the Lre aver which they would have vesied Generally, buy-cus awards will De
ade on a comparaole basis to those remune-ation arangements “orfaited

Where considerad approoiate, buy-out awards will ne subject o forfeitu ¢ o claw back on eatly departure

Supject 10 the ovesall maximum vaaable remunaration himit set out below and 1o 'the overall olan LTIP 1mits set out under
the nolicy elements an page 108, incentive awards may be granted within the fust twelve manths of ansoiniment above
the nor nal Maximum annual award opporturity et out on page 08 The Remuneration Commitiee wall ensure that any
such awards ane fin<ed to the achievernent of approonate and challenging performance targess (that may differ from
those set 25 part of ongoing policy having had regard 0 the circumstances of their appomtren:) and will be forfeited of
serforrance o contnued employment conditons are not aclieved

The Remuneration Corrmittee may also alter the performance measures, performance pcnod and any deferral
ar-angenents or holding period applying to the annual bonus and LTIP «f the circurmstances of the recruizment merit
such an alteration, the rationale will He clearly explained i a subsequen® Directors’ Remuneiation e300

The maximum tevel of vanable remune-ation which may ne awarded to the CED, 1s 325% of base salary .consising
of 150% annual bonus and “75% LTIP)

The maximurm fevel of vanable remuneation which may oe awarded to any cther Execunive Jwecto, 18 275% of Dase
salary {consisiing of 125% annual bonus and 150% LTIP),
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY continue

-

The Remune ation Corerrres wonld seek o rolement any share awards referred o thiz secten under the Comoany's exisning shase plans
Siowoeve, in connecior with he reciurrent o an Sxecutive Director, the Rerruneraliaon Contnriiiee may imslement 4 new aeangerentin
azoordanze witn oasagrash 24 7 07 the J3hng Rules

Where a posiign s Bllad inte naly any onga whneration esligatens of outstanding vanavle say elermens shail e adowed
soacdhing to ha onginal seers, wih The excennion of pension contnbiumons whsh will he reducad mbne woth thig oolicy Whoeono
1wl DAy ATrodIate eInoalon sosig and the [omuneraton Committes will seok 1o ensuie that 1o mo e than nesessary 15 13Kl

0 continug
330y, the

Toes payanls 1 a newly annc-rter Thar van o Mon executive Direetor will De m hine wath “he “re zohcy n slace ar the tre 07 ainoinren:

Service contracts and loss of office payments

The policy on Fxecutive Drector sevice convrac’s and paymen: for loss of office s sunmansed oclow —¢ the avoaidance or dount. the leaver
provesicns sueTansed betow in relation to the LFIP apaly w0 TP awar ds in-esvec! of 2023 and tater years, with earer awards being subject
the policy aoplying at the date of the award

o)

—ach cunent xacutive Director s entitled to 12 months notice

The Remune ation Camrrmitiee may set a notiee penod of petween sixmonths and 7 vonths fo - any future Executive
Drrecior

Fazh curent Sxeoutve Director s reguired *o give 12 months’ notice of terinanion

The ReTune aton Comrrrittes ray 520 a notice oeriod of Detween sx Months and ™2 1*oaths {7 any future Sxecutve

Oirecior

Base salary, 2onsion contrbunions and bene’its for the duration of the notce oenoad

‘2o alzo has diss

14105

he Reruneiaton Cormis 101t Incordorate payments undser the seifor vance-in<ed elemens 97 the

package under good leave

S

= If the Execumive Direcior leaves dunng the annual bonus serferrance year, a tonus payment may be made at
the Remuneaton Cormitteos discreuon Typcally for 'good leavers’ 2onus amrmounts (35 detesmned by the
Remune-aiion Commrittes) will be pro-rated for wmen setvice durmg the bonus year and wili, subject 10 perormances,
be paid al the usual hme although the Remune-ation Committee retans discrehon not w apaly fime pro-ratng and (o
acoelenate the saymen: of Donuses Inapoionae cusumstances Whera bonus defe-rat would otherwise apsly, the
emunestion Sommites retaimns d1Iss ennn 1 ay the whaole of the honus for the yaar oF cossat 0 cash

« Under the Comrpany's LTI
—  Fapatticipant leaves as a "good teaver” sefore an award has ves:ed, that award will o-dimanly soninue unti

the o dinary vesting date, when the extent of vesting will e determined by reference 1o the extent to whizh the
aerformance condinons have goen satustied, athough the Remuneraton Committee etasns diseretion 1o ves!
the awg d sooner (and assess performance conditions accordingly) The extent to winch the awad ves's will
ardinailly oe -eduzed to reflect tha 3rono-ton of the Jerforrance pe rwlizh he Sxesulive Destor was
emaloyed byt the Remune ation CommiTee has disarenon not wo apaly this pronornionate reduction The award
will ordinanly be released to the particiaant a2 the end of the onginally anticizated holding periad, although the
Rermruneration Comrmittee retams discrenon to release the award sooner buz would do so only n exceptional
crreumstances (including cessaton due Lo death orill-health)

- Ifaparticipant leaves for any “eason (other than sumimary disTissal, in which case the awa d will tanse} after
an award has vested but befere 1t has heen released (1L.e |, if the paracipant leaves duning that holding nenied), the
award will ordinanty be released o them on the ordinary release date, although the Rermuneration Commites
retans discietion to release the award soonor

+ Where a deferred aonus plan is granted, 1 the parocpant leaves as a "good leaver” duning the deferral penod, the
award will ordinanly continue and be released at the ordinary release date. although the Remuneration Committee
retans discretion to release the award a® the date of cessation o+ 10 shorten the deferral period Otherwise, the award
shall lanse

+  Forthe puposes of the LTIP and any deferred bonus olan, 'good leaver’ means cessation due to deatht, inyury, ill-health,
redundancy, o any othe: crcumstance that the semuneration commities deems appropriate

« Were an award o He made in accordance with Listing Rule 94 2 then the leavar provisions would de determined at
tha uime of the gran:

In appropriate circumstances, other gayments may se rade in the event of a termination of an Executive Directo-s
employment in respect of for example, accrued holiday and legal and outplacement fees SAYE options may be exercised
on termination of employent ta the extent permitted by the rules of the scherre, which do net pravide discrezion for the
Remuneration Commites in resaect af the rreatmen: on sarmimaton Awards under any other all employee share plan
wolld be treated in acoo dance wih the rules of that plan

I H K Nichels service agrezment s terminated within one year 57 a change of control, she shall 9e paid he salary and an
amount equal to the value 2 he bencfi's for a 12 month penad [less the senod of any notice given)
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Anaoinzrents for Non-oxecutive Jrectors are govened oy lotte s of engagerent Lnder the te'ms of ther engagement, the notice uenod 1o ne
aven v the Non-executive Dir be Commany 1s three months and (e Caomrpany 15 abiged 1o give the saqrae length o nouce D
ataned o et minaie with or withou! dus Nohce O Daying any 2ayment 10 o ot notce dependent on what 13 zona:
of e Domoany i the parmcula Sroumstanses

Al g usad to rovade floxbilzg in aerran AT as, LakIrg o
rrance o he oo mpany

2t As autined 20ve 10y
rodenarire and ace

VWHPrE e e netatinn Canaep rea na i
coount the paracular crcursiance af she Jieeto

a

Discretion and existing contractual arrangements
The Remuaeausn Comimitiee e es the ngitt 1o Make any reTunNeiTion Jay-nents and payments fo-loss of o'fice {and o exerzise any
sa1emion in espest of any such payment) notwithstanding tha! they are notin Lo with the solizy, set ous anave, where the terms of the naymen:

we e ageed
I before the policy came into e“ect, provided that the terms of the pay nenl were cansistent with any anphicable shareholder assroved drecios’
renuneration poloy in force at the ume they wese agreed o were atherwise asoioved by shareholders, o

Y at a ume when the relevant mdividual was not a Jiracta” o7 the Coroany or 2ther ae7son 1o whom the policy sel out above apoles) and, in
the epiren ol the Remuneration Cormitiee, the sayment was not m conside-ation for the individual becoming a Jireztor o the Comoany {or
other such person)

For these purposes “payments” includes the Remune-ation Comimittee safis’ying awards of vanable ‘emuneration and, in retation 1o an award ove-
shares, the terms of “he payment are “agiced” 2t the uime the award 1s granted

Statement of consideration of shareholder views

The Coroany 15 commitied -o ongomng dialogue and seeks shareholder views ahead of making sigmficant changes toits renvunerauon nolicies
The Remuncration Corrmittee consulied with mape shaichoelders in cornestion wath the determination o° this ooliny and took ints account
‘eedrack cooved when finalisng sts adoroach

Stock Code HILS
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DIRECTORS REPORT

(Other statutory information}

Principal activities and
strategic report

Tho Cuanviany
all the oy

3933 halding 7o g oo
stibsidia s

Tung 2027 the ool &
Orovip oo ronsed the manulae:
saply of

+ Dalvamzing Saovses
» Fngneerad Solutions

+ Roads & Security products and services

Pages ~ w69 contain "u-the- detanls of

these aieas oF the ausiness and the v inaionl
sunsichanas aagaung within theryara ser o
on pages 196 1o 198

The Executive Charr's letar and the Directa s’
Strategic Repoit include
infarranon on 5172 CA 2006,

1 analysis of the develonment anag
peifaorrance of the Company's nusmess
during the ‘inancial yea-,

Key pe formanse ndizaters used o
rreasure the G oud’s perforirance

» The pasition o7 the Somoany’s business
at the end of the financial yoar,

- Adescnption of the prinaipal risks and
uncertanties faced oy the Group, and

« Thetrends and factars li<ely 1o affoct
the future developmens, perforrance

S Jalnass

and pos ton o7 tha Sorpany's @

Future development

Anindication of hkely juture develg ynents
it the Group s given e the Strates Repert
on pages 1410 69

Statement on corporate governance
The lectors’ Report far the year enderd

31 December 2022 corprises sect ons

of the Annual Repor: referred ‘o unde-
‘Strategic Report’, and ‘Goverrance Report
which are nzorporated nto the Jirectars’
Report by reference

Results (from continuing
operations)

The Group profit before taxation for the yea-
amounted to £69 3m (20271 £42 &im) Group
revenue a7 £732 Tm, was 17% up on 2927,
[Ce75 2nY Ope-aung profitat £78 5m, was
uo 61% on 2027 (£48 9m)

Share capital summary
-xchange trade

Trne Company's ording y shares a2 isted or e Main Ma ket

o' tha e ondan S« Cxchango

£ass

Single class.of ordinay snares of 2

Issied shae capial G /02 483

D danuany 2022

Toal now ordinary shar=s 224,030

issted dusirng the vear

lasued share capital 81.017,533

31 December 2077

Rights and oohgations

Albissned shares -anx equally. Righrs and 29hgations attaching

10 the Company's shares are set out inthe Comaany's Acticles

af Azsoc1aion

Furthe- details can be found in note 25 on
sagoes 172 and 173 of the Group =mancial

Siatontents

Demalls of the resulls 107 the year gig shown
on *he Consolidated Income Statement

on page 126 and the susiness segment
nformanian s given on nages 139 to 141

Dividends

The Jresioss reconinend the nayment of

a linal dividend of 225 e ordmary share
12027 19 00) which, *ogethe: with the

irtenrn dradend of T3 00 per o-dinaty sha-e
12027 "2 On e ordinary shase)y pad on &
canuaty 2023 ma<es a total discbubion

‘o7 the yean of 3op per ordinary share

2920 31 0n e ordinaty sha e) Subest 1o
shareholders aaproving this recomerendation
at the AGM, the fimal dividend will oe pand on
£ July 2023 o shareholders on the register

at the close of busmess on 2 June 2023

Ihe latest date for recenn: of Didend
Re-invesimen Plan elections s 146 June 2023

Share capital

There are no restnchons on the ransfer of
shares in the Company provided they ae fully
pated up and *he Company does not hold any
llen aver them and as the shares ranx equally
none of them ca-ry any soecial nghts with
ragards o control of the Company Such equal
ngh's apply to shares acquired through any
of the Company's employee share schemes
and those shares so acquired cary no lesser
or greater righ's than shares acqured in the
Company in any other way Accordingly the-e
are no restrictions on voting “1ghts attaching
to any shares, whether retating to the level of
shareholding or otherwise

The Company 1s not aware of any
ar-angements between shareholde s of the
Company that may result in restrictiions on the
transfer of ordinary shares or voing nghts
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Resolunons are soughs at cach AGM to
aermit che Corpany o allot, sunjest to
sha-eholder asoroval, new sha-es under
soectfis circurmatances 1hey are a funchion
of add-essing funding or share scheme
needs and rof a tool for emnioying ant-
fa<kcove: 1easuras

In -elanon to the ourchase oy the Zorpany
of Its bwn sharas the iy Ny thea

a'esot out i the Company's Atticies of
Agsocaton which sate that the Drectors’
powers 10 authonse such purchase by the
CoTpany & e subject 1o the wrovisiens of

=

he relevant statutes and also the LK _isting
Authorry requirenents, as the Company's
shases aa Ismoed on the ondon Stosk
“xchange No shares we'e hebd inreasury

Articles of Association

The rutes relating w & rendrent of the
Company’s Arncles of Association are that

any change mrust be authonsed by a speciai
resolution of the Comoaany N a general meeting

Accordmgly the followang resolutions ame to

e ot o the merrbers of the Company at the

Company's AGM each year

«  The authonty for making Tar<et
ourchases of shares greatel than 5% of
*he Company’s then issued share canital
13 hmited by the esolution of the 20522
AGM and will be brmited by the resolunon
10 be put (o the 2023 AGM The prices
0 be paid for such purchases must
be a Tinimum price of 25 pence per
ordinary share (the nominal value) and a
maxsmum price of 5% above the average
of the middie market quotations for
ordinary shares derived from the London
Stack Exchange Daily Official List for the
frve business days immediately preceding
the day on which any such pu-chase
takes place



< The Carrpanes (Stiaretioldes Rights)
Tequlanons 2009 drowvide that a company
cartr2duce the nouge penod for zaling
g3t the shorer peaod o7 74 Zles:
N twn conditions firgtly that the
sty ks el by o sharcholde: s
OIS Oy eest O means and seanndly
it there annuar esolcion of
sharcholders anxowng sush educhion
mntha required Mivrrum nonce senocd
Approval 12 the 2alling of general meoungs
o-her than AGM's on "4 clear days nouce
was aoproved atthe AGM on 24 May
2322 w0 assist the Company n conducting
18 busingss and SuUbject to any necessaiy
matiers deing put 1o shareholder s
promastly This approval -ermains effective
urtil the earher of the Company’s next
following AGN or 22 August 2023

i

Substantial shareholdings

Asat 30 January 2023 rthe Covroany had
seen notfied in accordance with Rule 5 o°
the Jisclesure and Transpasency Sules of the
Fingnoial Conduct Authunty of the fallawing
voung sighta o° the Somaany

Number of % of issued

ordinary share

Shareholder shares capital
Aneardean
Standad

Investrents 7,299 529 G17%

Blazkiock 5072732 £ 23%

Royal London
Agset

Nanagenrent 4,212,770 526%
AXA Fiamlingion 3695955 462%
Vanguard Gioun 3608240 45% %
Inveszo 35345625 447 %
Mond-an

lnvestiren:

Parners 3384450 A423%
Charles Stanley 2915602 364%

Directors

Tha names of the Directars of the Comaany
wha served throughout the year, including
anef mograzhies, a e seét out on pages

fOto

Directors’ interests

The interests of the Directors in the shae
capital of HIl & Smith PLC as a% 37 Decerrber
2022 are se* out on page 101,

Appointment and replacement

of Directors

The appointment and “eslacement of
Drectors of the Company 15 gaverned by 175
Artcles of Association, the UK Corporate
Gavernance Code, the Comaanies Acts and
etated legislanon Drraciois can be appointed
oy ording:y “esolution at a general imesting

or by the Board If a Diregtor s appointed by

Stock Code HILS

the Board, such restar wilt ald orfice unl
the next A5V and shatl then be ehigihle for
Gleztion 4l tha raeing

Conflicts

e thee Comrpares Aot A and the
provEsons 07 The Go nany's Arisies of
Agsocirien e Board s equred 1o conaide
aalennai zonthizts of into Fhe Comoany
has esindlizhed formal srocedures fo- the
diszlosu-e and revew of any conflioTs o
potentia con‘lists, of nterest whicth the
Drectors ray have and for the authansation
of such con®lict mazte s oy the Bea d To this
end the Boasd considass and, if aooioprate,
authofses any con’lic.s, ¢ porennal conflicts,
of Interest as they ange and “eviews any such
authonsaton annuatly New Denectors are
required o declare any confhicts o potential
conflicts, of imterest o the Boa-d at the first

3 d resting atier his o1 her apaoinitant
The 303 d aeleves that the xocedures
pstashshed 1o deal weh con‘licts of mterests
are soerating effectvely

EN

3

Directors’ and officers’ liability

The Comaany maintams an asoroyate level
of Direciois” and OFize s insurance whaeby
Directars are indemnired agams: hasiines
o third parties to the extent permisted oy the
Comnanes Aot 2006

Financial instruments

The rinancial fis< manayamen: asestivas and
aolicies are detailed i note 24 on aages 167
o 72

Research and development
Sunng the yea, the Group spen- a total
of £2 8m (2027 £7 ) on research and
develoyment

Political and charitable donations
Chantable donations amountng to £67,000
(202" £39,000) were made in the year
arincraally to local chanues serving the
communities inwhich the Group onerates,
There were no pelitical contrioutions

Employment policies
Details of the G-oup's emoalaymen: policies
ae avalladle on the Company's website

Change of control/significant

agreements

There are no agreements between the Group
and its Directors or employees providing for
comnensauon for loss af office or employment
that oocwrs secause of change of control other
than revised notice peqiods and termination
sayments for H K Nichols

The Group has a revolving credit facility and
unsecured notes, which include change of
control provisions Linder these provisions, a
change in owne shigiconirol of the Camoany
could resul i withdrawal of these facihites

All of the Corriaadarty's shiere seremes Lot
rovisions elatng to a change m
Quistanding ootions and awais no mally

and hesnime oxerc 2
of conral suly 0 The sa7l
serfor vance condilions ¥t that teme

stionof any

The Directo s consider that inere ar2 10
aontazal oo othes aangermers, such as
thase wrh ragor suaaliers, which are ikely
to matenally influence, directly orndraeily
the aertonmance of the pusimess and i3
values Furtherrore the e are no contacts
of significance sussising duting the fnancal
yeas belweaen any Groud undertaang and a
contoling shareholder or i which a Jiector
1S o was materally interesten

Disclosure of information to auditor
The Directors who held ofice at the date of
araval of this Diectns” Reaot confirm
that, 50 far 35 they are each awae thers s
no ~elevant audit in“armanon of which the
Conpany's auditon 1s unaware, each Jrrec
has taken all the steps that they cught *o
lave saxen as a Director 7o make thoirselves
aware of any relevant audit in‘orration and
has estankshed that the Sooanys auditon s
awsare of that mfor nation

Events since 31 December 2622

On 17 el uaty 2023 the Group acgur ed
Faduro Conrposites, Ing for cash
consideration oF £28 7 _acatedin iouston,
Texas, Tndurs 13 a designer. manufactu
and sunphe: of engineered comacsite
solutons focused onindustnal and
Infrastructire Tarket segneents

On 6 March 2023, the Grouz acquired Korns
Galvanizing for cash consideration of £9 4m
Located in Johnstown, Pennsylvania, Kormns
offers hot dip galvanizing services for steet
fanicalors and iron foundry products

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Comrpany
will be held at 71 00 a m on Thursday 25 May
2023 at Cranmore Park Conterence, Zvent &
Exhibition Centre, Cranmare Avenue, Shicley,
Waeast Midlands, B30 41 & Unied Kingdom
MNatice 1s sent 10 shareholders separately
with this Repart, togethar with an explanation
of the special business 0 ne congidered

at the mee:ng and s also avalable on the
Company's website at www hsgroun com

Other important dates an be “ound in the
Financial Calendar on nage 194

By order of the Board

Alex Henderson
Corpany Secrotany

B March 2073
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities in respect of the
Annual Report, Strategic Report, the
Directors’ Report and the Financial
Statements

The T
the Annual Report, Stiat
Direcrors’ Reaor and “he Boud and Pa on!
Conoany Financial 3:ate rents in a AnCe
with apphicable law and regulatians Corpany
law reguires the Jrecte s 1o papae 3roul
and Parent Company Financial Starements

for 2ach financial year Linder that faw thay
are ~equired o yedare the 5roup Fmnansial
Siatements in accerdance with UK adopred
Internatonal Aczounting Standards and
apolcante law and have elecied to prepate
Paren: Comaany financial staterents in
accordance with LK accounting standards,
including -RS 10T Reduced Disclosure
Foamewdrk Under covpany law the nelions
Tmust noL approve the financial Staterents
unless they are satisfied that they grvea tue
and fair view 0f the state of a'tars of ne
Sroup and Parent Comaoany and o ther n-ahs
o 1oss for that perod I oredanng ea:
e Groud and Patent Somaany Tnane
Staterren's the Directars a e equired ¢

Bl

+ salect suirable accounung oolizes and
then asply theT consistently,

+orake udgaments and estrrates that are
reasonatile, slevant, ehable and avudent,

= farthe Grous =inancial Statemams, siao
whethe: they have been pregared n
accordance with UK adopted international
accounting standards,

- o the Parent Corpany minancial
S-arements, state whethes applicable
UK Accounting Standards have oeen
followed, suojact 1o any Tatedal
departures distlosed and explamed in the
Paront Company Financial Statenens,

+ assess the Group and Parent Comrpany's
ability to continue as a going concen,
disclosing, as anolicanle, matters reiated
to going concern, and

- use the gomg congern hass of
accounting uniess they erther intend
o hquidate the Group or the Parent

nu reahstic alternative but to do so

e Jirectors are ressonsisie 1ur <esnng
adequate accounting “ecords that ae

show and exalamn the Pa ont
~ansachions and diszlese with
AR ACCUrACY Al dry timie the inancial
zion of <he Pacen: Compary and enasle
tharn o epgurs that its Dinaroil Statements
zoroly wich the Companies Act 20006 They

a = esaonashle for suchine nal contol asg
ey deterine 13 ne s wioerable the
pronaraton of -nancial Staterents that a7e
free from matenal misstatentent, whether due
w0 fraud o errorn, and have geners' -esponsibiley
for ta<ing such steos as are reasonanly

aoai o them o safeguard the assels oF the
Groun and to orevent and detect faud and
Qtherwregulanties Under applicable law and
regulations, the Drectos aie also respensible
for prepanng a Straegic Repott, Jnectors’
Repot, Drectars’ Remune-ation Report and
Coraotate Goverpance Statament that zoroly
with that law and those regulations

The Zrectors are responsible “or the
Tanienance and integaty of the corporate
and “inancial informaten meluded on the
Comoany's wehate _egislatonin the UK
governg the oredaranon and disserminglon
of Tinanzial Glaterents may diffan fiom
legislabionin othes junsthenons
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Responsibility statement of the
Directors in respect of the Annual
Financial Report

W confer that o the best o our Xnowledge

s e snanca Slaterents prenaradin
th the anahcants serof

tan 5, give a true and
Sview of ; 5. labilines, fimanciai
posSon and o ¥ Ne Comoany
and the undamakings included i the
consoiidataen taken as a whole, and

3 dar

- che Snategic [enortmcludes a far roview
af the develooiment and nerfomrance
Af rha ansmeas and the oasition of the
issuer and the undertakings inchuded
i the conschdainon taken as a whole,
togerher with a descnanon of the
princigal rsks and uncertantes that
‘hey ‘ace We consider the Annual
Resort and Ancounts taken as a whole,
13 farr, oslanced and understandabic
and provides the in‘or raninn necessary
for sha-eholders to assess the Groun's
Sosmon and secto mance, business
Todel and stategy

By m:der o *he Board

Alex Henderson
GroLp Company Secratary

B Mach 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF HILL & SMITH PLC

Opinion

10U OHNKN

Hill & Sroeh 2L S5 Srows inaneal stareman
" Ohared L ug And i
[Falaite sl TaH

the Minangial st
TATERT OTITTIANY
thern enderd

+ e geoud financial state veons have nean
IR EY

adozied mternauanal aszounriag s

e narent comoany finanoial siatene
Lnred Kingdom Generally Aznented A

and pacent company financial s1ateinents
aned of the
22 ard ol e groun s rot rar the

Ml

soeily arepaied 1IN acco dance with LK

75 have been properly grepared in accordance with
wuntng Practice and

the firancial state Tems have been preoarod m accardance with the requirements o the

Comaanes Ast 2005

We have audned the inaneial statenents oF Hill & Smith PLC {*he ‘parent company’y and 1's
suasiianes (lhie 'groun’ for the yea- ended 37 Decemper 2022 which comorise

Group

Parent company

Consolidated Incorre Slatérernt

Company Balance Sheet

consalidated Staterent 0° Convprehensive Income

Company Siatemen: 5° Changes
1N Equrty

Consolidated Stateent of Tinancial Position

Relatod notes ™ 10 16 to the “inancial
statements including a surraty of
significant accounting aolices

Consolidated statement of Changes i Squrty

Consolidaied Statement of Cash Slows

Related no'es 110 29 10 the financial siaterents,

ncliding a sumTary of significant ascountng aolicies

The fmancial -2oorang tramewar shas has
Heen anplicd in the prepasation of the groun
financial statements 1s asplicable taw and UK
adooted international accountng standards
The financial “eporing framewo-k wha: has
been applied in the preparation of the sarent
corrpary financial statements rs apphcaole
law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards including ~RS 700 “Redused
Disclosure framewar”

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit m accordance

with Intenational Standards on Auditing
(UK} (1545 (UK)Y and apphcabie law Qur
resaonsibihifies under thase standards

ale further descnbed in the Audito-'s
responsibilites fo- the audit of the financial
statements section of our report We believe
that the audit avidence we have abtaimed 1s
sufficient and anpropriate to provide a Dasis
for ou apinien

Independence

e e ndesendeant of the gioup and oaren”
cormaany in aceordance with the ethical
requiraments that arg relevant 1o our audi: of
the financial szatenvents in the UK including
the =RC's Ethical Standard a3 apzlied to
tisted aublic Interes: eatihes, and we have
fulfilled aur other ethical responsibiliies in
acco~dance with these requirevan’s

Ihe non audrt services 3 ohibited oy the
FRC's “thical Standard were not provided
to “he g-oup o the parent company and we
rermamn indenendent of the group and the
narent comoany in conducting the audit

Conclusions relating to

going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we
have concluded tha: the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements s
appropnate Qur evaluation of the directors’
assessiment of the group and parent
comoany's ability to continue 1o adop* the
geing concern basis of accounting included

+ We understood the process undertaken
by management 1o perform the gong
concern assessment, including the
evaluanon of the cngoing impact of the
cost of ving crisis and othe cuirent
glonal macro-econonic faciars an
the G-oup and the Group's access 1o
avallable sources of liquidity,
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We obramead vanage rents gaing
SONGErN &S Cmciuding the cash
flowe 1orec calulations
foi e going conzen enod to 30 dunse
2024 We e e ; :

vl

forezcasts ensuimyg the woerating
srofit, working ~anval adjts:
and resuitan: o 5 e going)
SOASETN A830EE Nenimatehed those n
“he forecasts The Grou s has modelled

a nase case, which 1s consistent with

he assumptions used inthe Groun's
rparment assessorents Addmonally,
WO dN Mary (everge 5TTess fests have
peell podelled, which determine a) the
addiional revenue downsida which could
be ahsorsed sefoqe the Groun runs out
of iquidity and b -he revenue downside
which would be required far the Group to
breach s financial covenan:s under its
soie Borowing “asihities.

ments

We obtained the signet agreemen:s,
including for the new evolving credit
facility signed duning the year, “or the
Groun's credit fazihities and -ead hese
confrm the leims of thase ncluding the
level of fazifities and nasis o7 covenants
W@ consistent with rhase considered in
management’s assessiment,

We assessed the «casonasleness of
the key assun~otions undeioinmng
the Grouos forecasts i the contex:

of other suI20Ing evide amned
from our audit procedures on goodwill
MDATIEnt revigws ncluding frends n
Group performanze and othor external
market studies and data such as analyst
and industry forecasts In oartcular, we
assessed the achievabiliny of "he revenue
270eCUNNS N Manajoment's npase case
and downside scenar 1o 1o the Groups
performance and external indust-y

fo ecasts,

We assessed the historical accuracy of
managenent’s forecasing ‘or the past
Six years, Dy comparing the Group's
actual resuls to Board asyoved oudgets
and re forecasts o furthe challenge

the prospective financial mfarmation
included in the going concern
assessment,

We sensitised managemeant's
#38esSmMeants using our cwn
independently developed assumosions
fo-a severe but plausible downside
imnpact and confirmed these sensitivities
did nct give nse to any breach of
covenants or the Group running out of
Iiquidity,



. &y

*he results of
3 reverse stress

f"u'lmsod
Tanagemeant:

500N

rauled

Al 7t oty = Srzaching

w2

Jn the Grouz's bo owing fa

T the Uroup i

st
y AN fss,ea;ed whethe the
channes to key assumprons wiich
] Y
1N ~he Group either exhagsing R

[HES cnnee
wore olausiale This was achieved oy

“arsidting Hie diopin cevenues equred
ooerher rin out of gk

- W rested the sienigal ancuravy of r e
modals used 1 yopa e hed

JUINY CONCen
Lo auation o

U

raup s d
Hasm of 3

“hese et tegulatony argd ten
equrenen's

OSUTeS oy
3 CRATNISN Sy VO YIrg
,\a Ive

We ensured the aporuniareness of the
fie o

o roach covenants and contaaning s Based on the war< we have pe-famed,
reduchion to the fall in the Group's aciual we have not identified any ima‘enal
rosults achieved through the coutse urnce tamues relanng to events or conditions
af ‘he pandeimic We also considerad hat mdividually or collectvely, Tay cas:

mtgating aztions, assessing whether
they were within management’s Contrs
and whethe- they were supnorted by

concen for a pernod Lo 30

tistoncal actual mitigation achieved,

signifizant doubt on the group and sarent
company's akihty 1o SCntinue as a goimy
sune 2024

10 relation to the g ous and oarent comsany’s
rencring on how they have apphed the

LK Corporate Governance Code, we have
nothing ratenal o add o draw avenuon

ton elation to the directors statemnentin
the manclal s it Aous whethe the
dreciors considered 1t app olnate 1D adopt

e going cona faznounting

N DASIS O

ou sunsibilnies and the respansioilities o
the di-ectors with respect to geing concan
are descrined n the relevans sechions of
this report However, secause not all futue
events o condihons can be o edicted

this slatement 15 no” a guaiantas 350

tho gioup's ability 1o cenunue as a gomng
coneern

Overview of our audit appreach

We nerfo

comonant and aud: procedures on specific

The companents where we perfoimed full of speaific audr doc

operating profis, 3% of Revenue and 77 % of

Total asseols

rned an audis of the complete financial infor ration of 5 rading components and 1 non-ading
balanzes far a further

doomponents

edlires aooounted “or B8 of adjustad

Revenue iecognition - the nsk of management

inganropnate revenue cut off
Carying value of gocdwill inrelation ta ATG

Qs of naporoprate nveninty valuation

de

hrough

Ascess, Par<ng =acilinies and

nAalDTopiate ranual jaunals o revenue or

il & Srith Inc

Owexall G

sup ratenalty of £4 Tmwhich represents 5% of adjusled operating oo

An overview of the scope of the
parent company and group audits

TAILORING THE SCOPE

Jur assesament of audit nsk, our evaluation
o natenality and our allocation of
serformance materality dete-ming our audit
scone ‘or each comaany within the Groun
Ta<en togethe, this enzbles us to form

an opinton on the consoldated knancial
siatements We take into account size,

nsk profile, the arganisation of the group
and affectiveness of grous wide contiols,

Of the 19 corrponents selected, we
serfarned an audit of the coralete financial
inforanen of 6 camponents (Ul scope
comoonents”y which were selected sased
an therr size of sk chaiactensiics, Fo

theremaining 13 COTPONEn's Tspecific

changes in the Jusmess environment, other

factors such as rac

performed at each comrpany.

In assessing the risk of matenal

misstatemeant to the Group financial

ent tnternal audit ~esults
when assessing the level of work 10 be

The reporung components

OR% 2027 99%) of the Group's

Group's Total assets

statements, and to ensure we had adequaie

guanttative coverage of significant accounts
statements, we selected 19
components covering entities wrthin the

UK, US, France, Sweden and India which
rearesent the principal business units within

in the financial ;

the Group

Stock Code HILS

where we
perfarmed audit procedures accounted fo-
adjusted
ope-aung orofit 99% (2021 99%) of the

Group's Revenue and 99% (2021 99%) of

=5 the zuirent year, the 6 full scoge
camponents contnbuted 57% {2021 79%)

of the Group's adjusted operating profit 48%
12027 53%) of the Group's Revenue and 42%
2027 43%) of the Group's Total assets.

scooe components’), we performed audit
procedures on specitic ACCoUNTS within
*hat componen: that we considered had
the ooiential for the greatest imoact on
she significant accounts In the financial
starements either because of the size o
these aczounts o~ their risk nrofile,

the

The 13 soecific soone components
contnibuted 37 % {2021 16%) o' the Group's
adjusted operaung orofis 46% {2021 40%)
of the Group's Revenue and 29% {202~
72%) o the G-oup's Total assets. The audit
soooe of these comoonents may no' have
included testing o7 all significant accounts
of the component but will have cont 1outed
to the coverage of significant accounts
tested “or the Grouz ror a further 6 trading
compenents, we nerforred speciiied
srocedures which as a miimum, inzluded

rocedures over revenue and cash atall &
components

of the remaining 3 trading comrponen:s
that together represent 2% of the Grouos
adjusted operating 2rofit none are indwiduatly
greater than 1% of the Groud's adjusted
operating profit. For these components,

we performed other procedures, including
analytical review, testing of consoldation
journals and intercompany elimingtions and
foreign currency translation recalculations
to resoond 1o any potential ns<s of natenal
misstaternent to the Group “mancal
staterments

IVIONYNIA

SENAWILYLS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT continued

TO THE MEMBERS OF HILL & SMITH PLC

The chatse balow usae the cow

e ootamed fronr the work performed by our audit teams

LOTIONENta Adjusted oneraing arofit Ravanupe Toral 93501s
2022 2027 2022 2371 2022 252" 2022 ENYS
Fuil soone 6 [ 57% 7a%, A8% 33, 42% AR
Soe01C seope 13 14 % 1674 46% an°. 29% 28%
Soecifled rocedures oeer rading -
Z0MIDNents 6 ) : 5% 7 8% Tk 2% 7
Spenified procedures over non trading
corponents and consolidaton L
adjus men's 23 73 (3%) (3%) (4% 6% 20%
Overall coverage 539% 95% 99% 9o% 99%
The audil scone of the spacihic scoae resoonsible for the scope and direction of to achieve this There’ore as set out above,

componerts included m the tasle above may
not have mcluded sesung of alt significan:
accounts of the componen: out will have
zonibuted 1 the coverage of signifizant
accounts tested foo the Gi

Involvement with

component teams

In estaalishing ou” overalt app-oach to the
Sroun audit, we detarmined the tyoe of
woilk that needed ©0 e undartaken ateach
o the comaonents oy us, as the pnmary
audit engage rent 1eaT, o7 by Somponent
auditars Trom other -Y glosal neswark fi-1s
n3e aning unde our instrucion Of the o
AUl scaoe components, sudd sroceduras
were ne-fosrerl on 2 of these diestly oy
the pimary audit team OF the 13 specil
seone comnonents, audit o-ocedules we'e
paiforned an "0 of these directly ay the
orimary audit team

o

Foi the remamning 4 full scooe and 2
specfic scope components, where the work
was peformed oy comoonent audiions,

we deterined the approonate level of
mvolvarrent (o enable us o deterntine tha
sutficient audit evidence had peen obramed
as a basis ‘o cur opinion on the Grous as

a whole

The Grows audi® team continued (o Mllow =
aogiamme of plannad visits that has been
dasigned to ensure that the Senior Statutory
Auditor visits the full scope cormponen:
locations Junng the current year's audit
oycle, visits were underiaken by the pnima'y
aude seam 10 the component teams in
mance and the US These wvisds invelived
discussing the audi approach with the
comaonen team and any 1ssues ansing from
thelr wark, meaung with local management,
attending closing meeungs and reviewing
key audit working papers. For France, the
wvisii ocourred earlier In the year given the
coTponent was being disnosed of, to ahgn
wih 'he planned audit procedures

The prirary team interacted “egularly with
the comaonen' teants where aparopriate
duning vatious stages of the audit,
reviewed relevant working pasers and were

he audit 2 ccess This, together with the

additionat procedures performed at G oun
level, gave us approaate evidence for our
apinion on the Group financial statements

Climate change

cholders g e mereasingly interested o
how clirmate change will impact the Group
The Grouo has determmnas? that “he most
sianficant future noacts o T chmate
change on therr ooerations will ne from
transitioring 1o a lowe-car 2o econony
{transitiion nsk) and the shysicatl 1s< resulung
fom clirate change, whether event driven
of lenger-term shifts in clirrate saterns
fphysical nsk) These are explained on
aages 500 530 the required Tas< Foree for
Clirrate 1elated Finanoial Jisclosures and
on pages 60 10 68 in the princinal fisks and
unze-tantes, All of these disclosu-es form
nart of the "Othe: infor-ranuon” rathe” than the
audited iinancial statements Our procedures
on hese unaudited disclosures therefare
conasisted solely of consideinng whather they
are matenally inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obramed in
he course of the audi 07 otherwise appear
to be matenally misstated i ine with our
respongibilites on "Other Information”

In planming and perfarming our audit we
raview management's assessmen: of the
aotential impacts of climate change on the
Groupy's business and any consequential
materal impact on ts financial staterents

The group has explained i ther Group
Azcounting Policies note how hey have
reflected the impact of climate change

in ther financial staterments and in their
Sustanatulity Plan and how this aligns with
‘harr commitment to the aspirations of the
Pang Agreement to achieve a carbon net
zero target by 2040 for Scones 1and 2
Governmental and societal responses (o
chmate change risks are stll developing
with likely la~ger impact felt in *he “uture as
these ¢ ystalise and, as a result, the Grouo
oy ently continues o ronitor the future
2onno ™Iz roast on thar husiness modsl,
oaerational Jlans, suaoliers and customers

Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

the sotential futu e 1Macis are currently
determined to e of low ns<n these financial
statermnents ‘or the cur-ent yea

Our audr 2ffaitin consideng the ioazt o
clirate change on the financal staterants
was focused on ovaluating Managemen:'s
assassment of the rrpact of clmae

ns<, nhyswal and tansition, thor chimate
commemeants, the efects o ratenal
shinvate nisks dizclosed on pages 30 70 53
and wheher these have heen 313 03a7ely
reflecied v judgements and estTates
following the requiremen:s of LK adonted
Intenational accountng standards As pat
of this ovaluaiion, we peformed ou” own
MIS< 338CS5Men, sudloried oy ou” Zimare
zhange mtenal soociahsts, o detarmne
the -1s<s of matenal miss atement in the
financial staemrents “1om chimate change
which needed 1o ae conside cd i our audit

We also challenged the Directons’
considerations and conpleteness of
clirmate changa nsksn thewr assessant oF
going concemn and viaoility and assocrated
disclosuies

Based on our work we have not wdentified the
irpact of chrrate change on the financial
staterrents to be a key audit matter orlo
mpact 8 key audiz master

Key audit matters

Key audit matiers are those matlers thai,

in our professional judgrnent, wee of most
sigrificance i cur audit of the financial
staterrents of the current penod and include
the mos* significant assessed nsks of
natenal misstatement {whether or not due
o fraud) that we identified. These matteis
included those whizh had the greates: effect
on, the overall audit strategy, the aliocation
of resources in the audit; and directing the
efforts of the engagement team These
matters were adgressed in the context of our
audit of the financal statements as a whale,
and in our opimion thereon, and we do not
provide 3 Sepaate opimien an these maters
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nse ¢ the risk

SANAWILYLS TWIDINYNIA

Risk of inappropriate Procedures mfespand 10 this risk were performed by both the pnmaryaudi‘t team and

inventary valuation oomponent 1eama.

(£113.8m, 2021: £708.1m) ) We perfarmed the foltowing audit procedures at 5 full, 8 specific scope, and

P viaton S ey a3 e specified procedures component where inventory is in scope. Inventory at these

Sioon s deaandaor ar 2stalishing companents represents $0% of the tatal inveritory balance. ‘ 257,

Aparngnate valugno. processes The i) {vl:lq i & 510U \o
2s:ablisamert of ssardard costirg We performied walkthroughs of inventory valuation methodsateachofthe Efuﬂ 8 corsidered auciopniate

ssrert of 10w . spe(:iflc scope components where inventory wag in scope. Dur audit procodures

bases ard the a3

: ujexFesafl‘(;cljso\?Ee Iﬂf&‘”\t'\)l’;f We peﬂm tegts of detait for a sample of inventory items Btallmmpmgmsm‘ i confiurred vanances setwesn
CAISLS TBANMES JUdGerent LG ae eheck the accumulation of cost within inventory and to confim mmm:eﬂmaeé standard and actual 59sts and
analied  finalisieg e inventory mmm& sgagenfgmmletm - +ha overicads absarted in the

Hveniory valuation nad bean
appropriately ca‘culated and
accourted for

vauatino aad eve of drovisioring
recuirad  f these judgeTents are not we agmad our sanpies from the yearend enven:orycmr&swmch we
apgroosnate ther there s a nsk that - corysubledger arid nerformedmll forwafcfnrraceauresmve

wyentory 15 rearectly valued :
e y ;,‘Qfmcnmponents in scape for inventory, we were able to physmﬂy

we amamed evidence to support the standard costs used and peﬁol'mednméwes
.10 agsess whether only nomnal production variantes had beer capitalised inthe year- <
end Inventory balance and material abxm'na! inefficiencies had been apprupnateb;
axpensed. This inchuded comparing actust pmdmtwn Fates 1o buget. .

We chtained evidence o support that memmyis held atthe lower of Qostaﬁdnet
reaiisable vaiue by assessing the adequaty of excess and obacléte provisions held
against inventory. This Included comparing forecast product usage to custome: -
orders, considering histarical usage, historsal accuracy of provisioning and
understanding management's future plans [ utilise the inventory. -

We performed tlericat procedures on the formulale caltulations o evaluate

the accuracy of the inventory provisioning; On occasion, managementmakes -

adjustments to the formulale provision calculations. We evaluated the assumptions .
and judgements applied by management in detefmlmng the pmvism fewdedm the

Financial Statements:

Treleval of nis« asscomed o this key
audit mate g aneianged fromthe
DL year

In the prior yoar, our audito”s renort ncluded MATERIALITY performance measure to the stakeholders

3 key audit matter in ‘eu_lm Lo the carying The ‘magmitude of 81 omIssIon or of the Gioup as it excludes matenal

value of goodwill “or the France Galva CGU misstatement that, ndividually or i1 the non-recurnng iems and theefore have

I the current year, the France Galva divigion agy egate, could reasonably be expectad determined ~ratenalty based on this number
was disposed o® with no year end balances t0 mfluence *he economis decisions of “he
remaning “elated 1o goodwili or ntanginle users oF the iinancial s'zremants Maleisalily
3ssels srovides a basis for dete'mining the nature
and extent oF our audd procedures

We detor maned matenality o7 the Parent
Corpany to be F49 milkon (2021 £4 8
ulhon), which s ® 5% (2027 1 5%) of equiy

Green the curent sensivilies suTounding We inwally calculated materialny 1o be £3.8m

the headroom as disclosed In Note 13 this . E Sorthe O3
- : H:,“ ! i~ We detemmed,mate ialty “orthe Grouo 1o sased on b% of forecast adjusied operating
yea, more audit £ffort has been focussed e £4 1 millen (2027 £3 7 millon), which 1s o P )
. e | - 2-0ft The “inal "esults were higher than
the 4ilE& Smith Inc. CGU Therefore this 5% (202" 5%) of adjusled ooerating profit .
C6U has saechically been mcluded in the ke L o , management’s im*al forecast Therefore we
(=) Ta Jhe P LSS ) — e - I < .
, oy e . °¥ Weoelieve that adjusted operating o7ofi: reassessed final matenality 0 ne £4 7m sased
audit are”elatng to the carrying value o oiovides us with the most relevan

on 5% of actual adjusted operating profit
goodwill and intangible assets where more 0% OF aciuas 4t p ofe

audit attention was ‘ocussed

Qur application of materiality

We apply the concept of matertality

in planning and performing the audit,

in evaluating the effect of dentified
misstatements on the audt and in forming
our audrt opinion

£82 9 sdjusted operoting profi (materity basis)
ofEd-!m(S%ofmateﬁaiﬂybas;sv.” ‘

Stock Code HILS 123



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT continued

TO THE MEMBERS OF HILL & SMITH PLC

PERFORMANCE MATERIALITY
The anphcation of rrateniahly at the indwidua
account of Balanze lavel 111 $20 3t an
armount educe i an ana oorately low
level the arnoanility thas the agy: eof
1 eihod {:Il'ld unde.
exceads Tatenalty

S dod roessTaTet ety

Dnthe 3a3is ol Dur fsk assessirents,
together with o sTent o7 the 3 oud’s
overalt cont ol environment, oui judgenten:
was thal performance matenality was /5%
(2327 79%) of sur planning mazenality.
namely £3 Iny (7077 £2.9 1) Woe have se’
performance matenalty at this sercentage
due 10 Dur exsectation of rissiatements
being low

Audit work at comaonent locanons for the
pupose of obtaining audt covarage over
significan: financial statement accounts s
undetaken based on a perzertage of toral
nerformance Talerahty The aeforrance
mazerialty set “or each carmponent 15
nazed onthe ~elalive scale and risk of the
comnonent to the Grous as a whole and
our assessment of the nsk of missratemont
a::ha nzonent. inthe curient yes: the
“ange of nerformange matenality allozated
tocomroonents was £F03mto £ 8m (2027
£32mo £ 8m)

REPORTING THRESHOLD
Anarrount oelow which identified
missiaTeMments a'2 considared as bhomg
cleasly mivial

we agreed with the Audit Commrittee that
we would repor s 0 them all uncorrected
audr differences in excess of £0 2m {2021
£ 79m) which 1s 3¢t gt 5% of slanning
matenaliny. as well as differences below
“hat threshold that, m our view, waraned
reporting on qualtanve grounds

YWe evaluate any uncor-ected nusstaements
agains: both the quantstative measures of
matenalty discussed above and i hght of
othor elevant gualitatve considerations i
forming ous ammon

Other information

The other iInformation comprises the
infornation mcluded in che annual report
set out on pages 1+to ° .5, other than the
financial statements and ouwr auditor's report
thereon. The directors are resaonsible for
the othe information contamned within the
annual reso:t

Qur ooinion on the financral staterments does
not cover the other information and, except
to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
this reno t, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon

iforaraten and, in doing so, consider
whather the other informaton s mateially
nzansistent with the financial statsments
o ou knowledge obtamed in the cou se

Wb

% daud o sthorwe:se aanears o he
Tatenally mastated 15 wedentify such
Taenal nconsistencies or asnarent
ratenal misstatements, we aie “aquired

13 deternine whether this gives fae to

a maenal misstaierent in the financial
statemenss therselves. if, based on the
wark we have pe-formed, we conclude that
there s a Matenal misstatement of the
orher information, we are required to repot
that fau!

We have nothing to report in this -ega-d

Opinions on other matters
prescribed by the Companies

Act 2006

Incus apiion, the nart of the directors’
remuneration el tto 2 audied has Deen
oeoperly presased in accordance wih the
Coemoanies Act 2008

I nur opimion, based on tha wo. < underta<en

in the coursa of the audr

- themformaton grven in the strategio
sepet and the directors’ -eport “or the
financial year for which the financial
SateTents ale prepared 1s consistent
with the financial statermens, and
the stategic repors and the directors’
renors have oeen prepaced n accordance
with apslicable legal ~equirermrents

Matters on which we are required
to report by exception

Inzhe hght of the knowledge and
undersianding of the group and the paent
company and its enviconment abtained in the
course o the audit, we have not idenufied
matenal misstatements in the sTategic
report o the directors’ report

We have nothing to ieportin sespect o the

tollowing matters in relation 1o which the

Comuanes Act 20006 regui-cs us Lo report 1o

you 1f 1IN our opnion

+ adeguate accounting records have not
been keot by the parent company, of
retu-ns adeguate for our audit have not
been receved from branches not wisited
Dy us, or

« *he paren* company financial
statements and the part of the Directars’
Remuneration Report to be audited are
not in agreement with the accounting
records and reiurns, or

+ certain disclosures of directors’
remunerauon soecifred by law are not
Tade, o
we have not recewved all *he infornation
and explanations we requice for our audit

124 Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Corporate Governance Statement
We bave raviewed the dire 3 statement in
ielatinn 1o going concen, hnge -term vighily
anvl that nais of the porate Goweinanoe
Starerrent relstng to the groun ard
\_*(_)H‘Uall\.”“ .,‘C_”T"[]“HHC‘P, B ',hf} DUIONISINSG 7
she LK Gonorare Govenante Sode specified

Tor oureviewe Dy the Listing Tules

Z3ased on the wo 'k undera<en as pat of
our auds, we have concluded thar each of
the rollowing elements o the Corporate
Governance Stalement s Tatenally
consisient with the ‘inanaal stateirents or
our <nowledge odtained dunng the audit

- Drectons statement with regards to the
anpropriateress of adonting the gaing
concern basis of accountng and any
matenal uncetamties Wenified set our
on page 37,

o Uractors explanatin as to s
assessment 0f the comoany'’s progsnests,
che peod this assess rent covers and
why the pentod 1S anpedaie set cut on
nage 82,

« Diectors staterment on wharher it has
a1easonabla expectation | n=2 3roup
will De asle 1o contmue in ooeration and
mects its hablmes sat out an page 82,

« Orectors statorment on far balanced
ar understandasle set out on page B2,

- Bog-dsz confirmanon that 1t has carned
Ut & r00Ust asses3mert 07 tha emeiging
and crmcipal nsks sel out on page 81

«  The section of the annual “epors that
doseribes the review of offectiveness of
sk management and mtenal contral
sysToms set aut on page 81, and,

. The sexton descibing the work of the
audit comimiTtee set out N nage 89

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directars’
responsitilifies statement set out on page
116 the directors are responsgible for the
sreparation of the finanaial statenents and
for baing satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internat canirol as the
directors determing 1s necessary to enable
the prepa-ation of financial statements *hat
are fee from matenal migstaterment, whethe:
due to fraud or error

in precaring the financial statements, the
direcrors are responsinle for assessing

the group and parent company’s abllity to
contnue as a going congern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend
1o hquidate the group or the parent company
Lr o cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do 50

Auditor's responsibilities for the



audit of the financial statements
DU anaeeTves a0 o aban reasonable

AS3U ANCR 4
SIATRIMNTS A3
nate il sstarement
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ut whather -he finanaal
awhole ges free from

whether due to
Sue an audifor's
o7 aznon A2asonanla
15 a bigh lave! oF assurance but s

antt o

Ll

awe ent when 1t exisis
grements can anse o fraud or etor

angd are congidered matenal of, mdvidually
arin the aggregate, they could reasonanly
Se exzented *ownfluonce the ecanamic
decisions of users taken on the pasis of
these financial gatements

Explanation as to what extent the audit
was considered capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud

leagulantes including ©aud, are instaraes
of non-complancg with taws ard regulations
We design procedures inhne with our
“espens.bilites owhned anove, 1o deteet
irequlanties, including *awt Thens< o’

noTder
due o
detecung one ¢

ng a maenal misstaeme
aud s tughe than the nst
sulting from error, as

fraud may involve deliberate conceal rent

Jy. for examole, furgary or intentianal
Twsrepresenlatons, o through collusicn | he
extent ' which Du” procedures are cananie
of detecting iregulant-es, including “aud 1s
detalled elow

However, the prrary regaonsimlity “or the
pravention and detection of fraud rests with
poth those charged with governance of the
coToany and Tanagernent

We obtainad an unde:standing of
thetegat and ~egulatory franreworks
~hat are apphcable (o the Group and
detertined that the nost sigrificant
‘rareworks which are dirently relevant
o specific assertions m the Financial
Staterren:s are those that relate to

the reporing Famework (UK adopted
nternational accounting srandards,

the Comrpanies Act 2006 and the LK
Corporate Governance Code) In addizion,
we concluded that theie are certam
significant laws and regulations whigh
may have an effect on the getermination
of the anrounts and disclosures in the
Financial Stateiments being the Listing
Rules of the UK Listing Authority, the

US Foreign Corrupt Practices Act,
Swedish, French and Inchan Companies
Act legislation, and those laws and
regulations refating *o health & safely
and employee matiars.

We understood how Hill & Smigth PLTC

is complving with those fra newn-ks

by making enquines of management,
Internal Audit, those resaonsinle for lagal
and comphance procedures and the

Stock Code HILS

Comazany Secretary We saroso-aied
QLI engu 195 1rough our revicw 07
Board minuies, payn iovided 1o thae
Aud Sorowter and 2o esnondenace
recaved from eguiatory bodies e
alan ohaerved -he oversigght of the
chargnd with governance, the culin ©
ol hones and e nenavion and
whethe: a stong emphasis |
i-aud oreventon and deleire
may - educe oppostunties for fraud o
take place

We assessed the susgentibilizy of the
Groug's Smancial Statements o matenal
angstatenent, maluding how Taud mght
DCoUrn by meetng with management
from vanous pacts of the business to
unde stand where 1 conside-ed there
was suscenubility 7o “aud We alse
considerad porformance targets and
sarnfluence on e orls made oy
TANAgerrent 1o manage earmings o°
mfluence the nercenuons of analysta

We considered the srogrames and
controls that the Group has estachshed
to address ns<s idenufied, o that
otherwisa orevent, deter and detent ©
and how senior management Monito: s
those programimes and conirols Where
‘he nisk was considered to be highe

we pe-foirmed aud: procedures 1o
add-ess each identified fraud 115« Thesa
procedues includad testing manua;
1ouinals and were designed to 27ovida
reasanable assu-ance that the Tinancial
Staterents we e free from fraud or oo

Based on this understanding we
designed our audit srocedures (o denniiy
non gompliance with such laws and
requiations Our oroneduies nvolvad
journal entiy feasting, with a focus on
~nanual consshdation journals and
Journals indicating large or unustal
transactions based on our understanding
of the pusiness, enguiries of interal

and oxternal legal counsel. Group
management, Internal Audit, full and
soenific seope coinponent management,
and focused tesing, as referied 1o inthe
key audit matters section above
Component teams reported any non-
campliance with laws and regulations
shrough their audit dehverables based on
*he procedures detailed in the arevious
parag-ash Further, the Group team
commumcated any nstances of non:
compliance with laws and regulations

m covponent teams through regular
interactions with focal EY teams. There
were no significant instances of non-
zomohance with laws and regulations.

A furthes description of our responsitidites
‘o the audit of the financial staternen:
s tocated onthe Finanzial Ae o ang
Counsds wehsite at www 1o 0.g<
audilors agpunaimibes This de
'f')"lﬁ‘ﬂ;]{i?‘()fl’)llu' Ao HOee

Other matters we are

required to address

= Following the recomrendanon = om
the audit comrrisee we we'e appoin ed
oy the comaany an 19 Octozer 2022 1o
audit the financial natements for the
year anding 31 Decembe 2322 and
subsequent financial senods,

The period of total uninterrusated
engagement including previous renewals and
reapnointments 1 3 years, covenng the yeais
ending 31 December 2020 to

31 Decomber 2022

- The awde somion s consigtent with the
addiional repo t o the audit conmmities

Use of our report

This -enort g made solely 10 the comaany's
nremness, as a dody in accordance with
Chapter 3 0f Past 16 of the Comoanes Act
2006 Our audit work as been unde taken
s0 that we Tight state to the comoany's
members those 1ates we ase required

to state o themin an auditor's repart and
o7 no other nutaose Tothe fullest extent
samicted oy law, we do not accept or
assume responsiility (0 anyone other than
the comrpany and the company's memaers
as a body, for ous auds work, for this repos s,
or ‘o the opmons we have formred

Helen McLeod-Jones
(Senior statutory auditor)

tor and on behalt of Frnst & Young LLE
Statutory Auditor

Birmingham

B March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 31 December 2022

2021
Non- MNon
underlying* Lndarlying Lnder lyng* Tasal

NS £m £ £ [0
Continuing Qperations o T . ;
Levenue 3 7321 - 732.1 B2b 2 - 0252
Costof sales {461.6) L= {461.6) 383 M - 339 2)
Gross profit : I . 2705 2360 - 2360
Distibunion costs ' (329 - (32.5)
Adminsrative exoenses (1263) (78 4y RERK]
Other ape-ating msoms 07 - J7
Operating profit 773 128 4 489
Fnancial ncome 06 0.6
Financial expense (6 7] - 57
Profit before taxation 72 284y 425
Taxaticn =k 17 aan
Profit for the year from
continuing eperations b5 / {27 3) 284
Discontinued Operations
2 ofit from disconinued
SoHRTETIONS 64 ran 58
Profit for the year

. attributable to the owners of

the parent 621 {279 342
Basic earnings per share 43 0n
Basic earnings per share -
continuing 358p
Jiluted earnings por share 42 5n
Jiluted easnings per share -
CONTINUING 35 4p

* Tha Sroun's Jefimmae af 2on woderlvig ters 13 100 wded v the Groan Acoounting 2olises or page 137 and further dorans 27007 andarying ners are ncluded i
an%E o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2022

Notes fin
Profit for the year } o 3472
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss i
Sxshange diffe anzes on ranslanon of overseas upe anons 24 27.4 (23
“xchange dirrerences onforeign cur-enay oorowings designated as nes nvestinen: hedoges 24 (4.8) oo
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Actuaial (lossy'gam on defined bene’it nensian schemes 27 35
Taxazicn on iteras that will not ne reclassified to profil or loss g
Other comprehensive income for the year "8

35D

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners ot the parent

Stock Code HILS
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2022

2027
Notes cm

Non-current assets
Inrangeole assets 13 182.6 Ti4
Fronery, pant and equipnent 4 186.3 "33
Rght-ofr-use assets 1% 38.7 3870
Corporatinn Lax recevanle ] 1.6 15

Defer-ad lax assets 1/ 0.1 T4

Current assets

Assets held for sale 15

Imventaries 18

Trade and other recevables 19

Current tax assels

Casnangd zash equivalents 20

Total assets 3

Current liabilities

Liabiines held for sals 15

I-ade and other hadities 21

Curent tax asibines

Provisiens 23
. Lease habilinies b

Loans and Ho rowings 21

123.6)

v

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities
Other habilities 22
Provisions 23
Deferred tax habilites 17
Qevrement beneflz obligations 27
—ease habiliies 16

Loans and sorrowings 22

Total liabilities

Net assets
Equity

Share capital 25

Share premium
Other reseves
Translation reserve

Retained earmings

Total equity

Approved by the Board of Jirecloss on 8 March 2023 and signed onits pehalf by
A C Giddins H K Nichols

Jdrecte’ Diector

Comrpany Nurmbe: 571474

128  Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2022

Gha= Hhare (rthe Translanon Retamed Total
capital prantignt AR Laseve earnings eOuUITY
Notes £ £ £ £im £ £im
AT January 2027 199 384 4% P2 240" 3205
Comprahensive income
Profitfor the yea: : - - 3472 347
Dthe: corviehensive aoe “or the year - . : 10 35 i)
Transactions with owners recognised
directly in equity
Mvidlends 12 . - - : (212 2" 2
Cradit to equity of share-sased pay nents 25 - - - - 25 25
Dwn shases held by employes henefit
Trust - : - - 95 (15
Satig‘acton of fong term incentive and
deferred nonus awards - - - (03 (03)
Tax taxen duectly o the Consolidated
Starerent of Changes i =qury 9 - - 140 1
26

Shares issued 25 01 25 - -

T Other reserves reprasent the cremium on shares issued M excrange for shares of subsidianes acqared ard £2 2 (2021 £0 2m) caoital redemption 1eserve

AL 31 Decemner 2021 a total of 111,084 shares were held in an employee benefit trust for the purpose of sellling awards granted to emloyees
under equity-settled shate nased sayment olans The cos: of these shares. amounting to £1 8m, was maluded within retaned earnings at that
date During 2022, 35,546 sha‘es have been issued i settlement of awards 1o empioyees, leaving 75438 shares held al 31 Jecernber 2022, at a

costof £1 3m included within retained eamings

Stock Code HILS
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2022

of the year

2022 2027
NoTes £m £m £ Fir
Orofit hefore tax & o SOnUnuIr § Deranions e 69.3 R
Profis nefore tax S o disconunued opearations 10 4.9 8
Arird hack net fingo g costs Jou T e3 3
Unerating vofit = Total Sous 54,70 83.5 570
Adjugted for non zashremas
Share oased payments 23
Loss an dhsposal of sunsidianies o4
Loss/{gany on dispazal of nan-current assets T
Depreciauon of owned assets 2579
Amohsaton of intanginle assets 75
Right-0t-use assel depracianon 13
Gain on fcase werminaton eI
Release of azgiued contingan: consideralion 109
Fnpalrment of non cuTent ass 5, 150
on g
Uperaning fash flow oefore movement m working cap.tal HV )
InCrease N mventones (13 e
Inc-ease 1N recewables (79
(e ease)/inciease in oayasies 147
Decreage in pravisions and emoloyee heinetis 2N
Net movenient m working capital 97
. Cash generated dy operations 03
Purchase o assets fo: ental o cusiomers 67
Incoma taxes dand a2
NGRS ‘A
Intercst naid on lease habilizes o8
Net cash from operating activities 6557
Imeres: recerved 08
Procecds an disposal 0F non-cur ent assets 37
Purchase o proserty, olant and equizent 17 8)
Purchase of intangible assets 4
Acquistions of suosidianes {17.8)
Disposals of subsidiaries T 6O
Net cash used in investing activities 25 1)
I350e of new shares 25
Purchase of sharos o emaloyee benefr: frust {18
Dividends sard {27 2)
Costs associaed with refinancing dunng the yea- -
Repaymen: of lcase hatikites 103
New loans and bor-owmgs 553
Repayment of loans and borrowings (61.0)
Net cash used in financing activities {36.4)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents net of bank
overdraft 472
Cash and cash aguivalents nat of bank cverd-aft at the
neqinning of the yea 13.9
oot of exchange rate fluctuations -
Cash and cash equivalents net of bank overdraft at the end
181
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Group Accounting Policies
SHlLE Gk B D Goneely TRl & Smcth Holdings PLG™ 18 a comaany reoisarated inthe LK The consaedated financial statements of Hhll &
Suth PLE and 3 sussideies “he "Grous’} are resentad Mg yaa endad 30 Garamhar 2222

The Sroun Finansial State noles have been nrepared and ansroved by fne Dreciors o1 accadance with inrenational accounting standards
I ool by vah he requirements of the Comoares Act 2000 ard LK adosted Intenational =nrancias Repering Standardy The TNy
hase - SRETRRNIES sardance with Financial Reooang Standard 107 [educed Dsclosu e

bramey

L2 BRI s Al
1 1497

Comoany Mmancial &
VL these gre presented on pages 13

sk

aut elow have, unless otherwiso staiad, baen aunhed consistently inall pe 10ts presented n thesa Gioup -inanial
o a significant effect on tha Group
Iscussed innote 2

The Azeountag Peloe
3 ienls JudgeTents made by the Directo s in the anphzation af these Accounung Policies that
Financial Statoirents and eanrares with a significant 1is< of rratenal adjustrant inthe next yes) are <

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consohidated inanzial 31gtements comrprise the financial staterments of *he Company, Hill & Smirh PLT, and its subsidianes as at 30
Dezenie 2022 Subsidianes are entries controlled oy the Group The 5roud 2ontols an entity when 1115 exnosed 10, or has nights 1o, vanable
retu s fm s Mvalve T ont with the entity and has the abiliy 1o a®ect those teturns throusgh its sower aver the enuty The acquisibon date 1s the
date on which contol 13 ransferqed to the acqurer The financial statenrents o° sunsidianes a'e ncluded 10 the Group Financial Starenents f-om
the date that contal commencas until the date thal control ceases

.

In prepanng the consolidated Ynanmal staterents, management has considered theyrpact of chimare change, ta<ing mio accoun® the relevan:
disclosu 12 Reaor, including thoss made in aceordance with the -ezomendations of the Tazkiorze on Chimate-related Finanoiz
Disclasues Thisincluded an asasessirem of assets with indeiinee and 1ang lves and how they could oe moasted by measuqes ta<an 0 addre
glooal wa ming As authined i the Operauonal and Sinancial Review on sage 2.3 physical chimale change oresents a -elatively [ow rs< to the
Grouw's fusure susiness azeations As such nossues we-e dentified thar wauld impact the carrying values of such assets ar have any other
imaact on the financial stateren:s

MEASUREMENT CONVENTION

1he Sroun Sinancial Stataimen s are prenated on the lisioncal £ost basis excant where the maasuement of nalances at far value 15 -equirad as
exolaned selow The Group Tinanoial Slatemants are nresented in Steching and all values are stated in nullion (7)) -aunded 1o ane dezimal alace,
excen: where otherwise indicated

GCING CONCERN AND LIQUIDITY RISK

In dese reining the approorate sasis of argparaticn o 1ts financial statenrents, the Diects s are required 10 assess whe'her the Group can
continue n saeratonal existe for the foreseeanle Tuture When making this assessiment, the Grouo considers whather s will bhe able o
Tanan adequate haudiry headioom anove the level of 17s borrowing facilities and to osesta within the ninanzial 2ovenants on those facilities

At 31 Decemier 2027, the Group had £309 Sm of commized borrowing “acikties, of which only £0 3m matures before sune 2026 at the ea-lies:,
and a further £77 507 o demand faciiues The Group refmanced s ~evalving credrt facilily in Naverthe- 2022, erttening mia & new factlity with
avalue o £250m that 15 committed untl Novernber 2026, with an ooton to extend *he rraturty Dy a further yean at the one-year anniversary

The Grouz also holds 370m of Semor Unsecured Notes, and other local covmilted so-rowing facibbies of £0 6 The amoun! drawn down under
these committed facilities al 37 December 2022 was £107 4, which toge:her with cash and cash equivalents of £24 8m gave :otal headroom
9 (D226 A zommised £11 5moon denand). The Group has notimade any changes 10173 Jnncinal 30rowing ‘aciities between 31
December 2022 and the date of approval o7 these finanal statements The only significant changes Lo hguichty headroom during that penod
were the acquisiions of Snduro Composites, which the Group corrpleted on 17 Tedruary 2023 for an imtal consideration of £28 71, and Korns
Galvamzing, which the G-oud acquied on 6 March 2023 for considerauon o7 £9 41 Substantial head-nom against dorrowing faciinies “emains in
place post these acquisiiions

Ihe anncipal borowing facililes are subject to covenants that are measured brannually 1IN wune and Decemaer, beng net debl to EBITDA of a
maarrurn oF 3 Ox and interest cover of a minimum of 4 Ox, pased on measuras as defined in the faciliies ag-eements which are adyjusted from
the equivalent IF3S anmounts The ratio of net deot to ZBITDA at 31 Decerber 2022 was 0 7 tres and mrerest cover was 21.6 times Note 24 10
‘he Finanzial Sratemrents sets oyl More nformation on the Groud's sojectivas, aolicies and precesses for Tanaging its capital, i's financial ns<
management obyectives, details of its financial mstrumen:s and hedging acivities, and 115 exposules to credit and hquidity ik,

The Group has carefully modslied its cash flow oulon< for the senad w0 30 June 2024, taking account of the current global ecenomic condinons
In this ‘base case’ scenano, the forecasts Indicate sigmifican” liquidity headroam will be maintained anove the Groud's gorrowing facihues and
financral covenants will e met throughout the penad, maluding the covenant tests at 30 June 2023, 31 Decemper 2023 and 30 June 2024

The Group has carmed out stress tests aganst the base case to determine the pe-formance levels that would “esultin a breach of covenants or a
reduction of headroom agans: its borrowing facilities to nil =or a 2ieach of covenants to occur during the relevant penod, the Group would need
10 exparience a sustained revenue reduction of 26% comdaied with zurrent exaectations throughout the oenod from May 2023 through June
2024 Areduction in headroom aganst borrowing facilities o nil would ocourf the Grous experienced a sustained revenue reduction of 88%
compared with current expectaticns between May 2023 and June 2024 The Directors do not consider any of these scenanos to be plausible
given the generally positive outloox across the infrasiructure marxe:s 11 which the Group operates The drectors also noted the Groun's atilily
to continue its operations th'oughout she COVID-"9 nandermic, noting that ~evenues “ell by only 22% in the second quarter of 2020, the worst-
affecied oerod. Furthermare, the Grous has several Tinigating acions under i7s control including minimising cazital expenditure o citcal
requirements, teducing levels of discretionary spend, rationalising s overhead base and curtalling future dwidend paymen:s which, afthough not
forecast to be required, could ae molemented in order to be able to meet the covenant tests and (o contimue to operate within borowing facity
s

Stock Code HILS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

1. Group Accounting Policies continued

After making these ass the Jire.

an hat the Conpany and 3 have adequale rescu
4 22031 0f 3 least 12 months ::)H')wv“g the aonoval of those 7 m’ua‘
[l

Cibe going cone n Dasis 3 eoatng the Annual fepoirt and Tinancial Staiements

NEW IFRS STANDARNDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ADOPTED DURING 2022

The “allowmyg arendreats and e > clarons apply @00 the frst e n 2072 and therefnre were adodtad oy tho Grous

5 have reasonabile exoer
i "Dﬂa‘d\ﬂ Ui anvd to

o Arendments 1. FRI 3 Referensa o Connaprual T oa Newn <

= Amendents 0 AS 15 - Proceeds befoin miended use

- Amendmentz 1o 1AS 37 - Onercus Cortacts cosis of fAilfiting a contract

The amendnen:s noted above have not had a matensl tmoast an the Snanuial statenenis

NEW IFRS STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO BE ADOPTED IN THE FUTURE
ihe fallowing standards and interoretahans which are not yer efecive and have not been early adopted oy the Gioun, wil whe e relevant, ne
adooted in future accounting penods

To be adopied ‘or year-ending 31 Decembar 7023

- Amendments to 1AS T - Classificaton of habilfies as curient or non Suren:

< AmendTents o 1AS 8 - Denntion 2 Azoounting Zshirates

- AmendTenmsio IAS T Disclesure of Azcounting Policies

= Amendrerts 10 1A% 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assers and _ianilities ansng from a Single Trangacticn

Thereare cuntently no furthes standaids and interaretanions to be adonted o0 yea-ending 37 Decemuser 2074

The above charges are not exopected o Nave a materal imoact on the Group

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Business comoinanons ase accounted for using the acquistion method  The oost of an acquisiion s measured as the aggegate of the

considarat.on transfeced, which 1s measured at acquisiton date far value Azquisiion-related costs a e expensed as incurred and mcluded in
(mee accounting 2olmy non underlying rons) Far value adjusrents a“ always congicdlered 1C be provisional at the first

. no-unden lying ¢
year end date = the acgquisimion 1o allow the maxemum Tne 1o elasnse “or managameant to 1T a<e a reliadie estimae

The Group determines that 1t has acguired a susiness when the acquired set of aztivinies and assets nzlude an insut and a substanive orocess
that tagetha sigrficantly contioute 1o the aaility wo sreate outpurs The anquired o ocess 15 consideied suostanive i vis ootcal fo the aoility
o continue producing outpurs, and the npurs acgurad include an orgamvﬁd wor<force with the nec y skills, knowledge, or expenence to
seform -har srocoss or 1 signficantly contrbutes to the asiliy 1o conunue producig outputs and s conside ed umigue o” scarce o7 cannot De

replaced without significant zost, effart, or delay in the aaility 12 connnue sroducing outputs

INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GOCDWILL

Goodwll on acguisibon of subsidianes s inally measu-ed at oost and conrpises the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration
aanid for sunsichanes ovor the 5ous's share o he fair value of the idenuhanie assars and habilities acquired Aber iniial -ecogniuion, goodwill 1s
measured at cost iess amsarrment 1055es (see accounung polcy 'Imparrment of assets).

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - OTHER

Other mtanginle assets that are acquired by the Group as oar: of a husiness combination, such as orands, patents and customer hsts, are stated
at cos” less accumulated aTortisation and impairrent lnsses (see accounting zolicy ITmsarment of assets’). Cos® reflests management's
judgement o the ‘ar value of the ndividual ntangible asse’ caloulated oy reference to the net present value of future benehits accrung to the
G-oup from the utihsation of the assel, diszounted at anaxxiopiate discount rate

Ceitain US brands ace considered to have an indefinite ife and therefore a-e subject 1o annual impairment testing (see accounting policy
Tmpairment of assets) In determmining thas these hrands have indefinite ives, consideration was given 10 the axtent of therr trading history, which
in all cases exceeds 50 years, “hel” prominence in the marxets in which they ope-ate and the nature o° the o-oducts sold under those brands in
the context of patential for future developmen: For other brands, 2atenis and cousomer ists amorisaton s provided equally over the estinrated
use‘ul economic fife of the assets concerned, curently un 1o 29 years, Amortisation of such items s reco-ded as a non underying item within
administrative expenses [note b)

Whe'e comauter software 15 not an integral Kar of a relaed item of comouter hardware, the software 1s freated as anwntanginle asset Acgurred
comauter software lioences are canitalised on the hasis of costs incurred to acquire and bring Into use the specific software Annternally
generated intangihle asset ansing o the Group's development of computer aystems (including websites) 1s recognised I, and onlyf, the costs
are directly assoziated with the sroduction of identifiable and unigue software praducts, controiled by the G-oup and 1715 probasle that future
ecanormic benedts will flow 1o the Group Amaizsauon is provided equally over the esumated useful economic life of the assets concerned,
curently up to seven years
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1. Group Accounting Policies continued
Prade Icences are gyorused ove the soecific term granted to each mdwidual boence

IS denelts are
@ hetweeor the net disnosal

cogrsad upon disiesal e at the dare the razimient 9 ans 200
15034l Any gain o loss ansing uson deteccgninon of the a
eds and the carymg arount of tha azsesh s ncludad in she Consclidiced Inoo e |

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS
Rasa ara exnansod as nou red Develnnmeant exoeadinres on an mdwidual xajec are rexogiisad as arntangibie asse when tha
Groun can demiony . a'e

AN INANYIN'S 4558 13 dore

A rent

+ Thetechnical *casibiny of coraleting the ntangible assst so that the asset will he avarlable “or use o7 sale,

= lmanantion to corrplete and ds abily and intention o use or sell the gssel

© How ihe asset will genetate Tulre coonomic senefits,

. he avilaidily ot “esourzes o conplee the assel; and

+ Theaolhny to nreasure ~2hasly the eapeidilu e dunny development

The expenditure capralsed inzludes the cost of matenals, direct laoour and an asprooanate amount of directly attiibutable overheads. Following
nmial - ecognimion &7 the deavelonment expenditure as an asset, the asset 1s cared a2 cost less any accunulated arortisaton and accumulated
ITRarTent [93ses (sec accounung salicy Tmpairmen: of asse s’y Amarisanon of the asset begins when developrmant 15 complete and the assel
able tor use v s airorused aver the sernod of expesied future baneflt A nortsation s -ecorded i adrmimisTratve exoznses Duning the
2oiod of deseldorent the asaet 15 wested for mpal ment annually

Othe development expendizure 1g recogmised :n the Consahdazed Income Statement as an expense as incuired

PROPERTY, PLANT, EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

Praperty, plant and equinren: ara recorded inthe Grouz's Cansohdated Statamrent of Financial Posiion a2 cost iess accumiulated den-eciation
and any “ecogniscd rmnar Tent ipss Soatncledes where anorooate, directly avnsurable costs incusred in hiinging cach assetto 13 2
candiman and locanon

AS5EtS N the course of consiruchion are stated al cost, net of any accumulated trpairment [0sses

Certain 07 the Groun's Roads susnesses ‘outnely gene-ate ravenue fromn the -encal of assels to cusiomess Such assets a-e acoounted “or as
olant and equipnient I an asset thatis hetd or rental s sold, the asset s transerred S om pioaety, plant and equinnrent Lo nventoses at the
CATYING ANount when the asse’ c2ases to 3o -ented 1he arazcesds from the sale of such asscts gve recognisaed as revenue in the Consolidated
Incomea Statement

Depreciaton s provided ta wore off the cost o deemed cost less the esumared -esidual value o prooarty 2fant and equipmant (excluding
assetsin the course of const-ugnon) by equal instaivents over “her estimated useful economiz ives as follows

Buidmgs and lzasehotd imp-oveents 510 50 years
Plant, machinery and vehicles up o 20 years

No desreciation 1s srovided on f eshald land

The residual values, useful ves and methods of denrecianon o prooserty, plant and equiprment are reviewed at each “inancial year end and
adjus:ed prospectively, If appropnate

Artern of property, olant and equipment and any significan: part Initially recogriged 15 derecogrised upon disposal { e at the date the recipient
obamns control) 07 when no future econormric benefits are expected from 1ts use or disposal Any gain o- loss ansing on derecognition of the agse:
{calculated as the difference betwean the nel disposal aroceeds and the car-ying amount of the asset) 1s included in the Consolidated income
Statement whean the asset s derecognised.

Repair and namienance cogts are “ecogmised in the Consolidared Income Staterment ag incurred

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

For goadwill and intapgible assets tha: have an indefinite life, the recoverable amoun: s assessed at each year end date, or when indicators of
Impairment exist, and an imparment ioss 15 recognised, where appropnate, for the ammount by which the assets carrying amount exceeds its
recoveraBle amount Irepairment reviews are undertaken at the level of each significant cash generating umit, which are no laiger than operating
segren:s as defined in IFRS 8 — Segrrental reporting

The zarrying amounts of the Group’s oxher non-financial assets, other than inventones [see agzounting policy ‘tnventonies’) and deferred

rax oalances (see accounting solicy Deferred taxation), are reviewed at each year end date to determine whether there s an indication of
inparrment If such an indication exsts, the relevant asset’s recoverable amount 1s estimated. An mparment 088 is recognised whenever the
carrying ameunt of the asset or its cash genc-ating unit exceeds 1ts recoverante amount

The -ecoverable amount of an asset a- cash generating unit1s the greater of its value in use and 1's far value less 0515 10 sell In assessing
value In use, the esuymated future cash tiows are discounted to thesr oresent value using a pre tax discount rate that reflects cur-ent mar <at
assessmen:s of the tme value of monay and the 7isks specific 1o the asset
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

1. Group Accounting Policies continued
NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND D\SCONTINUED OPERATIONS
, e 5

The G-aup classifies noa-cusons 25 and disasal goouna as held T “hew zasrying amount will ae recoverad 3 inamally -h ough sabs
“arher 'han through conunung use Oninmal classif:oat on as meld azu ad at the [owe
2 OTEVIIUS CArrG 470U and far valuo less 20%is to self with any a l\u"‘”‘“nt‘s takon ot ne Gors ateren, The saime
ADNI2S 1D Gaing ancd Gy aes L0 SUDsLGUENL 2 easil anien: | meral costs dieo: the dissosal of an
wdisoosal groun) excludimg inance Costy and INCAre fax oxoense

assels and dispozal groups ate
Idazad Income S
Y alnUAnle W

O

ans

The onrena “of held ssification are ~egardod as e only when the sale s mghly o obasle, and tha asser o disposal 30w = avalaye
“animmediate salen its oresent condition Acbons requned o corpiete the sale should indicate that s unlikely thas sigrificant changes o the
sale will be ade or that the degision o seil will be withd awn The Groun must ne committed “o the olan :o sell the assel and the sale exnectad
‘0 oe completed within one year fom the date of the classificaion

Property, alanT and equinaient, intanginle assets and nght-of-use assets are not depreciated or amortised onze classified as held fo sale

fled ag held for aale are presented senarately as cur enttems in the Sroud's Consohdated Staz vent of Dinanzial

Azsers and haohities clas:
Position.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

rihancial assets and hawlities ase ~ecogniscd o the Gioup's Consshdated Stazerrent of Financial Position when the Group pecones Dary 13 the
contractual provisions of the mstrument

i-ade recevanies and trade 2ayasles areimtally measued at lar value Suosequent fointialiecogniion, they aie camned 2% arartised oost
using the cmerhod and in the cage of rade recevanles, 1983 any rrparment [osses Irrparment losses are measuted using an
expected credit logs model The Group uses the simplified approach 1o Teasue r*xf)ef"—‘d ared:t losses for Uade recevables and therefore does
not track changes in credd nsk, but matead recognises 4 loss allowanse based on lretvre expen ed credrt losses at each seporung date “usther
details are provided in note 24(e)

e e

Dervaive nancial insturmeanis of the Gooup are used to hedge s ex005 e o nicies
financing and investiren:

sate and foreiyn suriency 13<s ainsing rom poeiatianal,

vILIeS

Ir zeeordanca with s teasuty ooloy, the Groun does not held o 1ssue denvative financial instruments ‘o ading purposes Howeve:,
dervatnes that do not qualify “or hedye accountng are accounted for as ading mstrumenss, as fallows

© DJervatve inancial insturents are stated al far value The unhedyed gaim or loss on remeasurenrent <o fair value 1s recognised immediately
i she Consoldated ncome Staterment,

+ Tnefar value of fo eign exchange 2onrasis s the estemated anount that the Gronp would “esewe Or 2ay *o e mingiz such Contaz's
yea  end date. taking into account the “orwa-d exchange rates orevaling at that date

a:the

where dervauve financial insiruments a-e used to hedge cash “tow 1s<, such ag inverast rate swans, the effective sart of any gam or loss on
<he fair value of cash llow hedges s recognised in the Consohdatad Staterrent of Corrprehensive Income and 1 the hedge reserve, while any
ne“eguve partis recogrised immediately in the Consoldated Income Statencent Amoun:s recorded In the hedge reserve ae suhseguently
reclagsihed o the Consofidated Incorme Statement when the mterest exsensa s aclually recogmsed

T qualify far hedge azeounting tho hedging relatonship miust veed sevaral condiauns with esoect 1 docurmentanon, prosatility of ocounencs,
hedye effectiveness and ielability of measu-ament AL the nception of the transacuon, the Group docurren's the relationshin Between hedging
insfruments and hedqged items, as weli asits nis< management oojective and sirategy for undeta<ing the hedge transaction Thiz o-0cess
maludes inking all denvarives designated as hedges to speaific assets and haoilhities or 1o specihic firm commizments or forecas® sransacions

The Group also docurments 1ts assessTen:, at hadge inception and on a half yearly basis, as to whether the derivatives that are used n hedging
transactions have been, and are li<ely to continue to be, effective in of*setting changes in “arr value o cash flows of hedged items

Interest bearning harrowings are -ecognised inmally at fair value Subseguent o nrtial recognition, Intaiest beaing bouowmgs a‘e stated at
amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being i2cognised in the Consolidated Incone Sratement over the senod
of the barrowings on an effective inter st nasis

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash balances and call deposits Bank ove-dral's that are repayable on de nand and form an integral part o
the Group's cash management aig, whee there 1s a right of offset, included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for Ille purpose of the
Consohdated Statement of Cash ©lows

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Tranzactions in foreign currencies ase “e2orded using the rate of exchange ruling &* ~he date of the transaction Any gain or 19353 on *ransfation of
monataiy foreign currency assats and habiliues ansing from a movement in exchange ra‘es subsequens to inimal measurement 15 included as an
exchange gam or loss in the Consoldatzed Income Statement

Non ronetary assets and habilizies tha: are measured i terms of fustoncat costin a foreign curiency are t-anslated using the exchange rate at
the date of the tansaction Non-n-cnetary assets and llabiities denominated in foreign currencies that ase stated at fair value a e -etranslated o
the ‘unctional curency a* foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the farr value was determined.
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1. Group Accounting Policies continued
Tre assets and labilites of ove subsidhary undertakings, inciudimng goodwill and fan value adjustumen's &
asthe zlosmng oxchany ame graramants and cash flows o7 such unde:aings a2 ranslaad s

s cauisiiion, ae translated
qhrod average fates

menty -0 oenod end

en:

o exchange othes than susstara U an3actons that asc tanslated a the rate on the date o e ransaznon The ad.,.
sgres are ta<on o the coiralanive en equity and resoted in hﬂ Consaldared Starement of Conebenses Inzome When an
G e o At e A nged T iua e L_.H, Lhe s ClovianT st 40 Phe STAnSIaTIon e sm ve s idis erncd Lo oo an oL

sliny dosignated as o hedge o7 a net inve A foroign aperation

SO Tl ey sy e etranglation of a inancial lia

are azoqEsed and e ha Dongohdated Starermnen: o Comorahansive Income, 1o "he exten tha o h 3 ettestive To tha exren:
tatthe nedge 13 meffect ve such drterences are recogmised 1t 2704 o 1035 Whei the hedged part o7 ana nivestrant s disposed of, the
aseociated cu rulative 3 Nouan i the sanslauon reserve s transered to proil o lass as an adjustment o the o o an disposat

The 7 mapal exchangs -@es used were as follows
i d

202"
Aveiage Closing
Swerling o Eurn (£7 - TUR) 16 119
Srering o LS Dollas (£ = LISy 133 135
erling o Swedish Krana (£7 = R :H 12270
Srarling o Indian Runes £7 - INR) T0t 7 1002
Sterhing s¢ Aust-ahan Nollar (07 - AJD}) 183 1 Bh

INVENTORIES

Inventor.es ase stated at the lowe af cost and net realsasie value In detorruming the cost of raw matenals, consuranles and goods ou
tor esale, errher the © denending on the nature of thenventory Cost for workn aagiess and finishe
somprises deest materals, dren anorton of attributahle overheads

lanau and an a7 000ate 21
PROVISIONS
A provision 15 -ecognised in the Consslidated Statement of Tnancial Position whan the Group has a present legal o constructhive obligatcn as
result of a pas: evens, 1115 siobatle that an outflow of economie DDHPWS will ne requirad to se'tle the oblgation and a teliable esuimarte can e
made of the amount of the oobgaticn If the effest of the ume value o7 money 1s mateal, provisions are detesmined by discountng the expected
fut e cash flows a* a ore tax rate tha -eflecis current marker assessmants of the e valuz oF Twnehy and, when aso oorale, Lhe ns«s spectfic
=2 the haoiliny When disnouning 1s used, the e ease in the rovision due 1o the passage of e s recogruisad as a inance cog

ased
A goods

ge 203 nethodisu

Jror gvens

Aprovision for resruciuning 15 - esoghised when the Group has avoroved a detaded and o mal “est uctunng olan and the restruciunng erthe has
corrmenced ar has been annaunzed pushaly futire gaesating costs ale nat provided for

ot ry

Ir accordance with the Group's envicanmental pohicy and analicanle legal requireTents, 8 2rovsion o S1le reS10ration - espect contaminated
land 1s ~ccognisad as an chhigation anses

LEASES

To the extent that a night of control exists over an asset sunject 1o a lease and with a lease term axceeding one year. the Groud recognizes a

nght of use asser, “epresenting the underlying lease asscr, and a lease habiity -ep-esenting the Group's obligation to maxe leaze sayments The
aght of use asser s inmally Teasured a: cost, which compnises the inial amount of the lease haxihty adjusted for any lease payments made al
ar before the corrrrencement date, any mitial direct costs mourred and an estimate of the dismanting, removal and restoration costs as required
by the terms o° the lease contract

The nght of-use asse 15 subpsequently ded-emated using the straight ne method from the nmencemen: date o the earlier of the end of the
useful lde of the fight-of-use assat o the end of the lease ter 1, |f ownershin o the leased asset transfers ta the Groun at the end of the lease
term of the cost reflects the exe-tise of a purchase option, depreciation 1s calculated using the estimated useful iife of the asset The nght-of-use
assers are also subject to review for imparment (see accounting policy Tmoarrment of assets’).

The lease hanility 1s measured st the dresent value of the future lease payrren:s discounted using the Group's incremental bor owing rate, being
the rave that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary 1o ootain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment
with similar ters and conditions Future lease payments include fixed payments, vanable lease paynrents that depend on an index or arate
srntially measured using “he index or rate a5 at the commencement date), amoun's expected 10 be payable under a residual guarantee and the
exeicise once of purchased options wheare 1115 reasonably certain that the 2pton will oe exercised Finance charges, resresenting the unwinding
o7 the discount rate, are rezogrised in the Consohdated Income Statement over the acriod of the lease

Lease payments for low value assets and short term leases {less than 12 months) are recogrused as an expense on a straight-ine basis over the
lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

1. Group Accounting Policies continued
REVENUE

Ravenu? s measued ! o the srovision of goods and serviozs The aronn:

—are mcluded in rhe cont-ac: sieralien

the consideranon spesied n a on a0
ognised axcludes saes and is adjusten v AISCOUNTS 0F v )\um— e :
dFom -he cusiorrer aight activizies oy if the ansno Ao srivines et o fulll 3 aerforance onhgauon
EANSROCTATIOR AT 10 et e A 40 Te s ot s g2 YT Ll “':uua on At ety will anty ecognise the sonside aton
i the entty s deter mined to pe Acting as prinsipal in the agrecrent ahe wase e considers )wud T the o TANEROT
057815 2ooysed nar of ‘h» ; vanue The Doonys cont 1:‘.-g wirh castomens do ot contam glg.nh;a-r nanaimng
2oNI0NeNts and aayrent ‘et a e ganetally uztomnaiy liary znerates

O

e

Tovere

as whizh zach s

o the Jursdien

The Grous -ecogrisas -evenue when it rransfors cont ol over a good or servicn 1o a custerer The followmng infor manon seis out the (‘,'fnubk
anproach to the natute amd nming of the sanisfaction of pe“ormance obligalons incontrac:s with customers in each of rs ooerating segmer
and the -elated ravenue recogmition pohzies

Engineered Solutions (formerly known as ‘Utilities’) and Roads & Security

“or standard oroducts thar are manufactured, rfevenue 1s ecognised whoen gosds are acocented by customers, which iz usuatty on delreery
deperding on the Incoterms defined in the contrant The Grous also enters into ce:tain contracts which requre customers 1o Insaect and accent
gnods that have been manufaciu-ed out ~etained in the Grodp's facihies in these cases the customer 1s deemead to have accepted the sroduct
when they have provided evidence ¢F ther- acceptance and “evenuc 1s theefo-erecogmised at that point, assuming that the oher catena set oyt
I IFR3 15 have been me?

cn

N o1 the Grouss DusiNesses in the “ngnea ad Solutons and R0ads & Securty segronts manutactu e non standa-d orodusts that are
Efel C o customer cequirements and thereiore ~equire a high degree of “sation The Gioun nas detemined that inthese cas slgelsiVion
with no atternaive use s created Where the contactual terms are such that © the contract s rermmated by the customer then the Group has a
aght o rembursemant of the costs incurred ncluding a reasonasle margin, revenue s recognised over time 1 e oefore the comotaied yoods ase
delrarad to he cusiomers Jrenmses Progressis gene-ally determined using indut rethiods (3uch as costs ncurred), unfess the cirnumstances
of the contract a2 such thar outpur methods (such as miles ones ~eached) ale constdered more aporonrate

L

omers as an addinongl sevice evonue oW sallation sevizes s
generally less than une monih

Wi s0ma cases the Sroun 2 ovides installauon 0 it3 arodus's o o
coqmized oves the netiod that the mstallation ta<es slace, whish s

e1an of the Groud's busmesses in these segments engage in contacts with custeners which include vasiatle consideration This coours
nhe e the Group Drovides ret-oseciive sales volumc resaies 1o cotain CusioTers cnee, amongst othel natiers the quantry of gaods
purchased during a predetermined senod exceeds thresholds specified in the sales contact To estmiaie the vanable ransidaranion for those
exsested future resates, the Groun applies the Tast likely amount method to refles* the consideration that the Grous s enitled o Vanablo
consid coognised o the extent thas 1t s highly orobasle that tha inclusion will not iesuliin a significanT revenue reveisal it
the future

Certain of the Groun's Roads Jusinesses routinaly genw ate revenue froom the rental of assets to custome:s Revenue from -hese rental
agreements 1§ recognised over the enod over which the assets ate avallaole to the customer f an asset "hat s held for rentals sold, the asse:
18 transferred from oroperty, plant and equipment taonventories as the carying amount whon the asser ceases o e rented The oroceeds from
“he sale of such assets ac recogmised as revenue in the Consolidated Income Statement

The Group clasaifies proceeds from the sale of scran products generated in the manufaciunng oiocess within revenue.

Galvanizing Services
Contracts with customers in the Galvanizing Services seqgrent ase generally simple Revenueg s recognised a1 2 pointm time, which 1s when the
nalvanized goods a e ether despatched or collected oy the cusromer

The Group classifies v oceeds from he sale o oy-products generazed duning the galvarzing orocess within revenue

CONTRACT ASSETS
Contract assets ortmanly -elate 1o the ghis to consideration for wors completed vut no: billed at the repo-ting date Contract assets are
tansterred to recevables when -he nghts secome unconditianal

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contract liabilities arise when the G-oun receves consideration from customers based on an agreed biling schedule, as estaplished in

the contract, which may not cor-espond with the 2atern of perfor-nance under the zentract. Where consideralion has seen recewved but 5
performance cbiigation not satished at the ~eporung date, a contract liatility 1s recorded and presented as Deferad Incorre in the Consolidaced
Statement of Financial Position

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
The Growp operates pension schemes under which contnbutions oy employees and oy the sponsonng companies are held in trust funds
separated from the Group's finances

Ohligations for contnbutions 1o defined contribution pension schemes are recognised as an expense in the Consolidated incore Statement
as incurred

ihe Grous's net obliganon n -espect of defined genedit pension schemes s calculated separately 07 each schena oy estimanng “he & nount
of future senefit that employees have ea ned in return for their service i the current and onor pernods This senefit s discounted o determine
s oresent value, and the far valueg 97 any schame assets 13 deducted The discount 5 theyield a2 the year 2nd date on AA rated bonds
that have 'W!'urx'y dates apa-oximating 2 the terrs of the Group’s obhgations The ;alhu\a s nerformed by a qualfied actuary using the
projected unit method Scheme assets are va!uod at bed price,
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1. Group Accounting Policies continued
In The Consolidated Income Staemen® cuent and past service vosts a'e ecogiised in noeranmng pias and thaentors
yenet oshganons 3 inzluded o inanoial 2xnans

57 on the ne” defined

> in

and lessas in calculaung the Grouns obhgation mrespest of delined ene ey are resayinsad anauahy and renor

PR TENE ey e

Al actuanial gan

the Sonmselvatng

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

he Sraunissues equity setled share-nased yayments to certair eoloyess incluting those i the Sorm of suy-out . ed ‘)anu—”
awaids Thefarr valie o7 shaes oo graned 15 tecoghised a3 an ennioye= exdense witha ;o Ionding ne e egurry 5 The
farvalue s calzulated ot the grant date and soiead sver the oenod duning which the encployees seco o uncandiianally entitled "o the shares."
opuzrs The Black-Scholes nadel nas been adopted as the srethad of evaluanng the ‘ar value 9F the aphang whe'e vostng 15 hased on non
Tkt condeians, while a Maonte Ca'o Sunylation s used where vesting s based on ma ket condittons The antount recognised as an expense
15 adjusted o reflect the actual nurber of awards for which the related service and non-rratket vesting condinions a‘e exnested 1o he meT,
such that the amauar unirately secagnised as an exoense s based on the nonbar of mwasds that do meer the related service and nan marker
2erfe mance conditions at tha vesting date ros share-basad paymen: awards with non-vestng conditions, tha grant date faw value of the share
nased payment s reasu‘ed o retiect such conditions and there 1s no adjustiment for differences netween expeced and actual curcomes

a0 e

The fair value of aTounts payable 1o erployees inrespec: of share appreciation ngh's settled in cash s coogmsed as an eTployee expense
and coresponding increase n labilines The tar value of the hasihty 18 remeasn-ed at each reporting date and spread over the periad during
which employees secome unzondmonally entitled <o the paymaent,

FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSE
r"manf‘mi NCOTe SOTRISes KTeres NG 1A on funds mvested and gans on the far vaiue of Anancial assets and talilites at tar value through
aroft o loss Interast mcome s recognised as it acoiues in the Consolidated Income Statenrent using the effectve mrerest method

Finanzial exaense comp ISes Nerest 8xense an norowings, m'e et cost on et pensicn scheme osligations, unwinding o7 dacounts,
[osses cn the far value of Tnancial assets and haalines at “ar value through profis o toss, the ierest exoense on lease hanilities and inancisl
= o rafinanciag Al 07 wing costs msad i the Consolidased Insore Staterrent using he effective intaiesr ethod

2xpanses ekl

NON-UNDERLYING ITEMS

The Group's accounting oohcy ‘o non-undertying ites 1§ as follows

Non-underlying rems are prezented sepacalely in the Cansclhidated Incorre Staterment where, in the Directors” judgomen:, the quantuT, natue or
volatiliy of such stems gives “urthen n*o manon to obtam a fuller undeisianding of the undelying serformance of the business The “ollowing are
nciuded by the Group inils assessment 0F non undarlying iteims

- Gamns or losses ansing on disposal, closyre, restrustlnng of resiganization of businesses that do not meet the definmon of discontinued
noeralons

< Amarisanon o Intaagite fixed aszes g sing on acquisiions, which can va'y depending on the nature, si7e and frequency of acquisiions in
each financial ernod

- Expenses associated with Acquisiiions and disoasals, comnasing o ofessional fees ncurred, any consideration which, under iFRS 3
Revised)isiequre hetreated as a oost-acguistion emaloy nent expense, and changes in contmgent conside aion 2ayadle on
dULsIIons

+ tmpairment charges in -espest of tangible or imtangible fixed assets, or nght of-uze assets

+ Changesin the fair vatue ¢f dervative fnanoial instuven's
« Sgnificant past service ilems or cutalients and settlements relating to delined nenefit pension obligations resuluing from Tatenal changes

In the terms of the schemes
The non-unde- lying tax charge or credr 2omonses the tax effect of the above non-underlyng rtems.

Detals in respect of the non-undelying tems secogrised in the current and prior year are set out in note 5 to the Financial Statements

INCOME TAX

Incorme tax on the prafit or loss for the year rearesents the sum of the tax currently payasle and defer-ed tax Income tax 1 recocgised in
the Consclidated income Statement except to the extent that It relates to items eithe recognised in other comprehengive INCome or directly
0 equity

Curren: wax 1s the expacted tax payable on the taxable profit for the year Taxanle arofi differs from net orofit as repo~ted in the Consohdated
Incoma Statement because ©* excludes 'ems of Income or expense tha: are not taxable or deductinle. The Group's liabiity for curent taxis
catoulated using tax rates enacted or susstantively enacted at the year end date, and any adjusimeants o tax payable in respect 2° pravious years

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax 15 prowided in full using the Consolidated Statement af Financial Posmion hatihty meathod and represents the tax expected 10 be
payable o7 recoverable on the temporary di*ferences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilities ‘or financial renorting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation ourposes The followng terporary diferences are not provided for goodwill not deductible for tax purooses,

“he initial "ecognition of assets and labilities not resulting from a business combination that a*fects nesthe” accounting or taxaole prafit, and
differences relating tonvestments 0 sudsid) Il 1es 1o the extent that they will noteveise i the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax

2 ovidedis hased on the expacted manne” of realization or aetrlement of the sarryng amraun: of assets and habilities, using tax -ates enasted or
suastantively enacted at the year end date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

1. Group Accounting Policies continued

A deferred tax asset s recognised only to the excert that 1115 Jrodacle “ha' “utire taxanle profits will be avadable agains: which the assal can se
wihsed The cattying amaunt of derei-ad fax assets s -eviewad at 2ash yeas ond a2 and reduced 10 the axient that 115 no longe yonasie thar
suticien' axable profitwall ne avalasie "o allow all 07 2at ot the ¢ D ey o

assels and hashnes a o offser when “hey elaie o ineo re axes [2vad ty the s e saxaon thary and -he 3 aan mterds

ant rax assets and kabihoes onanot .

ORDINARY DIVIDENDS

Dividends are recognised as a haxlity n -he oeod v whitn they a 2 ano-aved oy the Company’s sharsholdes,

OWN SHARES HELD BY EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST (EBT')
Transacuons of the Group-sponsoied EBT are nzluded i the Gious Financial Stazements In parucularn the Trust's puichases of shares in the
Conrpany a e debred direcily to equity

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Governimen: grant INcome 1s recognised whese there s "easangole assuance that the giant will be receved, and all attached condimons will oe
complied with, When the grant relates mo an expense rem, s recognised gs income on a systematc 0asis over the senods tha! the related
cass, tor which it s intended <o corpensate, ave exsensed Governrent grant incorre that 1s inked to canital expenditu-e 15 deared to the
Consolidated Statement of Sinanciat Pogiuoen as Defer-ed Gova nment Grants in Liaohties and credred to the Conseldated Income Statenent
over the tfe of the related asset

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

vWhere the Group enters Inno finanaial guarantec cont o gquarantec the indebtedness of subsidhary comaanies, the Group consides these 1o
be nsurance cont-acts and wreats the quaraniee contrac as a contngent ha|ty unil such time as 1t necomes orosable that the Grouo will se
required 1o maks a payment unde the guarantee

Jatorred

setle s o

2. Accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Yhe oreparation oF the Groun's consolidatod fnancial 31atements requies MAanajemant 1o make Judge vents, estimates snd azsurprrong that
affect the apolicaton of aceountng sohces and reported amounts of Income, expenses, assets and haniines Actual osufts May differ fram
lnese estimates

® IMPAIRMENT OF GOCDWILL (NOTE 13)

Estimates

The determinatian o whethe: goodwill and othe indafinre fe intanginle assets should seimnaired requies the est mation oF futu-e cash ‘lows
and grow:h factors adooted oy each cash generatng unit —urrhermore, diszount (ates anoled to thase cash flows a e determined by relerence
to the mar<ets in which they oaerate and are 113k adjusted to reflec: 15ks and oo tunites existing for each cash generatng unit These facto’s
are all affecied by orevaiing marke: and economic “actors outgide the Group’s control Further informaton on this issue, including sensitrty
analyses, s included in note *3

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS ON PENSION OBLIGATIONS {NOTE 27)

Estimates

In dere-mmiming the valuation of the defined benedt donzion dr s ocertan estmates ssuniplions a2out the scheme have oeen made,
notably the inflation rates, discount rates, martality and pension increases The factors affecting these assumptions are influenced by wider
maco-econo T *actors that are largely outside of the Group's cont-ol A sensrtivity analysis of the impact of changes in key assumptions 15 et
autin note 27

TAXATION (NOTES 9 AND 17)

Judgements

Liaoiities for uncertam “ax positions -equire managemen: judgeents in reagect of tax audit issues and exposuras in each of the Junsdictions in
which the Groun operates Whera managerent judges that a fax posrhon 13 uncertain, a current fax hiabifity 15 held for anticioated taxes that are
considered 1o be probable based an the infarmation available The key judgerrent arca for the Groun s the 21cing of intercompany goods and
services and other 2ross border transactions between subsidianies in different countrigs

andl

Estimates

Management is reguired to ma«<e an estimate oF the current tax hability together with an assessment of the temporary differences which arise as
a consequence of different accounting and tax lreatments Liabilities for uncertain tax positions also require management estimaies in -espect
of the amount of tax that may become payable Management engages with professional advisors in making 1ts assessment and, If avproonate,
will liaise with the relevant taxation authonmies 1o resolve the ma‘ter The tax habilily 1s reassessed in each penod to reflect managements best
estimate n hight of the information avallasle. Included in the cuirent tax payable is a liability of £4 6m (2027 £4 /) for uncertan tax positions.
Dezending on the conclusions of any tax audits conducted oy the tax authonties in the various junsdictions in which the Grouo ope-ates,
rmanagerment estimate the range of nossible outzomes to be between £l and £5 7m {2027 £nil to €6 1Tm) and therefore 1213 posaible that, if the
outcoTes ae different (o those estimated by management, the difference may matenally imoact the income tax charge / (credit) in the year in
which the matter 1s conctuded ~urthes information s set out i note 9 and note 17
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3. Segmental information
BUSINESS SEGMENT ANALYSIS
nz Groud has s rennetinle
TNANAY 2N ctu e and fmanzal epo ung systers dif
view Thal they compase @ =porir s s2grent on the nasis o the o

d Solunions Aand Galvamizing Seovices The 5 ooudysint2nal
‘P Pnt\-itt, .)ﬂ‘mﬂtlﬂ hese segToents angd, mn -2 3oitang, Tanageent haye aken the
OWING eCONGTIC tharaciens

ses sunlyimng products designed o 2nsure the 3a%aty ard sooupy oF
wed i addess nanosal and sitermatonal safery standa ds 1o cusione s

- The Roads & Security scgrron: amns a qrous of susme
and ethes nabiznal mfrassucte eany of whizh have Deen dove
ewnlved i the sonsTushion At infiaztuoiuie,

+  The Engineered Solutions -“,ej‘w“r'r‘t contans a grous of Dusinesses suoplying products characteised Dy a degree 07 enginees Ny exoer sy,
w0 pudhia and pvate cusiore s invelved in the construction of ‘acilines serving the utibties and other nfrastiuciure narke:s, and
+  The Galvanizing Services seymen: contains a group of companies supphing galvarwm; and related 1ateials coating sevices to
conmaanies in a wide -ange of mar<ets including construction, agiculture and n“astiucture
Coiso ae costs are allocatad 1o exortable segirents in proso-tion to the revenus of each of those segments
SEGMENTAL INCOME STATEMENT — CONTINUING OPERATIONS
252
Reported uUnderlying 2enarted Une 15"Ivmg
operating operating oneratng
Revenue profit profit* Hevenue ot
£ £m
Roads & Secunty 2597 5]
-nginegred Soiuticns 27237 255
Galvanizing Se vizes "41 8 339
Group 6252 459
Net “inancing ot (]
Profit before taxation 128 T2
Taxalion {14 43 e H
Profit after taxation 284 b5 7

of segmert orofit used
el

“ Undellying 2aerating orofit 1z stated befara ren-enderbving items as dpﬂrwd I the Group Accauntirg Zelices o page 137 and 15 the measar
ke Chief Operating Cecision Maker, w Tel nve Theeportad operating srofit columins are e uded as addmonal infar

"
Yy

TransacTions Dotween DPeraing SegTents arg On an anm's Ing:h Dasis snulan o {’am%ar'lons with third parties Galvarnzing Servizes sold
£6 8 (2027 6 57 of nrodusts and servines o Roads & Secunly and £2 0 (2027 £ om) of praducts and services mo Engmeered Solutions

Sngmes-ed Solutions sold £1 9m 12021 £3 0im) of produsts and savices 1o Roads & f_-?ecu‘\,y Theae miternal -evenues, along with “evenues
gene-ated From within “halir owi seg Ten's, have been ehminated on consolidation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

3. Segmental information continued

11 t+e foiloving tables, revenue from cortracts with custoress  disagy oyatad oy srma y geograohical mareer vajor oroduct service ines and
NNy O TEVeNUR reCITARIaN. ROVEIUS Y INMATY gengrashical Mal < i 35 the end Incation of the Sious's vioduct 5 seovice The mble
Ay neides a reconoliation of the disaggregated evenua witn 1he GrolL's redo 4Anie segments

Cutitliuing psperations Roads & Security Engineered Solutions Galvanizing Total

Primary geographical markets

LK 163.5 1652 . B7.2 720 a5 3325 306 8

Rest of -wope 167 295 8.7 60 25.4 355

Notth Arenca 70.3 368 1874 373 27 . 3563 266 3

The Viddle East . 4.9 32 06 7.3 33

Tes: of Asia o 1.9 06 70 5.8 77

Res: of the world Lo 42 44 07 .- 4B 51
2618 2597 7237 a1 L 7324 6257

Major product/service lines ’ ) v

wManuracture, sunoly and ’ . : “" . S

mstallation of produsts ‘ :2{0.3 2237 - : ‘\530,2 4611

Salvanising services o e - 418 1807 1418

=ental ncome ) ’ 21.2 212 22 3

2615 273 / alg 7821 6257

Timing of revenue recognition - . >

Products and sewvices ransfe red - L '

atapanuintine 2000 1202 147§ 4620

Products and servizes transferred l

over e 26 7 1335 1637
259.7 2237 147 3 5252

The 3roun has no ratenal unsatishied or parbially satisfiad performance obligatians ar the balance sheet date that have an exoacted dutation of
Aore than one year and theretare has taken the practcat expedien: under 7R3 13 not o disclose such details

ADDITIONAL SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS
Capital expenditure and amortisation/depreciation

2021
Impairment Irparmrent
losses, losses,
amortisation amorisaion
Capital and Captal and
expenditure  deprectation expendiiure  depreciaion
£m £im £m
Roads & Secunly 3 24 4 30.3
=ngincered Soiutions 44 38
Galvarnizing Services 83 103
Total Group 341 444
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) 357 209
Intang ale assets {note 13) 14 235
Total Group 371 44 4

The 2072 amounts for impairmeant losses, amarisation and depreciation relating to the Roads & Security segment include intangible agset
impaiirren; [osses of £4 4m relating ‘o Parking Facilities Limited, The comparative for 2021 included goodwill and imangible asge's impaiments
of £53 2m in -espect of Parung Faciliies and £10 8 in ~espect of ATG Access
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3. Segmental information continued
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS

202"

Total assets £m
LK 280.3 2908

w95t 0f rooe 98 907

N Th A Tenea 380.2 27372

Asig “11.2 "36

~es: of the world 128 53

Total Group 694.3 6733

2021

Non-current assets £m
UK *92.0

Regt of —urone 432

No~h amerniza R

Asia 37

Rest of the wold 37

Total Group 4119

2027

Capital expenditure jalay
LK I

Rest o' Curope 30

North Amesica 209

Asia a0

Rest of the waolla 4

37"

Total Group

4. Alternative Performance Measures

The Group presents Alternative Performan e Measu. 2s (APMSY in azdit on 1o its sfatutory results These aie preseated m actordance win the

Guidehnes on APMs ssied Dy the Suropean Securmies and Ma-kets Autho oy The onnzipal APMs a2

+ Underlying nofir before taxatian,
+ Lindeslying operating profi,
+ Underlying ooerating prefit margm,

+ Organic measure of change in revenue and underlying operating profis,

+ Undelying cash conversion rann,

+ Capral expenditure 1o denreciation and amorisation ratio,

+ Covenant net debr to EBITDA ratic, and

+ Underlying earnings per share A reconciiation of statutory earmings per share 1o underlying earmings per share s provided in note 11

All underlying measures exclude certan non-underlying tems, which are detailed in nete 5 References to an underlying profit measure are made

on this basis and, in *he opimon of the Jirectors, aid the understanding of the underlying susiness performance as they exclude tems whose
quanturr, nature or volatility gives further information to obtain a fuller understanding of “he underlying serformance of the business APMs are

nresented on a consistent basis over time 0 assist in comparison of performance,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

4. Alternative Performance Measures continued

RECONCILIATION OF UNDERLYING TO REPORTED PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

21721

£

Lnderlyrg o hioofee e T o cunliig uprid s 87.9 ;e
Nen-uivde ving rencs included in opeaiung 2200t ho'e 5 ) . {18.6) 28T
Reported profit before tax from continuing operations 69.3 473

RECONCILIATION OF UNDERLYING TO REPORTED OPERATING PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

BY SEGMENT

Roads & Security Engineered Solutions Galvanizing Total

Underlying operating profit from = ... . - I
79 . .. 354 260

continuing operations 773
Non uaderlying items
A0 tIEANON 5F 30qUISITON L
nanghles ] 08 (6.0} {59
Business eorgamsalion cosis - " (2"9) {45
ProarTent of A83ets - S {6.4) )
xaenses related o o
azquisthions and disposals 1 0)
_05s on dispasal of
. sunsidianes ’ () 4)
Reported operating profit from ; T
continuing operations SO 48 G
CALCULATION OF UNDERLYING OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Roads & Security Engineered Solutions Galvanizing Total
2027 2021

Continuing operations o

Unde lying ooe-ating 372%% 334 773
levenue i 1418 5252
Underlying operating profit Lo : -

margin (%) 50 6.9% 23.6% 12 4%
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4. Alternative Performance Measures continued
MEASURES OF ORGANIC AND CONSTANT CURRENCY CHANGE IN REVENUE AND UNDERLYING OPERATING
PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

husinesses Irespent oF acgustion
notheld n e pro yeas Inces
aerad m the pr A7 tNd Lhe
ant yea”

rent year shat

O ent T

aevaled in the o
Roads & Security Engineered Solutions Galvanizing Total
Underlying Underlying Underlying Underlying
operating operating operating operating
Revenue profit Revenue profit Revenue profit Revenue profit
Continuing operations £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £Em
2021 259.7 17.9 2237 26.0 141.8 33.4 625.2 77.3
impact o exchange ae
meneements Som 2027 1w 2022 54 16 159 22 B7 24 795 56
2027 translared ar 2027
exchange rates (A) 265.1 18.9 239.6 28.2 150.0 35.8 654.7 82.9

Acquisiions, disposals and

clasures - oe - "0 8) 25
Orgamz growth/dechne) (B) 68 209 g2 249 -3 7
2022 () 350 1807 4ad  7321. 974
Organic growth % 5 L - L R
(B divided by A) c241% ..o

Constant currency change %
{(C-A) divided by A)

CALCULATION OF UNDERLYING CASH CONVERSION RATIO

202"
£im
Undarlying operating profi
Cantinumng oaeatons 773
Jissontinued operatens 8.7
860
Calcutation of adjusted onerating cash “low
Cash generated by operations 1031
Less Pu-chase of assets for rental to custonars 67
Less Purchase of aroperty, plant and equipment (77.8)
Less, Purzhase of mrangible asse's (14
Less Repayments of lease habilities (163
Add Proceeds on disposal of non-cur-ent assets 37
Add bac< Defined benefit pension scheme de’icit payments 37
Add bac< Cash flows relating ‘o non-underlying items 27
Adjusted operating cash flow 670
Underlying cash conversion (%) 78%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

4. Alternative Performance Measures continued
CALCULATION OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE TO DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION RATIO

2021
Lo

el cUlalidr G samtar éxoenditure

Purchase of assets ‘o rentat 1o cusoess 10.6 s
Purzhase of o-aerty, olant and cguinmen: 18.4 g
Purchaze of mtanyible assets o 2.5 14

. 815 359

Calculannn of deoreciztion and amortisation

Desreziation of oroperty, plant and equiprene (note 3) 209
Arrarysation of developmen: costs (note 8) 1
Amontisanon of other intangble assets (note 8) 03
73
Capital expenditure to depreciation and amortisation ratio ) L 1.8x 1 6%
CALCULATION OF COVENANT NET DEBT TO EBITDA RATIO
2021
£
2eported net dect (nole 20 1447
_ensea lighilines (note 16} 47 46)
Arounts telated to refinancing upder IFRS 9 25
. Covenant net debt (A) 065
Lndelying operatng profit 861
Desracanion oF owned 23385 innte 14) 219
Qghotuse asse: depreciation inote 18) 133
Amortisation of develooment costs (note 7 3) !
smmortisation of othe intangible assets (note "3) a3
tinderlying CBITDA B
Adjusted for
_ease payments (note " B) o h
Share-based payments expense (note 25) 283
annualised EBITDA of sunsidianss acquired;disposed a4
Covenant EBITDA (B) 107
T 0

Covenant net debt to EBITDA (A divided by B)
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5. Non-underlying items
INCLUDED IN OPERATING PROFIT

27
£y

055 on dhsnosal o snubsidianes L a4
Business reni gan st 1)
IMoar nent af asgeta o) 60)
Arvorasanon of acquisihon mtangibles 61
Dxaenses -elated i acquisitions and diaoosalas 120
Total non-underlying items 1290
Iotal non undeslying items - contnuing operaions 128 4
Tota! non-unde lying rems - disconsnued osesations 106)

Noes

3} In2022 ~ha Groug covaleted the disposal of the maganty of 113 Swedish “oad
Novemnei we sold the infrast ustare zontracts division, ata combined [oss of F

T 0m Details aro sel out helow

Disposal of Swedish rental and infrastructure contracts divisions £m
Prooerty. plant and equinmen: 20
Rught of use assers 21
Inventones "
Current assets 02
Current iashties (02
Lease habilies 20
Net assets disposed 3.2
Consideration recewved 75
Cumulative exchange tifferences (03)
Loss on disposal 1.0

squisiiions and disposals in the table above
Incelanon o the "emamning ousness. The

The Goud al30 ncured costs of disposal of £0 2 which are mcluded within ‘exoenses 2lared to
Alongside the disaosals, asset imoarnents of FO2m and reorgamsabion 20305 of £3 3m weie insu
‘otal of non-unde-lying net charges ~clating o the Swedish business s the-etore £2 0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

5. Non-underlying items continued
I~ Oetaber 2022, the Groua coraleted the disoosal oF Srance Gava, s = ench galvamzing andg highting column busiress atalass o’ 10 4m

Nedlls ¥ tha disposal are se7 out Halow
Disposal of France Galva £m
Poamerty orart and egquigment 284
ntang ey 32
g vafusea 19
lieen o 15 240
Cuerent assots 175
Cash ard cash equivalents 59
Deread rax 14
Laease labilities s
Surrent habilies 202y
Loans & bor owings w3
ROvISIONS (29)
Retirement nenehit obhgabon 14.0)
Net assets disposed 64.6
Conside auon ecerverd 6210
Comaiative exchange difesensas 22
Loss on disposal 0.4
. The Grouz atse incured nosts of disposal of £1 2m, which are included within ‘expenses ~clated o acquisitions and disc csals' nthe table above

in 2027, the loss on disposal of £0 4m relazed 1o she sate of Techinocover Lrred the Gioup's small access nove s ousiness

b In May 2022, the Sroun 709« the decision 1o exit the low-ma gm slasha yaduss onerancns that formed part oF our US roads business Net
charges on cloaure wralled £2.9m, comonsing JuUsINess (e Jansalion 20813 27 £1 T and CimnArTent charges oF £1.2m

in addizan, fallowing the closure of the Group's vaianle message sign (VMS) pusiness that was announced in March 2021 the Group has
mcused a further £7 3mof cogs i 2022 inrelation 1o he contpletion of legacy contacts The business reorganisaion costs of £4 S5m0
2071 alzo celated to the VMS closue

()

i aarent charges of F6 4man 2022 comorise the portfolia Tanagerrent actons explained avove (otaling £2 0m) and a charge of £4 47
(2021 £S5 2m)in-esdest of acqusiion intangile asse’s relatng to Par<ng —aciiries, one of the Group's UK secunty susinesses Parking
-acihbes manufactures and sells a range of setinetar aneess securlty doducts, aredominantly to spesialist secuny mstallars in the UK

The COVID pandermic resulied in a weak (-ading period in 2023 a3 sevaral cusonrer contracts were cancelled o aoatponed and whilsi the
ausiness saw a marginal ITproverment in revenue and siofitabilty 10 2021, ongoing constiaints on custome: nudgets continued 1o waigh
ondemand In 2022, customer actvity contnued 10 ne weak and susoly chain challenges, nout costinfiation and coerational issues led to
a deteriorgtion in marging The Board's ~eassessment of the “uture outlook for Parking Facilities, which also too< into account the irmpact

or gross margns of develooments in the compentive landscape concludad thas there was imited prospect ¢f the ousiness retusring w0

the levels of profitanility proviousty anticipated and therefore that the expected future cash flows were not su*ficient 10 su200rt the carymng
value The resultung imaarrment charge of £4 4m comanses £4 21w respec! of asguirad custome lists and £0 4 in resoect of acquirad
srand naes, meaning those assets have been fully imoared as at 31 Decerher 2022 In 2027, impament chasges also mcluded £73 8 an
resoect of acguisition goodwill and intangible assers “elating to ATG Access, another of the Group's UK sccunty dusinesses

INCLUDED IN TAXATION

The tax effect o “he above items is a credr 0 the mcoire statemment of £3 71 (2021 £7 'm}
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6. Employees

The average number of people employed by the Group during the year

=oads & Secunty 1,078 215
-ngneerad Saluanyg 1,550
Galvanizing Se wizes 1,167
Total Group 3,79%

Total employee benefit expense for the year

Wages and salanes

Share nased payrrents (note 25) 28
Social sezurty costs 205
Penzion costs {note 27) AL

1508

Both the average nurrber o° peonle employed ay the Gr
CentnuINg cperaticns

Remuneration of key management personnel
=erruneration i relaton fe short tern benehts
lesmination benehts

Share hased sayments

Company cont isutions 1o money Ju-chase pension plans

2321
£m

07

Key managemen’ personnet are those pe sons having awthonty and resaonsibiliy “or planning, drecung, and cont-olling the activites of the

Group, directly or indrectly, including any direc:ors (woether executive o otherwise) 0f the Group A7 the Deginning 9 2021, the Group announced
ablishent of an Executive Board 1he structure includes the Executive Jirectors, Grous

o1, who all report nito the Chief Cxecutive Since ' January 2027, key Managemen: dersonnel
ase considered 0 2e the Board of Drecrors of - Wl & Spvich PLS and the mambers of the Zxecutive Board who are not also Jirecto~s of the Group

anew senior manage rent structure and the ¢
Presidents and the Coraorate Developmeant Diic

Fursher detaiis of the Dreotors’ remuneration and shase interasts are given in the Drectois’ Remuneration Repott on pages 97 19 154

7. Net financing costs — continuing operations

interast on Hank desosits

Financial income

Interest on loans and borowings
ineres: on lease hahilities (note 16)
Financial expanses related o rehnancing activitics

Inteest Cogt on ngt sension scheme deficit {note 27)

Financial expense

Net financing costs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

8. Expenses and auditor's remuneration

Income statement charges

DEeciation oF o ooerty slant and equisrent

Qg of use asset depreciation 03
Sho e leases 4
_ow value icases o
Less on disposal oF nar-current dssets

Researth and development expenditure WA
Arrorisaton of acquisiionintanginles B
Amorhsation o° develeament costs [

Amrortsation of other intangible assets

Imaalrnent losgses

Intangete fixed assars 163)
Tangiole fixed aszsets
Right-c*use lease as -
Income statement credits
Foreign exchange gamn . S - 01
Prafiton disposal 0f non-our en: assets < . - 12
Lrants ecewanle ) L= o
. Subloase meome note "6 C 0.2 06

amounts “clating 1o discontinued aperations included in cha aple aocve compnise dedreciation of property, plant and equioment of £7 8
12021 £4 0y nght of-use asser deprecialion of ED 4m (2621 £3 /A1y, and anve tisauon of acquisihon intanginles of £0 3m (2620 £0 4m)

A detsifed analysis of the audior's -omuneation worldwide 1 as ‘ollows

Audit o the Comaany's Annual Accoun's

Audit oF the Comroany's subsidianes

1.6 15

A descrston of the work of the Audit Committee s set gutin the Audir Corrmuittee Report on nages 86 10 97 and includes an explanalion of
how audiro abjectivity and independence s safeguarded when non-audit services are srovided by the auditor Audit-ielated assarance services
totalled £3 0300 (2021 £4,000)
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9. Taxation

Current tax

LK COrpOranian ax 41 4"

Cyverseas tax ar orevaling local -ates 14.2

Adjustimanrisin t2annet 0F 2105 yeas 1.8 14)
201 T34

Deferred tax (note 17}
LiK deferred tax
Overseas tax at orevaling local rates

Adjustrenisin resnact of 3101 years

“fiects of changes intax rates and laws

Tax on profit in the Consolidated Income Statement

Deferred tax (note 17)

Relating to defined beneft sension schemes

Tax on items taken directly to other comprehensive income

Current tax
Relanng to sha e based payrents
Deferred tax (note 17)

Relating ‘o share-oased 2ayments

Tax taken directly to the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Tne tax cha-ge in the Consolidated Income Staterment fo the peniod 1s ugher (2021 highe) than the standard :ate 07 corporazion tax i the UK

The differences are oxolamed pbelow

Profit before taxatinn From Sontinuing oReranons

Profiz beiore raxation fron discontnued operations

Profit before taxation - total Group

Profit before raxanon multiohed by the effective rate of coporation taxn the LK of 1903 {2021 13 0%)

Fxpenses not deducthible/incone not chargeable for tax ourposes

Non deductble goodwill imparment

Bene*its f-oim mternatonal financing arrange nents

Locat tax incentives

Overseas profts taxed at higher rates
Recognition of losses

Overseas losses nat ~elieved

lmpacts of iate and law changes

Adjustren's in rasoect of dnor years

current and prior years

Tax charge

Tax charge atirfzutable to continuing operations

Tax cha~ge attnizutable to discontnued onerations

202
£

473
8.1
509

(2

167

A4
23

157

Stock Code HILS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

9. Taxation contirued
2.0/ the Eurapean Cont vussion opaned a stae aid invesiiganon inta ine G oup Dinancing Zxerphon in the LK Cont olled Farergn

CoFCY legsstation, announoing 1 Aonl 2213 tha 1 deleved i certan o e CFC regime constituted Sate Al In 237 T e
SUS ecened 3 Chargng notice f o SMRC oquiing 1110 Say £ Bt es)e 1820 considers had heen anlawiully ioceived
T evious yoan s, which was Daid m full in Februany 2021

F

agohinal ons o annui the Comyasion’s deasion had seen mado i onior years ov tho LK Sovern ren the Grous and other afe;
The L General Cours dehvered s deaision on these appheanors it June 2027, Fnding in favour of (e Commission Mary of .
nzluding the 3 oup, have andealed <ns desison o the Sours of Lusice of the TU - laving laken xoe s advice, we have conzluded th Dol
15 hcely T he sl ub As aresult we contnue to mecodr 1 rax recervasle of £1 civwekun non Sunear azsots ceffecung the Siouns view
that the arrourt paid will ulmaraly oe recovered

10. Discontinued operations

ar 25 July 2522 the Grouw annaunced the sroposerd disposal of France Balva Sa (France Gala'), our French galvaizing ard hightmg column
one-auons, and on that date entered into a pus aphan with the poospechive purs ; Onh Saptemae 2022, the sharehaoldars of the Groun
anproved the olan 1o sell The sale of France Galva cormplated an 4 Dotober 2027 for £62 O, resulting in a loss on disposal of £0 41 (note 5)

=rance Galva has been classified as a disaosal goup as requied oy IFRS 3 Non current assers held “or sale and discontinued operations As the

disnosal resuled in the Grous's wirhdrawal from all aperations in France and noting that the susiness accounted for approximately 15% of Grouo
revenues pro- 1o dispasal, Trance Galva's results have been reported within discontinued operatons in accordance with IFR5 5

202"

Non- Non

Underlying underlying* Lnderlying underlying* Total

£m £m £r11 £m T

Revenue R ’ 98 798
Caat of bales 53 3) - 23 9)
Gross Profit 263 - 263
. Distribution cosls i40) o
Adrimistrative expenses ("36) {0 6} A7
Operating profit 8/ (26 81
-nanting nsts -
Profit before taxation 87 [(0a) g8
Taxation 2 3) - 23
Profit from discontinued operations 64 (06 58

v The Ginuns definuon of non-undar ving rems s nzludad in tha Sroup Accoutng Policies 21 page 137 3nd turther details o0 ran-arderiyin g itams are nzludadn
rate 5

"* Re

2sents rire monhs of activly dror 10 the sale an 4 Qerober 2022

The net cash fliows generated fone the sale of Trance Oalva are as follows.

Cash received from sale

Cash and cash equivalents disaosed

Net cash inflow on disposal

I'he net cash Jlows generated/{ncurred) oy France Galva included in the consolidated cash flow statement are as follows.

MNet cash tiow from operating activities
Net cash flow from investing activities

Net cash Hlow from financing activities
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11. Earnings per share
= welghted averaye nurbe of ordinary shases in
PERATe DN A0 M 2020 8D 6} iy

e uamg the treasury

nsed i nste 2o

soodides thar his o

s A G za2
23 an30ut of the dilitve s of
e crethod Lndedying esinings per share have nesn shown o
Aesvaluanie addigna piamation absa the unde Tying oeforvanse

Sue (dusng e yags e

Basic ea-nings
- continungy

chscantnued

2022

Pence
per share

T ey oy

of the Groun

wred *e the effacts of he ourstanding
i anding share 300
cduse the Dnieciors

RIS
P

SINIWAIVLS IWFIDNYNIA

Pance

ner share

284

ot
o

Total basic earnings

342

Non underlyng e s
- SOMINUING

chscontinued

273

36

Total non-undetlying items

279

Usniderlving earnings
— continung

discontinued

EER
64

Tota!l underlying earnings

62!

lured eanings
—conlinuing

- diszantinuerd

234

Total diluted earnings

Non-underlying iterms*
- CoOnUNWNg

- diszontinuerd

Total non-underlying items

Underlying diluted earmings
- Zontinuing

= disoontinued

58 .

342

Total underlying diluted earnings

= Nan-under ying iters as detaled i note 5

12. Dividends

DIVIDENDS PAID DURING THE YEAR

Intem dividend paid in relation 1o year ended 31 Deceinaer 2020
Final dividend paid in relation to year ended 31 December 2020
intenm dividend paid in “elation to year ended 31 Decenchar 2027

=inal dividend oaid in relation 1o vear ended 31 December 2027

per share
3

Total

Stock Code HILS

2/ 3

Co

279

557

a4

621

7020
Pence

ner share £
g2 73
175 139
267 212
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

12. Dividends continued

DIVIDENDS DECLARED IN RESPECT OF THE YEAR

202!

Pence Pence
per share ne shgre £y
nter 1 dpsacdond declased i selation to yea endad 37 Dovenme: 2027 - - g Gy
senal divedend desla 2dn melateon to vess endad 31 Jene vos 2027 - - "33 in!

tnenir dividend declared o ~elatcn to yea-ended 3° S Tger 2022 13.0 10.4 -
rinal dividend prososed i elation to vear ended 3 Decormroe: Rt 220 ) 17.6 -
Total 35.0 28.0 3170 247

The final dmidend fo- 2022 was arooosed a™e the year end dase and was nol recogrused as a haihty at 31 Decemoer 2022, n acaordansa with

A5 10

13. Intangible assets

152 Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Capitalised Contracts,
Customer Development licences and
Goodwill Brands Lists Costs  other assets Total
£m £m £m £m £m Em

Cost

AT Sanugty 2321 169 i 300 oh 4 177 70 7907

Fxehange adjustrents 7 {02) 02 2

Azguisition of subsidiary 55 a7 32 - ! 18

Addvinns - - 12 0z T4
. Zisposal of subsidiaty =) o3 {39 - i18) 79

At 31 December 2021 710 302 553 189 75 2879

Exchange adjustments 90 21 22 J2 08 143

Acquisitions of subsidiaries 93 2 98 - - 203

Additions E - - 23

Disposals of subsidiaries (49) 105) -

‘A1 37 December 2023 286 668 21.4

Amortisation and impairment losses

A1 Lanuary 2021 353 142 333 134 | 1322

=xchange adjustments N (02) 103) Q) - (23

[hanosal of sunsidiary 4 {03} 139) {18) (79

Amoriusanon charge for the year 10 34 : 20 75

Imaalrment losses 124 0.3 33 60

At 31 December 2021 441 15.0 323 144 92 1755

Exchange adjustments T3 17 13 01 05 43

Disposals of subsidiaries {16 9) {38) {C5) - (0 5) (21 7)

Amortisation charge for the year - 10 33 1

Impairment losses -

fokimber 2022 . 15.6

Carrying values

At 1 January 2027 158 6.1 43

AL 2" December 20721 157 225 45

At 31 December 2022 149 247 5.8




13. Intangible assets continued
2022
NATIONAL SIGNAL INC

Un 4 Detabe 2322 the Grous acquiad the susiness and assets of Nabiznal Signal Ine INazional Signal™s = o its sharcholders for an intial

sh conswleration 0° L2 5 plus a furthes £7 /m relanng o oost 2oroletion warng sapstal adjustronts pavanle ety n 2023 Further 2as

carsidernnor of up to P dms sayable, condimonat on Nationa Signal's acheve rent of finaniss serlo mance tasgets n the three years oost
Jsmon Nasoul Signgt loocated m euiie aifo iz s a designe manuaorer and susohes of off gnd sola: hghting sclutions in the USA

and g thaeiore hghly tomolerrenta y 1o the Grouo's 2027 asquisihon 27 Paole st Senvizes, dissuased in deral delaw and will futher goeeleans

“ha Grou s stategy n s rast growing nan<et

Detals of the acgustion are set ouw Delow

Provisional
Pre- policy
acquisition alignment
carrying  and fair value
amount  adjustments Total
£m £m £m
Intangible Asse’s
Brands - 1.2 27
Customer hsts - 59 39
Property, plant and equipment T {0 2) 13
Right-of-use asses - 13 0
Inventories 37 4 33
Curient asse's 28 03 55
Total assets 11.0 10.2 21.2
_ease haoilities - (o o
Current iabilities 2m 129 7°5)
Provisions - {27) )
Total liabilities (2.0} (2.2) (4.2)
Net assets 9.0 8.0 17.0
Consideration
Tatal consideration 242
Goodwill 7.2
Cash flow effect
Considerauonin the year 215
Cash acquired with the business -
Net cash consideration shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 21.5

B-ands and customer lists have been recognised as specific intangible assets as a result of the acguisiion The esidual goodwili ansing, which
has oeen allocated ' the Roads & Security segment, oimaily rearesents the highly skilled workforze, futui o technological advantages and
potential for geogranhical expansion a*forded to the Group Policy alignTent and fair value adjustments have seen made 10 align the accounting
policies of the acquired susiness with the Group's accounting policies and to reflect the fair value of assets and labilties acquired. In respect of
leases, the Groun measwed the acquired lease hatilities using the present vaiue o the remaining fease payments at the date of acquisition The
nght-of-use assets were measurad a7 an amount equal to the lease hatyties and adjusted to retlect the terms of the leages relative 1o matket
terms Fhe fair value of -he current assets acquired includes £5 5m o t-ade recevables, which have a gross value of £57m

As par: of the acquisition agreemnent, additional conside-ation has seen agreed The amoun: of additional consideration is dependent on Nauonal
Signal's gross profit for the three years 1o 31 December 2025 Below the “niggers’ {as defined in the Asset Purchase Agreement), no additional
zonsideration is due If the triggers’ are achieved, additionat zonsideration of £3 3m becomes payable

Post-scquisttion the acquired business has contnbuied £8 3m revenue and £ 4m operating profit, which are included in the Group's
Consolidated Income Statement If the acguisition had been made on 1 January 2022, the Group's ~esults for the year from continuing operations
would have shown revenue of £/754 6m, underlying operating profit of £132 Om and reported operating profit of £83 4m

Stock Code HILS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

13. Intangible assets continued
WIDNES GALVANISING LIMITED

On 30 Septembar 2022 the Sroun acquired 130% of the sba 2 zawmal of Wadnes Salamsing Limired SwWidnas ) T an st cash considers

of £3 5m, 2lus £0 2 relaung o PP
fuithar exnands the qoagrashe

growth stategy

At of the Crann 2 Lk jalvanizeg onsmess e the aosth we

Deralls of tha asquusitign 4 e set ot aelow

os" comalelion worang 2anital adius ments and a further £0 2 deler ed unui 2024 The anguisiian o
of the LK and s aligred o tha Grous

Pravisional
Pre- policy
acquisition alignment
carrying and fair value
amount  adjustments Total
£m Em £m
Intangide Assets
Custamer hsts - 09 ca
Property, plant and couipment 0.5 - Co
Invantones 03 - 33
Curent assots 09 99
Cash 04 - !
Total assets 2.1 0.9 3.0
Current habihties a4 WA
Defarred max - oM RN
Provisions - 07 iC7s
. Total liahilities {0.4) (0.8) (1.2}
Net assets 1.7 0.1 18
Consideration
Total zonsideraton 39
Goodwill 2.1
Cash flow effect
Consderanon i the year 35
Cash acguired with the business aa
Net cash consideration shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 3.1

Customer lists have been :ecognised as specific Intangible assets as a ~esult of the acquisition. The residual goodwill ansing, which has deen
allocated w0 the Galvamzing segment, primarnily “epresents the lighly skilled workfarce, future technological advantages and potental for
geographical expansion a*forded 10 the Group Polizy alignmen: and “air value adjustments have oeen made to align the accounting policies

of the acquired business with the Grouz's accounting policies and to reflect the far value of assets and labilmes acguied The fair value of the

curren’ assets acquired includes £0 8m of trade recevables, which have a g-oss value of £0.8m.

Past-acquisrion the azquied businass has contriuted £0 87 evenue and £nil aperating profit, which are included i the Grou's Consolidated
ncome Siatement If the acquisiion had been made an © January 2022, the Groud's results for the year from conlinuing operatons wouid have

shown revenue of £734 6n~, under lying operating profit of £97 6m and -eno-ted operating profir of £79 6m
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13. Intangible assets continued
2021
PROLECTRIC SERVICES LIMITED

On 1 Masch 2021 me Group acquires 700% of the share cannal o Profe services Lireted CPrtectnie™ and vy dorrant sussichanes fo
aninial conside-anon 27 £ 2 0 Fusther consideratian of un o £5 7 was navasle deoending on Brof achigventent of financia?
SErfTmanGe g gots i Lhe T2 month period (0 31 March 2022, whish ulerately were nat achievea, Prolec: seated in Clevedon, North

Sor LIS 3 LK o kel leade 10 pgnd solan energy solutions, ahgning slosely with the Group's ou : AUNY SUSLANANIL INTasut e

and oroviding new achnalogy that (e S-ouD 2an levarago in s sxsting nrarkets Deails of rne acguis: reosat O aelow

SINAWALYLS IWIONVNIA

Pre- Policy
acquisition alignment
carrying  and fair value
amount  adjustments Total
£rm £m £m
Intangible Assets
Brands - 07 o7
Customer lists 30 30
Contracs, haenoes and other assels 31 16
Property, dlant and squiran: 76 (15) 11
Right-cf-use assets - 24 24
Inventcries J4 - 74
Current assety 9 - -
Cash a2 02
Total assets 5.2 6.1 11.2
Lease liabibiies " 8) {18)
Current laoilities ) 1o .
Current interes: heanng habilities oA 12 -
Deferrad tax (O] R it
Total liahilities (2.3) (1.6) (3.9)
Net assets 2.9 4.5 7.4
Consideration
Consideration in the year 120
Fairvalue of contingen: conside ation due within one year (mtial assessmant) 39
Goodwill 5.5
Cash flow effact
Consideration in the year 120
Cash acquired wathin the business 02
Net cash congideration shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 11.8

Brands, customer ists, contracts, licences and other assets were recogrnised as specific intangible asses as a result of the acquisition

The residual goodwill arising, which was allocated 1o the Roads & Secunty segment, pnmarify represents the highly skilled workforee, future
rachinological advantages and potential for geagraphical exoansion a®orded 1o the Group Policy alignment and “air value adustments were
made to align the ancounting policres of the acquired busness with the Groua's accounting policies and to reflect the farr value of assets

and labilities acqured In respact of leases, the Group measured the acquired lease liabiities using the present value of the remamning lease
payments a: the date of acquisition The right-of-use assets were measured at an amount equal to the lease liabities and adjusted to reflect the
terms of the leases relative 1o maiket terms. The fair value of the cur-ent assets acquired included £1 3m of trade recevasles, which had a gross
value of £1 3m

Stock Code HILS 155



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

13. Intangible assets continued
CASH GENERATING UNITS WITH SIGNIFICANT AMOUNTS OF GOODWILL

2720
For

Engineered Solutions
US Comaoaites 17.7 57
VES Lhihities 6.0 3
Orhers = £5mindwidually 5.4 50
Roads & Security
National Signal T4 -
ATG Aczess T 47 47
HES Ine 82 856
VRS Solutions Groun : ‘T:G.’if» 04
Mallazte ) ,‘ ’ 9.6 94
Prolaniic ) 55 55
Dhe 3 <E5 71 ndrdidually - 0.2 ' 03
Galvanizing Services ‘ -
Srance Galva SA - 18
[ h2
LK 243
Others < £ o nehradually

1269

Goodwill imoarment reviews have seen carried out on all CGUSs o which goodwill1s allocated

METHODOLCGY AND ASSUMPTIONS

Bnpavment tests an the caryang values oF yoodwill and 2ectain brand names of £8 52227 £7 5m), whizh a-e the Groun's only other indefinia
hfe inangiile assets, are performed oy analysing the caryng value allacated to each significant CGL against its value in use All goodwill 13
allocared o spenific CGls which are in all cases no fa-ger than operating segments Value muse s calculated “or cach COL as the net oresent
vatue of that umit's discounted <utu e cash fows These cash flows are sased on budget cash flow information for a period of ene year and
st-ategee plans for 2024 theough 7026, hoth of which are orepared taking Imo account a range of factors nctudng nast experience, the forecas!
future frading emarcnMent and mac-oeceongmic condtions w the Orous's ey ma‘ke:s. [he cash flows beyond the strategic olan peniod usce
growth rates whizh reflect the long te-m bistonizal growshin GaIP o' *ha economries i whizh gach SGLhs [ocatad, excluding 2070 and 2021 given
the shard 2conoim™e Movements It those veass dug 1o COVID-19 The long term growh ates are 2 0% m the UK and 2 5% 0 tha USA
SUMMARY OF RESULTS OF GOODWILL IMPAIRMENT REVIEWS

The zaleulated headroom between value In use and carrying value of each of the Group's CGUs with significant amounts of goodwall, together
with the pre-tax discoun: sates apphed, are set out below The are tax discount 1ates are derved from a marxet narticizant's cost of capstal and
nsk adyusted for mdiidual CGUs crrcumstances

2022 2921

Headroom/ Headioomy

Goodwill  (impairment) Discount Goodwill  {rrparment) Miscouns

rate £ £m rate

US Composites i = 457% 57 1067 1319
V&S Utilities ‘ 53 701 14.0%
YRS Solutions Groug o4 044 T30%
ATG Access 155 {10 8) 13 0%
Mallatite 57 271 13 0%
Prolectne - - -
Pa-kng Facilines 16 152) 13 0%
Fiil & Somith Ine 86 213 14 1%
Galvanizing Services — LSA 252 2076 14 0%
Galvaizy Servives — UK 743 8343 13 0%
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13. Intangible assets continued

Based or- the vehodology set sut anove and as explained in nate 3, themsarneen: seview for Pav«ang “asiltes concludad that while the
assosiaed gaadwill 07 £ am had Haen fully imoarad n 2521 the repraining carrying valug of tha susiness ot 37 Doxerbe 2072 exceeded s
reooverasle aTount and accondmgly anmaarment chatge of £4 490 in ragnent of tha remaming acuiizior ntangibles has seen ecogmsed

mnantiy o aneciahst secu vy mstallers in tho
2 cancelled 2 postioned and whie

oo

FPaang "achiunes manutacy and zells arange o peruvater ac
LK Qe esulad g weak Lading senad e 2020 a5 3

the usiess 3aw 3 Tagaal g cvarent al tevenue and oo iabiliny m 2077 ongoing constanis on Jusime budgets conunued o wergh
an demand In 2022, e aztvry conanuerd 1 he wea<and sunply sham challengas, inout cost mflauon and coerationalissues fed 10
LUDTAUDM N ! s The 3nard's reassess Ten: of the future nutlaok o Paikang Facibines which also ook mto actount thenaact on
q0E5 0 apTents inthe competitve landscase, concluded thas there was limited 2103060 of the ausness returning 1o the levels
of preftabilty pieviously anticizated and theiefore that the exsected fulure cash flows were nat sufhicizn: wo supoort the carrying value The
resufng T AT Men® thatge of £4 4m compnses £4 Smanreszest of acquired customer hists and £0 4 anespec: o7 acquired vrand names

SENSITIVITIES

The Group has asnhied sensitvines (0 assess whaether any reasonanie nossihle Shanges i assumpions could cause anmparmen: of the
goadwillin any CGU that would e matenal oo these Consclidated Sinancial Stalements The sensitivily anatyses did not identify any potential
rrsarment o any Col, with the exception of ATG Access and Hill & Sith Ing

ATG Access

AT T3 future serfomante 15 lagely dependent on the pace oF postpandanic recovery In LK and glozal sacuiy produsis marets, whizh sabf
13 mhetently depandant on ho ™t auahc custame” ehaviou: and booader econamic conditians 1715 plausiote thar the dace of ~zcoveyy could be
more gradual than that assured in the imparrent tests that have been caried out, i which case a further matenal imaarrment could anse
Revenue growth, 97038 marging, long rerm cash flow growth and the discount rate arc the <ey assurrpticns on which the goodwill imaairment
review 15 Mas: senaiive The ‘ollowing tasle provides information on the intpacs on calculated head oo of vanious scenanos for cach of thase
key assurvistions Jndenendently in each case)

Sensitivity Headroom/
applied (impairment}

Input Seenans

Comaound annual revenue growsth 2022-202 /7 Bage case
HES sensiiaty 1+

H&S sensitivity 2

Gross masgin Y 2023 7 Base case

H&S sonsrtised

annual cash Tow growth 2027 onwards Bage case

H&S sensinised

Pre sax discount rate Base case

HES sensiused

= llLstratas the imzacts of comnanund revenue growth st 2+, icorsistent with lang erm UK growt rates] and 0. e revarues do not grow from 2022)

== The hase case assur
gross arofit margin 2.

thar gross arofit marging across the penod 2023-27 are slightly below t7e 27 achieved in 2022 The 1125 sensitised case assumes a
23-27 of 24, 10 ime with the average gross Targin across 2021-22

Hill & Smith In¢. {H&S Inc))

H&S Inc manufactures, sells and ents a range of wo zone orolecon aroducts including crash attenuators, raile-mountad message bhoards,
and temrporacy road sa‘ety bartiers, 10 construction contracto s and traffic specialists across the US roads market While underlying market
conditions remain healthy, the susiness' performance in 2022 was imoacted by operational and cost input challenges. The carrying value of the
H&S Inc CGU also increased by ¢ £7.0m duning the year as we nvested in rental barmer assets and inventones in anticipation of future demand,
driven by projected invastment in US road infrastructuie, suoported by mc-eased spend from the lluA. Consequently, calculated impairmen:
headroom fell to £9.6m (2021 £21 3m), noting that pre-tax discount rates also increased by 99 basis points to 15 0% The Group's projections
for H&S Inc assume that acuions taken to address the operational 1ssues will be successful, and that short 1o medium term revenue growth

will be above long term averages due o the anticipated increase in “ederal and state highway spend from the 11JA over *he next five years The
main drivers of that revenue growth are exoected to be terrporary road safely barne rentals, suoported oy the ousiness’ mvestment 10 dullding
its rental barnes fleet aver the sast swo years, and crash atenuator sales, where the business has developed a complementary offering to i's
existing market-leading produc? that will begin *o be markered 1IN 2023 We recognise, however, that there could be variations in the pace of
improvement and growth and therefore we have modelled a range of scenarios for the outlook Revenue growth, gross margins, long term

cash flow growth and the discount rate are the key assumstions on which the impairmen: calculations are most sensitive The following table
provides nfarmation on the impact on calculated headroom o° three possible scenanos for each of those key assumntions (ndependently I
each case), the f17st showing the Board anoraved projection, the second the assumptions that result in zera headroom and the thid a severs 13Uz
plausihle downside scenans

Stock Code HILS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

13. Intangible assets continued

Sensitivity Headroom/
applied (impairment}

o S0enanio

Comoourd annaal rogwon e groee b 2023 2007 Dane oans

Zero nean oom

HRS sensrtvIty

Corvpound annual g oss wrodt margin growth 2023 774 Bago case
] g
Zog headroom

HAS senstvity

Annual cash flow giowth 2027 omwards Base case
Zero headroom

H&S sensitivity

Pre-tax discount rate Base case

Zern hoad-oom

485 5ansiivity

Lo The sersitvity Sceran shows
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14. Property, plant and equipment

SINAWALT LS TI¥IONVNIA

Plans,
_anel and Fachmnery
Bukangs  ang vehickes Total
£ £m L
Togt
AT Lanuary 2021 275 2297 3572
xchange adjustrents oo 27 43
Acausimon of alhsidary (note "3 - T P
additions &6 2901 357
Di1s20sal of subaidiacy Inoie 5) i an 28}
Transfers o anventones - 16 e
Disposals 123 13 3) 14 5
Transfers - assets held for sale Inote 15) - (G B) (6 6)
At 31 December 2021 1295 2378 3674
Exchange adjustments 83 93 81
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 13) 03 15 18
Additions 35 757 297
Disposals of subsidiaries (note 5) 316 (38 4 700
Transfers from inventories - 33 J3
Disposals 0n) (59 7
Transfers to assets held for sale (note 15) i2 Q) - )
AL 31 Dicernher 2022 L - S T A R T |
Depreciation and impairment losses
ALT Lanuary 2321 437 12949 1735
=xchange adjustren.s (1 "7 (2 8)
Jinosal of subsidiary (note 5) 10.3) oa ]
Disposals o {70.9) (1" 9)
Charge for the year 49 160 209
Iransiers to assets held “or sale inote 15) 14 6) {4 5)
At 31 December 2021 46 2 1279 1741
Exchange adjustments 26 a8 64
Disposals of subsidiaries (note 5) {128} 28 {41 6)
Disposals 108) (63) (6 9)
Transfers to assets held for sale {note 15) O - 1)
Charge for the year 40 131 91
ﬁlmpairment - 01 0

Carrying values
At 1 January 2021 838 99 8 1836

Al 31 De
=

rler 2021 B3 4 109.9 193.3

The gross book value of tand and buildings includes freehold land of £17 5m (2027 £17 0m) Included within plant, machinery and vehicles are
assets held for rental with a cost of £98 6m {2027 £98 9i) and accunrulated depreciation of £47.6m (2021: £46.7m)

The gross book value of plan, machinery and vehicles includes assets under construchion of F20.6m (2021 £15 37)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

15. Assets and liabilities held for sale

2
£

_and arid culdings 18

Plaas vvachinosy and wolnsles - 20
Righs-of use agges - o th
Total Assets held for sale 1.8 36
Lease hatliies - !
ther hanihties - 025
Total Net Assets held for sale 18 17

o~

Assets held for 3ale a1 31 Degemoa 2022 1eoreson: the o operty that was vacated "ollowing the Sroud's exet fromts low imargin US framio
control products businesa, furthear details of which are set out in note & The property 16 expected to be sold in March 2023

Assets and hamilities held for sale at 37 Jecember 2027 related 0 the Group's Swedish renial operations, which were disposed of m Apnl 2022 as
exdlaned in note b

16. Leases

Thedrases held Dy the Groun can ne snlifints twe zategones land and buildings, and slant and 2quipmant. The Gioud [#as23 vanous 3 02eries
forits manufaciuring and distioution actrvties Plant and equipn-ent ncludes all athe leases, such as vehicles and machine-y

The movements in the carying value o *he rght o use assets and lease hamiies in e years ended 37 Decenagr 20721 and 31 Jecerter 2022
we'e as follows

Land and Plant and
buldings BOUIDMIENT Toal
Right-of-use assets £m £ £n
. At 1 January 2021 195 14 309
Acguisimon of subsidiary 06 "8 24
Addirions 127 41 168
isposal of sunzidiacy - om on
Terninahons 03) o (0 3)
Charge for the year 52) 51 03
Re-measurenan: 0% o9
Transfers 'o 333ets held for sate {note o) - {".a) )
Effect of movermentsin foreign exchange {02 01 {03)
At 2T December 2021 7280 102 3812
Acquisitions of subsidiaries 10 - 10
Additions 51 40 91
Disposals of subsidiaries (1.3) on 14}
Terminations - 03 o3
Charge for the year {41) 47 188)
Re-measurement o1 - [eN
Impairment o2 - (02
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 09

er 2022 " 295
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16. Leases continued

Lease liabilities

At 1 January

ArhlIoNs

I inatars

INteresT exaonse

Disnosals of susaidianes

Acquislions o suosIianes

Logse payrents

REreasurement

franstess to haoillimes held or sake (note 15)

=ffoc of movements in foraign exchange

At 31 December

0.3 ua
am 0
10 i
{11 1)

29

a7

i 02
g 389

The following tanle shuws -he Drea<down of the lease exoenss Detween
financea 203'3

aTounts charged fo operatng 5-0f7 and amounts chaged to

Jepreciation of nght 0f-use asseis
Shot-term lease exnense
Low-value lease exuense

Sublease income

Charged to operating profit

nteest exnaense elaung o lease iabilibes

Charged to profit before taxation

The matur ity 5 the lease hamhties a2 3" Decemrber was as follows

Due wrthin one yea-

Due between one and two years
Due pewweaen two and three yeoars
Due newween three and Tou- years
Due berween four and five years

Due ater rrore than five years

Total lease liabilities

Stock Code HILS

ONVNA

I

SINIWILTL

161



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

16. Leases continued

The Group has several lease contias s that mclude exlension and tevinanon aotions These oplions o 2 negoliated oy Nanageman: 1o o ovide
flexibilily i ranagmg th2 l2ased azsot dorione and alyn widlr the 307 sness needs Managerent cxoise judgertep in dole Tumng
whether these extenzion and te MINAtcn apuons ase «easonatly cestam o se exe cised

Setou nelow ae the
Lndizzounied porzabal future renal payrents relaung (o oaninds fllowing the exercise date or exzarsion that ae not ineluded 0 the leas.
“arm, and

sndigzounted futre rental 2aynhent s elaung W aanods than are insluded in the feasa tanm as the yreac slauses ate ot exonsted 1o e
exarcised

2022 2021
Within five More than Withimn five Ve than
years five years Years frve years Toral
£m £m L £
Exiansion opions exoected not 10 se excicised - : : : A 65 66
Termination options expected not to be . R .
exernised © 1.9 Y 30 43 73

The Zious has lease contrans that have no yer contmenagad as @ 31 Desember 2022 The toral fisure fease payments for these non-canceallanle
lease contracts aa L3 6m {2071 F2 &m)

17. Deferred taxation

Prone -y,
Slant and Retrement Other ioniny
SUCIMeNT Invantoies shligation diffarences Toral
£m £ £ £t £t

. AL Lanuary 2027 17 G) 06 41 51 1/ 8)

Cxchange adjus:rents - - - HERD! o 02

Azquisrion of sussidiaty (note 13) [Re)) 93 - - 07 10

Credited/ sharged) *or the yea in the

Consohdated income Statereant (note @) (G5 (e (0 5) {09y 04 (43

Credited *or the year in the Consolidated

Saerrent of Changes in Equity (note ) - - - - 08 o8

At 31 December 2021 (11.0) (10.0) - 3.1 6.5 {11.4)

Exchange adjustments (0.4} (D.6) - - 0.3 0.7)

Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 13) (0.2) {0.1) - - 0.2 (0.1)

Disposals of subsidiaries (note 5} 0.3 03 (0.3) {(1.2) (0.5) {1.4)

Credited/(charged) for the year in the

Consolidated Income Statement (note 9) 2.6 2.4) 0.2 {D.8) 3.0 2.6

Credited for the year in the Consolidated

Statement of Comprehensive Income (note 9) - - - 0.7 - 0.7

Charged for the year in the Consolidated

Statement of Changes in Equity (note 9) - - -

2022

Deferred tax asse’s

Deferred tax liaomties

Deferred tax liability

162 Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 20272



17. Deferred taxation continued

T deleed t TOFEB AT 2027 B Hlng
ard £33 {2 M) ielatian ‘o shate nased payinents The deferved rax assel nds Heen re
suttzient tax<able wofirs i the fomesceanle uiure agamst which the defeired tax 3338t con oe uhised

soect 0 other tming defferences mclades £4 S 2021 S0 Gmyn elation o tax losses
grusedin fudi as theso ae exoecied o be

2 pie
0 me gan

1 ety The losses ase predominantiy ganr gl
attin the ‘ereseeable fuy o and there are
s s e it on the carying forward of

Mo deferen tax asse bas been recognised in espec of otha tax losses of £17 67 net {2
ol DS Tl L) LU s U s TI0 CHDILE gBING Are expretod
Atal gana agamst which the deferrer tax asse! ould 28 orfser e

No de‘erred ax hasility 15 “ecagnesed on emporary differences of £0 4 (2071 £7 21 relaung o the un-ormitted eamings of overseas
sunsidiates as the Group s able to control the trings of the teversal o7 thess terpoiary diferences and 115 pronaole tha: they will not reve: se
in the fareseeanle future The Group doss not expec: this to crystallise N0 a cash expense in the nea- future

0N tax rate ‘or the year was 19 0% (2021 13 0%) In the Saring Budge! of 2021, the UK Government announced tha®

The UK headline carporat
> of UK corsomanion tax will increase from 19% 10 25% This -ate change waa subs antively enacted on 24 May 2021, LK
%, 190

font 1 4971 2023 the -ar
defered tax asseis and habilties have therefore been caloulated at a rae of 25% {20271 25%)

18. Inventories

Raw matenals and consurmanles
Work i provgress

Finished goods and goods fo- resale

S 1938 08

The amount of mventones exnensad 10 “he Consolidated Income Statement 0 the yoa was £443 7 (7071 £388 81 The value of iventonas
wiitien down and exaensed in the Conzolidated Income Statement during the year amounted 1o £0 3 (207" £04m) The amoun: of invontones
held at fair value loss © 0 sell ncluded in the above was £ml 2021 £ral)

19. Trade and other receivables

Trade and other current receivables
173
/3
"7
o7
g2
13372

Trade recevables
Presay-rents

Other recevasles

Sar value denvanves

Cont-act asse’s

The movermerts in contrac: assets, and deferred income (note 21), duning the year corresaond o the corplenon of pe-formance oaligations
partially satisfied as at 31 Decerber 2021 offset by contrac’s that are in arogress at 31 December 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

20. Cash and borrowings

252
e
Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Uash and cash equivalents 248 153
Banc overdra® inote 21) B - 1070
Cash and cash equivalents net of bank overdraft 248 T3
Interest bearing loans and other borrowings
Arrouns due within one yeai (note 27) f0.3) U2
Amrounts due after mare than one year (note 22} {(104.9) 2
Lease habilities classified as hanilies held for sale (note 153 o= 7
Lease habiliies due within one veas (note 16) - ' {87). e
Lease habilities due after mo‘e than ane yea- (note ™ 6) O 0.6) (30 ')
Net debt Gy (144 7)
Change in net debt C
Qoerating piofi
oM continuing ooetatians 489
from discontinued operations 81
Total Groun onerating oot 5.0
Non-cash iteirs 558
Operating cash flow before movement in working capital 128
. et movement in working canital {H 8
Changes in orovisions and employee benefts 129)
Operating cash flow 1031
Tax pad (Ta2)
Ne: financing £os:s paid 4
Capital exoendiure (359
Procecds on disposal of non-cuirent asse™s 37
Free cash flow 576
Owidends dard note 17) 212)
Acguisitions of subsidianes (note 13) "3e
Disposals of subsidianies (note 5) 18
Amortsation of costs associated with refinancing activities (hote 7 (08)
Puschase of shares “or enployee benefit trust (18
Issue o7 new shares (note 22) 26
Lease additions, terminations and rermeasurermneants (note 16} {171)
Leases dispased of (note 5) -
Loans and norrewings disoosed of (note 5) -
Interest on lease habilities {(note 16) (0.8}
Net debt decrease 05
tfect of exchange rate fluctuations 10
Net debt at the heginning o° the yoar (146.2)
Net debt at the end of the year {144.7)
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20. Cash and borrowings continued
RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN FINANCIAL LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

2027
rm
Interest bearing loans and other borrowings and lease liabilities
AT Januaty 1637
New loans and bor-owinygs 553
Renayments of inans and berrowings H0)
Payment of iease labilities {103}
Costs of refinanaing duning the year -
Cash flows used in financing activities (16 0t
Other changes
Fffect of exchange -ate fluctuations {0 8)
Amostsaton of costs assosiated with refinancing activities (noe 7) a8
ioans and dorowings disossed o7 not 5) -
_ease changes Lo
E**ect of exchange rate “luctuatinns 'ff?!:b {07}

MNew leases

2TANAUDNS
Re Teasurement
Acquisitions of subsidiaties
gnasals of sunsiianes
Inierest exoenze

Interest o

At 31 December

21. Current liabilities

2021

Interest bearing loans and botrowings

_oans and bor-owings 12
Bank overdrafts o7
19

Trade and other current liabilities
Trade Jayables 793
Other taxation and social expenses 95
Accrued expenses 355
Deferred income 47
Other payables 37
1327

The amount of contract habiities included in deferred iIncome as at 31 Decenaer 2022 was £2 Tm {2021, £4.7m) Juning the yaar, £4 3m (2027
£6 1m) of revenue was recogrised in ~espect of contract habilities sresen: as at 1 January 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

22. Non-current liabilities

a0
SN
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
_o4na and borowings 3 104.9 B 1274
104.9
Other non-current liabilities
Dafor-ed consideramion on acgquisimons {),2 a0
Deforred governTent grants . - ]
Accrued expenses - el
0.2 1o
23. Provisions
znwironrmen:al  Restructunng Othe” Toal
£n £ £ £
A January 2020 27 0o/ 30 58
=xchange adjusnents 100 - - VR
Charged dunng the year - 45 04 49
Lithsed durnng the yea” - (1.5) i26) {4

Reigased dunng the you:

At 31 December 2021

Anounts duc within one yeas
¥

2.7 24

Amounts due after more than one year and less than five years 2
s 64

ENVIRONMENTAL PROVISIONS

Environmental provisions recagnise the estima‘ed cost of remediating contarmmated land at a nuncber of the Group's operaang sites, where 1t
is considerad orobanle that the Groud will be obhged ‘o cairy out the necessary -emediation work. Pama ily the yssues idenafied -elate to sres
acquired thoough azquiaiiions of businesses As a consequence of the nature o the lladilities, the timescales are uncertam and the orovisions
represent the Directors' best estimate of the associated costs The Groun has sought expert external valuanons where aoproprate

RESTRUCTURING PROVISIONS

Restructuning Jrovisions 12present the cash costs of clasing or rationahsing operations The provisions 'enresent the Directors’ best estimate of
the liabilities anising and are expectad o e settled within the next twelve rronths The provision of £3 6m at 31 Decemoer 2021 mcluded £3 2m
refaling to the closure o7 the Groud's vanatile message sign business that was announced in March 2021 €1 8m of this provision has peen
utibsed during 2022 and a furthes £1 5m charged, as explamed in note 5

OTHER PROVISIONS

Other provisions relate 1o vanous abligauons ncluding cbhligations in respect o anercus leases, property dilaprdations and claims or disoutes
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24. Financial instruments
{AY MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS

Overview
The Group nas expasy 0 a rumse of nsks assocaied with s use 2! iinancial instruntents

SINIWALVLIS IVIONVYMNIA

Fhis nots o esents Nty yat snabous the S1ouns exoosure o earh o these ris<a, the S oun s onpeerive ~, 0olire 5 ano o 505 “08 NEAS 1)

and managing s« arw the 5ous m semment 0 canral Further quantraive J!EJC asures arc insluded rsaahowt hese Consolidated

Financigl Glalevenis

The Baaid o Dre

73 hag overall saspansibility for <he estabhshrnan: and svarsight of the GIouss 1s< mranagament ~armew ok,

The Oroup's nis< managermant 20koies are estaslished toidenufy and analyse the nis<s faced oy the Groun, 10 507 aupron 1ate nsk imsts and
controls, and 0 ronite ns<s and adherence 1o hmits Ris< managerent sotizies and systems are reviewad “agularly 1o -eflect changes in
maket conditions and the Grouns activiies The Grouz, thiough its rraming and manage nent slandards and orocedures, arms to develop a
discipiined and constustive contol enviconment i which all eployees undz stand ther roles and ohhgatons

The Group Audit Committee oversees how management moncors corpliance with the Grouns nsk managenrent zolicies and procedures and
‘eviews the adequacy of the nsk Tanagement frameworkn relation to the nsks “aced by the Groun A pregramire of commercial, operating,
finarcial and third party reviews 150 oface 10 assist the Group Audit Commries with s assessrent of “he effectiveness of nsk management
and miemal conol procedures.

Credit risk

Crediz nisicos the sk of finanaal (953 to the Sroupif a custorrer or coune pacy o a fmancial instrurrent fals *o meer ta confractual ohhigations.
and a1zes fronycash and cash equwalﬂn 5 denvative finanoial mst-uments and poncisally from the Group's -ecewables from custoners The
TEKITIUM exposure o credit nis< for renavables and other fmancial assets s eoresented by ther carrying amount

The Group has a policy of insunng a sunstantal Taony 07 recewvables m s UK b ses, which acrount for 43% (20270 49%) of the § ’)UD‘
sade eceivasles Any residual uninsuced 15413 spread acrcss a signficant mrr‘bm ’)f customers In cur US susinesses, which account
48712021 30°) of the Groun's trade ecewvanlas, ous ooeranng comuanes have a 2olizy o taing out rade "eferences Darare granting “"—"UT
hrniss and selectively msuning against oedir as<where s deemed an3mdnate oy Management Purzhass imits are 25tabhished for eash
cusmes and are reviewed reqgularly Customers tha “ail to meet the Groups benchmar< oreditworthiness ay ransact wilh the Sroup only on
a prepayment basis The C-oun'a other overseas businesses operate on a surila” basis to the US, As a -esult oF these policies, imaarment osses

are not significant ’
Liquidity risk

Liguidity nskos the 1ax thclt the Grouzowill not e abla to neet s finanoial 2bhJaions as they “all due The Graup's adomalh 'o nanaging
hguedity 15 to ensure, 33 % 335 293a13le, That 1wl always have suffizient hquidity @ meet 105 iabilimes when due, undes both norral and 3*assed

cendimons, wizhout mcdrning unaccepiasle lossas or ns<ng damage to the G oun's “eputation

s1s the Group's solicy o nunirise its iiquidity <1sk in terms of imiting the arounts o° loans and borrowings Maturng within the next "2 months
As at 3" Decemoer 2022 all such dabt was covered ay cash and cash equivalents nathing to F24 Hm posiive cusrent iquidity (2021 £1697)

The Groums puncipal UK revolving credi facility was refinanced in Novenber 2022 The new facifty 1s unsenured, hos a value of £250m and an
itial matu-ity in Noverroor 2076, with an option to extend this marturty oy ane year az the fist anniversaty Along with vanioos othes secured and
on demand lines oi credir, including san< overdrafts, the Groud has ascess o ban< 20-rowing faciliies of £262 2m at 31 Decemnber 2022 (2327
F237 3m}

In addiion, in 2018 the Group signed an agreement with an instiutional investes for a onvate slacement of S70m new senor unsecured notes
"Senio’ Unsecuied Notes™ Theissue consisted of two equal tranches with maturiies in June 2026 and June 2029 respectively

Al 31 December 2022 the Group's toral commutted borrowing faciities were £309 0 (2021 £327 6m) and the amount undrawn at this date was
£201 6m {2027 £202 4m)

Market risk

Market nsk is the <i1sk that changes in market prices, such as ‘oreign exchange rates, inierest rates and commaodity prices will affect the Group's
come or the value o its holdings of financial instruments The objective of marke: risk management 18 to manage and control market risk

(:XDUSUFEb within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on sk The Group buys and sells denvatives in the ordinary course of

business, and also inzurs financial liasilities, in order to manage market risks All such transachons are carmed oul within the guidehnes set by the

Board Refer to note 24(f) for further details

Counterparty risk

A group of relationship banks orovides the bulk of the banking services, with pre-aparoved credit lisnits set for each institution Financial
denvatives may be entered into with these core banks and the unde-lying credit exosure to these inst-uments 1s inzluded when considering
the credit exnosure W the counterparties At the end of 2022 credit exposure including cash depoesited did not exceed £6.8m with any single
instrution (2021 £6.2m)

Currency risk

The Group 2ualishes its Consohdated Financial Siarententsin Sterling, 2ut conducts business in several foreign currencies, including significant
operations based v the US This resulis 0 tarégn currency exchange nsk due to exc hang@ rate movemen:s, which will affect the Group's
rransaction costs and, more significantly, the translation of the results and net assets of 1s foreign gperations The Group's translaion resarve
inchides a gain of £27.4m (2021 os5 of £2 3rr), princoally as a rasult of Sierling's degresation agamst the US Dollar in 2077 representing this
anslation effect on overseas earmings and nat asse's
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

24. Financial instruments contmued
The trading cur-ency of eanh eperaticn 1s
CHMITISE CUrensy 54 wheie 2070073t

domunantly in the same denoination However the Group uses forward exchangs coni=cs to
1w Goou s dass not avoly heaga asouring (o these denvative fmanaial ing ements

g the acquisiions through ke denoTinations of 113 nank Horowing s
A1e3 ae not hedged because Juctiatons onctanslanon of ther

The Grcus hag hedged s invesurentin 13 LS oo anong oy way of ‘i
and the Senio Unsecured Notes The Grouns myvasiments in g-ha suns
anss o Slerthng @ e nos signifean: 1 the 57oun

Interest rate risk
The Semior Lnsesu-ed Nowas a

I's

SSOUA TOT 25% . 2021 42%) of the Binuys o
WWINGS Do

Lstanding 088 borrowings ar 31 Dacermnbos 2077 and attac a figed
rate ofinterest averaging 3 $2% 12077 3922 per annum All othe bo: Sinterest atfloating rates Al the curent ume the Group *eels
that this rano of fixed to floating norrawings 1s apa ta9ate DUl Sonting23 0 noitont n the sonext o econoimis indicato s and wides marxet

cordmons, The Gous belleves that using fixed mterest rate for sho L erm dayv-o-day tading i not approanate

Insurance
The Groun surchases insurance for commeizial legal and zontraciual /2asons Hhe Groun rerams insurasle sk where excanal insu-ance 15 not
commercially viasle

Capital management

The Croup maimtains a srong caprial 3ase so as to mantamn investor, < editor and market confidence and o sustamn future development of the
business The Board monitors both the demcy-aphic spread of shareholders, as well as the eturn, which the Groun defines as 1otal sha cholde s
equlty and the level of dwidends (o o-dinaly shareholdars

The Board sec<s to manmain a halance between the ighar reruring thar Tight ac possinle with higher tevats of 200 owings and “he advanisges
and secuity affarded ny a sound capial Dasiticn

Thare a-e financial covenants associated with the Gioun's homowings, which @e interest cover and EBIT DA to net dest The G oun comrfortanly
complied with these covenants in 2022 and 2027, as set out 0 the Dseational & Pnancial Review on Jayes 22 10 37

The'e werz no s:gmiizant zhanges in the Group's apioach 10 zasital managament duning the year

(B) TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The table below ses aut the Groun s accounting classificanon af its financial assets and habities and therr fai- values as at 37 Degevner The

‘ faw values o all hinancial assets and hamiines arc not matenally difforent 1o the caryng values
Designated at Amortised Total carrying
fair value cost value Fair value

£m £m £m £m

Cash and cash equivalents net of bank overd-aft - 18 181 81

l.oans and other borrowings due within ane year - 12} (2 {12}
Loans and borrowings due a“te' mo e than one year - ("210) {12100 {1210}
Lease liabilities classified as hatd for sale - 7 (7 G/
Lease hahifties due wirhin one year - 23 22) Ba)
Lease liatbihties due after v are than one year - (30M {(301) {301
De-wative assets 0.2 02 o2

Othe- assets 1135 1135 1135

Othe- habilities - 118 6) (118 6) {1186)
Totalaz 3" Jecemnper 202 07 {149 8) {149 6) {143 6)
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24. Financial instruments continved

Fair value hierarchy
The tanle nelow analyses nancal msvuments camead gt far value, oy valuahon seshod The difeient levels have sean o

124 As follows

covel T unadjusted quoted srmesin active ar<ets foridenucal assets ot hahiines

bl are observabie for e asset o ianiiny, ccke asa diect o e o indeectly

ayel " Cevel

En £in

Derivative financial assets - B - 0.3

Total st 31 December 2022 =~ 7 77 - - B3

Denvaive hnancial assets - n2
Total at 31 December 2027 - 0?2 - 02

A 31 December 2022 the Grous did not have any assets or hanilties classified at Level 1 or Level 3 i the far valug hwera-chy (2021 nil) There
have been na bans‘ers in any dieshion in the yoear

The Group's Tinancial aszes excluding short tarm recewanles, consist Tamly of cash and call depoasit azoounts

Whers cash suioluses ange in the short term interest s ea-ned sased on a floaung -ate related o dan< base "ate o SONIAYSO= A ELRIBOR

Where the Greus's funding -equirerents allow longer term investroent of suralus cash, nanagen-ent will ‘eview availanle 0otions t ootan the
best possisle return whilst Tamtaming an approsnate degree 0F access to the ‘unds

d

The Grous's finansial hamlries, excluding sho terr sred saget our Delow mixed rate financial hatilties co v se US Dollar denamin
Senior Unsecured Notes ~loatng iaz Ainancial labilines corpise Steng, Suro and US Joflar nan< nans and ave-dia®™s and feasse habidinies
The floating rate ban< loans and overdiatis bear interest a7 -ates -elated 1o ban< base rates or SONIA/SOFZLRIBOR ke ‘loatng -ates of the
lease haniities a“e determimed using the Sroup's ncresnental morrowing rae, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay 1o soirow the funds
necessary 10 outamn an asset of siilas value ina similar economic environ-rent with senilar terms and candinions

Zach sunsidiary has financial assets and habilines which ase sredarminantiy in the sarre denormination as 1hat suzsidia'y's funcnenal currency
The “mancial assets and hasidines not denominated in the funztional cur-ency of these enumes ase msign‘izant @ the G oun

Certam UK suasidianes hold curo €ral 2027 £9 7im) and LS Dollar £66 /m (2021 £51 3m) denomunated inte-est beanng loans, which ars
predominantly used 1o fund the Group's Zu-opean and United States aaerations and mclude £66 77 (2021 £67 6m) designated as a hedqe of
the nct investment in a “oreign operaton The foreign curency loss of £4 8m (2021 gain of £0 6m) for the effective aoruon was recognised in
the Consolidated Statement of Zomprehensive Income netted aganst exchange differences on franslaton of foreign ooerahions Any ineffective
portion ~ecogaised n the Conschidaied Income Statement s insignificant

Fixed rate financial liabilities

Weaighted

average

Weighied perod for
average  whichrate s
nterest rate fixed

US Doliar st 31 Becember

US Dollar at 31 December 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

24. Financial instruments continued
(C) MATURITY PROFILE

The tatle below sets ot the zonastual cash flows assomaad wirh the Sionys inanoisl habibines maiuding esvmiated interest sayments,
analysed by imaturily

Tiue betwesn LILe Doty esn Jue ate
Carying Cant aotaa D within one and o ard rore thar fve
“franmve amounts 2430 Flows une year Ve years yaars
Inieiest jare £ £ £ m £n
Floating 0.4 (0.4) (% ©.1n : -
Floating - - - 467. ..  .(S78) ... (53.0) .
Cas% o 581 (343

Flosting . . 39 (123)

heldtor sale. - Floging .= e : SR -

OtherBablliies - " aja 16§ (1168 - (1BI.:. 0@ -

Total st 31 Décember 2022 S 261D - (283.8) R0 0 (L5 9

Secured loans and

bor-owings Sloating 18 A [ {05) a2 -

Unsecured loans and

ITOWINGS Floating 535 730) ! (719)

Senios Unsecurad Notes 38% 516 {64 N 230 20) (37 5 28 5}

_ease hanilites -1nanng 389 (389 8 8) 17 2) {17 8) ("1
. _ease lavlines classificd as

held ‘o~ sale Floating 17 (17) 06) Go) 05

Othes hamlitias n/a Y237 1250) {124.5) IS - -

Total a1 31 Decerber 7321 287 2 [3050) {1387) 827) 44 3y (39 6)

The unsecured ban< sorrowings bea- Inte est nased on SONIASOFR/CURIBOR, plus a margm {as defined in the faciities agreement) which
vares depending on the Groun's ratio af net dedt (o EBIT )A The secured loans and boirawings are held oy subsichanes in the LSA and oear
interes: at varying -ates linked to underlying US oond rarkets

The Group had the following undrawn comrmited faciliies at 31 Decermier in “espect of which all conditions precedent had been met.

2021
fala

Lndrawn commutied borrowing facilities ” 2015 202.4

(D) FAIR VALUES

The fair value of forward currency exchange contracts realised in the Consolidated Income Statement as oa:t of fair value denvatves amounted
ro Emil (2027 £mil) The far values of the Group's other financial instuments al 31 Jecemoer 2022 and 207 were not matenally different Lo their
caying value Zar values were caloulated using market sates where avallable, otherwise cash fiows weie discounted at nrevailing rates,

Impairment charges of £6 4m (2021, £16 Um} were recogrised in respect of the car ying values of non-current assets as detaled innotes 13, 14
and °6

(E) CREDIT RISK
Exposure to credit risk
The exposure 0 credit ris< 1s sunstanually rtigated by the creditinsurance employed by the Group In the abaence of this insu-ance the

maximum credit exaosure on the carrying value of financial assets at the renorting date was'
2020
fm

Carrying amount

Trade and othe- recerwvadles and contract assets at amortised cost f 1382 \ 227
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yea - 248 188
Total 163.0 1415
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24. Financial instruments continued
Carrying value of trade receivables by geography

SINIWALYLS IVIZNYNI

Lk 93.3 57
Q@507 Lo 5.6 08
Ng v Amo s : 61.4 341
Rest of the world 58 37
Total 126.1 112.3

Carrying value of trade receivables by business segment

47 6

Roads & Seounty

Frgmeerad Soluuons 326
Gakamzing Semviees 327
Total 1261 o3

Impairment losses

The G-oun mamtains a level of crede mau-ance covenng a significan: pact of its rrade recervables which mitigares agamst possidle mair rent
losses Anmpar Ten: assessment 1s pe farred 37 each renotting date 1o assess whather there has been a sigrmifinant mg-case 0 “he credn:

qsK Fxpested credit s tates arn caculaed mdmadually “or each busmess within the Group and ase based on histarical obse ved defaultrates,
adjusted for fooward-looxing infaration Whilst glosal econamies have continued thair post pandemiz recovery in 2022, suaoly chain and
inflatonaty challenges a 2 97esen’ and the e “emains uncestaim'y arsund conditions in the shoct o madiom e, sausula ly o the UK As such,
the Group selieves the sk 0F anncreased nurrber of defaulis sult exisis Accordingly, defauit oss rates inco-porate ‘orwa-d-locking nformanon
sased on avaladske macioecononus information The assessmen: of the cotelation setween forecast econo mic condimons and expected fuilure
cradi [0sses 15 an estimate bus s not detemined 10 oe a significant estma‘e as the Group does not expect future credit losses o he matenally .
differens to the credit [055¢ Srrated at the -enorting date The charge to the Consolidated Income Statement inthe yea  inrespect o the
exoacted loss of trade recewvanles was C0 47 12027 £0 7m) The Groun does nat reguire collateralinespect of tade and other -ecavadles Tha
Sroun dnes not have frade 2zevables o ~ontract asse's "or which no loss allawance 15 -ecognized secause oF collateral

The aqeing of trade recewvablag a the ieso ting date was

202°

Provisions Gross Provisions MNet

£in £n £m

Not past duc 742 120 747
Fast due 1-30 days 256 57 255
Pas-due 37 - 170 days 99 103) 96
Pas: due more than © 20 days 6 ‘2#.0) i : 61 {3 6) 2.5
Total 995 G4a 1281 165 47 1°23

The movarrents n provisions for moalr ment of ‘rade recevables are as follows.

£Em

At 1 ganuary 2021 63
Disposal of subsidiary ©.1)
Charged in the year 0.1

Ltilised during the year
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

24. Financial instruments continued

(F) MARKET RISK ~ SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

I panaging wtarest sate and cusancy sk the Groun amis o reduce the mipacs of shoitemmflustuations on 'he G cuns earnings Ove
longe tenm however, dermanen: changes N foreign excharge and inte =57 ares may have animoact on consolidated eximngs AT the s
renorung seniods, the eects of hyacthetcal changes innterast and Zurency "ates are as follows

o

“The

ughous “he year sy ™ the oostive or regative v g ion on
sohdaied Incore Siareren:

= Bascd onave age vomk end net dent saances finterest tates had vared the
heyea s cesullwaid have Deon £1 D which wourd directly mepact onthe

s

antthe yvoa the rmast on the totat g oup underlying soe-aing yoidn
and the rmsact on equity would have beern an mcrease o7 £29 Im

»Has2d on a 10% wea<aning m Sterhng agams: all 2unencies t oy
the Consolidated Income Statemen: would have peen a gam of £6

el

hour the year, the impact on the tolal goup underlying opeating arofit

+ Basad an g "ot sirengthening in Sterling agams: all curenzies throug
of £6 6 and the impac: on equity would have seen a decrease of £23 /7

in the Consoldated Income Stateran: would have een a loss of £

25. Called up share capital

7071
£

Allotted, called up and fully paid . .
80 3 ordinary shares of 250 each (2021 79.8m) © 20,0 200

In2077 the Company 1ssuad 3 2m shaves under 173 varizus share apuon schemes (2021 2 3m), ealising £ 91 {2021 £2 5m)
“ach o dinary sha e caries equal voting -ights and there are no -estricucns on any sha o

OPTIONS QUTSTANDING OVER THE COMPANY'S SHARES
The Giown operates a number of erployee shace schemes calegonsed as follows

5 3 tax gualifying monthly savirgs seheme Tacilitaning “he purchase of snares 2t 3.d.scoun’ as
unt ot 20%) SAYE opnans may be exeraised 1 the even: of a change
rohree o five yas

= Sav2 Az You B [SAYE') schemes — SAY S
Je nitted by the applicable leguatlation (curently up to 8 maximum dis
o contral to the extent permitted by the rules of the scherre Such scheres ase typically ssued annually, are eithe

. ae offered to emplayeces in the UK,

s oy Term incent.e Plans (LTHYY and ExeciLtive Share Dptior Schemes '2508" - The Rerrureratior Cormmittes may, al s dis
shutiure awards as approved awards comprising a fax qualifying option granted under both the 2805 and LTIP awards _TIP awards ae at
nil zost and 2505 15 a costed opton, and

creticn,

+ Buy-outawards - Onyoming the Company, certain senior manage-s farfeited long term incentive awasds at thenl devious emsloyer The
Comoany zompensated them for these awards by granting awards over Hil & Suth shares The awards arc at il cos:

The number of options outsianding oy schene s as follows®

2022 ] 2075
Number Option Mumiie- Opiran
of shares price range (p) of shares 2,158 range ()
SAYE schemes ‘ 714243 89p-o 14859
TIP awards 433741 -
=508 awards » 389489 37bpto "M 130
Buy-out awards 45955 -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,649,423
Exercisanle at the year end 451775
Naot exercigable at the year end 1,197713
16449478

Outstanding at the end of the year

" Ophions may be exercised ear'y under e terms cf this scheme if employess meet the crivena of good 'eaver, which encompasses ccumsances suck As
retirament or redundancy, otherwise, awards will vest if the parucipants contnue 0 Se mn employmernt at the vesting date

*Vesting of awards under the LTi aid E305 schemes 1s subect to vanous financial performance crtena

The remaining weighted average e of the outstanding share options s 3 years 11 months {2021, 3 years 0 months).
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25. Called up share capital continued
Tre novemen: and waighted aemage 2xeroge onces of share opuons durmg the vear 2 e as “ollows

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Millions of exercise Millions of
price (p) options price (p} options
2022 2022 2021 2021
Oustanding al the begunimy ot the vaoa 696 1.7 510 18
Granted durng the vear 513 09 471 04
Fxarcised duning the year (674) - {0.3) 1843) (0.3
ansed during the year - G130 : Gan7) 07
Outstanding at the end of the year 655 596 17

The wewghted average shate price on the dates of exercise of share somans dunng the year was 1.950p (2027 1.597p), and the weighted average
tan value of oplons and awards g anted in the year was 5600 (2077 1,167p) The weighted average exercise orice of cutstanding ootions
sxazisable at the year end was * 103p (2021 *.057p). The orior yvear weighted average exercise pige of outsianding options excroisable a

he year end, has beenrestated to " 2522 from 5660, as a result of a clenzal e7ror This restalenrent does not imnact the 09107 yeas share based
aday'nEn’ charge disclosed

Share-based payments — options

The far value o servicos receved in return ‘or sha'e cotons granted 15 measured oy refejence 1o the “air value of *he sha ¢ outans grantad

The estmare of the far vatue o° the services receved 15 measu ot based on the Black -Scholes rodei whete vesung iz hased on nen marke:
condibons, or a Monte Carle Srmulaton whore vesting s oased on rrarket conditions The contractual Ife 1s the Nife of 1he 2onon in queston and

“he growth in didend yield 15 based oo the nest cuttent estimate of futne yvields over the cont-actual perod

The expacted volatilry 13 wholly based on the histonizal volatihty | slated nased on tha weighted average emaming hif2 of the shae opions),
adsted fo- any expected changes 1o future volaulity due 10 oeblicly avalable inforranon

Share options have been g-anted 1o qualifying employees in ine with erhas M Revenue & Customs approved o unasaroved scheres Other
than the _TIP and Buy-ouz awa ds, the st7ike onice for the ootion s made based on the Tarket values of shares a1 the date the couon s offered

As explamed in the Dnectors Renunesation edo t on sages 92 to 04, honuses awasded 1o the Fxecutive Drectors include an elemeant awarded
m shares, de‘ered fo a penod of tws years The Giouo has determined the fanr value of such awasds 1o e equal “o their cash equwalant. The
resulling charge 1s included in the exaensa anaing from share-oased payments i the yea, o which the awards relate

The key assumniptiona for the grants in the current and prior year weie as follows

2021
Buy-out Buy-out
awards SAYZ L1 awards
txoected share prce volatity (%) 26%: 16% 32% 0%
Dividend yield (%) 7 55% 00% 00%
Option Nife {years} 3/ 3 08
Ris< frec interest rate 0 5%/C % 0 2% 0%

The wotal expense recognised for the peiniod anising from sha-e-dased paymen:s is as follows.

2021

£

Equity-setited 25
Cash-settled 03
Total expensed during the year 28

The zarying amount of the hability in refation 0 cash-settled share hased »ayirents a* the end of the year was £0 3m (2021 £0 7).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

26. Guarantees and other financial commitments
(A) GUARANTEES

Subsidiary audit exemptions

ik & Smieh PLC hasissued guaraniees over the lanilities of the “otlewang oredomminanty non trading LK subsicianes asar 37 ¢
unde: Sealan 4792 of the Compames At 2006 These enites a-o exarnpt “om the raquirements of the Act elating "o the audht o°
HUCOLNTS DY vIstue oF Section 4794 of the Act

Jocembor 2077
nchvidual

Company Name Company Number
Torgen Pie Suno07ts Limied U0926644
Bergen Piae Sunnorts Sroup imied 510138t
il & Srnih (international) cimised 11335407
Hilt& Sith {Armenzas) Lirred /269531
HIll & Soith (Amenicas) 2 Limited 107834562
il & Srrich (Amerras) 3 Limrted 120606435
il & Srmth (France) Limited 26768033
At & Smith Overseas Limited 06674400
Hill & Syuth {Traasusy) imited J6814150
-l & Srich (LSA) Limized UBB76Y73
Aardsta® Baniers Limwted 02791285
Cabaco Hotdings Limited J837 /210
Signpast Sohutons rred 531845033
Mallatite Minor Stuctures & Produsts L 13717429
Bowazar Doors Limited 13738720

. Expamet [ 1imited 13/48629

VME Neweco Liried T 2068560
Vadley & Gullver Limred 03332433
Ash & Lacy umited G047 6Y
Ash & "acy Manufactuimg " irmited 03008564
Ash & _acy Services Limiied 072798286
Hawkshead Progerties Limited 0056245°
Redran misher Znginsenng cireed U 63370
Hill & Sivuth Aust-alial Lunited 144713048
Widnes Galvanising Linmited 092206443

The G oun had no financial quarantec contracts outstanding as at 31 Decenber 2027

(B} CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2027
£rm
Cant-acted for but not orovided in the accounts 30
{C) OPERATING LEASE RECEIVABLES
The total future minimMum coTirments recemvable under non-cancellable operating leases are analysed as follows
2022 ) 2021
Land and cand and
Buildings Buildings Other
£m £m
Group
Within one year 01 46
Between one and five years H
Alter five yea's -
J1 57
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27. Pensions
TOTAL

The tomal Sroun ol erant sene - 3332t ad Haligations are detated pelow

Overseas LK 2921

£m L Eri

Toa Y vatue of scheme a3 44.9 2.7 47.6 518 24 Hh 7
Piagent value of scheme “undod aaligasions {(51.4) (3.4) - (54.8) 53 5) 7 38) T3
Prezety value of schema unfunded soligatons - . - - - L2 10.2)
Retirement benefit obligation I {65} - {0.7) (7.2) 1770 {40} ("7 3%

UNITED KINGDOM

The (0L anerates ong maln pension schame n the UK tha HIll & Smita 2076 Panzion Scheme (the Scheme), providirg szcnefits on a

defined benefit and deftned cantribution basts The Scherme s clased to future accual and 15 subject 1o the statutory schente stecihic funding
wqurements autlned in LK legislaton The weighted average matunty {the ‘duration} of the defined senefit plan obligations at the end of the
red0rIng poriod s anproxrately 17 years (2021 14 years)

The assers of the Scherre ae admimstered by T-ustees and are keot entirely separate from those of the Grenn The Trustees undertaxe a full
funding valuation of the Scheme every thiee years, whichis used 'o deterrinne the ~ates at wiish the Groud contnibu'es o the Seheme, with the
oojectre of Drovidhing the funds requi od o meet pension abhgations as they fall due

The Group ramans astively engaged n cialogue with the Schere's Trustees with regard 1o management, funding and investiren: sirateqy
The arevious tnenmial funding valuation of the Schere as at Ao 2009 was finalised in 2020, alongside an update 1o the nvestren,
stategy, resulting i the Group agreeing a deficit -ecovery plan with the Trustecs thal requires cash contmibuuons of £3 7o per annum until
Seutember 2027

190315 1 3 0g ess, having an effective date 97 3 Aonl 2022 The prelirminary rosults ot this valuahon have
9 postion a: 31 Decernbe 2022 by an ndependent qualifiad actuary

The most “ecant o7 thase fennial valy
besn incorporated in the undated 145

The Consoldated Incorre Siatement “or the yea includes a pension charge within operaning prefic of F3 072021 £3 7o), whch msiudes the
cnsts of the defined conibution and she defined zene’l* sections of the Sohenre All actuanal gams and losses are eogmised mrrediaiely in the
Congoldated Staterrent of Cororehensive inco e

The Scheme exooses the 3rou ' a nurder of (13«3, the mos* significant heing

Risk Description
Volatile asset he defined henefit anhgation s calculated using a discoun’ rate set with -eference w0 high qualizy cornorate oond yelds 1f
retyns assets underperfo:m agams: this discount rate, this will create a plan deficit The Scheire holds 2 pioportion of s assets

In giowsh assets which are exoected 1o outperiom corporate bonds in the fohg term However, returns are kely 1o be
volatie 0 the shoit tern, potentially resutting m shor: tenm cash requrements and anincrease n the deficy -ecorded in the
Consolidared S-atement of Finanzial Position The allocanion to growsh a3seTs 1s monitored 'a enaure b e mams appiopriate
given Lhe Schere's lang rern objecuves

Changes n A decrease n coroo ate oond yields will increase the funding and accounting habilities, although this will be pa-tially offset by
Jond ylelds aningrease In the value af the Scheme's investments in Liabddy Diven Investrment and aond funds
Inflasion nsk A significant proportion of the defined benefit obligation 1 indexed it lne with snce inflation, with ligher inflation leading to

higher iabilizies This risk will be partially offset by the Scheme's Liability Driven Investments, which will increase i value in
ine with marka! inflation expectations,

irfaexpecancy  The mapnty of the Scheme's obligations are to provide a pension for the hfe of each of the members, so ncreases i hie
expectancy wiil result In an increase in the laaities

Stock Code HILS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

27. Pensions continued
The principal assumptions used to value the Scheme’s liabilities at 31 December

Aare of Insieasan salanes nfa n'a
At T INLTEASE 1N PENSIONS DAY et 3.2% B
DlGLOUnT Ae 4.9% T,
Ilasion — R 3.3% 33
Inflation - CRI 2.4% 27
Ma: tality taole T 14%T117% 114%" 177
CMI 2021 CMI 20T

1.25% 125%

The ortality assurrptions imoky the following expected “uture hfetimes “1o7 age 85

207
Males curently aged 45 « "22.1yeers 22 4 yesrs
Serales zumrently agad 45 " "234.6_ years 248 yeas
Males cur-ently aged 65 '20.9 years 217 yeais
“emales curently aged 65 23.2 years 23 3 yeas

The assuTpanns have Been chosen by the Dueatoss fom a range of nossiole acruanal assumptions whizh, due o the tmescales coverad, nay
not ae 20me owt n practice The Groun ta<es advice from anindesondent actuary rega ding the aporoniatencss of the assumstions used

Dunng the laer sart of 2027 and throughowt 2222, short tervnflation :nthe UK has soen significantly tigher “han we have seen niecent
years The Grouo has made an allawance for thes high inflation expenence wotin rhe hia e3 of the Gcheme Ove the duration of the Schene's
sanities marke: expectalions of nflanon (which have been used o denve tho Inflation assurplions asove] are significantly fowe: than This
‘eent axaenance

Assets and liabilities
The Scheme holds assets and habiies in resnec »f defined contnpution senciits which -2 2qual 0 value and a2 exciuded f-om the ‘ollowiny
figguni .

25 The far values of Soheme assets inrespes of the defined senefi scheme which are not intended 1o ne realised i the short wim and
Tiay oe sudject to significant change pefore they are ealised ave detaited below [naddimon, the valus of the Scherre habilities, whichis denved
“rom cash flow nrojechions aver an average seniod of aporoamaely * 1 yea's (the weighted average te:m maturity of the Sche res habhines) and
which s therefore inherently unce-tain s also ser out nelow

Market value [ESEIRGREEVE
2022 2071
£m £n

Assets

Equities 73
Bonds 258
Vath profits policies . 09
Liability Drven Investment {LD1Y funds 124 166
Cash ] 55 52
Altornatives® T 113 60
Total fair value of Scheme assets o Aae 618
Presen: value of Scheme funded aoligations o ‘ §51,4) {63 5)
Retirement benefit obligation Foo - (6:.5) (77)

* Alternatives are INveStMents (M assel 'asses el ‘nan tradifional equities, bonds, proogry and cash They include investments in private eqgity, anvate credit,
nadge funds nfrastructure, and rengwaile energy Ivastrents

In 2017 the Groun and the Trustees undertonk an investment review of the Scheme. The intention of the strategy for the Scheme s to reduce
a prosoticn of nterest rate and inflation 18k by Investing a po-tion 0° the Scheme's assets in Liabihiy Drven Investmen: funds. This strategy
resutted w1 an sutial shift between oands and L funds i the asset categories in 2077 The strateqy was reassessed as 2ar: of the Azl 2019
tnenmial valuauon exercise, which resulted in a further shifs from giowth assers <o bonds in 2020, -educing the level of sk in the Scheme's
assel sirategy The Schemes LDDinvestiment 15 stucturesd as invest-nent 11 a numoer of unit inked funds of short and long-datad noawnal and
index-in<ed govenrent bonds, some of which a-e leveraged, held with the Scheme's investment manage: Thig s designed 1o refiect the size
and shaoe o' *ha Scheme's mrerest rate and wflanon exdosura The Aprd 2022 trienmial valuaton exercise 1s sudstanially corolers and thore has
been na ‘uither change to the previously ag-esd strategy

176 Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022



27. Pensions continued
Assers nythe ponds and cqut
2 I act 5 <
funds The o
Funds {Altermate o)

shese *‘unds 1o changes nor

desormined Srom s suisel o uise

Total expense recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement

4 m nbanon inked oonds
“athied sor-folo of

Defined

infrastruciure der
; redl using hedging neuluples
voratker dam

Defined

LA
VY

hex

(2027 547 of total Schene

o5, Nave quor
e monme i

2027

ST vAket

SINAWILY.LS TVIINYNIA

VS 3
NSty o
2 DINne 15

Defined

Lrafied

contribution henefit conhuTon henets

schemes schemes schomes schenes fotal

£m £ £m

Cuirent service osts 21 21
EX0eNses 25 05 10
Charge to operating profit 26 Gh 317
Interes. on nat Scheave defiont a2 a2
Total charged to profit hefore tax 20 27 3

Change in the present value of the defined benefit obligations

Ouening defined benefit oohigaions

Past seivica cost

Interas: cogt

Actuanal igainisoss ansing fror
Financial assumotions
Demographis assuma'ions
Fxpenence adjustnen”

Bene’its paid

Closing defined benefit obligations

Changes in fair values of Scheme assets

Ooening farr value of assets

Interest income

Return on plan assets excluding inferest income

Eraloyer contibunions

Benetits nad

Closing fair value of assets

Actual return on Scheme assets

Expected employer contributions in the following year

Dedfimned senefit sghema

Defined contribution schemes

Stock Code HILS

2021
£

670
07

08)
36

{40)
618
02

4.1
2.0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

27. Pensions continued
Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

% of Seheva

% of Scheme

assets/ 2022 assels: 2020
liabilities ahditics £1
2t on ofan 3ssets excluding inte ost neome ‘7 (47) - (18.4) Ay Y
Changas in assumsiuons undeaving The oresen’ valus of Stheme 2aliganons 36 15.9 5 34
Amount recognised in the year (5) (2.5} 4 25

The table below shows the sensiivity of the Consalidated State rean: ¢f Financial Positian to certaim changes i the signifizan® nension assuispaans

Increase in Decrease in
Balance JeNsIONS DENSI0NS Dnszount Discount Inflasion tnflation Life Lita
at 31 JAYIMen: paynent rate rate rate rate  expeciancy  exiestancy
DELGILCI (+01%pa) D %woa) +0 % o0ad (01%pal (+0'%2a) (01%oa) (+1 year} {1 yewor)
2022 £ £1 £ £m £ falat! £ £im

Value of funded -

abligauons {514 B1 A {50.9) {51 9) {577} {51 1) 53 5) +49 3)
~air valuz of TR

slan assels [ 449 445 449 449 445 449 449 449 449
Deficit {6.5) (&) (62) (6 0) L0 CEL (6 ?) (86) 44

The sensitivity analyses above have been detemrimed gased on a nretnod that extrapoiates theampact on the defincd benefit obhigauan

as o "osult of changes i key assumaptions accunng ai the end of the year The sengitn ity anafyses are based on a change in a sigrificant
assuaton keeping all other aszsunntons constant Az suzh the sensinvity analyses may no' 2g e2wesentative of an aziual change i the
defined benat onlgation as 13 unlkely thar changaes i assumanons would azou insolation fiam ong anather

The G ous has conarderad the requnenents o IFRIC 14 The torrms of the Scheme give the Group the night 1o mecover any surajus asse:s in the
Schere upon wind up and therefore managernrent have concluded that thercis no rrpact on the amoures “ecognised in -esaect of -etrement
Henefi chligauons

OVERSEAS

The Grous opearad two oveseas Dension sshe vesin Franse and the USA duning the vea: As aresult of the sale of France Galva {see note 9),
asar 37 Decerber 2022 the Groun now aperates just one overseas pension scheme in the USA

Irthe LSA, Bergen Pine Supports, Inc operates a aefined benefic pension plan corepnsing cusent and defe-red pensioners such that no

futire benefiis accrue The ave age duration of the defined benefis plan abligation at the end of the repo-ting peniod 15 approximately 8 years
(2027 10 years)

The Grous also aperares defined contnbutian pans ina nuber of othe overseas ooerations The amount contnbuted 2 these plans duning the
yoar was £1.1m 2021 £7 0m)

The Consolidated Inconre Statentan: fo- the yearincludes a pension charge wirhin ose:ating arofit of £1 3m (2021 £? 2.1}, which moiudes the
costs of the defined contrizution schemes and the defined bene’it schemes A “u-thes chaqge of £0 2mis included in the profit from discontinued
aperations

Actuanal valuations of the above schemes were casied out Sy mdependent actuanes as at 31 December 2027 All actuanal gains and losses are
~eeognised immediately in the Consohdated Statemen: of Comprehansive ncomre

The principal assumptions used by the actuaries

2021
France* USA Srance
Rate of increase in salaries 000% 2 50%
Discount rate 2 75% 098%/0 5%
nflation 000% 2 00%

Mortality table 2014 SOA  THOQ-32, Tr00 -02

* A valuation of the French scheme was undertake~ imrediately anor to the France Gaiva disposal an 4 Qctober 2022
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27. Pensions centinued
Assets and liabilities

The far vaiues of schente assers, which a agtintendad to ae realised in the sha e e and may be sunjes to aig i

1t change hatop

SINIWTLVY_S TVIONYNIA

thoy a e realised and the value o the sche e hiaiiblies, which s denved o v cash flow prajestions over long denods and whizn s the efore

nherently uncetain a-= as follows

Assets

Cash and ooher insured fixed inte-est assets

34

Total fair vatue of scheme assets
Prasent value o° scherre funded obligations

P esent value of scherre unfunded oshyations

3.4
(73
(0.2

Retirement benefit obligation

_©7n

(46

Cashand other irsured fxed interest 23513 — whete assets are heldin cash o7 a policy with a fied interest asse! allozanion, the exnesrad lony

tarmorata of rotl s ta<en 1 e the yields g

Total expense recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement

eineqally prevailing on such assers as al the yea' end date
¥ d

2022 2321
Defined Defined De‘ined Tefined
contribution benefit ZOTIILION penah
schemes schemes schees schemes Toal
£ £ £m
Current se-vice cos: and expensas 10 02 1z
Charge to operating profit 10 32 12 .
Interes: ocn nel nensicn scheme def o
included within piofit -0 discontinued
oparalinns
Total charged to profit for the year 10 32 "2
Change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
2021
£
Onening defined oenefit ooligatian 38
Curient service costs oz
Interest cost on scheme abligations 01
Actuanal {gans)/losses ansing from
Financial assumptions (04)
Hemagrashic adstanents {0.3)
Expanerce adjustment G1
Benefits paid ©2)
Disposal of subsidhary -
Exchange adjustnents 03)
Closing defined benefit obligation 8.0

Stock Code HILS

179



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continyed

27. Pensions continued
Changes in fair vaiues of scheme assets

2321
e
Juenming far value of assets 37
Retum sa clan assels excluding mterest incone
*on olan asse’s -
SN exdenses 1
Benefits gad -
snosal of subsichary -
=xchange sdjustments 32
Closing fair valte of assets 34
Actual return on scheme assets a7
Expected employer contributions in the following year
Detned benefit schomes
Defned contrihunion schees 11
Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
% of scheme % oF scheme
assets/ assels/ 202
liabilities Nabilies £
“xneence 1033 on scheme osligations (355 ; m On
2eturn on olan assets excluding inte-est income -
. Changes in assurrptions underlying the present value of scheme obligations 9 B
Uxchange -ate adjustmeant on asses and hahines 9 [SI)
3 10

Amount recognised in the year

The 3rouz considess that any reasonable sensanties anplied 1o the assunotions for the overseas schenves would not have a Tatenal impact on
the Consolidated “inancial Statements

28. Related party transactions

4z exolained in note 6, the <ey managenrent personnel are considered 1o oe the Board of Directors of Hill & Srmith PLC and the meTbers of the
Executive Board who are not also Directors of (1l & Smith PLC the Board of irecto & remmuneration can be seenin the Directos Remrunaration
Resart on sages 92 1o 124 The combimned remune-ation of <ey management sersonnel can oe scenmnote 5 10 the finanzial stataments on
page 117,

29. Subsequent events

Ir Febiuary 2023, the Group acquired Encuro Composites Inc UFndu-o’) for animitial cash consideration of £28 7m, on a coat and cash free
sasis Cndurd, lecated i Housion, Texas, s a designer, manu acture” and supsher of engineered composite solutions focused on mdust-al and
miastucture market segments its products can be used in a wide vanety of apphcaions in conditons that -eguire high sirength, ight weight
and resistance to corrosion,

In March 2023, the Group acquired Koins Galvanizing Company Ing (Karns') for a cash cons deration of £9 4m, on a debt and casn free basis
Koing, located i Johnstown, Pennsylvania, hag a single site specialising in spin galvanizing and has a customrer base spread across a wide
sange of infrastructure related end mackets, including commeraal construction, fire pretechion, ol & gas and utiities
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

31 December 2022

Restated
202°

Noreg m
Non-current assets
fangimle assels 4 0.1 01
feght nf nee aeegre 5 0.3 o
Imvers!reats ] 290.1 3299
290.5 3303
Debtors due in more than ane year 7 95.7 9472
3862 4745
Current assats
Debtarg 3 28
Cash and zash equivalents 01
129
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Bank loans and overdia®s 912 a2
_ease habilitnies 5 G
Othe creditors 9 (69 3)
T
Net ¢current liabilities (58 7)
Total assets less current liabilities 3663
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year n 136 9)
Provisions: pension liabilities 12 0 2)
Net agsets
Share capital and reserves
13

Called up shaire canral
Share aremium
Casital redemption rese ve

Retaned eamiiys

Total equity

The Company has taken advantage of the exemation permitsied sy section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not 1o publish its indmdual profit and
loss azzount and related notes The Comrpany nade a profit attnbutable to the equity shareholders o7 £12 trnn the year (2027 £34 6m)

Asoroved oy the doard of Direcrors on 8 March 20723 and signed on 1ts behalf by

A C Giddins H K Nichals
Director Director

Comzany Numbe- 671474

Stock Code HILS
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2022

Sha-e Capital
Called uo IS ANITAY redemplion Reramed Total
share cazital AZCOLNT regervea 24 Tnys Sy
£ o £ i £
Balance a1 Januay 2027 193 Ji 4 2 2515 ERR
Comprehensive income
Prafe g the yaar - 314 34
Dther conen shengwe exoense (o the year - - - 0 J
Transactions with owners recognised directly in equity
Shvidends - - - 21 A 217
Credrt o equty of share-based Dayments - - - 25 25
s'azton of fong 2 mancentwa and delered honus awaids - - - i a) (18]
Tax aken directly to the Statement of Changes in =quity - - - 04 U4
Issue of shares 01 25 - - 26
e 268.1 329.2
rifia o 124 R FA

otbefwmm o for theyear 0 ©
Transaitions. with switers recognised directly in equity

&a\‘

Jetals of sha e ontions and related share-based paymrents are contained in note 25 to the Group Financial Statements

Ttansactions of the Group sponsared Employes Benefit T-ust (=BT are included 11 the Uomeany Finanoal Statements Inpatticularn, the EBT's
auichase of shares in the Comoaany ‘o satisty sha es awarded under Long Ter Incentive Plans and other rermune alion agreements (s debited

directly Lo equity

Distributable reserves

The Comaany maintains a policy of -ecognising gans anisng 7roim inira group tansacions as distrivutanle only once a forral legal ocimion has
seen sought to confirm the position, aiter all steps required 1o execute a ransaction have been duly comoleted The legal opimons required undo
this policy will be sought no late <han the paint at which the resesves in question a-e required to be accessed for the purposes of diszbunon

i1 e with this policy the Company has available o 1t distnbutable rese~ves of not less than £78 7rm {2027, £88 Tm), *epresenting 2 Btimes
(2021 3 6 times) cover of the current year proposed dividend When requiced the Company can receive dwidends from 1g subsidianies to fu:ther
nc-ease its distrhuiable reserves, the Company's UK trading subsidiacies had -ese ves of approximately £43 8im available fo- distribution at

31 Dezemoct 2022 (2021, £44 2m) ~urther reserves ace avadable for distibutien *om trading sunsidiaries located averseas, subject o lozal
regulations
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Company Principal Accounting Policies
The faliswing aceouning polies bave Deen dapphed consistently i deahng witholems which are congidered mateaal in relanon to me
Comoany's minancial Slate ments, excent 33 noted selow

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These ~ anaal Siatements wore prepdad in

SINIWILYLS TVIONVYNIL

corcance wih Bnanat al Reootung S-anaard 101 Recuced Discloaure Frarmework 7TRS 1741

pregquiie e of e aahoral
Dy wnf

IREENE
= na
Conoanies

g thesa - inancal Saiemerts ke Covpany apahes the recogninion, measuremont and disslosu
ral Renorting standads as oted by e U4 {Adoptad IFRES), but makes amendrerts whare SAY Y ords i
or 2006 and has setout nelow whe e advantage o the FRS 101 diszloswe exerafions has Hesn -aken.

Lndes secuon 408 of the Comrpanies At 2006 the Corrpany ks oxermpt from the equirement to oesent 188 own profit and 10ss accooa?

Ag the Conschdated Sinancial Statemerts include the equivalent disclosures, the Company has ta<en the avalanle exempnons under FRS 10710
respact of the tollowing disclosires

« 1735 2 Share Based Payments in resoect of 3-oup se'tied share based paynents,
= A Cash “low S atement anrd retated nnres,
Disclosuqes in sesoec: of ansactions with wholly owned Group compantes, and

» Theeffects 0 newr but not yet effectiive IFBs

The Accounting Pohicies set out on 0ages 83 10 185 have, unless orherwisa 57 ated, been adohed consistently to all benods oresented 10 these
Financial Sratements

Follewing a review ¢ the Company's hisiong prachice and future 2lans not to call or ceriam intercormany ~ecevanles in the shors eim £87 2m
of nalances that weare regored as cuent intercon sany recevables at 3° Decerrher 2027 have aeen reclassified 2o non curtent in Ine with 1AS

Notesthstanding this classiicabon, these salances remain repayable on demand and, if required, can be called uzon a the sole discretion of
the Company This ~eclassificaton has na rrpact on net asse:s, -esull for the year or cash “lows Thempact on the 3™ Degentner 2020 nalance
sheet would be o reclassify £73 7o of cuvent inteomaany recovablas (o non current Inteicomaany 1esevables.

Measurement convention

The rinancial Statements a e prepa-ed on the histoical cost pasis except that the "allowing assets and banihties are stated at ther “ai valle

de-waive financal instruments, financial insyuments classitied as fau value through probt or loss or as far value th-ough sther compredensve .
income and latalities fo- cash-setted share sased payments Non-current assets and disnosal groups held for sale are stated at the lower of

arevious carrying amount and far value tess costs to scll

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The areparation of the Corpany's =inancial Statements “equires management 1o Take judgeents, estimates and assumptons that affect
the aprhcalon of accounting policies and “epored aTounts of inzome, exdenses assets and habihties Actual results may differ F o these
eslmates

Sigmficant estimates are required in deterntining whethe impairmen: of the Company™s investments exists, which 2quires estimanon o° the
mvestments value in use A arocess sumifar 1o the imaarment review ser'orned on the Groun's goodwill and othor indefinite (ife intangisie
assers is underra<en Key assumastions nzlude the essumanion of future cash flows, growh fantors and discount rates

Therz are no significant judgements used by managament in prepanng the Company's minanaial Statements

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

in the Company's Financial Staterrents, investirents in subsidiary undertakings are caned at cost less impalrmen,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and zash eguivalents compnise cash balances and call denosits Bank overdrafis that ave renayable on demrand and form anaintegral patt of
‘he Company's cash management are, where there s a nght of offser, included as a cenvponent of cash and cash equivalents

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Company's functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling a* the date of the
transaction Monetary assets and hamhiies denorminated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are retranslated to the functional
cufrency at the fareign exchange rate ruling at that date Foreign exchange differences anising on t-anslation are recogrised in the profiz and loss
account

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Trade and other debtors and amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings

Trade and other debtors and amounis owed py subsidiary undertakings are recognisad witially at fair value Subsequent toimual recogninon they
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interes: method, less any imparment losses

Trade and other creditors and amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings
Trade and other cieditors and amounts owed to sunsihary underakings are recognised inmaliy at far value Subsequent o initiaf recogninion
they a-e measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methoad
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Continued

1. Company Principal Accounting Policies continued
Interest-bearing borrowings

intarest Deanng borowmgs are resognised immally 2t fair valus
Dentny HOTOwWINYS a7 Slated at amortsed cogt using tne effeo:

PROVISIONS

A oy sion s rensgsed nthe Balane v
shatcan anehiahly 1easured and s sl that an awflow of econnn
darerinad by chssouning the exocened futu-e zash flows at a 002 tax ate that e

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

Tangible fixed assets ace stated a1 cost tess acoumulated deprecianon and a

S nensfis wii e ogquired toosotle The opligation Provisions are
20005 7153 3nenfc 1o the aliny

uTulated imparment osses

Whe-e parts o' an item of tangible fixed assets have different useful ives, they are accounted for a5 separate ters o langible “ixed assets

Jepreciation 1s chaiged o the o-ofitand loss account on a straight ine basis over the estimated useful ves of each part o an reir o7 tangiale

‘ixed assets Land s not depreciated The estimated userul ives are as foillows

I easehold improvemenis Iife of the leasce
Plan: machinery and vehicles up to 20 years

Denveciation methods, uselul ves and residual values a2 reviewed at each Balance Sheet dae

LEASES

1o e exient that a nght of-contiol exists over an asset subect (o a lease and wr'h a lcase 1erm exceeding one year, the Comaany recognises a
rigght-c-use asset, 1caresenting the undelying lease asse:, and a leass lability. resresenting the Company’'s cbligation 10 maee lease daymen:s
The night-oi-use asse s mnally measured at cos:, which corpnsas the inimal amount of thelease labibty adjusted ‘or any lease payments
made at o before the commencement date any imtial diect cests incurred and an estimate of the disrrantling. removal and restoration ©osts as
regured 2y the terns of the le2ase contrac:

The ight-05Use 9332115 suss2gucntly depreciated using the s raight-ine method fio the covrancement date o the earhe 2° the end of 'he
useful e of the “ight-of-use asset or the end of the lease term I° ownership of the leased asset ransfers to the Corpany at the end of the lease
ter o Tha cast reflests the exertise of a purchase opfion, dearesation s calculazad using the eshimated useful (e o the asser The nght-of use
. assets are also subject o mparmen:

The lease hamliny 1s measured at the present value of the future lease payments disceunted using the Company's incremental borrewing

rate, aeing the raze *hat the lessee would have 15 oay 0 boi-pw the funds necessacy 10 ohtam an asse: of simila: value ina sirilar economic

eny  onment with simidar terms and conditions Tuture lease payments include fixed sayments, vanasle lease pay rents that depend on an index
or a -ate Intially measured using the ndex of rate as at the commencement date), anounts exsected to ne 3ayaole unde” a residual guarantee
and the exercise price of nurchased optons where 17 s reasonably certant that the ootien will oe exerzised Finance charges, repesenting the
unwinding 2f the discoun: 1ate, are recogrised in the profit and loss account over the oenod of the lease

ease payrents for low value assels and shorr term leases (less than 12 months) are ~ecogmsed as an expense on a straight-ine basgis ove' the
lease term

PENSION S5CHEME ARRANGEMENTS

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefrt plan 1s a post employ:rent benefit plan athe than & defined conmmbution plan The Company's net obligation m respect of
defined bene’it sension plans 1s calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amacunt of future benefit that employees have earned In
“ewurn for thewr service in the current and o0 1or periods, that henefit s diacounted o deterine its present vafue, and the fair values of any plan
agsets {at bed 0rice) are deducted. The Company determines the net mterest on the net defined oenefit hability/asset for the period by a1lying
che diszount ate used o measure the defined benetit obligation a7 *he beginning of the annual nenod o the net defined benefit hability/asse!

The discount rate s the yield at the -eporting date on bonds that have a credit rating of at least AA that have matunty dates aporoximatng to the
terms of the Comoany's obligations and that ace denominated in the currency in which the benefits are expecied to be paid

Remeasurements ansing from defined benefit plans comprise actuanal gans and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding witerest) and the
etfect of the asset calling (if any, excluding interest) The Comparny recognises them immediately in other comprehensive income and all other
expenses related to defined Henefit plans in airplovee benefit exaenses in orofit or loss

Certan of the Comnany's employees are members of Group-wide defined penefit schemes The net defined benefit cost of the plans is
allocated to sarticipating entities based on the cont:acing entty of the particiating employees of the scheme. The contnbutions payasle by the
participating entities are determined an the sane Jasis
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1. Company Principal Accounting Policies continued
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Sha doaymnen arangsmants nwheh the Somoany 2ceves goods 00 32rvines a5 CoNEe 00N T TS DWD Uty ST LIRS ae
aceounted for as equity-serled share oased pavent Transacuons, regardiess o how the equity s urents are ootained by 1ng L.Jn.oﬂﬂ_v

fshare-nased payrents mva s ganted lo emplovees 15 ecognised as 4n onalsyee expense wrl' 400 assonding
NEI RS megury o e e lod rewhich the eorployeo come uncondionally enutled o the gwa: [Heran zane 37 the dwa da grantad
1soveasued using an plor valauon 1o aking Mo accoun: the terns antd condiians woon whieh the swat rarted The a nognt
acogmized 33 an oxoaase 13 adusted o retast the aztya numoer of awa ds forwhich the elatzd sarvize and nonmar kel vesting 2ondiniong
are exaouted 10 e el such that the amnoun® ulma'ely recognised as an exoense 15 oased un the nurTae o awards thal do Teet the elared
service and non rrarset ocr'ormanse condiions at the vesing date For share-basad oaynrent awa ds wath non-vesting condiions the grant
dase far value of the share-hased sayrent s Teazured to reflact such conditions and the ¢ 13 no rue-up “or differcnces petween cxpected and
actual ourzomes

The gran: dawe ‘an value

oo

Share sased payimen: ransactions mwlich the Comoany "eceves gooads or services by nsuring a halilty o trangfer zash 0 other asse's that

15 based an the price of the Company's equity instruments are accounted for as cash settled share Dased payments The ran value of the amount

payable to eneployees 1s recognised as an expense, wit h acoresdonding Increase 0 liaxhties over the penod in which the e mployees become
uncondiionally entitled 1o pay-ren: The latubiy s -emeasused at each Balance Sheet date and at settlerrent date Any changes in the “arr value
o7 the habihty arc “ecognised as oersonnel expense in profic or loss

the habilty gnised lexp prof |

TAXATION

Tax onthe piofl o loss for the year cormanses curent and deferred tax Tax s ~ecogmsert in the p oot and 1055 ascount excel* (o the axiant
that it relates to 1tems recognisad diroctly in eguity o 2ther sonprehensive Income, In which case 1m1g —ecagnised directly in equsy or other
COMOreREnsive INcome

Cur-2nt tax s the cxnested tax aavable or recervasle onthe taxaslo incore o loss fo the yea: using tax rates enacted or substanuvely ona
at the Balance Shee: date, and any adjusiment ‘o fax payadie in respect of srovious years

Defered tax s piovided on semaoraty differenses betwesn the canying amounts of assots and haltes for inan: "OCING HUTPISLS

ard the amounts usaed forraxanon purposes The ollowing tempoiary difisrences are not provided for the imimal recogmtion of goor ﬁwnl\ “he
initiak recognition 9F assets or haohes that affent nedher acounting no- taxable arafiz other than in a business comomation, and diffe-ences
refating to mvestments in subsidianies 1o the extent that they will srobaily not severse i the “oreseeasie “uture The arount of deter-ed tax
providad 15 based on the expected manne- of realisauon or settlement of the casrying amount of agsets and hanibties, using fax -ates enacted or
substantely enacted at 'he Balance Sheet date.

Adeferred tax asser s recngnised only 3 the exient that 1t s prosable that future axahle D-ohts will me availasle agamst which the ~emporary

difference can oe unhised
ORDINARY DlVIDENDS
Dmdends are recogmisad i the Sinancial Statements in the period in which they are asoroved oy the Canarpany s sha-cholders Dwidend ncome

is “ezogrised in the Profis and 055 Account on the LJd e he Dompany's ght to rezeive payment 1s established

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

Where the Company enters into finanaial guaraniee Sontas's 1o guaiantes the indebtadness of sudsidiary comparies, the Co vpany considers
these o be insu-ance contracts and f-eats the guaaniee contract as a contingen, kaility unut such ame as v oecomes arooaule that the
Cormany will se regured 10 ma<ce a 2aynent unde” the guarantee

Stock Code HILS
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Continued

2. Profit before taxation
st & Young LLP and 3 associates toraud and non-audil semvices o the Comoany
Gonoun Tinanzia!l Sratenes 3 2 requn ad to dis

“are nat dhsclosed i hendmaduial

Jees nald a
se such faes on a conssldated 2asis

Ananzial Srarements of Hill & Simith PG Becauss tha

3. Dividends
DIVIDENDS PAID DURING THE YEAR

2022 a0l

Pence Penge
per share £m pe share o
T e e i

9z 7

Iriterr dividend oaid i relatan to yea ended 37 Decerhe 2020
Fisal dividend paid in relation o year ended 31 Degember 2020
Interm dividend oaid inrelation o year ended 31 Decamoer 2027

Finat dridend paid nrelation to year ended 37 Dece rbe 2020

Total
DIVIDENDS DECLARED IN RESPECT OF THE YEAR

2427
Pence
per share pe shae £m
Inenm dividend deciared i elation 1o year ended 371 Decamper 2027 120 58
Sinal dradend declared in relation t year ended 31 Decerhe 2027 90 151
Intetn dividend declaced in relation o year endad 31 Decerne 2027 - -
Tinal dividend prooosed n elauon to year ended 31 December 2022 - -
Total 370 747
. The “inal dividend “cr the year was »opased a“er the year end date and was notrecogmised as a hatilizy at 31 Decemoer 2022, in agoordance
with 1AS 10
4. Tangible fixed assets
Short Plant,
leasehold Tachinery
propeties and vehicles Total
£n 7 n
Cost or valuation
ALY danuaiy 202 a1 35 J5
- 01 a
0.6 0T
At 1 January 2322 J4 05
Charge for the y=ar 01 01
; a5 e
Net book value
01
At 31 December 2021 0.1
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5. Leases

Ine rmeoverentsin the saeying valae o he 1ghy oo-use asse's and lease habdiias m e yea ended 3

Trecemher 202708 ax aolows

and and

ol 14l

Right-of-use asseats £ r
Bakanzo a " danuay 2022 A n4
Charge for the year o O
At 31 December 2022 0.3 0.3
Total

Lease liabilities £m
Balanze at 1 January 2022 94
L ease payments in penos ‘ . ‘ S

The following “asle shows the pieakdawn of the loass expense setween amounts charged to anerating arofit and arounts chaged o

finanze 203t

Deuecianion of nght-of-use assets

Charged to operating profit

Charged to profit before taxation

The matuiities of the lease labilities a1 37 Jecember were as ‘ollows

Nue within one vea:
Jue hetween one and two years

Dur hetween two and five years

Total lease liabilities

6. Fixed asset investments

Shaes in
subsidiary
undertaxings Total
Jash £m
Cost
AT January 2022 3766 3796

Addimons

A131 December 2022

Provisions
AU January 2022

Imazairment

Net book value
TA) 31 December 2022

AL 31 December 2027

Alist of the ousinesses owned by the Comrpany 15 given in note 16 All of the Company's subsidianies are wholly owned

Following the Gioup's disposal of France Galva on 4 Ociober 2022, the Company recerved a dividend fon Hill & Smith (“rance) Limited France
Galva's immedhate oaren: comodny, amounting (0 £50 8 Payrrent of the draedend reduced Hill & Sionth (Trance) cimited's netassels to £0 =
and as a esull. the Comyany has recogmsed animpalimen: charge of £46 4min relaton o s mvesiment i Hill & Smith {France} Limited

Stock Code HILS

SINAWILVLIS TIVIONVNIA
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Continued

7. Debtors due in more than one year

Ras ared

2121
£
Ao owed by subsihary undersaanys due after rore than one yea” ) ‘ . 85.7 942
95.7 947
et o the 2as1s OF pranatauon aote within the To noany Pnncpal Acnounnng Poloies T tarthes detanls on the pnoryear jestalenery
8. Debtors

Arouns awed py substdiacy undertakings
Corooration tax

Jefer-ed tax (note 11}

Dthe doeotors

Prapaymen:s and azoiued ncome

14.1 128

Refer 1o the basis o preparaticn nate within the Canrpany Prncinal Accounting Policies for “urthes detalls on the prior year “estatement

9, Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

23721
£m
. Bank loans and overdrafts {(note 10}

Rank overd-afis 12
T

Other creditors
T-ade crediio s 14
Othe: taxauon and somal secuitty oz
Accruals 5
hescreditns ae
Amounts owsd ta suosichary undertakings N 62 2
63 B8
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10. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
The Campanys inte:est heanng loans and oorowings a2 detalled below Further infor rancn on the Company s exaoswe o intaies! -ate and

foraIgn cuteNey Asks 3 ovided v note 24 0f the Srant Cmanzial statentents
2021
£
Bans loan:s 8.5 356
Lease hanlnes 0.2 23
8.7 369
The Company's banx aans and Horsmwings e also analysed below 1070 the penods inwhich they matue
20M
Bank loans and overdraft £m
Amounts due within one year (note 9) . 19 12
Amounts due after more than one yea:
Between one and two years o6
Berwesn two and five yoars -
366
378
11. Deferred tax
2321
11
Deferred tax asse: — At 1 Lanuary 03
Credit for the year in the Jra®t and loss account j24a]
iCharge) credi, for the yedr directly in equity U4
Deferred tax asset - At 31 December 13
13

Othe: timing differences

12. Pension liabilities

The Company Gontrioutes to the Groun's Hill & Smith 2376 Pension Scheme, which has sections providing benefits acerung o she future on a
defined benefis basis and on a defined cont 1uton Dasis Detalls of the Scherre and the most recent actuanal valuations are contained i note
27 o the Group Tinancial Statements There a'c alsn seoaraie nersonal pension plans

The Co vinany's o-ofi for the year includes a pensian chasge of F3 41 {2021 £0 3m), whizh mzludes the costs of the defined contnbunion
scherres and the defined benet schemes

13. Called up share capital

Allotted, called up and fully paid i
80m Urdinary Sha-es of 25p each (202779 871) e G

In 2022 the Company issued 0 2 shares under its vanous share option schemes (2021 0 3m), realising £1 97 (2021 £2 6m). Details of share
apticns and related share-based payren:s ave contained in note 25 to the Group Financial Statements

Each ordinay share zarmes equal voting nghts and there are no restrictions on any share

Stock Code HILS

SINIWILYLS TYIONYNIL
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cantinued

14. Guarantees

SUBSIDIARY AUDIT EXEMPTIONS

il R Sauth PLD has tssued guaraniess over the iatalties of the following dedomunanny 100 ading LK ausidianes Az ot 37 Decendha 20722
ungar Sootun 4790 af the Companies Act 2006 Those entries 3 axentst ont the requiranenss of the Azt elamng to tha audst oF indndial
acenunts Dy vicue of Sention 4794 of the Agt

Company Name Caompany Number
Ba Jon 2isa Supdoits Limited 21925544
Sergen Pipe Sunso 1357003 Linuted S10rE8S
Ak & Srith linceinational) Liited 33140
il e Sriiiht lAreenicas) Lirned 0726958°
il & Snth Aoreicas) 2 imited 10733462
Hill & Sreich (Americas) 3 Limited 12060545
il & Sonth (France) Limised 6768033
Al & STuth Dve seas Limied 06674400
Hill & Srevh (T casasyy Limitad 06814750
=ul & Soth ILSA) Limited JHB7677S
Hill & Srizh sAustalia) Limited 14411306
Hardsta™ Baners Crred S27a 285
Cobaco Hoidings Jned 08377213
SiIgnpos. Solutons Linted 311384535
Mallatite Minor St uctures & Products omned 13717429
Bowater oo s _rmited 13738720

. —xzamet ired 13748579
VMS Newco Limited 12968500
Vadley & Qulliver irread J0330433
Ash & Lacy Limited a0c4a716%
Ash & Lacy Manufaciunng Linated 33008964
Ash & _acy Se-vices himited 02798286
Hawkstiead Properies _rmited 0056245°
Red nan Sisne” Sagineenng Limired 337633756
Widnes Galvardsing Levuted 02206443

The Cormpany guarantees the bank l0ans. overdra®s and other nor-owings 07 certam subsidiary underta<ings. The amoun: outstanding at
31 December 2027 was £98 8m (2021 £103 2m)

15. Related party transactions
The Comraany has related darty relationshins with 175 key managenrant se-sonnel and with 155 sussidhanes (either directly or indirectly conzrollad)

The related party transacuons with Key managemen: personnel g-e considered by the Company 10 be the same as those of the Group and are
set ou i noie 6 to the Group minancial Statements

The Company has taken the available exemphon under FR5 101 not to disclose iransactions with whally owned Group companies
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16. Subsidiaries
INCORPORATED IN THE UK

AAJG Haldings ot

55 Jesign & Tnginesinyg rrned ()
Aalid any reted ()T

Ash & _asy Manwraztwmg Linvred

Ash & Laoy Sewvices omred (1
Asset Internanonal Limited (D)

ATS Access LTD IR)

AW Thoine | imited iD=

Barkers Engineenng Livired (R ()
Bergen Pine Supoorts Group Limited (17
Bergen Pipe Sunpots Jited (H)
Bery Safaty Systens crmited (D)
Bery Systems Jimited (D)

Bizel Sioup e (D)

Bitiey Groun Lited (E, G)

Bowate Joors Dimred D)

Rromiotd Steel mted (D)

Byrec Jrnited (D)

Caningmon Paceaging _reed (£
Cosaco Holdings imited 1H)
Copara 1mried {D)

Cooper Securities [Dudiey) Linted ()
Cuocper Secunitics _irviced (D)

Dee O-gan _imited (in

Dxoamer Bulding Produsts winmiad ()
Exparmet : imized {5}

Fargen Renewahles _imited (D)

HES Txoamet Limited (<)
Aawkshead Propearties Limited ()
Hardstalf Barners _imited (R)

Hill & Srith {amencas) _irmited ()
Hill & Smith (aqrencas) 2 cimized (1)
Hill & Struth (Amencas) 3 - imited (H)
Hilt & Snoich (Aus-akia) Limited (HY
Hill & Srith france) Limited {H)*
Hill & Srvith (Treasusy) Limited (H)*
Hill & Snizh (USAY Jimted [H)

Hill & Sruth (VSG) Cirred (D)

& Suth Galvanesed Products Linmited (=)

SEE Snrish Growo Liosted ()

Hill & Srwh PLE [H)

Stock Code HILS

SNiEE St cnteraational) Linted (H)

H L& Serh I agusture Products Group

rred 1)
il & S vt Infrastructure irred ()T
Hill & Semith Overzeas Larited ()
& Sruth Pension Trustees _imited (D)
o &7 Pool Jimmited (D)
Jevons ools Limited (D)
Josesh Ashiwmired (G)

aonweld Steel Limited (D)

onweld Kennedy =loonng Limited (E}*
Mallgnre Lirited (3%

Mallanie Ming Structures & Products
Lired 1

Medway Galvansing Company _irited (G
Paking —actitios Linrad (R)

Pine Sussois Jverseas Limted (=)

Post & Column _imred {0

Pramuer Gatvamzing _imited 15}

Prolect e Services _td {R)*

Redmnan Architeciural Metalworc b imited D)

Redman Fisher Sngineenng _imited (k)

Safety and Secu ity Barner Holdings
Jrmized 4]

Sagnature Limised (D)
Signpos: Solutions Limited (D)
Tegrel Limited (D)

The Glabe Tank and Foundry
{Wolverhamptan) Limited (D}

Varasle Message Signs _imited (D)
Varley & Gulliver Limited (D)

Viswa Galvarizing (UK) Limited (D)
VME Newso Dmited (R)

Wegern Galvanizers Limited (0}
Wormbwell Foundry Limited (DY

Widnes Galvanising Limited (G)

Ali of the above gubsidiaries have a yeai end

date of 31 Decernber and are included in
the consohdated results of the Group The
Company holds 100% of the share capital

of all businesses, either directly ar indirectly,

unless cthe-wise stazed All of the abave

subsidhanes have a registered ofice address
at Weasthaven House, Arleston Way, Shelay,

Solthull, B90 41,4, =ngland.

)

=) Zngmearad Salunons

Wik wnlvamong

JI0 s ranT

(HI Holding Somipany

slirectyieid Sy -

& amh e 3

SINIWILVLS TVIONYNIL
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Continued

16. Subsidiaries continued
INCORPORATED IN AUSTRALIA

il & S 2, mend

INCORPORATFED IN JFRSFY
AR Sivth siaeyt Lentad (H)

¥

Vigia rmed 0N

INCORPORATED ININDIA

Bargen Mine Supsorts (india) Private
Lirred (2)

Hill & Sireh Infastructure Products India
Prvate irmiited {0

INCORPORATED IN IRELAND

Qedman -isher Lrnted 2
il & Smithvreland) Lrliered Company (1)

INCORPORATED IN NORWAY
ATA AIll & Smeh A% R)

INCORPORATED IN SWEDEN
ATA HIll & Sreich AB (R)
FMK T-afikaodukie AB (D)

iINCORPORATED IN SPAIN

FPiolectz Salar Lighing S ()

INCORPORATED IN THE USA

Sen 2iae SUdo0ita, N )

Camenter & Pate-scn g Db
Croouye Dult usions, ne 501

CPK Manufasta iy

CPCA Manutactunng . C (B}

HUIL& Smich Group Heldings, Inz o0
& STeh US Goun Ine L b

Hilb & Smith, Inc (R)

National Signal i C (R}

VoIgr & Schweartzer L_C(H)

VRS Arrboy Galvamsang _LC (G)
V&S Zolurbus Gakamnizing LLC (Gl
YRS Delaware Galvamzing LC ()
V&S Detroit Gahamzing LT (G)
V&S Levanon Galvamizing LLC [5)
VES Memphis Galvamizing LI C 1G)
V&S New Yook Galvanizing  [.C (G
V&S Schuler Engineenng, e (=)
V&S Sehuler Tubukar Producis LLC (D)
V&S Taunton Sabvanizing, -LT (3)

All of the above sussidianes have & year end
date of 31 Decemper, with the exception of
Bergen Pipe Supan-ts {India) Private Limited
and Hill & Smith Inf-asructute Products
India Prvate Uinmcad, which each have a
year end of 3% March All of the sunsuhanes
hsted avove are included in the consohdated
results of the Group The Company Nolds
“00% of the share cantal of all ausinesses,
either di-ectly or indirectly

(EY Cngeneered Sclutions
[R1 Roads & Secunty

1G) Galvamaing

{0} Darmarnt

{H) olding Cormpany

* Directly heid by Fill & Smith PLC
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

m 2021 2020 2000

£ fm Fm

Revennah 7321 5252 588 4 8172
Urdaily g oparatng profit® 971 i3 Bd 7 Bl 3 a4
ncarlyeig profit bator e taxaton® 879 A 573 731 7o
Shaneholder s funds ' 395.0 J33 6 3255 30740 293 2
m Pence Ponce Pance Panue
Underlying earings ner shareh - N 85.4 700 573 745 G
Poposed dividends per share . ﬁ;ﬁ- 310 26 7 106" 318

* "ng prooosad firai diagend for 2012 9F 273 39 por 593re was wit diawe and eol pad

= Cont quing aperaters

Stock Code HILS

SINAWIALYLS TVIONYNIS
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Annual General Meeting Thursday 25 May 2023

Trading Update Thursday 25 May 2023
Ex-dividend date for 2022 final dividend Thursday 1 June 2023

Record date 2022 final dividend Friday 2 June 2023

Dividend Reinvestment Plan — last date for election Friday 16 June 2023

Final 2022 ordinary dividend payahle Friday 7 July 2023
Announcement of 2023 interim results Wednesday 9 August 2023
Trading Update Wednesday 29 November 2023
Ex-dividend date for 2023 interim dividend Thursday 30 November 2023

Record date 2023 interim dividend Friday 1 December 2023

Dividend Reinvestment Plan - last date for election Tuesday 12 December 2023

Payment of 2023 interim dividend Friday 5 January 2024
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Shareholder base
Holdings of shares at 28 rebruary 2023
Range of shareholders Number of holders % Number of shares %
1500 595 37214 11300 04 =
50 - 1400 2649 1451 208775 325
Hak R uldr 2/ 34 TR TR )
D307 =53.0010 306 BT 4533593 S
90,001 -100,000 53 33 47922249 023
1003071 530,000 80 432 19092627 23 84
200,307 - 7,000,358 19 113 12,/94 887 598
Above 1,000,007 "9 103 37882854 47 35
1,853 13000 31,033,243 13003
Shareholder base
Nurnber of holders % Number of shares %
Indhividuals 1.370 7393 3400798 425
Insttutions 4765 2369 75,664,454 3573
Gihes corporate 7 038 18,6581 002
1,853 1O a0 80,083,243 10050
Dividend History — proposed dividend per share
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
nerms 132 120 32 106 131
Final 220 190 175 - 273
350 370 267 06 38 [ ]

Communication with shareholders
and analysts

Directors mee: with reajor sha-eholdes and
potental investors following ntenm and
final results, and 8t oher “ures ¥ requested
Presentations ‘or analysts are also held

on the day of these announceents and
we keep i regula. cantast with analysis
throughout the yea

Corporate information

The Aniual and Interm Resors ae the
mMam “onns of cormmunication with our
shareholders We have updated ou” website
to sunplement these renorts with addinonal
nformation The wanstte address s

wiwvw hsgroun comt and ncludes sharve prce
informaton, investar elations mformation
and contact detanls

Annual General Meeting

The AGM of the Company will be held

at 11.00 an on Thursday 25 May 2023

at Cranmore Pack Conference, Zvent &
Exhibition Centre, Granmore Avenue, Shirley.
West Midlands, B30 4L= Unied Kingdom
Full details are contained wrrhin the Notice of
AGM A proxy card s also enclosed with this
siaiement for votng Alternatively, you can
voie elecironically 85 explained oelow

Electronic proxy voting

Ta Indge your proxy vore via theintemnet, log
ON Lo WAL INVESTO Camtre 00 Lik/enroxy

Stock Code HILS

You will need the Cant ol nurhber,

Sharehalder Rafeience cumber {SRNY and
PiN nureoes 3 nted on youi Forr of Proxy
where you will find the “ull nstructhions

Shareholding online

Commreishare investor Centre qives access
o view your holdings onine To -egister chck
an lavesty: Centa on the Computershare
hame page www.comoutersha e oo and
‘allow thenstructions

You will ae able to

- View all your holding detais
for cormpanies egistered with
Comoutershare

- View the rraret value of your portfolio

+  WUpdate your contact address and
nersonal derails onhine

+ Agcess current and historical market
prices

- Access trading graphs.

+  Add addional shareholdings to your
portfolio.

Share dealing

Share dealing services are avatlasle thiough
Computarshare Investar Services PLC

_0g 0Nt www cormoute’share camy
sharedealingcente “or ntemne: share dealing
and for teleghone dealing ring

0370 703 0084

Dividend Reinvestment Plan ‘DRIP’

The Company oite s shaehol

‘he faziiy

0 amvest then cash dividends o buy mare
shares in the Comaany

The se-vice allows you 12 Increase
your sharcholding in an easy and
convenient way

Online apalization oiocess enadles
you 13 participate casily and secuiely
WWW INVESLOICeNtIe.ca Uk

Click on’Reqister’ to sign up 'o the
Investor Cent-e Thrs will allcw you to
carry out a numoaer oF share related
transachions online, Including opting
far the DRIP

You will be required to fill in your SRN
and your postcode, together with
your eTall address You wil atso He
asxed 'o select a user name {1DY and
sasaword of your choi

Once regstered select Dividend
Plans” from the left hand menu and
amend your current cash dividend
nstuchion, conflrming acceptance of
the DRIP tems and conditions

New shares will be purchased as soon
as possible on or after the dividend
pay date

Shareholder helpline number

Thee s a helaline for shareholders who have
enguines anout their shareholdings. The
dechcated helpline numberis 0370 707 1058
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PRINCIPAL GROUP BUSINESSES

Roads & Security

UNITED KINGDOM

ATG Access Ltd*

‘anufar and matadaton of hoghle
vehusle TRIgaIINT and Denrmater SesuUTy
solutions mcludhng aollird o rad slockars,
Darm s and ganes

Cogaca House, Nostt F o wda Road Havacok
Industoal Fstate, Flaydook Merseyside,
WA QTR

Tel +44.0; 8456 /57574

WWW D Jaccess com

Hill & Smith Infrastructure Limited
Highway and o lighway satery oainers,
neimanent and tenpoiay salunnas for
vehizle est-aints, and -etaned sarth syste s
for Highway & Ranl constriction sectars

Sonngvale Busmess and Indusinal Pai<,
Bilston, Wolverhampion, Wy 14 004

Tel -44:0) "9D2 439400
Tax +44 1) 13024373473

wiw all-sith oo ok

Barkers Engineering Limited*
Saometan senutity solumons and fasioaers

Du<e Sireet, Fenon, Stoke-on Trent,
Staffordshre, ST4 3NS

Tel +44 ((0) 1782 319264
“ax +44.,0) 1782 599724

WWW DArKer SengInee INg.son

Mallatite Limited

Manufaciuse oF lghtng Solu Tns, nespo<a
supps T srucires raffe
susto i assosated sghong s sduits

S

—oimiewaod industiol St —Hadwick
YView “oad, Holrewond, Chesterfield
Nerbyshire, $42 55A

Tel #4440} 1246 H03780
Fax +44 {0) 7245 59328

www mallatire 2o u<

Parking Facilities Ltd*

Design, mranufacture and suonly of Darang
and aczess cont ol producis ncluding
gates, barners, bolla-ds, nsing keros and
50280 ramos

Unil One. Kingsbury Link Trinity 2oad,
Tarmworth Saffordshire, B78 28X

Tel +44 [0) 1827 870750
rax +44 (J) 1827 870251

www aarking‘acilities co u<

Prolectric Services Ltd*
UK's leading oxaer on sustamasiz ighting,
sower and securty

35 Hiher Green indus nal cstate.
Clevedon BS21 6xL

Tel ~A4{M127%5 400570

Wy aralectnic oo u

~ Tne Cormmpany's effective interest 1s bald indirectly for these tadertakings

196  Hill & Smith PLC - Annual Report and Accounts 2022

REST OF THE WORLD

ATA Hill & Smith AB*

Soad signayge and trafhic safery snhiions
Inenepnrared i Seedon

Staffans wag 7752 78 Sollenuna, Sweden
Te| ~46 '3 440 77 Ot

Tax +46 (038292515

wwww ata se

Hill & Smith, inc.*

Tempolary read barmer solutions for work
zune protécuon sroviding smart, safe,
mnovaive solulions for the raffic safety

and highwey inf-asiructure husinesses

Ineo porated in the USA

2745 ot Drve, Sue 3104320, Colurnus,
Ctis, .S

A37°9Tel ~" {674) 340 6294

Tax vt (B14) 340 5206

wwiw ndlands iy com

National Signal LLC*

Manufazturer of po-table solar hght towers,
portadle hyhd sola- hight towe s and other
hghting ower salutions

2440 Artesla Ave, Fullerton, Caliiorma, LS

Tel +7 (BB8) 994 3300
www.nationalsignaling oo

Hill & Smith Pty Ltd*
Wire 1o0e and temporaty sa‘ety baners
Incorporated in Australia

PO Box 9406, Wynnum Plaza Wynnum Wast,
Queensland, 4178, Australia

Tel +61 (D) 73162 6378

www hsroads com au

Notes

The atove 1515 the Company’s subsidiary
underta<ings exceol for sorme ntermadiate nolding
companies and certain other undertakings of
minor IMportance Except where indicatad, the
undertakings are subsidanges incernmated in Great
Brrain and the share capra carsists of ordmary
shares 0y



Engineered Solitions

UNITED KINGDOM

Birtley Group Limited
Galvanized Incels, construction fittags,
composite doocs, hulders melalws i &

ATt 0TeannnIes

Mary Avenue, S tley, Sounty duiha
DA3 "UF

Tl +44{0) 19" 470 6637
wirew Dirtleygrou co uk

Lionweld Kennedy Flooring Limited
Dpen steel flooning, handrailing and anciffary
products

Ma sh Road, Middiestrough, 737 505

Tal +44( 1642 2457 5"
Fax +44:0) 1642 224710

wisw lic ik com

UNITED STATES OF
AMERICA

Creative Pultrusions, Inc.*
Manutacture of fibie reinfarced Dolymer
=Py comoosite profiles

24 Indusiial Lane, Alur Bank,
Pennsylvania, 15521 LBA

Tel +1/(814)3304186
Toll free # 888 CPIPLLL {274-7855)
rax. =1 (814) 830 4276

wivw Sreativecomnositesyroup com

E.T. Techtonics (D)

Design and const-ucuon of fherglass
bndge and voardwalk systems

Wi CreativezomMaestesdiann.com

Nates

Kenway Composites (D)
Advanced cuSion comsosre
Tanuasie g and soofessianal freld

27 Lms :Lw [ I TU NP TN T O [

WVAY O3 Nw Y Com

Tower Tech (D}

Manufacure of cooling towe: preducts
that effectively idge the gan octween
sustainability and energy efficiency

wiwse tower leching, com

Composite Advantage (D)

A leading manu‘asiurer for Tibe Renforced
Palymer compasite Badge, waetfont and
ralin®ast usiure Marels

Wy 00 ealivecomposiesy ous com

V&S Utilitieg**

=abncation of electnical ransnmussion
and subsauon stuctures and supplier of
SUAStation 24t<aqIrg services

387 Bug<aye Park Road, Colurmous, O,
A3 USA

Tel +" (074) 4435 8281

wwwy vgschules 2om

Bergen Pipe Supports, Inc.*
Manufacture and supaly of pipe supponrs
salutions, including constant and vanable
effort sUvoors

484 Galif'a e, Donara, Fennsylvania,
15033, USA

Tal =1 (724y 379 5772

Fax +* {774) 379 9343

WWW DIDESURDOMS Com

Carpenter & Paterson, Inc.*
tnchustial aipa Pangers, Teral farming
channel and fasieney

225 Merinraz Soe! Woo
Massachusens, 11827 L&A

Tel +7 {781)935 2950
vaww pIpehangers com

Novia Corporation, Inc.*
Vioration and sersimic contral manufacture”
T Northwestern Jnve, Salem, NA 33079, LUSA

Tel, ~1 (603) 898 8600
Fax -1 1603} 838 2755

WAYW ZD-N10VIA ToM

India

Bergen Pipe Supports (india)
Private Ltd*

Manufacture and supply of pipe suppo-ts
sofutions, INCluding cryogenic supono-ts
o porated m India

Plot No 72, Ground Sloorn, 'RAJHA, Mangala
Magar Maln Road Porai Chennar 40076

Tel +81 8576 300 660

WINW DIDESUDDGHS CON

Tre zove lists the Company's subsichary undertakmngs, except for some intenmediate 20lding corganes and serar other undanaiorgs of minor wrportarce Excent
where 1ndicated, the underiakiigs are supsihanes incoroiated in Great Britar ard the snars capita consists of ordinary shares or

¥ The Comzany's effectve inlerast s neld indirectly tor these anderta<angs

YEOading name for VRS Sone er Engireenng Ing and VA3 Schuer Tubd'ar 2ioducts T2 Both areindirectly hald, wholly awned and ncaorated e che USA

DY Dzerauryg asior oy aat 3 vTied Sunnary

Stock Code HILS

PlosbLwida s 00 of ol b | e LF,



PRINCIPAL GROUP BUSINESSES continued

Galvanizing Services

UNITED KINGDOM

Joseph Ash Limited*

Dalvanmzing servioes

Alcora Butding 2, Muoc<low Hil = falosowen,

CAdlands, 1362 83045

Tel = d4.0) 127 534 7240
Tax +A44 01127 504 25599

www J0senhash co uk

Medway Galvanising Company
Limited*

Galvanizing sho*blasting and aowder
Cealng scrvices

Castle Road, Furalnt industial Centre,
Senaghourne, Kant VIETD 33N

Tei «44 (D)~ 795 470430

Fax ~44{0) ~795 477598

www miedgaly oo ux

Premier Galvanizing Limited*
Gatvanizing and powder coating sevices

Unit 25, Stonefery Busmess Park,
Foster Stieet, Zast Ading of Yoikshire,
HLE 881

Tel +A4 {0) " 482 587587
Fax +44 () " 482 5855090

www oremiergaly Co K

Widnes Galvanizing Limited*
Galvanizing services

Tarrway Trading Park, Diton Road, Widnes,

Cheshire, WAS ONZ
Tel +44 (0) 151 495 1939

www widnesgalvanising oo uk

Mates

Barkers Engineering Limited*
Galvanizing and powder coating sevices

Du<e Street Tonton, Slo<e on Tong
Safforashire, b4 ANS

Tl =440) 1782 3433811
Fax +44101 1782 344574

www Darkersgalvanizing com

Birtley Group Limited

Galvanizing services

Mary Avenue, Birtley, County Durham,
DH3 "u"

Tel +440) 191 410 4471
Fan +44{70) "57 492131/

wiww Dirtleygalvamzing oo uk

United States of
America

Voigt & Schweitzer LLC*

Galvamzing services

987 Zuc<aye Par< Road,
Columbus Oino, 43227, USA

Tol +1{674) 449 5251
Tax +1(614) 449 835°

www.hotdingalvanizing cone

Tae above Iists the Comoany’s stuusidary uaderiakings, except fo sarve intenmediate bowing comparnes and certain other underta<ings of miror imoartance Excalt
whara indicated, the undertakings aiz sunsrhanes ncorporated in Grear 2nts 1 and 12 $have caotal consists of ordinary shares only

~ The Company’s effective interest 15 eidirdiecy for these urdertakings
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Hill & Smith PLC
Registered Office
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The produchon of this repor: supverts the work of the Woodland Trust,

the UK's leading woodland conservaion charity Zach free planted will

grow 102 a vizal carbon store, helping 1o reduca 2nvionmental irpac:

as well as creanng natuel havens for wildhfe and people @ Jonetandpaimercok




